Rentokil
Initial

Protecting People. Enhancing Lives,

A world of
innovation

Rentokil Initial plc
Annual Report 2019

Company Number 05393279

-
<
[=]
v
x
=]
I TNNLE*
|
20/08/2020

COMPANIES HOUSE




Strategic Report

2 OurBusiness at a Glance

4 O&A with Andy Ransom, Chief Executive
6 Our 'Big Six' Challenges

8 Reasons to Invest

customer and regulatory requirements are
leading to an increasing use of innovative,
non-toxic solutions in pest control.

Find out more on page 10

12 Key Performance Indicators
12 Colleagues
13 Customers
14 Shareholders

mylearning is Rentokil's unique online,
e-earning Pest Awareness training
platform accessible via PC, tablet and
smartphone,

Find out more on page 16

18 Our Business Mode!
20 Our Culture
22 QOur Stakehoiders

About us

Protecting people.
Enhancing lives.

At Rentokil Initial we protect people and enhance lives
around the world from the dangers of pest-borne
disease and the risks of poor hygiene. We enhance lives
with services that protect the health and wellbeing of
people, and the reputation of cur customers’ brands.

oo

We performed strongly in 2019 with our
highest leve| of organic growth in 15 years,
driven by our growing presence in higher
growth markets, enhanced customer
retention and our strong innovation
programme.

Andy Ransom

Chief Executive

Our Lumnia fly control unit is the world’s
first to use energy efficient LEDs to
transmit UV fight in the capture of flies.

@ Find out more on page 24
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We are digitally remastering our frontline
service provision to enhance customer
service and productivity,
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We are proud te work with collaborative
partners whe bring specialist expertise
to our Innovation projects.
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We are using unclaimed dividends

to launch a fund — called Rentokil Initial
Cares —to support geed causes around
the world.

@ Find out more on page 50

° The Financial Review on pages 11B 10121
forms part of the Strategic Report



Corporate Governance

()

The business has perfermed well through
the clarity of its strategic execution and
the enthusiasm and delivery focus of our
colleagues. The Board remains highly
engaged in all aspects of the business and
will continue to work with the leadership
team to help ensure future success for all
our stakeholders.

Richard Solomons

Chairman
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We've had ancther very good year in 2019,
with our financial results once agsain ahead
of our three medium-term targets of revenue,
profit and cash.

Jeremy Townsend
Chief Financial Officer
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We are using QR codes throughout

this decument for you to use via your
smartphone. Just scan the code to access
richer video content.

Financial performance

Ongoing Revenue (at CER} @

¢2,644.5m 86%

Organic Revenue growth

+4.5% 2018 3.7%)

Revenue (at AER}

¢2,714.4m +0.8%

Ongoing Operating Profit (at CER) €

£365.5m +10.5%

Profit before tax (at AER)

£338.5m +£452.6m

Free Cash Flow (at AER) @

¢250.7m 9869

Free Cash Flow
conversicn

2019 full-year dividend

5.15p +15.2%

@ KPls, see more on page 12

Alternative Performance Measures

This Annual Report includes certain financial
performance measures which are not GAAP measures
as defined under International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS). These include Ongoing Revenue,
Ongoing Operating Prefit, Adjusted Profit Before Tax
and Free Cash Flow. Management believes these
measures provide valuable additional information for
users of the financial statements in order to understand
the underlying trading performance. Ongoing Revenue
and Ongoing Operating Profit measures represent the
performance of the continuing operations of the Group
(including acquisitions) after removing the effect of
disposed or closed businesses. Ongoing Profit and
Adjusted Profit Before Tax exclude certain items that
could distort the underlying trading performance.
Ongoing Revenue and Ongoing Operating Profit

are presented at CER unless otherwise stated.

An explanation of the measures used along with
reconciliation to the nearest IFRS measures is
provided in Section E — Alternative Performance
Measures on pages 160 to 164.

Rentokil Initial plc 1
Annual Repori 2019



Our Business at a Glance
Global reach. Local focus.

Rentokil Initial is a global leader in the provision of route-based services
which protect people and enhance lives, everywhere. We operate in 90
of the world’s 100 leading cities — from Los Angeles to Amsterdam, and
Singapore to Auckland. Our care services are pest control and hygiene
and we offer a range of smailer specialist services including plants,
property care and workwear. We are a multi-local business operating in
81 countries around the world, employing arcund 43,000 people in 2019,

(6) Pest Control
S

Rentokil Pest Control is the world's
leading International commercial pest
control service provider, offering the
highest levels of risk management,
reassurance and responsiveness

tc customers.

Operating in 81 countries.

Ongoing Revenue (CER)

64

of Group
Ongeing
Revenue

@ Hygiene

Initial Hygiene Is the world’s leading
commercial hygiene services provider
offering services including the provision
and maintenance of products such as air
fresheners, sanitisers, feminine hygiene
units, hand dryers, paper and linen towel
dispensers, soap dispensers and floor
protection mats.

Operating in 46 countries,

Ongoing Revenue (CER)

21%

of Group
Ongoing
Revenue

£1,700.14m 108 £546.8m .58«

@ Find out more on page 26

@ Find out moie on page 34

}9@ Protect & Enhance

Rentokil Initial offers a range of other
route-based services o meet custermner
needs in plants, workwear, property
care, medical and specialist hygiene
services.

Operates acrass four businesses.,

Ongoing Revenue (CER)

15%

of Group
Qngoing
Revenue

£397.6m 35+

Find out more on page 39

Revenue figures above and overleaf are at constant exchange rates (CER) and represent Ongoing Revenue from continuing operations and exclude revenue
from businesses disposed and clased but include revenue from acquisitions.

Our purpose

Our purpose is to protect people and
enhance lives, everywhere, We protect
people from the dangers of pest-borne
disease and the risks of poor hygiene.

We enhance lives with services that protect
the health and wellbeing of people and

the reputation of our customers’ brands.

Rising standards of public health, stricter
food safety regulation and the need to
comply with workplace safety regulations

are driving demand for our service expertise.

As 8 business we also create vaiue for our

shareholders through our economic success.

2 Rentokil Initial plc
Annual Report 2019

Our culture

Our culture is characterised as customer
focused, commercial, diverse, down to earth
and innovative. We have small teams of highly
engaged colleagues, trained and incentivised
to deliver world-class service. Cur business

is relentiessly focused from frontline to
boardrecm on how to keep improving,
innovating and executing aur strategy,
whether through learning and development,
the roll-out of iInnovations or the introduction
of industry-leading digital tools.

@ Find out mare on page 20

Our values
Three core things underpin everything we do,

Service

We are passionate about delivering excellent
customer service to every customer, on time
and as promised.

Relationships

We value long-lasting relatienships with our
colleagues and customers and keep them
informed about changes that affect them.
We listen and act upon pecple’s needs and
concerns and are honest and strafghtforward
in our conversations with them.

Teamwork

Our business is all about great teamwork
— getting it right, for our colleagues,
customers and other stakeholders.
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Revenue by region

c90% 1,800+

service coverage locel service teams
of global GDP

81 90 out
countries of
operation, including Of 100

new market entries
into Uruguay, Jordan of the world's leading
and SriLanka cities covered by

our operations

North America

o | ,040.3m
+11.4%

Asia

£234.4m
+11.1%

Eurepe (inc. UK &
Latin America) Rest of World

¢715.0m c464.8m
+7.1% +6.3%

Pacific

£190.0m
+2.6%

Europe Our RIGHT WAY plan
Naorth (inc. Latin UK & Our RIGHT WAY plan divides

£m America America) Rest of World Asia Pacific Total our business into five geographic

Pest Control 949.0 288.3 2176 161.0 842 170041 regions and three core categories.
all operating on a low-cost,

Hygiene - 192.7 1915 71.3 1.3 546.8 single-country operating structure.
Since 2014, we have consistently

Protect & Enhance 91.3 234.0 557 21 145 3976 implemented an effective strateqgy
at pace and this has delivered

Total 1,040.3 715.0 464.8 234.4 190.0 2,644.5

consistent progress against

our financial targets,

We are a streng and focused
business, operating in higher
growth markets, with improving
levels of organic growth, reduced
capital intensity, high levels of
cash generation and a proven
and successful M&A capability,

Rentokil Initial plc
Annual Report 2018



Q&A with Andy Ransom, Chief Executive

Innovation is embedded within our culture

o

Innovation is part of our culture.
t’s not just a function, nor just
product development, but a way
of thinking. All our colleagues
are encouraged and empowered

te improve and enhance our
business performance by
innovating. At Rentokil Initial,
it's everyone’s responsibility.
Andy Ransorn

Chief Executive

©

The Caompany has performed very
well again in 2019. What are your
highlights for the year?

LA

The first highlight, a topic always first on
our agenda, was our health and safety
performance. We recorded our best ever
Lost Time Accidents perfermance at 0.53,
and also achieved our five-year target

of reducing our emissions by 20% a full
year early.

Next, our Organic Revenue growth. At 4,5%,
itis the highest rate of annual growih we have
seen in 15 years. It reflects good progress in all
regions from all business lines, not just in Pest
Control. Hygiene continues to perform well,
delivering 4.3% Organic Revenue growth in
2019, considerably above our expectations of
2% 10 3%. Protect & Enhance also delivered

a much improved performance on 2018,

up 3.2% Crganic Revenue growth. France
Workwear, Ambius and Property Care all
perfarmed more strongly. At 10.5%, Ongoing
Operating Profit delivery this year is above our
medium-term target of 10.0%. Finally,

we delivered Free Cash Flow of £250.7m:

at 98.6%, conversion is considerably above
our 90% target.

M&A is again a highlight. We sald we would
spend in excess of £250m. We spent £316.5m
on 41 deals — 30 of which are In Pest Control
and nearly half of those in North America.

The pipeline looks strong and we are confident
of more progress in 2020. All of this is

A Rentokit Initial plc
Anruai Report 2019

underpinned once again by good progress
across our Employer of Choice pecple agenda.

Not everything went our way, with
disappointing performance in our businesses
in India and Singapore. We had issues with
fumigation in Australia and Malaysia, which
have been addressed but remain a priority
focus. Overall, however, the Company is
performing well and set to continue to
progress in 2020.

(G

Why is innovation so important to
Rentokil Initial and does it really
make a difference?

0

It's about three things: a better experience for
our customers, a more effective outcome, or
a solution at a lower cost. We want to identify
new solutions for existing pest centrol
problems or bygiene needs, of course. But
we alsc want to find ways to address new or
emerging preblems, such as pest migration
or air guality, or solve those that no one has
yet managed to, such as offering truly
environmentally sustainable services.

As well s maintaining our fantastic quality

of service, we also need to differentiate cur
products and services from our competitors’
50 that customers will come to us knowing we
offer the best solution in the market for their
needs, whether in pest control, hygiene or
our other businesses. This could mean more
targeted pesticides or using less or safer
chemicals. It could also mean connected

devices to identify and s{art resoving &
problem eariier, or inventing more effective
solutions such as using LED lights

in our eiectronic fly traps.

Does it really make g difference? Yes,
absolutely. Our customers, especially

the largest, teli us that innovation is very
important to them. In areas such as
environmentally friendly solutions itis
something they are asking vs for more and
more. We have been working hard at this for
years now and already lead our sectors in
delivery, but this remains a key cpportunity.

Find cut more about how we innovate
at Rentokil in the case studies on
pages 10, 16, 24, 32, 42 and 50

®

What sets Rentokil Initial apart from
other industry players who also
claim to be highly innovative?

LA

At Rentokil Initial, innovation is part of our
culture. it's not just a function, nor just
product development. Innovation is a

way of thinking and ail our colleagues are
encouraged and empowered to improve
customer service and enhance our business
performance by innovating. At Rentokil Initial,
it’s everyone’s responsibiiity. If any of us
see an opportunity to change the way our
job is done that results in a better service
for customers and/or a lower cost for us

to operate, then we are all encouraged

and incentivised to do that,



Second, we have a unique dedicated
innovation centre in the UK — called the Power
Centre — with talented PhD scientists applying
great expertise in rodent behaviour, insect
behaviour, in IT and design etc. We use all

this expertise to prioritise work on the projects
we believe will be the most effective and
successful. We select them based on what our
customers and frontling technicians tell us they
need — it's very much a model of customer-
driven pull, not central, top-down push.

A culture of perfermance and innovation
across our globai footprint, our unique
research capabilities applied to real customer
needs, and our understanding and readiness
to deploy new technologies are what,

I believe, set us apart from our competitors.

Find out more about our culture
on page 20

1CJ

Isn’t there a risk that advances in
technological innovation could
make much of what your technicians
do redundant?

(A

With change comes both risk and opportunity.
It's our belief at Rentokil Initial that we either
innovate or die. We considered whether we
should innovate with the intention of leading
our industry or whether we should become a
fast follower and watch how others innovate
and copy them. Not innovating at allis simply
not an option. Our conviction is that if we
innovate on the right things and in the right
way we will continue to lead our industries.
We want to innovate where the issues are
most complex and chailenging, oftenin

the most regulated parts of the industry.

This represents a significant opportunity to
grow our business and to grow it profitably.

There is an important place for technology
and the efficiencies and insights it can bring
but we are confident our core businesses will
always need skilled, expert peeple to engage
with our custormers, understand their needs
and find the best ways to meet them.

Find out more about digital innovatian
on page 32

®

What about innovation and the
environment? Does increasing
regulation get in the way of what
you're trying to achieve?

o

Regulation can be our frfend at Rentokil
Initial. We operate to the highest ethical and
legal standards so when new regulations are
brought in, we treat that as an opportunity.

We respond to regulatory standards
better and more quickly than most of our
competitors, which is an advantage for
our customers and our shareholders,

as well as our wider stakeholders.

orameyic keport LDIPOldie Oovemndioe

82%

of colieagues agree that
our company 1s innovative

oo

From digital pest control
to non-toxic solutions,
inhovation is at the core
of our business.

FINGNeiadl a2y AL norindLon

When it comes to the environment, we are
very much at the forefront of creating new
greener, cleaner and safer solutions and ways
of working that can be at least as effective

as current, traditional methods. They are

often more efficient for us as well — after all,
our 20% reduction in emissions since 2016, for
example, is alsc a 20% reduction in our energy
costs, over 80% of which are vehicle fuel,
worth over £8m a year. As the leading pest
control company in the werld, we are therefore
embracing this drive for greater sustainability
as not only the right thing to do for the planet
but also the best thing for our business.

Find out more about our approach
to running a responsible business
on page 44

©

In which other ways do you innovate
across the Group?

o

Rentokil Initial was founded on research-led
innovation and this is therefore part of our
cultural heritage, going back to a praduct
developed to control an infestation

of deathwatch beetle in the Houses of
Parliament back in 1920. We have been
innovating to service customer needs ever
since. I've said how | believe innovation

is everyone’s job here but let me show

you what our people say themselves.

This year we conducted our Your Voice
Counts survey of all colleagues. We had

a remarkable 20% response rate and,
according to colleagues right across our
global business, the highest scores were
given to innovation, alongside safety culture
and clarity of strategy and direction.

Here are just six examples ocut of many to
show how we innovate, We have partnered
with Cool Earth to protect almost 1,000 acres
of rainforest, preventing the release of carbon
into the atmosphere equivalent to our annual
footprint. We repurposed unclaimed dividends
and shares to create the innovative Rentokil
Initial Cares charitable fund. We are leading
users of Google apps, including Hangouts
calls instead of travelling to meetings and G+
social media to share technical expertise in
the field via smartphones. We use the Internet
of Things, big data analysis and artificial
intelligence to understand pest trends and
route our frontline schedules in real time. We
created targeted, measurable development
and coaching tools for line managers with cur
Line Manager Index. Finally, we have
developed our own OFSTED-approved
apprenticeship pregramme to investin and
create meaningful careers for new colleagues.

Find out more about our work with Cool
Earth and Rentokil Initial Cares on page 50

bl

Andy Ransom
Chief Executive

Rentokil Initial ple 5
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Our ‘Big Six’ Challenges

Our ‘big six’
challenges...

1

Employer of Choice/retention

Our people are our biggest socurce of
competitive advantage and the key to
profitable growth. Cur challenge is to be
an Employer of Cheice te drive further
improvements in colleague retention
across the Graup. By retaining and
investing in our people, we know we will
aiso improve retention of our customers.

What we said we’d do in last year’s

annual report

® Attract and retain talent in competitive
labour markets; improve colleague
engagement, enablement and retention;
focus on development and career
progression to build strong succession
pipelines; maintain our commitment
to diversity; and develop talent from
all backgrounds.

What we've done this year

© We have made significant improvements
in colleague retention and engagement
and enablement. All are now ahead
of the High Performance norm of 75%,

© The number of colleagues using our U+
online university 1o cornplete training
modules, both in branch and in the field,
has risen by over 30% this year.

© For the third year in a row, there is no
material gender pay gap within the UK
and female representation across al
work leveis is rising.

® The Company was recognised in 2019
by Management Today as Britain's Most
Admired Company for Diversity and
Inclusion and was ranked Sth in the
Hampton Alexander Review 2019 report
for FTSE 100 Board gender diversity.

Priorities for 2020

© Continue our progress on attracting,
developing and retaining the best
people around the world from the widest
possikle pool of talent; focus on career
development and progression; invest in
the capability of our managers in order 1o
enhance thelr coaching and development
skills; and maintain our commitment to
diversity and inclusion. This means gender
but also fecusing on otner efements of
diversity such as ethnicity and millenniais.

@ Find out more on page 46

6 Rentokil Initial ple
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Like all companies, we regularly
assess our strengths and
weaknesses and examine closely
the opportunities and threats

1o our business going forward.

In this section, we give a brief
overview of our ‘big six’ challenges,
with links to further details and
financiat metrics.

2

Driving Organic Revenue
growth in Pest Control

Pest Control grew organically by 4.9% in
2018. Our challenge is to drive sustainably
higher rates of organic growth across the
business, in particular in North America,
where we have set targets for revenue
($1.5bn} and margin (18%) by the end of 2021

What we s&id we'd do in fast year's

annual report

© Grow revenue and margin in North
America; leverage our exposure to
Emerging markets; deploy innovative
products and services to enhance
customer service, and support upseil and
1eelentlon; increase digitalisation of services
and productivity tools; develop our oniine
platform to drive new business; and
maximise cur capability in global accounts.

What we’ve done this year

© We have delivered 4.5% Organic Revenue
growth in North America and margin of
14.2%: and 4.9% Organic Revenue growth
in Emerging markets. Revenue from
innovations continues to be significant,
for example, with sales from Lumnia, the
warld's first LED fly trap, vising by 32%
and the number of PestConnect devices
installed across our portfolic growing
by 58%.

© Cuirently 96% of our commerciat
custamers use the myRentokil oniine
portal and visits to cur websites
increased by 30% ta 27.4 million.

© Giobal Accounts increased revenue
performance by 25%, reflecting new
contracts and additional business
from existing customers.

Priorities for 2020

® Target higher-growth pest opportunities
{notably mosquitces and bed bugs);
continue to deploy product and service
innevations and digital applications;
utilise our brand and digital marketing
to raise market presence; and grow
giobal accounts.

@ Find out more on page 28

3

Building our Hygiene business

Hygiene has had a very good year, growing
organicaily by 4.3%. Cur challenge is to build
the business into a second powerhouse to
Pest Control by driving growth and yield
management further and expanding into
higher-growth business lines such as
premium scenting and wellbeing.

What we said we'd do in last year's

annual report

© Build greater postcode density through
targeted selimg and acquisitions; enhance
product penetration by encouraging
customer take-up of multiple service lines,
and new product and service
ditterentiation; develop wellbeing
propositions in the global air care market;
and review opportunities in route-based
service and product extensions,

What we’ve done this year

© We have acquired eight new Hygiene
businesses, building & strong prasence
in Emerging markets inciuding Indonesia,
Malaysia, Chile and Colombia.

© We launched a range of environmentally
friendty hand soaps and new fragrances
within our air care range. We are in
late-stage development with our first range
of digital washroom products, including
a connected soap dispenserto track
customer usage. We are piloting other
product and service extensions including
a first aid service solution invelving the
provision of first aid Kits, defibriliaters
and eye wash solutions to customers.

Priorities for 2020

© Make acquisitions to build density;
deliver excellent custorer service
to drive retention and upsell; deliver
innovative producis and services to drive
range and velume ip customer premises;
and broaden our portfolio to include air,
first aid and Ambius (weilbeing).

@ Find out more on page 36



4

M&A execution

We have had another very successful year of
ME&A in 2019. Our challenge is te maintain a
strong pipeline of high-quality opportunities
in an ever-more competitive market, and to
integrate acqguisitions gquickly and effectively.

What we said we'd do in last year’s

ahnual report

© Continue to identify, purchase and
successfully integrate high-quality
bolt-on targets, particularly pest contral
businesses in Growth and Emerging
markets, and appropriate new market
entries. Continue to assess the merits
of larger acquisitions. Maintain effective
governance and review processes to
contrel risk, build M&A capability and
ensure rigerous returns from investment.

What we’ve done this year

& We acquired 41 businesses with annualised
revenues of £137m (30 Pest Control,
eight Hygiene, three Ambius).

© We completed 16 deals in key North
America market with revenues of c.£101m,
including Florida Pest Contrel, a top 20
pest contrel business with annualised
revenues of c.$66m {c.£50m).

©® First-time entry in Uruguay, Jordan and
Sri Lanka.

© Currecent investment in M&A continues
to perform at or above our required
hurdle rates.

Our priorities for 2020 and beyond

© Continue to execute a differentiated
and disciplined approach to capital
investment and M&A, with clear IRR
hurdles by business line. Continue to
seek acquisitions in higher-growth
pest and hygiene markets. Our pipeline
of M&A prospects remains strong and
we would expect to spend in the region
of £250m in 2020.

Find out more on pages 28, 31, 36
and 38

Diraregic Report LOIpaidie ooverndiue

5

Creating value through product
and service innovations and
digital applications

Innevation is a core component of growth

for the business. Our challenge is to deploy
product and service innovations and digital
applications to enhance customer service,

support upsell and maximise customer
retention.

What we said we'd de in last year’s

annuafl report

© Continue to harness digital opportunities,
using connected products and extranet
portals; deploy low-cost mobile devices
and apps to improve service, productivity
and safety, and identify opportunities
to automate back-office functions.
In innovation, expand Lumpnia, roll cut
RapidPro and expand mosquito solutions.

What we've done this year

© We expanded our Lumnia insect light trap
preduct range to include Lumnia Colour and
Lumnia Slim. Developed three new digital
rodent sensing devices and introduced
a new user interface for myRentokil which
expands our reporting capability.

© We introduced Command Centre, providing
our custemer-facing teams with unrivalled
data and insights. In Hygiene, acquired
further connected device capability via Rapid
Washrooms, Integrating It in readiness for
the refreshed range being launched in 2020.

© We added a new range of soaps, including
an environmentally friendly opticn.

Priorities for 2020 and beyond

© Develop products targeted at key sectors
and with potential for non-toxic selutions
(i.e. Multi Radar rodent unit); launch
Eradico, our new Global Bait Bex; further
expand Lumnia range; and develop digital
solutions for crawling and flying insects
(i.e. Bed Bug Connect and Crawling Insect
Connect). Evolve digitai activity leveraging
current and new technology (including
myRentekil, PestConnect and Command
Centre). Develop and launch new hygiene
solutions, including our Rapid Smart
washroom solution alongside new air
enhancement and air purification solutions.

Find out more on pages 30 to 33

FINgdinttal Sialeniens wALner miordLon

Managing a responsible
business

While not a new topic for us, we are for the
first time in this Annual Report introducing
responsibility as a sixth big challenge. Cur
challenge is to ensure that colieagues have
safe and fulfilling work lives, create a diverse
and engaging workplace, support customers
by developing and delivering products and
sarvices responsibly, support communities
and benefit the environment by acting in the
most effective manner.

What we’ve done this year

© We delivered a 16% improvement in
Lost Time Accidents and 26% reduction
in Working Days Lost, making 2019 our
safest year on record.

© We reduced our carbon emissions per
Zm revenue by a further 3.7%.

© We achieved our five-year target for an
emissions intensity reduction of 20% —
one year ahead of target.

© Our Lumnia range was awarded The Planet
Mark for carbon emissions reduction of
€2% versus traditional units,

© We introduced a new environment plan
with seven work streams including
vehicles, property, non-toxic products
and waste.

O We set a new long-term ambiticen to
achieve net zero carbon emissions ahead
of the UK Government's 2050 target.

© We were awarded the title of Britain’s
Best Workplace in the private sector
by the world’s largest job site, Indeed.

Priorities for 2020

© Maintain our world-class safety
performance; build upen the success
of our Employer of Choice programme;
begin to execute our global environment
plan across seven work streams; extend
our commitment te electric vehicles;
support the work of Cool Earth to prevent
deforestation; and continue to implement
appropriate policies, pregrammes and
initiatives designed to premaote diversity
at all levels of the organisation.

Find out more on page 44
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Reasons to Invest

We believe that Rentokil Initial
represents a compelling, compounding
growth opportunity for investors

Rentokil initial plc is & strong, global business with leading positions in
structural growth markets. We see excellent opportunities to consolidate
our positions in existing markets, enter new markets and lead the industry
through differentiated investment into product and service innovation and
disciplined and accretive M&A. Our strategy, culture of outperformance and
consistent business model allows us to deliver strong and sustainable value
for our shareholders. We set out our principal reasens to invest below.

1

We are a leader in our chosen,
structural growth markets across
three core categories, generating
strong and sustainable leveis of
organic growth and high returns.
Rentokil is the world's leadchng
international commercial pest control
business and our principal engine for
growth, We are the brand leader in
the industry and believe we possess
unrivalled technical expertise. Initial
is the global leader in commercial
hygiene services with a focus

on service guality to grow market
share and drive management and
back office synergies with other
business lines.

Find out more:
@ Pest Control business on pages 26 to 31
Hygiene business on pages 34 to 38

Protect & Enhance businesses
on pages 39 to 41

8 Rentokil Initial ple
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2

We are focused on being an
Employer of Choice with a unique
cuiture and business modetl
supporting and rewarding
sustainable growth. We rely on
the commiiment and ability of our
colleagues to deliver the highest
levels of service. At the very heart
of a great customer experience
are passionate colleagues, so we
strive to be an Employer of Choice,
engaging and investing in our
colleagues, recognising and
rewarding effort, being open to
talent from diverse backgrounds and
offering great career progression.

Find out more:
Culture on pages 20 and 21

Our responsible business approach and
how we measure it on pages 44 to 54

3

We have a strong track record

of revenue and profit growth,
generating high returns, strong
cash flow and a strong credit rating.
Since febiuary 2014, we have
implemented an effective and
consistent strategy — called our
RIGHT WAY plan — at pace and this
strategy has delivered consistent
progress against our financial and
growth targets.

Find out more:
KPls and their link to strategy
on pages 121016
Financial Review on pages 118 to 121



4

We have a virtuous circle business
model which consistently reinvests
and compounds our growth. It is
predicated on delivering growth
organically and through targeted
M&A. This leads to increased
density which is directly correlated
to improved gross margins. The
consistency of our performance
allows reinvestment in our business.
Combined with our low-cost, resilient
operating model, this drives strong
profitable growth and sustainable
Free Cash Flow, which we deploy
into our financially disciplined

M&A programme and operational
investment, and into maintaining
our progressive dividend policy.

Find out more:
Our Business Model on pages 18 and 19

SIrdIegIc Keport

5

We have a fundamental
understanding of density to
consolidate our positions in existing
markets and drive margins. Our
investment and margin-based sales
incentives for colleagues prioritise
increasing route density through
Organic Revenue growth with the
most profitable customers and
bolt-on acquisitions.

Find out more:

Acquisitions in Pest Control on page 31
and in Hygiene on page 38

LOMpoidle oveindlice
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6

We see considerable opportunities
for broader-based growth as we
enter new markets, drive innovation
in product and service innovation
and deploy digital applications.

Find out more:

Global growth drivers for Pest Control
on page 27 and Hygiene on page 35

Innovaticn case studies on pages 10,16,
24,32 and 42

Rentokil Initial pfc 9
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ay hello to
cockroaches’
worst
nightmare



oo

This is an exciting time for
innovation because significant
technolegical advances are
enabling us to develop non-toxic
solutions that are mere targeted
and effective than current
chemical solutions.

Sophie Thorogood
Group Entemologist

SILTAEUTIC REPOTT LRIpurdie Lovelnglice

It may look pretty sinister, but this microscopic
image of a conidial fungus spore is changing
the face of bio-pesticides.

This new entomopathagenic fungi, developed
by our Global R&D Centre, uses fungal spores
that attach to the external body surface of
cockroaches and then germinate and bore
through the outer shell to reach the body cavity,
multiplying and eventually killing the insect.

Unlike traditional chemicals, pests cannot develop
resistance to spores. This means that we are able
to get closer to solving a long-standing problem
with insect pests learning to adapt to chemicals
and pass on resistant genes. It’s a great example
of how innovative, chemical-free solutions are
being developed that combine higher levels

of efficacy with reduced environmental impact.

Find out more at rentokil-initial.com

radaneidl SLdleme s

ALTIET maernduon

360m

The number of years
cockroaches have been in
existence, They are believed
to pre-date dinosaurs

22+

known human pathogens are
transmitted by cockroaches

200+

known species of
cockroaches, the most
common being German
and American cockroaches

oo

Stringent legislation regulating
the use and development of
biocidal products and consumer
concerns over the effects

of pesticide overuse onthe
environment are driving the
creation of safer, greener and
cleaner non-tox solutions.

Mike Woeod
Head of Innovation
& Field Support

Rentokil Initial plc 11
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Key Performance Indicators

®®® verystongprogress @ @O Strong progress

Colleagues

® OO0 Good progress

@ Further work required

M Disappointing progress

Ensuring everyone goes home safe

Lost Time Accident (LTA) rate ase

Oo 53 16% improvement on 2018

LTA rate defined as number of Lost Time Accidents
per 00,000 standard working hours.

Commentary on performance

© 2019 has been our best year on record,
achieving all-time low rates of 0.53 for LTA
(16% lower than 2018) and 10.99 for WDL
(26% lower than 2018). All our regional
operations, with the exception of Europe,
nave LTA rates at world-class levels {<1.0).
Our best performance was in our largest
region, North America.

© In May 2019, we won the prestigious
award for International Risk Initiative
of the Year by the International Institute
for Risk and Safety Management, for the
implementation of our SHE Golden Rules
proyramme across 39,000 colleagues in
more than 75 countries. In addition, ocur UK
business was awarded a gold award from
the Royal Society for the Prevention of

Working Days Lost {(WDL) rate *0 0

1 0-99 26% improvement on 2018

WDL rate defined as number of Working Days
Lost as a result of LTAs per 100,000 standard
working hours.

Accidents for the second year running.
This award recognised our excelient health
and safety capability and performance.

© In the year, we implemented a new SHE
Golden Rule on electrical safety to address
emerging risks that led to two major
incidents, one fatal, in 2018. Ap awareness
campaign and implementation of new safer
working practices around high voltage
areas were successfully rolied out globally.

© Onvehicle energy, we alsp extended our
engine control unit (ECU) remapping
programme in Europe and Pacific to
increase fuel efficiency and we have
initiated trials of electric vehicles in several
countries. We have also improved the
quality of energy efficiency target setting
and monitoring, especially in our top 13

Link to strategy

© As a service organisation, our people
make our Company whatitis.

© Our priority Is ensuring everyone goes
home safe.

© Health and safety (s the first agenda tem n
all senior management meetings (including
Executive Leadership Team and Board).

Link te remuneration

© Both LTA and WDL rates are part of the
persenal objectives of the Chief Executive
and impact the level of annual bonus
achieved.

countries which represent approximately
80% of our vehicle emissions. Our total
emissions intensity reduced by 3.5% in
2019. Vehicle fuel emissions represented
83% of total emissions in 2012,

© Regrettably, there were two fatal incidents
in 2019, both road traffic incidents
invelving third parties. In the US, one of
our vehicles sfid in icy road conditions,
colliding with the vehicle in front whizch
was pushed into oncoming traffic resulting
in the death of the driver, and in Colombia
one of our technicians was riding his own
nmoelorcycie and collided with the rear of the
truck in front. This refnferces the priority
we continue to place on driving safety.

Employer of Choice

Sales colleague retention o9

85.3% +3.2% points

Service colleague retention L I 1@]

86.1% +1.0% points

Defined as total sales and service colleagues retained in year as a percentage of sales and service headcount
at start of year. Your Voice Counts (YVC) trend score analysis.

Commentary en performance

© Total colleague retention (cn a 12-month
rolling basis to December 2019) was 86.9,
a 3.7 percentage peints improvement
on 2018,

© Our Global Recruitment Portal spans 17
markets. 92% of global vacancies now go
through the site and over 95,000 people
visited the site this year, an increase of
over 1,000% from 2017, resdlting in an
increase of applications of over 200% and
a conversion rate of 24% {best practice
conversion is around 20%}.

12 Rentokil Initial plc
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© We continue to raise the bar in our industry
for the quality of our training and
development programmes and in 2019
developed ¢.800 online training courses
and videos, an increase of 63% on 2018,
resulting in approxirmnately 1.8 million views
of training content, up 41% on last year.
Use of our U+ digital learning platform
grew strongly in 2019, with active users
hitting 30% for the first time and the
average number of content views per
colleague per month growing 37%.

© We have also seen a large increase in
mobile and video usage, with video now
accounting for 34% of all U+ views and
32% of U+ sesslons now accessed
through a mobile device,

Link to strategy

© We invest in training and development
to ensure that our colleagues’ expertise
is unrivalied.

© We recruit, appoint and promote on merit.

O We listen to our colleagues via YYC
surveys and act on feedback to make
improvements.

© By retaining our people, we also retain
and build deeper relationships with
our customers, which underpins aur
organic growth.

Link to remuneration

© Performance Share Plan (PSP} performance
condition and annual bonus personal
objectives.

® Project 365 is focused on Improving
short-term retention — 0-6 months and
6-12 months — and we have made further
encouraging progress this year, particularly
in sales colleague retention whnich at 82.8%
and 87.5%, is an increase on 2018 of 2.9
and 3.1 percentage points respectively.
Total service colleague retention improved
by 1.0% to 86.1%, with significant progress
made in all regions.

© We believe line manager quality is vital to
retaining colleagues and we have largeted
resources to improve standards. As well
as very positive candidate and manager
feedback, we saw double the rise in
Engagement and five times the rise in
Enablement in the areas we targeted.



Customers

SLrteyIc Keport
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Delivering outstanding custemer service

State of Service (So8)

97.2% -70 bps

8000

Defined as total number of service visits performed
as a percentage of total number of visits due.

Link to strategy

© We are passionate about delivering
excellent service to every customer and
keeping our promises to them.

® Excellent service helps us retain customers
and build deeper relationships with them.

Commentary on performance

State of Service was once again very high, at
97.2%, although down on last year's score of
97.9%. North America is the highest-scoring
region at 98.1%, closely followed by Asia at
97.6%. Regicna! performance Improvements
have been generated through:

© increased customer account management
to drive customer loyalty;

© improved customer service
respensiveness within European
operations, in particular in our Workwear
operations through implementation of the
Quuality Strategy; and

© improved products and services.

The slight decline in 505 reflects the
integration of the PCI, Cannon UK and
MPCL businesses which had lower SoS.

Keeping promises to customers

Customer Voice Counts (CVC)

445 24 points

L 1 1]

Measured by implementation of an average

Net Promoter Score across all branches, including
in-year acquisitions. CVC score represents the net
balance of those customers promoting our service
compared with those neutral or not promaoting.

Link to strategy

© Our business model depends on servicing
the needs of our customers in line with
internal high standards and to levels
agreed in contracts.

© Strong performance on CVC is linked to
retention and sale of additional services
to customers.

@ Measuring customer satisfaction allows
us to identify unbappy custemers, reduce
customer attrition and increase revenue,
profit and cash.

Link to remuneration

& Improving Customer Voice Counts is one
of the performance conditions of the PSP,
which covers around 850 colleagues
across the Group.

Commentary cn performance

O We made over 120,000 CVC calls to our
customers In 2019 to rate us on five service
elements: technician, complaint handling,
customer contact, product quality and
documentation.

© North America was the most improved
region, with an increase of 2.9 points to
60.3 points, followed closely by Asia, up
a further 2.8 points to 53 points. UK & Rest
of World rose by 1.6 points to 58.5 points,
while Europe recorded a 1.2-point increase

to 10.8. Once again, Pacific declined, this
vear by 1.0 point; however, the region has
the highest overall score of all the regions
at 62.1 points.

© Our category analysis of CVC scores
shows that Pest Control is our highest-
scoring business, rising by 3.5 points
in 2019 to 60.2 points, aided by strong
performances from the Pacific (up 9.3
points) and North America, which rose
by 3.1 points versus a 2.9-point decline
in 2018.

© Ambius performed very wellin the survey
of customer satisfaction, rising by 3.4
points to 50.7 points.

© All regions In the Hygiene category except
the Pacific showed positive increases in
CVC scores. However, a 7.7-point decline
in Pacific Hygiene resulted in an overall
decline for the category of 0.3 peints in
2019.

© Workwear was the poorest rated category,
declining by 2.0 points tc -15.1 points.

Rentokil Initial plc 13
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Key Performance Indicators
continued
@ @O strong progress

S8 ® Vory strong pragrass

Customers centinued

@ QO Good progress @ Further work required

#l Disappointing progress

Retaining our customers

Customer retention L ]

86.2% +30 bps

Defined as total portfolio vaiue of custormers
refained as a percentage of opening portfolio.

Shareholders

Link to strategy

© Customer retention is crucial to our long-
term success.

© Benefits include: increased purchasing
and cross-selling; lower terminations;
greater willingness to accept price
increases; positive customer
recommendations; and a strengthened
unigue selling point.

Link to remuneration

© Custemer retention is part of the personal
chjectives of the CEQ and managemeant
teams and iImpacts the level of annual
benus achieved.

Commentary on perfoarmance
Our 30 basis paint in-year improvement has
been generated through:

© increased customer account management
to drive customer loyalty;

© improved customer service
responsiveness within European
operations, in particular in our Workwear
operations through implementation of the
Quality Strategy; and

@ improved products and services,

Driving higher revenue

Medium-term financial target: 5% to 8% Ongoing Revenue growth

Ongeing Revenue growth at CER

+8.6%

Defined as revenue growth at CER from the ongoing
operations of the Group including acguisitions after
removing the effect of disposed or closed
businesses.

Link to strateqgy

© We aim to drive shareholder value through
driving higher revenues from our core Pest
Control and Hygiene businesses, and also
from our Protect & Fnhance businesses,
supported by ME&A investment and
divestment of non-core or poorly
performing operations.

Link to remuneration

© Revenue targets are one of the Company’s
performance elements of the annusa! bonus
which covers the Executive Directors and
managers across the Group and impacts
the level of annual bonus achieved.

14 Renwkdlinitialple
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Target and key activities

5% to 8% Group Ongoing Revenue growth

Performance

8.6% growth in Ongoing Revenue, In excess

Progress
in 2019

of our target

3% Lo 4% wroup Urganic Revenue growtih

4.5% growth in Qganic Revenue, considerably

above cur target 4% and a notable increase
on 2018 (3.7% Organic)

Revenue contribution from acquisitions

4.1% growth from acquisitions in 2619,

L ] &)

demonstrating ongoing momentum in cur
M&A programme

Ongoing Revenue growth in Pest Control

10.8% growth in Ongeing Revenue, of which

L 1 J&]

Organic Revenue growth was 4.9% (2018: 4.8%)

Supported by further mementum in Hygiene

Improved performance from
Protect & Enhance businesses,
including France Workwear

Continued execution of M&A

5.8% Ongoing Revenue growth, of which
Crganic Revenue growih was 4.3% (2018: 2.8%)
3.5% increase in Ongoing Revenue, of which
Organic Revenue growth was 3.2% (2018:
0.6%), France Workwear up 3.4% (3.4% Organic)

[ L 1&

Angther excellent year with 41 acquisitions

genearating combined annualised revenues
of £137m for a total consideration of £316.5m

Sustained progress in product innovation
and capability

Cur continued focus on R&D projects, based
on target pest behavioural studies and strong

[ 1 l&;

external partnerships, deiivered in 2019

a focused pipeline of new market products,
solutions and services focused on uniquely
satisfying customer needs

Ongoing development of digital preducts
and applications

30% increase in visits to our websites
worldwide, 26% of commercial customers using

*eC

our myRentokil customer portal in 40 countries
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Shareholders continued
Achieving greater profitability
Medium-term financial target: Ongoing Operating Profit growth of ¢10%
Ongoing Operating Profit growth at CER Target and key activities Performance Progress
in 2019
+1 O 5(y Further year-on-year improvement in 11.5% Ongoing Operating Profit growth, in line [T ]@]
- o Group Ongeing Cperating Profit with target
Improvement in Group Net Operating Margin 20 basis peints improvement in Net Operating [ Tele!
Margin at 13.8%
improvement in Net Cperating Margins 20 basis points improvement 'n Pest Control [ Tele]
in Pest Control and Hygiene at 18.0% (50 basis points improvement in
North America margin to 14.2%), 40 basis peints
improvement in Hygiene at 17.8%
Above-the-line restructuring costs Restructuring costs of £7.5m (2018: £7.2m)}, [ Jele}

Defined as operating profit at CER from the ongeing
operations of the Group including acqguisitions after
remeving the effect of disposed or closed
businesses. Ongoing Operating Profit is an
‘adjusted’ measure and is presented befare
amortisation and impairment of intangible assets
{excluding computer software) and one-off items.

maintained at below £10m

consisting mainly of costs in respect of
initiatives focused on driving operaticnal
efficiency in &ll regicns

Link to strategy

© Cur objective is to deliver sustainable profit
growth through reductions in central and

regional overheads and restructuring
costs and by improving service
productivity, pricing and margins.

Link to remuneration

© Profit targets are one of the Company’s
performance elements of the annual benus
which covers the Executive Directors and
managers across the Group and impacts
the level of annual bonus achieved.

Delivering sustainable Free Cash Flow
Medium-term financial target: Free Cash Flow conversicn of c.90%

Free Cash Flow conversion

98.6%

Defined as Adjusted Free Cash Flow divided

by Adjusted Profit from centinuing operations
attributable to equity holders of the Company
{further adjusted for any post tax profits and one-offs
from the CWS-bocoe International GmbH associate),
expressed as a percentage.

Target and key activities Perfermance Progress
in 2019
2019 Free Cash Flow conversion targel 90%  £250.7m Free Cash Flow representing 98.4% 208
conversion
Net debt £80m decrease in net debt at £1,073m, post [ 1 Je!
proceeds from the sale of cur stake in the
CWS-boco joint venture in July
Fully funded pension scheme The buy-out and wind-up of the Company’s [ 1 1@}
pension plan is on track to complete in 2020
with an estimated cash surplus of c.£30m to
be returned to the Company on completion
Standard & Poor's credit rating Maintained at BBB Stable Outlook [T @)

Link to strategy

© We are a highly cash generative business
and, after dividend and interest payments
have been made, we reinvest our cash into

the business for future growth threcugh
people, technology and M&A.

Link to remuneration

© Free Cash Flow is a gateway target for the
annual bonus which covers the Executive
Directors and managers across the Group,
failure to meet this target results in ne
bonus being payable regardiess of how
wellthe Company performs against
revenue and profit targets.

Rentokil Initial plc
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32%

of U+ sessions are accessed
via a mobile device

33%

of views are short YouTube-
style videos and animations

JUALEYIC KEpPUrT

Communication and engagement with colleagues
is increasingly undertaken digitally, with the
majority of our pecple now using company
smartphones and mobile technology to support
their development. U+ is Rentokil Initial’s highly
innovative in-house learning and development
‘university’ which delivers programmes through
various channels including online courses via

the U+ portal and bespoke training modules

for specific roles.

U+ is accessible globally to all colleagues
across Rentokil Initial and is available in over
30 languages. The platform is available across
desktops, mobile and the U+ app. Just under
a third of all U+ training sessions are accessed
via a mobile device.

U+ uses new learning techniques
such as video and gamificaticn
rather than longer and more
traditional e-learning courses.
Cur U+ app has beenintegrated
with our customer service app to
enable our frontline colleagues
to seamlessly access relevant
content and training at the point
of need out in the field.

Crur U+ platform gets very
high usage by all employees,
with 1.8 million views in 2019.
On average, every colleague
in the world accesses U+ at
least once a week — and this
is much higher among our
frontline field-based teams.

LOrpolaie Loveridice rindanidl Statere s
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Our Business Model

We're a people business; 43,000 experts
protecting people and enhancing lives

We have a clear and simple geographic medel in which our businesses are
grouped into five strong regions. Operating in 81 countries, ¢.90% of our
revenues are derived from outside of the UK.

Our single-country management teams lead
integrated, multi-local and multi-service
operations with combined hack office
functions underpinned by shared systerms
and processes such as route optimisation
and measurement of customer satisfaction.

A benefit of our model is a natural resilience
to fluctuations in the economic cycle in
individual markets, and geopelitical and trade
risks due to our local market operations.

See page 55 for more details of our
risk management approach

QOur RIGHT WAY plan is described
on page 3. The medium-term strategic
priorities for Pest Control and Hygiene
can be found on pages 2B and 36

A8  Rentokil initial pic
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We refer internally to our operating model
as our ‘'machine’. Each of the cogs are
intet-related and measured consistently

at Group, business, country and branch level.

The most important element is our people.
By getting it right for our people we provide
a better service, retain more customers,
sell additional services and ultimately
create shareholder value. Qur success is
driven by focused, consistent execution.

More information on all componenis of our
business model is aveilable in this report
and is signposted in the diagram below.
We have also provided further explanatory
text overleaf on the five components
shaded in blue in the graphic below.



More information

Irateyc neport LOIpotdie ouvelndrice

@ Key Performance Indicators on pages 121015

rentokil-initial.com

New business

We generate new business in a number of
ways. Our sales specialists are responsible
foridentifying potential new customers,

to whom they can introduce our services,
through carefully targeted activities and
campaigns. We also rely on our service
technicians to generate new business leads
during thelr day-to-day activities. With
existing customers we use our knowledge
of their needs and requirements to expand
our offer inte additional value-added
products and services. We also invest in
our online marketing capability to drive
new business through digital channels

and our websites across the world.

Additional services
to existing customers

Annual Pest Control, Hygiene and Ambius
contracts are structured around a series of
scheduled customer call-outs, during which
our technicians carry cut essential services,
Contract prices are determined by the
number of visits and services taken by each
customer. Additienal revenues can be gained
through the recommendation of further
preducts and services which our technicians
consider necessary for the protection of our
customers, and we describe this as upselling
to the portfolio. An example in Pest Control
could be blocking up epen vents in building
walls, or fitting bristle strips underneath
external doors to prevent unwelcome pest
entry. We want to ensure that no customer
need goes unmet.

Price

As the world's leading international
commercial pest control business, we are

a premium service provider and this reflects
the training and skills of our technicians,
our expertise borne out of over 90 years

in the industry and the insights we have
gained by operating in over 80 countries
around the world. Circa 70% of our revenues
are centracted and in most regions we are
able to increase prices in line with inflation
to address inflationary cost increases and
wage inflation.

Density

Density is fundamentally important to our
strategy. Route density is key - with greater
density comes higher margins — and our
strategy of acquiring bolt-on businesses

to infill locally is central to this. We achieve
density in two ways. First is what we call
posicode {or zip code} density — this means
servicing as many customers as you can

in a tight geographic zone. The second

is customer penetration — and this invelves
selling muftiple service lines to customers.
Much of what we do is to make
recommendaticns to customers about
potential services and products which

we believe they require.

cindneidl »ldie et LA 1I0Tauorn

Low-cost model

Our low-cost operating modei is focused

oh country-based management teams with
shared properties and back offices. We focus
our cost base on servicing our customers and
minimising cther costs — hence a focus on
service productivity and Investing in efficient
back office systems and processes. Circa
90% of variable service costs are colleagues
and vehicles. The use of digital technolegies
is transforming our business by differentiating
our services or routing our drivers to
customers more efficiently.

Rentokil Initial plc 19
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Our Culture

Underpinning everything we do
is our one Rentokil Initial culture

It is a one team mentality with a common purpose and set of values, focused
on delivering a great customer experience. Our culture is characterised as
customer focused, commercial, diverse, down to earth and innovative.

We measure the five characteristics of our culture across our world. The
results of our 2019 Your Voice Counts (YVC) global ceolleague engagement
survey are shown here alongside a comparison with the 2017 survey.

We operate a multi-layered approach to
analysing and measuring changes within
our workplace culture through internal

and external sources. In addition to the main
measures outlined in this section, we also
take account of other measures including
diversity, celleague retention, compliance

Culture model

Qur cuiture model includes our purpose and
values, five core culture themes and the ways
in which we measure, monitor and report

on culture,

training, and health and safety which are

detailed on pages 46 and 47.

Customer focused

Firstly, we're a service company.
We strive to meet our customers’
needs and our pecple go the
extra mile to do so. We work
hard to support cur customers
and each other. When things go
wrong, we put them right fast.

Commercial

We amploy and incentivise smart
peopie to help the Company
grow by making good decisions
that benefit our customers.

We constantly seek out new
opportunities for growth and
ways to work mare effectively.

Diverse

We want our workforce to reflect
the diverse customers we serve.
We value everyone's talents and
abilities and strive to attract,
recruit and retain the best people
from the widest possible pool

of talent.

20 Rentokil initial ple
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Down to earth

We don't like big egos. People
who succeed with us are friendly,
comfortable in their own skin,
straightforward, constantly
seeking to improve, with practical
ideas and experiences, and
acknowledge the contribution

of others.

Innovative

We use the latest advancements
to build an innovation pipeline
that sets us apart from the
competition. We embrace digital
technelogies that help create
new products and make us
more efficient.

Measuring our culture

We measure our culture in two ways. Firstly,
using analysis of our internal Your Voice
Counts (YVC) colleague survey resutts,
mapped to each of the five core culture
themes in our cuiture model to provide

a score and trend for each at a Group,
functional and regional fevel. We have

also identified 12 questions (listed beilow)

in the survey to create & Core Culture Index.

© There are good opportunities for me to
learn and develep at this company.

© | am treated with respect as an individual.

® This company cares about the health
and wellbeing of colleagues.

© This company is innovative in
developing new products and services.

© This company is open and honest
i ts communications 1o colleagues.

© This company has a clear sense
of direction.

© | have trust and confidence in this
company’s seniar management team.

© | have trust and confidence in my manager.

O This company understands and
appreciates differences among empioyees.

© | have a good understanding of our
company’s values.

® 1 feed proud to work for this company.

O | would recommend this company to others
as a good place to work.

Secondly, we use external independent
sources, such as our ratings on the job
website Glassdoor. Cur ELT and Board review
our performance on culture and workforce
angagement al least twice a year,



Core Culture Index results

The Core Culture Index and themes
are reported with trends every YVC
measurement cycle.

In 2019, our Core Culture Index improved by
1 percentage point to 80%, with all regions
improving except for Asia, which declined
by 1 percentage point from a very high base.
The UK &nd Latin America businesses both
improved by 4 percentage points.

Cur strongest cultural characteristics in the
views of colleagues are diverse, innovative
and customer focused. The most improved
scores were in the UK with custemer focused
increasing by 7 percentage points and in
Latin America with the Tnnovation theme
increasing by 6 percentage points.

Our culture
in action

Back to school

Rentokil Initial’'s mission of protecting
people and enhancing lives was at the
heart of a visit to a primary school by

22 colleagues in Vietnam to show pupils
and teachers how to minimise the risk of
contracting diseases like dengue fever,
which are spread by mosquitoes. In
addition, the team raised funds for the
schooel to buy notebooks and penclls.

Siraleyic Report LOIpotdie sovarnanog

Rentokil initial
overall
(% favourable)

Yaur Voice Counts 2019 scores
{and trend versus 2017)

FIanidl D2 s et inorrtauon

External perspective

In line with best practice, we also report third
party analysis from the global recruitment
site Glassdcor As at 31 December 2019, our

fi d 82 (+3

Customer focuse t3 ‘Company Overall’ rating was 4.4 (out of 5)

Commercial 81(+2) and ‘Culture and Values’ rating was 4.3 —
both significantly ahead of the Glassdoor

Diverse 84 (+1) average of 3.5 and 3.3 respectively. In the
UK, Rentokil Initial was ranked #11n the

Down to earth 770+ Indeed Top Rated UK Workplaces award

Innovative 82 (+2) (Noverber 2019).

Core Culture Index 80 (+1) Glassdoor Rentokil

average Initiai

Senior leadership 3.2 4.3
CEQO approval 71.4% 93.0%
Career opportunities 3.0 4.3
Compensation
and benefits 341 4.2
Recemmend to
g friend? 63.4% 87.0%
Work life balance 3.4 4.1
Positive business
outlook 50.0% 83.0%
Culture and values 33 4.3

Passion for communities Overall rating 35 4.4

Cur team in Chennai, India, held a series

cof feminine hygiene awareness events

to educate young women on the hygienic

disposal of sanitary waste and to raise

awareness about the harmful

environmental consequences of improper

waste disposal. The talks were attended Safety first

by 700 students, The presentation was
also given to 740 of our customers’
employees who work in the technology
and food manufacturing industries.

Designed to perfection

AmericanHort is North America’s largest
organisation of landscaping and
horticultural professionals and Ambius
once again showed its leading design
capabilities to meet our customer needs
by winning over half of the awards in 2019
— with 16 Platinum and 23 Gold Awards.
Installaticns ranged from living green
walls and moss walls to major renovations
and spectacutar holiday designs.

In 2019, a customer in South

Africa was transporting pine fogs by

cargo ship to India, which required
fumigation before arrival. The vessel
stopped in Durban where cur teams —
which had taken about three months to
prepare for the fumigation job — boarded
the vessel. After a site risk assessment,
the fumigation took place. The job was
completed by four specialist teams with
gas readings taking place every four hours
for 24 hours. Following a thorough venting
process, including the use of industrial
extraction fans, the vessel was inspected
and given the all clear to sail for India.

On arrival, a local Rentokil team

boarded the vessel and undertook
further safety checks.

Rentokll Initial plc 21
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Our Stakeholders

Understanding expectations

Our business, its strategies, processes and behaviours are influenced by the
needs of our stakeholders. We recognise the importance of thelr views and
actively engage with our stakeholder groups across the world to fully
understand and act upon their issues and concerns.

We have a broad range of stakeholders

who influence or are affected by our
day-to-day activities, and have varying needs
and expectations. OQur aim at Rentokil initial is
to engage effectively with all our stakeholder
groups to develop and maintain positive and
productive relationships.

In 219, we conducted a stakeholder
mapping exercise (described on page 76)

to ensure that the groups that we have
identified as key stakehoiders remain
approprigte. Tne Company has other wider
stakeholders, key partnerships or business
relationships, such as the general public,
government and regulators, and industry
bodies. However, we identify our key
stakeholders as colleagues, investors,
customers, suppliers and the communities in
which we work. We consider the environment
in relation to all cur key stakeholder groups
but include it principally as part of our
consideration and engagement with
communities. We approach stakeholder
engagement at a global, country and local
level to ensure that all our stakeholder groups
have access to information about our
business and activities and are able to
identify issues which are important to them.

More information an our responsible
business appreach can be found on
pages 44 to 54. We also produce a
separate Responsible Business Report
which s available on our website at
rentokil-initial.com.

222

meetings and calls
with shareholders
during 2019

6

investor roadshows and
conferences in 2019

Colleagues by regien

North America 8,624
Europe 6,846
Latin America 1857
UK & RoW 7770
Asia 15,624
Pacific 2,242
Total 42,933
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Colleagues

Customers

We employ approximately 43,000 colleagues
in over 80 countries. Our colleagues are
those who are directly employed by us,
which excludes contractors.

Key issues for stakeholder

© Health and safety

© Training and career development
& Tools 16 dG the job

© Wellbeing

© Reward

© Culture and values

© Community support

Why we engage

We rely on the skills, experience and
commitment of our people {o meet our
business goals.

Impact/value created

We aim to become & world-class Employer of
Choice providing a safe working environmerit
and development opportunities,

© Pay and bensafits to colleagues

© Training and develoepment opportunities

Methods of engagement

© Your Voice Counts employee survey every
two years and periodic pulse surveys

© Annual personal development reviews
and line manager training

© The RIGHT WAY magazine published
online guarterly

@ Intranet

© Quarterly global internal update by the
Chief Executive

© Speak Up ethics hatline

© Conferences, town halls and senior executive
updates organised by individval businesses

© Works councils including an annual EU
Forum meeting

Measurements

We measure cur impact by monitoring our
total headcount, diversity, the amount of new
online training content made available and
onlineg learning views, the talent pipeline of
graduate and apprenticeships, and our Core
Culture Index. We alse monitor external
ratings such as Glassdoor. The following

key performance indicators relate to our
colleagues, with full details on page 12.

@ Lost Time Accidents
@ Working Days Lost
ﬂ} Sales colleague retention

@ Service colleague retention

Our custemers range from global food
producers to hotel chains and indusiriat
goods husinesses and restaurants

to individual residential customers.

Key issues for stakeholder

© Health, safety and sustainability
© Expertise and service quality
© Innovation

© Digital portals

© Transparency

© Guality assurance and insights
€ Cost

© Regulatory compliance

Why we engage

The Company's purpose 1s 1o protect people
and enhance lives, and In a service industry
we succeed or fall by the guality of the
service we offer cur customers,

Impact/value created

© Brand value

© Regulatory compliance lfood safety,
health and safety, etc.)

© Sustainability

Methods of engagement

8 Management of ongoing customer
relationships

© Customer satisfaction surveys/CVC (NPS)

@ Participation in industry forums and events,
thought leadership, e.g. the Global Food
Safety Initiative

© The Annual Report

© Industry-focused publications

© Websites

© Innovation showcase, e.g. the Power
Centre

© Provision of training for customers’ staff

Measurements

We measure our impact by monitoring
our net gain and portfolio development,
operating margin and density, and
opportunity pipeline. We also monitor
external ratings and measuremenis
such as Trustpilot. The following key
performance indicators relate to our
customers, with fuil details on pages

13 and 14,

m Ongeing Revenue growth

ﬂ] Ongoing Operating Profit growth
@) state of Service (S0S)

@ Customer Voice Counts (CVC)

@ Customer retention



Shareholders
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More information

© Our responsible business approach {including
performance summary} on pages 44 to 54

© Section 172{1) statement on page 52

© Board engagement with stakeholders on page 76

@ Key Performance Indicaters en pages 1210 15

rentokil-initial.com/responsible-delivery

Communities

Suppliers

Our shareholders range from global
investment funds and institutions based
primarily in the UK, North America and
Europe, to smali private investors,

who are often current or former employees.

Key issues for stakeholder

© Growth in revenue (organic/ME&A)
and profit

© Cash flow and returns, e.g. dividends

© Brand and market leadership

® Innovation and digital differentiation

© Consistent execution of RIGHT WAY
strategy

© Environmental, social and governance
(ESG) performance

Why we engage

Our investors are the owners of the business.
Continued access to capital is vital to cur
long-term performance. We want our
investors and investment analysts to have

a strong understanding of our business,
strategy and perfermance, and to understand
their priorities.

Impact/value created

We aim to generate long-term profitable
growth to help deliver value for our
shareholders.

© Internal rate of return

© Earnings pet share
© Compounding modei
© Dividends

© Free Cash Flow

Methods of engagement
@ Institutional investor meetings

© Capital Markets Days

® Investor roadshows

© Annual General Meeting

© Correspondence with retail shareholders
© The Annual Report

© Corporate website

© Resuits presentations

© Our Responsible Business Report

Measurements

We measure our impact by monitoring our
share price and reviewing analyst notes on
us. The following key performance indicators
relate to our shareholders, with full details

on pages 14 and 15.

m Ongoing Revenue growth
m Ongoing Operating Profit growth

@ Free Cash Flow conversion

QOur communities are those who live in areas
where we work, such as local residents,
non-target species, businesses, schools

and charities.

Key issues for stakeholder

© Jobs and investment

© Contribution to public heaith and
safe environment

© Environmental impact

Why we engage

We respect the communities in which
we operate and employ people, but we
also accept a wider responsibility to key
communities and envircnments around
the world.

Impact/value created
We partner with charities and community
initiatives in communities where we operate
and aim to minimise our envircnmental
impacts.
© Tax paid
© Charitable donations
© Energy and fuel-derived emissions

(a negative impact which we reduce

or offset where possible)

Methods of engagement

© Employment of approximately 43,000
individuals

© Sponsorship and colleague volunteering

© Partnerships with schools, colleges and
universities

Measurements

We monitor our impact by measuring the
amount of charitable cash donations made
each year, our inclusion in ESG indices, and
our carbon emission ranking with the CDP.
More information can be found in the
Responsible Business section on pages

44 to 54.

Our suppliers range from major
manufacturers of key products and
consumeables to our global business, to
suppliers of indirect goods and services

used to support our operations. Products
supplied include pest control baits, paper,
seaps and waste disposal units, while
indirect supplies include technology services,
fleet vehicles and telecommunrications.

Key issues for stakeholder

© Long-term engagement and innovation

© Control of price increases and delivery
of cost savings

© Continuous improvement approach

© High standards of product and service
quality and satisfactory audit reviews

© Governance and corporate responsibility,
including human rights and modern slavery

Why we engage

We recognise that strategic partnerships with
suppliers deliver more value to our business
and our customers than short-term deals.

Impact/value created

© Optimised supply chain from manufacturer
to end customer

®© Joint development of product and service
innovations

Methods of engagement

The Global Procurement team manage the
relationship with major suppfiers, with senior
management involvement where appropriate.
Comprehensive audits of all critical suppliers,
including factory inspections, systems review
and ESG factors, are undertaken.

Measurements

We monitor our impact by measuring our
monthly On Time [n Full (OTIF) delivery
metrics and guality complaints and our
annual revenue development, product
innovations and pricing management.
We also monitor the scores frem
supplier audits.

We launched a new Supplier Code in 2019.
Read more aboutiton page 53
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62

reduction in
carbon emissions

9

working days are
typically lost every
year due to a single
fly infestation

afaregic Keport LOpordle aovelndanee

Created in 2017, following five years of working
closely with experts in the LED industry, Lumnia

is the world'’s first range of illuminated fly traps

to use patented LED lighting technology rather
than traditional fluorescent tubes. Lumnia attracts,
kills and encapsulates insects hygienically —
eliminating the risks of contamination. It is suitable
for a diversity of internal environments — both
large and small — with the added benefit of a 62%
reduction in carbon emissions versus traditional
electronic fly killers.

Our products include Lumnia Standard (for offices,
shops, food retailers), Lumnia Ultimate (using
second-generation lamps for high-dependency
customers), Lumnia Colour and Lumnia Slim.
Further enhancements to the range are planned
for 2020. Key customer segments using Lumnia
include food processing, pharmaceutical, hospitals
and general industry sites.

oo

Left unmanaged, a small fly
problem can develep into a
severe infestation within weeks.
With some fly species being able
to mature in just seven days in
the right conditions, businesses
must take a proactive approach
to fly control. Putting the right
deterrent measures in place
can go a long way in avoiding
costly treatments.

Dan Greene
Technician

FIdiiid) SLdLEImenty
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oo

The benefits of LEDs, especially
around energy efficiency, have
long been known, but until now
they have not been effectively
used to emit the UV output
required by fly control units.
Following extensive research
and development, we have been
able to develop an insect light
trap which is not only effective,
but looks great and also delivers
substantial cost savings over
competitor units.

Berwyn Evans
UK Product Manager
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O) Pest Control

We have strengthened our position as global leaders in pest
control through increased organic growth and by establishing
stronger market positions, particularly in Emerging and Growth
markets, through the introduction of innovative products and
services, acquisitions and our determination to be an Employer
of Choice across our global cperations.

What we do

At Rentokil our ¢.36,000 pest control specialists protect people and enhance
lives by providing pest control solutions that ensure public health and protect
the environment through energy efficient and sustainable pest control services,
We offer a complete range of pest control services and solutions for commercial
and residential properties, including common pests such as rodents, flies,
stored product insects, biting insects and birds to other kinds of witdlife.

We have extensive experience across a wide range of industries and use

both preventative and responsive strategies to enhance protection for our
customers through holistic, integrated pest management programmes.

How we performed

We have a strong global position inthe

pest control industry, which is resilient,
non-cyclical and characterised by powerful
growth drivers, which we present on page 27.
Our Pest Control business accounts for 64%
of Group Ongoing Revenue, 68% of Group
Ongoing Operating Profit and generated a
Net Operating Margin of 18% in 2019. CGrganic
Revenue rose by 4.8% with growth through
acquisitions of 5.8%. The category has
delivered a five-year Ongoing Revenue
compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of
16.6%. We have five core unigue selling
points {USPs). we are the global leader

in pest control, with No. 1 pesitions in

55 markets; we have a strong Employer

of Choice programme and outstanding
technical expertise; our powerful Rentokil
brand is one of world's top 50" most valuable
and recognisabie brands; our core strength
is in the attractive commercial sector;

and we are clear industry leaders

in digital technology and innovation.

Ongoing Revenue

£1,7001m +10.8%

Ongoing Operating Profit

¢305.4m 6%

The pest control industry and market

The primary function of the professional
pest control industry Is to maintain hygienic
surroundings for customers that are free of
nests that could efther damage commercial
interests and reputation or endanger public
hesith. Pest controt contracts typically
specify a certain level of preventative work
to be undertaken, such as the number of
visits to customer premises, while reactive
enquiries for one-off jobs require quick and
efficient treatment for specific issues. The
global pest control market is an attractive,
non-cyclical market worth ¢.$20bn

and expected to reach $26.3bn by 2025,
delivering a CAGR of 5.3% {source: Research
and Mariets, September 2019). Factars
driving growth include population and social
trends, geological factors and climaie
change, specific pest trends and increasing

Net Operating Margin

18.0% +20 bps

1. Top 50 most valuable commercial services
brands (Brand Finance Report 2017},
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use of digital applications and technology

for pest contral solutions. Industry growth
can, however, be negatively impacted by
increasingly stringent requlations, seasonality
and the use of hazardous pesticides.

Our customers

In 81 countries, businesses and homeowners
trust Rentokil to solve their pest problems
and prevent them from re-occurring. While
the residential market is important to
Rentokil, commercial pest control services
account for 80% of our total pest control
revenite, with residentiai pest control
representing approximately 20% — aver 75%
of this coming from the US and Australia.
Cur key commercial cusiomer sectors
include food and beverage processing,
hospitality, facility management, offices

and administrative, and logistics and
warehousing. On a per capita basis,
boththe US and Australia have much larger
residential markets for pest contral thar in
Eutope, primarily because of the presence
of termites and wooden housing. Industries
are increasingly adopting a ‘zero tolerance’
attitude towards pests to protect their
customers and reputations, and as a

result we continue to set new standards for
service excellence through market-leading
technical training, innovation and digital toois.



Structural growth drivers

and innovation: Geological
factors and climate change are
driving growth in pest controt,
Customers are becoming more
averse 1o chemical use and are
seeking greener alternatives.
Rentekil is the only company

in the world to have registered
CO, for use in the control of

rodents under EU biocidal

regulations, and to have
a proprietary non-anti
coaqulant rodenticide
bait in RapidPro.

Growth markets

Regional
segment

Market
position

SraegIic Repurt

Global growth drivers
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Growing peopulation

The world's population

is growing by 80 million
people each year and
forecast to total 8.6 billion
by 2030, creating further
demand from pest proximity.

Climate change

By 2050 increased pest and
hygiene challenges, pcsed
by climate change and
associated extreme weather
patterns, are expected to
result in approximately
250,000 additional deaths

a year from malatia, diarrhoea
and other diseases.

Customer expectations
Changing needs and
expectations from our
commercial customer base
with technolegy providing
new methods of service.

Urbanisation

Itis estimated that 60% of the
global population will live in
cities by 2025 and 70% by
2050 (1990: 43%) where pest
issues are most prevalent.

Invasive species

The proliferation of invasive
species {pests and plants)

is expected to continue

with intercontinentsl trade,
requiring increased vigilance
and preventative treatments.
Economic damages are
estimated at $120bn per
yearin the US alone.

Increasing regulations
Regulations are driving the
need for lower toxicity
solutions, with an estimated
1,000 active ingredients
(54 insecticides) lost in the
EU biocides review process.

Rise of middle classes
Estimates suggest 160 millicn
more people join the middle
class every year with increasing
hygiecne standards and lower
pesttolerance particularly in

Vector-borne diseases
More than 3.9 billien people in
over 128 countries are atrisk

of contracting dengue fever,
with 96 million cases estimated
per year and the emergence

of new diseases such as the

Increased pest activity
This includes expected growth
in mosquitoes, rodents,
nuisance pests {including
crawling insects and bed bugs)
and termites.

Asia, which is expected to
comprise 86% of the global
middle class by 2030.

Powassan virus.

Market characteristics

North America

3

Pacific

UK & Ireland

Germany

Benelux

Caribbean

Emerging markets

Regional
segment

Market
position

North America is the world's largest pest control market worth
c.$9bn and set to grow by ¢.5% to 2023. It is highly fragmented
with four major players — Orkin, Terminix, Rentokil Steritech and
Ecolab — and c.20,000 smaller independents. Market trends
include an improving housing market and eccnoemy fuelling
termite and commercial pest control and rising demand for ant,
bed bug and mosquito control services.

Key market trends in Australia and New Zealand are rising
hygiene standards, legislation and regulation, and free trade
agreements with China and India which will fuel export demands
and impact the pest and fumigation industry. Major players here
are Ecolab, Rollins, Terminix and Massey Services.

Rentokil is No. 1in the UK, Germany and Benelux, fellowed by
several businesses with scale to service national accounts and
many smaller providers, Leading Eurgpean operators include
Ecolab and Anticimex. Key value drivers are sales capability,
customer retention, upselling additional service lines, increasing
technician productivity and optimising business mix. Pest
pressures include termites, biting insects, rodents, pigeons

and other smaill mammals. Main customer segments are food
manufactudng, processing and retall, pharmaceutical, industrial
and manufacturing, hetels, offices and residential.

Market characteristics

Asia

182

Latin America/
Central America

1,2&3

Middle East and
North Africa

Sub-Saharan
Africa

1,2&3

These are fast-growing markets linked to economic and sccial
development. Population growth, a growing middle class and
increased government regulation on hygiene and sanitation are
fuelling growth. Market trends include strict regulations on food
safety, health and the environment, the use of extranets to provide
pest contral monitoring and performance tracking for customers,
the use of mobile technolegies by pest control companies to
enhance service productivity and a rising customer demand for
eco-friendly services and products.

The market is highly fragmented with the majority of pest contral
cempanies being made up of small, local businesses. Rentokil is a
market leader and the most recognisable and trusted brand. Pest
pressures include termites, mosquitoes, ants, cockroaches, rodents
and flying insects. Cockroaches, carriers of diseases such as
salmonella and gastroenteritis, are high-risk pests in homes. Main
customer segments are food processing, food retail chains, industrial
and manufacturing, hotels and resorts, and offices and residential.

North America

Europe & Latin America

UK & Rest of World Asla Pacific

Growth markets

These markets include North America,

the UK, Pacific, Germany, Benelux and

the Caribbean. They represent 55% of

Group Ongoing Revenues and 60% of

Group Ongoing Operating Profit and have
delivered a five-year revenue CAGR of 15.5%.

As the world’s largest pest control market,
North America is a particularly important
region for us. Gur business here provides
pest control coverage nationwide, supported
by ¢.350 branches, 47 distributicn centres
and ¢.8,400 colleagues. Approximately 70%
of our Pest Control services revenues are
contracted and 30% comes from jobbing
revenue. North America Pest Control has
delivered a five-year revenue CAGR of 22.2%.
Our strategy in this region is to build density
through organic nftiatives and M&A. Organic
initiatives include growth in national accounts,
product innovation, harnessing the digital
opportunity and leveraging our business to
business sales capability in our core sectors
of food processing, food retail, healthcare
and offices. We have a proven track record
in M&A and our pipeline remains strong.

In 2019, our North America Pest Control
operations grew by 11.5% to £949.0m, of
which 7.5% was growth through acquisition
and 4.4% was Crganic. Overall performance
was impacted by a softer first half of 2019
reflecting unusually wet weather conditions
In certain parts of the country in QZ, but it
benefited from a very good Q3 and a return
to more usual conditions for the rest of the
year. Net Operating Margin improved by
40 basis points in 2019 to 14.3%. supported
by stronger organic growth, synergies from
acguisitions beginning to flow through and
savings in property and procurement from
our Best of Breed cost savings programme.

Rentokil Initial plc
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Pest Control

Qur strategy
Pest Control is our core business line and our engine for
growth. Continued acceleration of the business can be
achieved through the strategic priorities shown in the
table below.

Medium-term strategic priorities

>

Continue gcceleration of
our business by building
on our global leadership
through further expansion
in Growth {particularly
North America) and
Emerging markets, both
organically and through
acquisitions,

In North America. we will continue to leverage our
scale and build market share though & balanced
programme combining organic initiatives {such as
new product growth areas, national accounts,
Innovation, digital marketing, Employer of Choice
and the Best of Breed transformation programme}
and targeted M&A to build densfty and increase our
expertise In new pest sectors such as vector control
and lake managerment.

Target high-growth
markets of mosquito,
bed bug and termites,
becoming industry
leaders and delivering
double-digit revenue
growth.

Deploy innovation
consistently, targeted
at key pest sectors and
with potentiai for new
noen-toxic solutions.

Harness the digital
opportunity — using our
digital expertise including
web, apps, portals and
services and to lead
digital pest control.

In mosquito services, our aim s to be the first choice
of residential and commerciai customers, including
governments, NGOs and foundations, to deliver
consistent, safe, effective and common services
across the world.

Emerging markets — in Asia our focus will be

on implementing an improvement plan for India,
further roll-out of digital technology to enhance
service and efficiency, integration of recent
acquisitions and further progress towards
profitability in China, We will continue to build
key city density in Latin America and build

on our vecter control capabliity in the core
Brazilian market.

In termites, our aim is to grow our share of the
global termite market while strengthening
positive centributions te the overall Rentokil

Pest Control brand and business, with a focus

an our core regions af Asia, Australia and the US,
In bed bugs, our aim Is to lead the sector with
inmovations that provide faster and more effective
pest control, leading to margin expansion through
reduced service costs, higher premium service
offerings and product harmonisation.

We will continue to invest in praduct and secvice
innovation to support our profitable growth and
industry leadership and have an extensive pipeline
of activities in place to support growth in 2020 and
beyond. In 2020, we will focus on completing the
roil-out of Lumnia across all our markets and will
further expand the product range.

In 2020, we will develop and launch Global Bait
Box, an innovative, flexible, technology-enabled
rodent selition which addresses 57 different
nceds and maikel regulrements. we will also
continue to develop non-texic pest control
solutions {biological and physical methods

in place of synthetic chemical products and
pesticides) in response to regulatery changes
and customer preferences.

Rentokil has developed the worid’s leading digital
pest control platform providing an unmatched
level of monitoring, reporting and insight for our
customers, Our three key digital innovations are
PestConnect, myRentokil and Command Centre
{see page 31).

Maximise our naticnal and
internatiocnal accounts
capability.

Maintain a strong,
value-creating acquisition
pregramme to build
further city and local
density,
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Our growing scale and density is enabling us to be
more competitive In securing anincreasing share of
national and glebal accounts. Our &im is to continue
to grow by buiiding long-term strategic customer
relationships, carefully targeting attractive
prospects, improving our sales execution and
leveraging our combined national sales expertise
of both Rentokil and Steritech,

Our aim in 2020 is to enhance the functionality
and capability of myRentokil in areas such as
charting, reporting and transaction facilities.

In PestConnect, we airm to add further to cur
existing range. In Command Centre, our focus
will be on leveraging data to improve efficiencies,
drive improvements in 5ales and service and
identify additional service recommendations and
potential new innovations from the identification
of solution gaps.

Our target key sectors include facilities
management and food and beverage
preduction to maximise the global opportunity.

Key focus areas are small bolt-ons to build density
in existing markets, acquisitions 'n new markets
and mega cities of the future and medijum-sized
transactions. Bolt-on acquisitions in urban areas
will be targeted for customers, employees, existing
routes and synergy opportunities. In new markets,
we will focus on acguisitions in target city clusters
and large urban areas, improving business
performance by deploying our sales and service
madels, processes, standards, technelogies

and financial discipline.

We will alse pursue medium-sized pest control
businesses, particularly in North America, to build
density (and to also supplement our growing
expertise in sectors such as vector control),
applying our own systems, processes and
fimancial rigour to improve revenues and margins.



What makes
a great Pest
Control
technician?

This was partially offset by a greater mix

of lower margin product sales. We continue
to breaden our presence across the region
through bolt-en acquisitions, and this year
purchased 14 pest control businesses,
inctuding Florida Pest Control {a top 20

US pest control company) and Active Pest
Control in Atlanta {top 40) — with combined
annualised revenues of ¢.$132m (¢.£99m)
in the year prior to purchase. For a full
review of our North American business
{which includes our product distribution and
Ambius businesses) and an update on our
path to achieve 18% Net Operating Margin
and revenues of $1.5bn by the end of 2021,
please see the Financial Review on pages
18 to121.

Our UK Pest Control business continued

to perform very stroengly, growing organically
by 6.2% and benefiting from continuing high
levels of customer service, rising customer
retention and a number of cne-off contracts.
We continue to build upon the success of our
UK growth stery through the use of digital
expertise, innovations, productivity and
service enhancements and acquisitions.

In 2012, ¢.33% of new sales in the UK were
delivered through our innovation pipeline,

Our Pacific Pest Centrol operations grew
Ongoing Revenue by 1.1% (0.6% Crganic)
with overall growth held back by decreased
fumigation activity, however, as a result
of a change in regulation dictating that
tankers importing goods into the regicn
are no longer required to be fumigated
on arrival into port but at the port of their
departure. We acquired two small pest
contro! compantes in Australia in 2019
with annualised revenues of c.£2m.
Identifying further pest control acquisition
opportunities will be a key focus for 2020.

JIFrareyIc meport QTR0 ol auveNdnoe

For our Pest Control
technicians, every working
day is different. Gur highly
skilled, trained operatives visit
customers with a wide range
of pest control issues and

use their problem-solving
skills to determine the most
effective solution.

Great Pest Control technicians
possess key attributes including
the ability to work independently
and manage their time to meet
set workloads, Previous
experience of high customer
service delivery {[not necessarily
in pest contrel!) is a must, ag are
excellent written and verbal
communication skills, a can-do
attitude and willingness to learn.

rirancidl stateinens
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They must live our core values
of Service, Relationships and
Teamwork. Great service is
doing what we said we would
do —on time and in full —
keeping our promises and
delivering an outstanding
customer experience. They
must be honest, focused

and straightforward in their
relationships with colleagues
and customers and, as team
players, must support and
respect all their colleagues’
important contributions.

Last, but by no means least,
our technicians work 1o the
highest ethics and safety
standards, putting the safety
of everyone with whom they

Our German and Benelux Pest Control
operations also performed well during the
year, with combined revenue growth of 10.6%
{Germany 13.6%, Benelux 6.9%).

In 2019, we acquired 19 pest control
cempanies in our Growth markets, bringing
the total to 117 pest acquisitions since 2015,
of which 67 have been in North America.

Emerging markets

We have a strong and rapidly growing
position in the markets of Asia, Latin America,
MENAT, Kenya, Fiji and Central America,
which combined represent a strong platform
for delivering sustainable, profitable growth.
They represent 9.4% of Group Ongoing
Revenue and 7.5% of Group Ongoing
Operating Profit and have delivered a
five-year revenue CAGR of 24.7%. Since 2015,
we have expanded our scale by acquiring 44
pest contrel cempanies in Emerging markets
with strong growth characteristics.

Asia made good progress during 2019,
delivering 4.4% OCrganic Revenue growth in
Pest Centrol. Once again, cur more mature
markets of Indonesia and Malaysia delivered
double-digit revenue growth of 26.9%.

In India, we have grown from a small
loss-making unit to the country’s No, 1
through our joint venture with PCl Pest
Control Private Limited (PCI). Integration of
FCl has progressed steadily in the year, with
branch network and people complete and
our IT piatform due te be finished by April
2020. However, continued investment in the
IT infrastructure and leadership team has
impacted profit growth in 2019, This will
provide a strong base for future revenue and
margin growth in our largest market in Asia.

come into contact first, while
adhering to our Code of
Conduct and working within the
bounds of law and regulation.

Find out more about
our people, culture
and diversity on
pages 46 and 47

In China, we are pursuing a city-based
strategy with a focus on specific urban and
industrial zones and have made further
progress towards profitability in 2019,

Latin America is our youngest region, but
expanding rapidly. Rentokil has top three
leadership positions in all its Latin American
markets and operates in nine of the 10 most
populated cities. The business is growing
at double-digit rates and in 2019 grew
Ongoeing Revenue by 19% and Crganic
Revenue by 7.0%, complementing this with
a solid acquisition agenda. [n addition to
earlier acquisitions in Chile, Colembia and
Brarzil, four more pest control companies
were acquired this year in Brazil, Costa Rica,
the Doeminican Republic and Uruguay,

a new market entry for the Group.

Rentokil Pest Controlls also the clear market
leader in MENAT, and National Pest Control,
the market leader in the UAE with 180
colleagues which we acquired in 2018,

is fully integrated. We now have the capacity
and footprint to operate across all of the
main Emirates.

In 2019, we acquired 11 pest contro!
companies in Emerging markets, bringing
the total to 44 pest control acquisitions
since 2015.
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Pest Control

Organic Revenue
growth levers

Service differentiation — Lumnia LED fly trap
Sales of our Lumnia LED fly trap range rose
by 32% in 2019, with over 100,000 units sold
to date in 52 countries. Lumnia was created
in 2017 following five years of working clasely
with experts in the LED industry and is the
worid's first range of iluminated fly iraps io
use patented LED lighting technology rather
than traditional fluorescent tubes. Lumnia
attracts, kills and encapsulates insects
hygienically — eliminating the risks of
coatamination — and is sultable for a diversity
of internal environments. It is also more
environmentally friendty than traditional
units, reducing carbon emissions by 62%
when compared with units containing
compact fluorescentiamps. Cur products
include Lumnia Standard {(offices, shops,
food retallars) and Lumnia Ultimate fwhich
uses second generation lamps for high-
dependency customers). We have now
added to this range with Lumnia Colour
(which offers customers a cheice of

coloured units to mateh their interior

décor) and Lumnmnia Slim. Further
enhancements are planned for 2020,

Service productivity and cost reduction —
digital apps

We continue to see unprecedented levels of
change from the impact of technology on our
customers and our frontline and back office
colleagues, and use IT to improve the quality
and consistency of service delivery, drive
innovation and reduce costs. Over the last

12 menths, we have deployed 20 process

Key innovations

to drive service,
productivity and growth

automation/rohotics projects in the UK in
sales, marketing, finance and HR to free up
capacity and reduce costs, This has reduced
transactional processing costs from 2.6%

of gross revenue to 2.2% and we are now
planning to extend our use of robotics
across the Group.

We are also relling out smartphones and
apps across the Group, an example of which
is ServiceTrak, our smartphone field service
app used by around 14,700 Pest Contro!,
Hygiene and Ambius technicians to record
service visits in 48 countries — start time,
services performed, customer
recommendations, customer signatures and
end time — and saving around £8m in costs
that would have been incurred on replacing
traditional PDAs. In 2019, approximately 10
million customer visits were processed
through ServiceTrak. To further strengthen
our capability, we appolnted this year a new
Director for Digital Products and Operational
Artificial Intelligance {(Al), and a Group
Director for Digital Innovation and Customer
Al In addition, working with a glopal
technology leader, we are working on the
development of a new A) route optimisation
productivity tool, capable of providing traffic
updates by the millisecond and redirecting
the technician’s route accordingly. Also in
developitent is @ new Al tool to enhance
our service capability in pest control. PestiD
is animage-based smartphone app which
identifies a pest frem a photograph taken
by A terhnician, Once identificd, MestiD wili
recommend the best tocls te contro! the pest
plus other important information such as
operational safety reminders,

Protecting core markets — innovations

in rodent control

Rodent control accounts for ©.32bn of the
global pest control market and continues

to grow at ¢.4% per annum. In 2019, we
launched a range of new remote monitoring
products to enhance our proposition in this
core market and generate speedy responses
to infestaticn threats. Dual AutoGate Connect
is a rat and mouse remete monitoring and
control unit which, on detecting the presence
of a rodent in the unit, opens its ‘gate’ to
provide access to bait and then sends an
alert to cur Command Centre, and is a new
extension to our range of AutoGate products,
which have been deveioped in response to
legal directives on certain uses of permanent
baiting. Rat Riddance Connect is an
innovative trap that is able to send immediate
notification of a rat capture. Rodent Celling
Trap is a ceiling solution for radent contro!

in gaps above ceilings and which provides
indicator alerts to a capture. Finally, our
Multi-Mouse Trap product is a menitoring
sensor that can be attached to several live
catch products for real-time reporting,
allowing for eariy technicfan support.

Responding to customer needs —
PestConnect, myRentokil and

Comrand Centre

Rentokil has developed the world's leading
digital pest conirol platform, providing an
unmatched level of monitoring, reporting
and insight for cur customers who face the
risk of increased tines and censure without
effective pest management and reporting.
This section focuses on three digital
innovations — PestConnect, myRentokil
and Command Centre.

Harnessing app
technology

to provide an unmatched level of
monitoring, reperting and insight for
our customers who face the risk of
increased fines and censure without
effective pest management

myRentokil — putting our
customers in control

and designed to increase the quality,
visibility, and integrity of their pest
control protection activities via
arange of online services

Find out more on page 31
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PestConnect, our award-winning remote
monitoring system for rodents and the
world’s smartest mouse trap, provides ocur
customers with a complete pest detection
sclution and full traceability. By the end of
2018, our connected devices were used in
over 4,000 customer premises across mare
than 25 countries, and this year has seen

a bb6% year-on-year increase in connected
devices across the Group.

Cur myRentokil online customer portal
provides secure 24/7 accessto real-time
information that provides easy access to
documentation required for pest control,
including reviewing service recommendations
and responding to audits. Currently, 36%

of our commercial customers in over 40
countries use the portal and we have seen

a 32% increase in usage of the portal

year on year.

Command Centre is our central information
hub containing data compiled from over 40
countries with 6.5 billion records, populated
with historic and current data to track pest
trends and identify emerging risks. Nine
million messages were sent or received
across our digital pest control network
every day in 2019, recorded on the central
Command Centre and stored on the Google
Cloud platform.

This year saw the implementation of one of
our biggest digital installations to date fora
customer with a 73,000-square-metre food
preduction facility in Australia, a country

in which food safety guidelines are strictly
enforced and where customers face fines of
up to 10% of their annual turncver for product
recalls. More than 400 PestConnect units
were installed in the facility across six major
preduction buildings over a two-week period,
delivering a new level of pest management
service and significantly enhancing cur
service productivity. myRentokil data is
available in real time with Command Centre,
providing 24/7 Internet of Things monitoring,
and our colleagues have also been able to
make additional product recommendations
to the customer, such as Lumnia, which has
resulted in 120 units being instalied across
the site.

Digital marketing — record levels of
enquiries in 2019

Cur ongoing focus on delivering new content
and localisation is driving greater levels of
traffic to our websites across the Group.
Following on from our success in 2018, which
saw a record 21 million visits to our web
estate (up five million on the previous year),
we have seen a further record level of
enquiries this year. Overall web Rentokil
traffic grew by 30%, total visits reached

27.4 million sessions (21.2 million in 2018)
and conversion of visits to direct enquiries
rose by 12% year cn year. New online
marketing campaigns are under way, focused
on how our leadership in technology and
innovation helps our customers to ‘stay one
step ahead of pests’ threugh industry-leading
levels of menitoring, reporting and insight.

arareyic Report

Vector control — building a world-class
capability to combat new pest threats
Rentokil has offered mosguito and vector
contrel services for many years, particularly
in Asia where vector-borne diseases are

a major threat to public health. Across the
Group these services are growing at over
10% and in 2019 we generated c.$48m

of revenues (principally in North America
and Asia), an increase of 24% on 2018.

The threat to public health from
maosquito-borne disease is significant and
increasing as a result of climate change

and urbanisation. Each year, there are
approximately 200 million cases of malaria
and 390 miltion cases of dengue fever.

A paper published In June 2019 in Nature
Microbiclagy highlighted that dengue fever
is likely to spread to parts of Asia, Europe,
North America and Australia — areas

that have historically been free of the
life-threatening condition. In 2019, the
Brazilian Ministry of Health reported 1.5
million dengue cases — anincrease of 600%
on the prior year — reflecting increasing
temperatures and a high velume of rainfall,
as well as the emergence of a new strain of
dengue fever from the Caribbean. In addition,
the Eurcpean Centre for Disease Prevention
and Control reported that, during the year,
several human West Nile virus infections
were reperted in Greece and Romania.

Rentokil operates in the three distinct parts
of the mosguito and vector control market:
residential, commercial {where increasingly
companies are acting with a duty of care
towards their employees) and large-scale
vector control. We estimate the masquito and
vecter control market is now worth around
$31bn and is set to deliver a 7% CAGR to
2025, We are therefore focused on building
our scale and capabilities in this high-growth
area. Recent activities have included
establishing a glicbal centre for excellence in
mosquito and vector control in the US to
support our growing expertise in the field,
and creating a mosquito laboratory at our
Power Centre R&D facility in the UK in which
we can study the behaviour of a colony of
Aedes aegypti mosquitoes — the primary
species respensible for transmitting

viruses such as Zika virus, dengue fever,
chikungunya and yellow fever —in order

to find new solutions for thelr control.

In recent years, we have significantly
enhanced our capabilities in North America
and Eatin America through a number of key
vector control acguisitions. Following the
acquisitions of VDCI {the US’s leading
provider of municipal and commercial
mosguito control), Mosguito Control Services
in Louisiana and Multicontrole in Brazil in
2018, we acquired Ecovec in Brazilin July
2019. Mosquito and vector contrel will remain
an important focus area for Rentokil as we
build cur scale and extend our capabilities.
We are engaged in ongoing discussions with
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municipalities in Latin America, the US and
other territories about using our expertise for
their large-scale vector control requirements,
and recently won & vector conirol contract

in Sao Paulo. Qur pipeline of future
opportunities looks encouraging.

Global and national accounts

We continue to make good progress in
targeting global customers, particularly in
the feod processing sector. Our continued
active participation in the Global Food Safety
Initiative has strengthened our global brand
presence in this sector. We continue to grow
revenue from our global accounts with an
ncrease of 207% since 2017 and our pipeline
of future oppertunities has been increased to
Just over £67.6m. In addition to this, 2019 has
seen us push on with account development
with our large global facilities management
customers. In aggregate across Sodexo, 1S5,
JLL and CBRE our revenue has grown by 67%
in the last 12 months.

Steritech, our North America foed safety
business, has alsc significantly enhanced our
capability in the IS national accounts market,
and since 2015 we have delivered compound
annuai growth in national accounts revenue
of 22%. Now with greater scale and density,
we are more competitive and securing an
increasing share of national accounts through
our reputation for service quality, the careful
targeting of attractive prospects, improving
our sales execution and leveraging our
combined national sales expertise of both
Rentekil and Steritech, In 2019, we increased
our North America national account sales by
15% and, as with our global accounts, our
pipeline of prospects is strong.

Growth through M&A

Acquisitions are core to our Pest Control
strategy — we have the in-house capability
to identify, evaluate and execute acquisitions
at pace. Our model for value-creating M&A
is structured around disciplined evaluation
of targets, detailed integration programmes
and careful governance of new businesses
under our ownership. This year, we acquired
30 pest control companies in 17 countries:
Australia, Brazil, Canada, Chile, Colombia,
Costa Rica, Dominican Republic, France,
Greece, Indonesia, Jordan, Malaysia, Poland,
Sri Lanka, Thailand, Uruguay and the US. Our
pipeline of pest control opportunities in both
Growth and Emerging markets remains very
strong and we are confident of further
high-quality acquisitions in 2020.
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¢8m

cost savings by
replatforming from
c.B,000 PDAS to phones

10~

customer visits processed
with ServiceTrak field
service app
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We are digitally enabling our frontline
colleagues and have migrated c.14,7G0
technicians in 49 countries (80 markets)
from paper-based data capture and PDA
mobile devices to Android apps for customer
installation and servicing. Our new suite

of service apps allows digital interaction with
customer sites leading to improved service
quality and productivity. Our technicians can
now take advantage of Android capabilities
such as sat nav, photos, video learning,

geocode locations and speech to text features.

In addition, we have innovated and
commenced deployment of an app to display
the customer’s floor plan linked to our Internet
of Things {loT) PestConnect solution and
standard barcoded service points. This is
giving our field colleagues greater visibility

of each customer site and our customers

a bespoke view of their sites.

L

The way we used to build
customer site data in the back
office took ages and often had
mistakes in it. It’s a completely
different experience now and it’s
great that the technology has
moved forward encugh for us to
innovate like this. It's & fantastic
tool and it's really improved my
day-to-day work and the service
| can deliver for my customers.

Jon Niesyto
Technical Account Manager

o0

Rentokil is a pioneer in pest
control innovation. Linking our
colleague-based apps to our
PestConnect loT soiutions to
create an end-to-end digital
ecosystem is the feundation

of our digital pest control vision.

Paul Donegan
Digital Innovation Director
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Future innovations

Having deployed foundational apps,
we can innovate new apps to further
improve service productivity,
Examples of future innovation
include Pest Heat maps which will
use digital floor plans to plot pest
activity, allowing technicians to
identify key risk areas, and PestID,
which uses Google AutoML Vision
product {a cloud hosted machine
learning service for gaining insights
frem images) to support our
technicians in identifying pest
species via an app on their phone,
This will be particularly usefulin
correctly identifying more difficult
to identify insects such as stored
product insects.

Rentokil Inttial plc
Annual Report 2018 33



Initial Hygiene is the world’s largest commercial hygiene services
company, offering an extensive range of award-winning products
and services to enhance customers’ washrooms, while at the
same time ensuring that they are compliant with important

legislation.

What we do

At Rentokil, our ¢.2,800 Hygiene technicians provide hygiene services to
business environments to make them cleaner, safer, healthier and more pleasant
places in which to operate. Good hygiene practices reduce the risk of infection
being passed from person o person, resulting in fewer days lost to sickness,

cost savings and increased productivity.

How we performed

Ongoing Revenue

£546.8m 58%

Ongoing Operating Profit

£97.3m +8.1%

Net Operating Margin

17.8% +40 bps
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QOur Initial Hyglena business is & strong
complementary business to Pest Controi.
Both businesses service the same types

of customers and also share country
management, technology, infrastructure

and hack offico services. They ae alsu
route-based businesses where profit growth
is driven by a fundamental understanding of
the importance of density. The megatrends
in the hygiene industry — and the importance
of being able to prevent the spread of
diseases, germs and bacteria — are fuelling
demand for our services (see page 35 for
global growth drivers). Over the past five
years, our Hygiene business has delivered a
significant improvement in revenue growth,
established a strong product range, launched
the mylnitial customer portal for enhanced
customer insight and engagement and has
begun to acquire bolt-on businesses to build
scale and density, It has delivered a five-year
Ongoing Revenue CAGR of .1%.

Our Hygiene operations have performed
vary well in 2019 scross all our regions.

This reflects good growth in the UK (up 7.9%),
Europe (up 5.2%) and Pacific (up 3.1%) and the
ongeing contribution from acquisitions. In our
UK & Rest of World operations, performance
has benefited from high levels of customer
service, improved custemer retention and a
number of one-off contracts which will be
non-recurring into 2020. Qur Hygiene
operations frave traded well overall in our
Astan countries, and in Australia our
performance reflects the impact of new
customer contracts won in 2018 snd 2019,
driven in part by stronger sales colleague
retention.

Attractive and growing market

Like Pest Control, our Hygiene businesses
operate in an attractive industry offering
good growth opportunities as expectations
around standaids ul hyyiele Increase,

The global hygiena market is expected

to grow in line with GDP and our aim is to
grow our Hygiene operations organically by
between 2% and 3% per year. Our Hygiene
business is highly profitable with margins
being driven by postcode density (servicing
as many customers as possible in any tight
geographic zone) and customer penetration
(selling multiple service lines to customers).
An explanation of some of the key growth
drivers in the global hygiene market is
provided over the next paragraphs and

is also summarised on page 35.

Customers and service culture

Our key Hygiene customer segments are
manufacturing, facilities management, offices
and administrative, hospitality, retail and
education. We achieve high customer
satisfaction levels and belleve this is a key
competitive advantage. We have account
management processes in place for
contacting customers at ieast annually to
confirm service requirements are being met.
Wae use feedback fram our Customer Volce
Counts {NPS) surveys to improve service
levels and every detractor score is followed
up with & call from an account or branch
manager within 24 hours.



We identify nine key growth
drivers that are vital for the
continued success and

growth of our Hygiene business
globally. As a leading player

in the hyglene industry, Initial
Hygiene has award-winning
products and one of the world’s
strengest brands, which is
particularly valuable in Emerging
markets. We have an in-depth
understanding of the importance
of density of customers by
location, what we call ‘postcode
density’, and by the number of
serviced products by customer,
or ‘product penetration’ and key
operational drivers of growth.
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Global growth drivers
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Technelogy solutions
advancing the washroem
There is an increased focus on
technology across the industry,
with original equipment
manufacturers (CEMs) offering
Internet of Things sensors and
data infrastructure. Technology
companies are now focusing on
the washroom space.

Millennial mindset — an
important user segment
Millennials are the largest
growing generation in the
workforce and the driving
force behind the wellness
trend where mental, physical
and emeotional dimensions
are in sync. They are highly
maobile and hygiene aware
when travelling.

Wellbeing acereditations
raising building standards
Welibeing is Increasingly being
incorporated into building
standards, with B2% of
employers stating a preference
for weliness-enabled buildings
faccording to the CBRE Group,
Inc. 2018). Productivity

is replacing utilisation as &
core metric of workplace
performance aligned to

health and happiness. Itis
estimated that unwellness

and absenteeism cests

the US econcmy ¢.$2.2tn

a year and the UK economy
c.£18bn each year.

Urbanisation driving the
need for efficiencies

Itis estimated that 70% of the
world's population will live in
cities by 2050 (1980: 43%)
where hygiene and sanitation
issues are most prevalent.

Air quality

The global air purifiers market
is estimated to be worth
$33.2bn by 2023 (CAGR of
12.5%). Asia-Pacific is expected
to be the fastest-growing
market and will account

for 35% of the market share

by 2023,

Increased legislation
driving standards of
hygiene

Particularly in food businesses
which are considered to present
higher risks to public health than
other nen-food sectors.
Regional legislation is forcing
localised solutions.

Rise of middle classes

160 million more pecple join
the middle class every year,
with increasing hyglene
standards and a growing health
consciousness.

Growing population
pressure on washrooms
The world's population is
growing by 80 miliion people
each year and forecast tc tolal
8.6 billion by 2030, creating
further demand for washroom

Rise of household income
driving market growth
Acsignificantincrease In female
employment across the world
has also driven the market
growth and washroom need.

Hygiene markets

facilities.

Market characteristics

Regional
segment Market position
Europe 1&2
Latin America 1{Chile and
Coflombia)
UK and lreland 1 (UK}
2 {Ireland}
Rest of World 1& 2 {Caribbean},
1& 2 {Nordies and
Sub-Saharan Africa)
Asia 1,2&3
Pacific 1{NZ),
2 (Australia),
4 (Fiji)

Initial Hygiene has a No. 1 position in 13 countries,

a No. 2 position in 12 and leading market positions
in the Pacific, Asia and Caribbean.

Characteristics of the giobal hygiene market differ
by country, with regional variances based on socia!
and legislative standards. For example, in countries
such as the UK and Australia, where there is tight
legislation and very high standards surrounding the
disposal of blood waste, the feminine hygiens
market is particularly important. in Asia, air care and
air quality is of parameount importance to consumers,
driving high growth in this sector. In Europe, there is
a strong focus on textiles, for example roller towels,
and floar care, such as dust mats. In developing
countries around the woerld, where there is growing
awareness of sanitation and public health,
handwash support is a key market sector.

North America Europe & Latin America

UK & Rest of World Asla Pacific

20,744

Hygiene customer site visits were
recorded using our ServiceTrak
app in 2019, all of which were
processed to our customer and
operational systems, without
paperwork or admin
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Hygiene

Our strategy
Cur strategy is to detiver continued growth through a combination of streng

operationat focus and fargeted M&A to build city density. Central to this is the
delivery of exceltent customer service, product innovation and improvements

to service productivity through digital products and applications.

Medium-term strategic priorities

>

Continue to focus on delivering
service quality and productivity.

Delivery of an effective On Time In Full (OTIF)
service supported by capable and motivated

colleagues will support baseline organic growth.

An OTIF service provides us with the strongest
platform for customer retention, acceptiance

of Application Programming lnterfaces (AP
and upsell of additional service lines.

Continue to offer best-in-class
products, developing new,
targeted, lower-cost products
and innovations and expanding
our product and service offering
into the wellbeing sector.

Harness the digital epportunity,
developing digital innovations
to address customer needs
and increase productivity

Qur prioritles are to expand our hygiene service
offering, with a focus on washrooms, wellbaing
and additional route-based services.

We will aim to do this through deployment of
digital selutions, such as ServiceTrak, to enable
our Hygiene technicians to be in the right place
at the right time delivering the right service

to customers, in addition, we will continue to
focus on local and regional activities to support
and maximise customer retention through
Project 0.

In washrooms, cour focus will be on
deep-clean services, lower-cost products
and consumables and market expansion of
our floor care offer. Wellbeing products will
include compact air purification products and
our new high-performance Signature Scent
air fragrance, We are also plloting a first aid
saepvice offer with kits to treat serious and
minor wounds inciuding sprains, eye injuries,
burns and snake bites. Defibrillators may also
form part of this service offering.

The digital hygiene market is expected to
deliver a ¢.10.5% CAGR to 2023, with the
global smart washrooms worth some $2.5bn.

Pricrities will include the deployment of our
Rapid>Smart Hygiene digital washrooms
products and onr evolving mylnitial custaoe
portal. We will aim to provide industry-leading
and differentiated digital products to meet the
needs of cur key customer target groups.

Buiid customer and product
density to drive margin
expansion.

Targeting of the right customers by capable
and motivated sales colleagues will anable us
to win new business and increase penetration
regionaily and within customers’ sites,

Pursue targeted, city-based M&A
to build density and grow profits.
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ldentify and acquire businesses to integrate
into our existing Rertokil initiat activities —
in addition ta existing hygiene services or
as new entries where we have pest control.

Analysis of our current footprint supported by
the right sales Incantives and selling methods
to drive behaviours that wiil lead to Improved
density,

2019 has seen further demonstration of M&A
working very well for our Hygiene business and
this will be & continuing focus in 2020 and
beyond. Our focus in Hygiene M&A will be on
building city density across existing and new
regions, with a particular emphasis in Emerging
markets.




What makes a
great Hygiene
technician?

Organic Revenue
growth levers

Qur core offer in our Initial Hygiene business
is based around the washrooms of customer
premises. Maximising revenue means
growing ocur core washroom offer and we
achieved this in 2019 through a number

of bread-based operational improvements

in product density, service quality and
productivity, digital innovation, building the
sales funnel and also in highly targeted M&A.

Best-in-class products and density

Growth in Hygiene is driven by both postcode
density (servicing as many customers as
possible in a fight geographic zone) and
customer penetration (selling multiple service
lines to each site). What we seek, therefore,
is more customers on the route and mare
products on the washroom wall. Over the
past few years, we have made significant
investments in developing new product lines
and these include our high-end Reflection
range, our mid-end Signature suite of
products, Signature Colour, No-Touch
products and Premium Scenting. We believe
that we now have the best products in the
market and this confidence in our range
enables our sales force to sell more
products. Further additions to cur product
lines in 2019 included a new range of
environmentally friendly hand soaps

and enhancements to our air care range
including new aerosol fragrances.

Service quality and productivity

Initial Hygiene continues to recelve a five-star
review rating on Trustpilot for service quality.
The supply and cleaning of feminine hygiene
units is one of the most frequent services we
provide at [nitial. In the UK, our on-site liner
service provision is now fully rolled out.

Sraregic meport
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Our Hygiene technicians visit
many different customers to carry
out a wide range of cleaning jobs,
ranging from deep cleaning of a
restaurant kitchen right through
to a ¢crime scene clean-up. Those
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These include being self-
motivated, proactive, reliable
and flexible, and being able to
demonstrate clear and confident
communication skills with
customers and colleagues.

of a squeamish nature may find

this is not the job for them!

However, colleagues who
want variation in services
and customers will find Initial
a great business to work for.

As with Pest Contral, our
Hygiene technicians must
possess a key set of attributes

One of the great things

about working with Rentokil
Initial — both for us and for our
¢olleagues — is that we don’t
require applicants to have prior
experience of the role because
we will provide the training,
support and guidance to make
our new colleagues experts

in the industry.

to make them great technicians.

This replaces traditional bin transfer and
cleaning of the units within our depots, as the
service can be completed on our customers’
premises, reducing the amount of products
we carry on our vans by €.50% and increasing
the number of customer visits that a service
technician can make before having to return
to their local depot. It also means our UK
technicians can now stay out between two
and three days before returning to branch.

Digital innovation — sales and service

Our digital sales and service tools are also
increasing productivity and are being utilised
to build custorner awareness of Initial’s
muftiple product offerings. Our online
Hygiene customer portal, mylnitial, is being
developed to highlight the full spectrum of
Hygiene sclutions on its home page and

is now being used by customers in 18
countries. We continue to digitise service
dockets, both in field service and when
presented to customers through the portal.
In addition, we now track sales leads per
driver on a monthly basis.

Our smartphone field service app,
ServiceTrak, is also improving productivity,
the benefits of which include better
colleague retention, higher gross marging
achieved through greater service productivity
and cost savings, and delivery of a more
professiconal service to customers. Cur
Hygiene technicians use the app to record
service visits — for example, start time,
services performed, customer
recommendations, customer signatures
and end time. The app is now being used
by Just over 3,500 Hygiene technicians in
31countries and during the year we
completed 20,744 customer site visits on
ServiceTrak, all automatically processed
to our customer and operaticnal systems,

Find out more about
our people, culture
and diversity on
pages 46 and 47

without paperwork or admin. In 2019, we also
generated 31,984 new business leads from
service colleagues,

Building the sales funnel in Hygiene through
digital channels

We focus on driving continuous
improvements to our web estate around the
world to increase customer traffic to our sites
and generate new business leads. During
2019, web traffic to Initial websites increased
by 6% on 2018 and can be attributed to a
number of successful, targeted cross-sell,
upsell and email campaigns e increase
customer visits. As an illustration, one such
campaign in the UK involved sending over
84,000 emails to target companies over 10
menths, resulting in a 30% increase in sales
target lists in the first quarter of 2019, Other
highly effective campaigns fnclude Google
My Business and Pay Per Click campaigns.

In additicn, by using digital tools such

as Chatbox and Webchat, our Sales
representatives can free up more time

tc focus on sales activities.

Extending our services to build product
density and add premium ranges

We have been very encouraged by the
momentum created in our Hygiene business
over the past few years and are becoming
increasingly cenfident In the growth
opportunities afforded by the business, which
we see as a core, complimentary business to
Pest Control. Our focus for continued growth
is to target new growth eppertunities by
building proeduct density and adding new
premium products to our hygiene range.
These high-groewth areas include air care,
digital hygiene and route-based service
extensions, such as first aid.

Rentokil Initial plc
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Hygiene

Air care

The global air care market —which includes
premium scenting, air guality monitoring and
air purification —is estimated to be worth
around $17bn and is expected to deliver

a 10% CAGR over the next seven years,

Air care gives us an opportunity to broaden
our existing hygiere offer into a higher-
growth wellbeing service offering and

we have identifled a number of preferred
suppliers for next-generation air purification
and enhancement products, which we are
now piloting in a number of markets. We plan
to add to our scenting range a new multi-
fragrence, long-lasting (up to 36 weeks) air
nebullser and also plan to launch a new
wali-mounted air purification device which
will improve Indoor air guality by filtering

out air pollutants and odeurs,

Digital hygiene products

During 2019, we have been piloting a number
of new digital nygiene products, with our first
digital range set for launch in 2020. These
inciude no-touch digital taps and soap
dispensers, hand wash monitoring and
cubicle sanitisers. Digital monitoring of
consumabies enables more efficient
washroom operations at lower cost, with a
reduced envitonmental impact and offering

a better guest experience. Our RapidWater
taps and RapidFoam soap dispensers reduce
water and soap consumption with one
container of RapidFoam providing over
16,000 hand washes, significantly extending
periods between refills and reducing the
envirpnmental impact from scap usage by

Key innovaticns

to drive service,
productivity and growth

up 1o 98%. RapidCount is a wireless footfall
monitor that provides continuous, 24/7
real-time data to customers, enabiing them
to observe equipment usage throughout
the day, identify which washrooms are at
thefr busiest or quietest and spot busy
locations in order to plan an effective
maintenance regime.

Route-based extensions

We are plloting other route-based extensions
to our products and services, including a first
atd kit service solution which we have been
trialling in Melbourne, Australia, and which
we will be rolling out across our Pacific
operations tn 2020. Our planned standard
service solution will include installation of the
kits (either wall mounted or portable}, four
service visits per year to replace full modules
when used or expired and shipment of
additionsl modules on customer reguest.

Growth through targeted M&A

The MEA environment in the hygiene market
is less competitive than in the pest control
market and asset prices are not as high,
However, hygiene companies are [ess
straightforward to integrate as we are
acquiring companies using other branded
preducts, which must be converted to our
own over time. As aur confidence in our
Hygiene model grows, so too has our focus
on securing attractive hygiene acquisitions
and we have acquired 25 hygiene businesses
since 2015, including the larger acquisitions
of CWS-boco ltaly and global Cannon
Hyyiehe business. We have made further
good progress in Hygiene M&A in 2019,

RapidFoam

A single dispenser of RapidFoam
provides 16,000 handwashes,
extending pericds between refijls
and reducing the environmental
impact from soap usage by up 98%.

@ Find out more above

Our first range of
digital products

are set for launch in 2020, These
include no-touch digital taps and
soap dispensers, hand wash

monitoring and cubicle sanitisers.

Find out more above
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in particular in Emerging markets, with eight
deals completed this year in Chile, Colombia,
Dutch Antilles, Indonesia, Malaysia, Spain and
the UK. The Cannon Hygiene business, now
fully integrated in eight countries and now
also being integrated into our UK operations
after conclusion of the CMA review, is
performing well and to plan.

in July 2017, the Group's Workwear and
Hygiene assets principally in Germany and
Benelux were transferred into a joint venture
{JV) with Haniel for a cash consideration of
€520m and & retained 17.8% share in the JV.
On 30 July 2019, we agreed to sell aur
remaining stake in the JV to Haniel for a cash
consideration of €430m, Together with the
initial consideration for transferring the
businesses into the JV of c€520m and
dividends received since its formation of

¢ £29m, the fransaction has realised a tota!
cash return of ¢.€979m. The proceeds from
the sale have been used to reduce debt and
support the Group’s M&A programme.

Competitors

There are many routes to satisfy washroom
hygiene needs with competitors providing
awide range af supply solutions. Regional,
full-service companies provide service
solutions, either direct or via cleaning
companies / facility management,
differentiating on services, products and
coverage. In several markets washroom
reguirements can be met by FM or cleaning
companies direct, but this solutien is not
typically of the same standard provided

by washroom services companies.
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§g Protect & Enhance

The four businesses included in our Protect & Enhance category
are Workwear (France), Ambius {Global), Property Care (UK)
and Dental Services (Germany and Sweden).

What we do

Ambius is the world's leading commercial provider of plants and scenting.
Property Care provides damp proofing, property conservation, wocdworm
freatment and wood rot freatment services. France Workwear specialises
in the supply and maintenance of workplace garments. Dental Services
operates principally from two main hubs and specialises in the disposal

and recycling of dental waste.

How we performed

Ongoing Revenue

£397.6m 35%

Ongoing Operating Profit

¢48.7m +6.6%

Net Operating Margin

12.3% +40 bps

All four businesses are cash generative
and share overheads with our Pest Control
and Hygiene businesses. However, they
operate in markets which typically offer
lower opporiunities for profitable growth.
Combined, the businesses represent 15%
of Group Ongeing Revenue and 10% of
Ongoing Operating Profit and generate

a Net Operating Margin of 12.3%.

A much improved
performance in 2019

2018 has been another encouraging year

for our Protect & Enhance businesses
despite ongoing market chaflenges.
Workwear, Ambius and Dental Services
recorded year-on-year growth in Ongoing
Revenue, while UK Property Care showed

& much improved rate of revenue deciine

of 2.5% for the year {(versus a decline of 17.4%
in 2018), aided by a 2.2% return to revenue
growth in H2.

However, while Ambius and Dental Services
delivered profitable growth of 19.8% for the
year, Property Care and France Workwear
both declined by £0.4m (363%) and 2.6%
respectively. Underlying profits Tn Workwear
improved year on year, but they have now
reached the level where statutory employee
profit share regulations in France has
triggered, resulting in an overall Ongoing
Operating Profit decline for 2019. in line
with our strategy for the category, service
metrics for all four businesses are high,

with 2019 State of Service at 98.5% and
customer retention at 90.2% (the highest
level across all our businesses). Customer
retention in France Workwear was 92.8%,
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Workwear

Cur Workwear operations in France
specialise in the supply and laundering of
workwear, uniforms, cleanroom garments
and personal protective wear. 2013 saw

a marked turnaround in Crganic Revenue
growth — which rose by 3.4% versus 0.9%

in 2018 — and customer retention and
productivity by garment at record highs.

This has been achieved through an
outstanding execution of strategy by our
management team, which has focused on
service and product quality to drive customer
retention, together with profit improvement
and margin protection initiatives. Initiatives
during the year included implementation of

a programme to fit RFID (radlo frequency
identification) tags on all garments processed
through our facilities to guarantee tracking
and solve missing items Issues (which
account for ¢.50% of customer complaints).
In keeping with our Group commitment to
run a respoensible business we also deployed
our first electric and bio-fuel vans and
commenced a recycling garmeant project
with the aim cf recycling around one million
garments each year.

While we are greatly encouraged by our
performance in 2019, we are not complacent.
We continue to work to return the business to
full operaticnal and financial health through
ongoing implementation of our Quality
Strategy in Workwear. This agenda focused
first on processing and service quality, where
we have made strong progress In a number
of areas {e.g. improvements in customer
retention, process digitisation and delivery
route optimisation). Second, we have been
enhancing product and service innovation
across the business (e.g. service quality

KPls, RFID technology, deployment of
smartphones and apps to all our frontline

Rentakil Initial plc
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Protect & Enhance

Sales and Service colleagues). Finally, our
Customer Care Strategy aims to achieve new
levels of customer intimacy via enhanced
organisational design and dedicated expert
teams supported by an ecosystem of
telephony and web contact channels.

We have made the decisfon to separate

our French Hygiene and French Workwear
businesses to allow greater specialisation

in each area. As we have seen elsewhere
across the operations, this focus will enahle
us to extend our services to our hygiene
customers as well as bringing more direct
expertise and innovation. The separation,
which will take approximately 12 months, will
involve some duplication of cost as we split
the businesses and we anticipate this will be
in the order of £1m in year one. As required to
support such a change we are in the process
of consultation with the appropriate works
councils, unions and social partners.

Ambius

Ambius operates in 16 countries and has No. 1
positions in eight of its markets {including in
the US, Canada, Australia and New Zealand).
Its product offering Is broadly consistent
across the world and includes interior
landscaping, Christmas decorations and
premium scenting, The US business
comprises 59% of total Ambius revenues.

Key customer segments are offices, facilities
management, hospitality, food and non-food
retaii, leisure, healthcare and education.

Our products and services in Ambius have

a strontg link with health and wellbeing,

and service quality, expertise and customer
retention metrics are high. Our strategic focus
is on higher-margin green {living) walls and
premium scenting, expanding and exploiting
international agreements and driving lead
generation through digital applications.

Innovaticns

to enhance customer
experience

Rentokil Initial plc
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Property Care

Our Property Care business is based in the
UK. Services include dry rot and woodworm
treatment and damp proofing. We have a
feading position in the industry and have
developed a strong operational capability
with certified teams undertaking work in
cemmercial and social housing. The business
has an excellent reputation for customer
service and & loyal customer base. Qur three
brands, Peter Cox, Wise Property Care and
Rentokil Property Care, were the top three
businesses rated by customers in the damp
proofing category, ranked by Trustpilot in
2019, Trading, however, contifues to be
significantly impacted by the slowdown

in the UK property market and, while the
business is small — generating revenues

of £22.5min 2019 —its recent revenue
decline over the last two years has
dampened Organic Revenue growth

in the UK & Rest of World region.

To counter ongeing market pressures,

we have been implementing a business
improvement plan based on better revenue,
leveraging our digital expertise fram Pest
Control, focusing on cost and efficiency
measures and developing pest proofing
service lines to additicna! customar
segments to reduce dependence on

the UK housing market.

Dental Waste Hygiene

Medentex is based in Germany and Sweden
and specialises In the professional and
compliant disposal and recycling of dental
waste. [t has 90 employees and provides
waste separating products to customers

in Germany, France, Switzerland and the US.
Itis a small, profitable business (with revenues
of just under £121m) and ¢ .56% of its apnual

The Natede smart
natural air purifier

Jees a fan installed beneath
the plant tc boost its natural
air purification process.
@ Find out mare about

air care on page 38

revenues are generated through the sale of
precious metals. The price of gold, silver and
platinum rose very strangly during the year,
up 34% (gold) and 29% (silver and platinum)
contributing to groewth in Ongeing Operating
Profits of 60.2% during the year.

Outlook for 2020

We are very encouraged by our performance
in France Workwear this year but will
continue to work steadily in 2020 and
beyond 10 restore the business 1o long-term
operational and financial health. While
performances in our Ambius operations

are linked to economic conditions, it is

a highiy skilled leader in its industry,

with specialist expertise in large-scale
installations. It also benefits from a strong
fourth quarter, reflecting strong holiday sales
in North America in the run-up to Christmas.
Ambius is also well placed to capitalise on
the rapidly growing global scenting market.
Alithese are encouraging signs for the
coming year. Market conditions in Property
Care are expected to remain challenging in
2020; however, overall business performance
has improved over the course of 2012 and
we expect to gain further traction from the
operationai improvement plans implemented
in 2019. We expect trading conditions in our
Dental Services markets of Germany and
Sweden to be broadly similar to 2019.



Known as plant care specialists,
interior/fexterior technicians

or installers, our Ambius
technicians enjoy being out
and about and are excited

by visiting businesses such

as houtique hotels, botanical
gardens, retail centres and
business parks, keeping their
diverse range of customers
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An enthusiasm for undertaking
physical tasks, such as installing
planters and hanging baskets,
is important as is flexibility over
working hours. Once again, as
with Pest Control and Hygiene,
although it’s very helpful for cur
new Ambius colleagues to have
horticultural, greenhiouse or
plant handling experience,

itis not required as we provide

looking and smelling great.

full training to equip them to

Key attributes of a great

Ambius technicianinclude being
passionate about delivering
excellent customer service

and enjoying meeting and
communicating with new

and existing customers.

Spotlight
on Ambius

From design concept to installation
and ongeing maintenance, our
Ambius colleagues are passionate
about providing a world-class
experience for all our customers,
with each project designed to
reflect their business needs,

style and brand.

The market

The interior landscaping market is forecast
to grow at 5% per annum through to 2025
(2015 Ibis World Repert} impacted by key
trends from the millennial mindset to
concerns on indoor air quality as part of a
wellbeing drive in commercial environments.

Strategy

Ambius continues to deliver profitable
growth across its 16 markets from its
in-house serviced selutions, ranging

from large projects, interior landscaping and
green walls to scent marketing and Holiday
decor. The core sectors served include
offices and administration, hospitality, retail,
transportation and property management.
Programmes of continuous improvement are
also Important as we look to deliver sales
impact, customer satisfaction and retention,
as well as margin improvement,

perform an outstanding job
for clients once in the field.

Find cut more about
our people, culture
and diversity on
pages 46 and 47

What makes a
great Ambius
technician?

Outlook

Looking ahead into 2020, we will deliver
organic growth by strengthening our core
differentiators of in-house service and
global expertise, increasingly important to
evolving buyers across our lines of business.
Our innovation focuses on reinfarcing

our positioning as the global experts in
providing wellbelng solutions for commercial
environments with new biophilic propositions
around enhanced workspaces, We are also
leveraging our experience in total aircare
with new active green air, air purificaticn

and indoor air quality monitoring solutions,

WANET NG Iauun
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Innovating in
partnership
with industry
experts



20

We typically work with
around 20 cellaborative
partners across our
innovation portfolic

at any given time.

6

Our expertise and industry
knowledge has resulied

in our colleagues being
members of at least

six regionai and global
technical working

groups shaping the

future of our industry.

srraiegic neport LOIpordle oveindike

Approximately half of our innovation projects

have been generated in house, either by our

Science Team or as a result of insights gained
from our businesses around the world.

Other projects are initiated as a result of a
meeting of minds between ourselves and a
collabarative partner who brings their own
specialised expertise 1o a new project. However,
whether in-house or not, at some point in the
project route to market, most projects will need
an external collaborator — ranging from design
and electronics expertise to specialised
knowledge or testing ability, through to
negotiating exclusive access to intellectual
property or other commercial arrangements.

We work with partners from Asia Pacific, South
and North America, Europe and the Middle East
— in fact everywhere we operate. They include
major industry manufacturers and suppliers,
leading industry bodies, audit bodies and
working groups, universities, small and large
scale innovators with their own ideas, and our
own customers. For those that come to us, they
do so because of our global size and reach, but
most importantly because they recognise that
innovation is an integral part of our culture, and
this gives them the opportunity to engage with
our scientific and technical teams to turn their
idea into a new and exciting solution for a pest
control problem.
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Our most successful recent
collaboration has beenin
developing Lumnia, our
illuminated insect fly trap.
Combining power saving
technology with maximum
fly catch efficacy would
have been impossible had
we not worked with the
world's leading company
with expertise in ultra-violet
LED technology.
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Responsible Business

Our responsible business approach
is integral to everything we do

It is centrai to our RIGHT WAY strategy; itis linked to our purpose
of protecting people and enhancing lives, and our vision to become
a world-class services company, and our values of service,

relationships and teamwork.

Far Rentakdl [nitial, being a responsible and
sustainable business also means helping
celleagues to have safe and fulfilling work
lives, supporting customers by developing
and delivering preducts and services
responsibly, and benefiting society and
the environment by acting in the most
effective manner.

Qur responsible business priorities are
aligned to those of our key stakeholders

{see page 22} and driven from the top of our
organisation by the Chief Executive who bas
Board accountahility for responsible business
delivery as well as engagement with its wider
stakehpelder groups. Further details about
our Board engagement can be found in the
section 172{1) statement on page 52 and

in the Corporate Governance Report on

page 76.

During 2018, we have made significant
progress in aur key sustainability priority
areas — in particular: Safety, People and
diversity, Service and innovaticn,
Environment, Digital and Communities.
Governance also continues to remain key

to our responsible business approach as set
out on page 53.

(1)

For three years we have worked
to enhance every aspect of our
employee experience. In 2012
we were hangured to be
recognised as Britain’s Most
Admired Company for Diversity
and Inclusion by Management
Today, and Britain's Top-Rated
Workplace among private sector
companies by Indeed.

Andy Ransom

Chief Executive
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We recognise that there remain challenges
and further progress to be made. For
instance, in 2012 there were a small number
of serious incidents in cur business and

we have had 1o investigate and reinforce
governance In some of our fumigation
operations, in Asia Pacific in particular.
Improvemeants in these areas are important
for the performance of our Company,

key stakeholders and society,

Purpose

Our purpose is to Protect People and
Enhance Lives — for instance, ensuring safer
foods and medicines, better hygiene in
schools and workplaces, and heaithier
environments in which to live and work.

Our seryvices are becoming more important
to achieve this, as pest threats change and
society’s expectations of public health and
food safety grow ever more demanding
around the world.

Alongside the existing hotspots of
mosquito-borne diseases in Asfa, Africa and
South America, new research presented

at the 2019 European Congress of Clinical
Microbiology & Infectious Diseases showed

that the geographical range of vectar-horne
diseases, such as chikungunya, dengue fever
and tick-borme encephalitis, is expanding
rapidly. Spurred on by ciimate change and
International travel and trade, vector-borne
disease outbreaks are set to increase across
much of Europe over the next few decades

— and not just in the temperate countries
around the Mediterranean.

Independent accreditation

Rentokil Initial has been @ member of the
Dow Jones Sustainability Europe Index
for 14 years, and in 2013 we improved
our performance by 7 points. We are also
members of the FTSE4Good Index and
CDP with a C rating. Sustainalytics rate
us a 'Low’ ESGrisk,

This year, we have achieved external
recognition across the globe in areas such
as health and safety, diversity, workplace
culture, service excellence, colleague
training and development {see below).
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Performance summary
The table below sets out how we measure our impact against our responsible business priority areas and indicates where stakeholders can find

more information.
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Performance measures

2019 performance

Safety Lost Time Accident rate € 16% improvement in 2019 to 0.53
See page 46 Working Days Lost rate @ 26% improvement in 201910 10.99
People and Total headcount 42,933 (2018: 39,480, 2017: 36,036)
diversity

Board diversity 43% of Board members were female
See pages 46
and 47 -6% mean; -2% median

UK gender pay gap

Female senior managers

26% of our Executive Leadership Team and its direct reports were female

New online training contant

¢.800 pieces of learning content developed

Online learning views

Over 1.8m views of items {+41% year on year)

Talent pipeline

Over 100 graduates and over 400 apprenticeships

Glassdoor company rating

4.4 out of 5 (average score 3.5)

Total celleague retention

86.9%, an improvement of 3.7% points

Sales colleague retention @

85.3%, an improvement of 3.2% points

Service colleague retention @

86.1%, an improvement of 1.0% points

Service and
innovation

See page 47

State of Service @

§7.2%, above our 95% target (2018: 87.9%)

Customer satisfaction (CvC) @

+2.4 points from over 120,000 customer calls (NPS)

Percentage of job sales revenue 32%in UK
from innovation
Number of patents filed 18 in 2019

Lumnia insect light traps

56,000 sold in 2018 (+32%)

Trustpilot score

5 stars for Rentekil and Initial in the UK from over 3,000 reviews each

Customer retention @

86.2% {2018: B5.9%)

Environment

Emissions

3.7% reduction in the emissions index in 2018

See page 48 5-year emissions intensity target Achieved: 20.4% reduction as at the end of 2019

— 20% reduction by end of 2020

Recycling Over 100,000 Hygiene units recycled in France and ltaly over two years
Digital Website visitors Total traffic reached ¢.27.4m sessions, an increase of over 6m year on year
See page 48

Digital Pest Contrel

PestConnect: 4,000 customer sites
myRentokil: 96% of commercial customers

Command Centre: +6.5bn records

Communities

See page 45

Charitable denaticns

£206,000 (excludes donations In kind)

Rainforest protection

¢.850 acres protected through Cool Earth partnerships

Find out more about cur nen-financial information on page b4

@ Key Performance Indicator — see more on pages 12tc 15

The following pages focus on
these key areas with further
information detailed in our online
Responsible Business Repoit for
2019, which can be found on our

website at rentokil-initial.com.
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Responsible Business
continued

Safety

People and diversity

Nothing is more impartant in Rentakil Initial
than Ensuring Everyone Goes Home Safe at
the end of their working day. Our colleagues,
our families and cur customers rely on this
commitment. Health and safety will always
be our first priority and there can be no
compromise on this. Health and safety is the
first item on the agenda at every Executive
Leadership Team and Board meeting.

2019 was our safest year yet in terms of our
two key metrics. Qur Lost Time Accident (LTA)
rate cortinues to perform at world-class
levels (below 1.0} with a 16% improvement
versus prior year, while Waorking Days Lost
{WDL) Improved by 26% versus prior year.

All regions, except Europe, operated at
world-class safety levels with LTA rates
below 1.0.

The long-erm improvement in our safety
performance is due to our consistent
prioritisation of nealth and safety througn
rigorous depioyment of our Safety
Leadership Behaviours, combined with an
extensive portfolio of tralining courses for
better management of health and safety, and
our Site Risk Assessment smartphone app
enabling quick and effective risk assessment.
This year, we have alsc introduced the
Origami incident management system, which
helps better manage incidents by simplifying
incident data cellection and automating the
investigation process, triggering corrective
actions faster.

We continue to enforce the Driving at Waork

minimum standards for all driving colleagues.

In North America, we provide Behind the
Wheel training for drivers working in traffic
areas with risk of high coilision rates, white in
Europe we have deployed Safe Driver Pod
— a hew mobile phone blocking technology
which blocks calls while driving. This is also
being implemented in the Pacific region.

Regrettably, we experienced a small number
of serious incidents in 2019. A technician in
MNerth America sustained serious fractures
to his ankle and feet after being involved

in a read traffic collision. A third party
vehicle went through a red traffic light at
approximately 100mph and collided with our
service vehicle. The third party driver died

at the scene and was found to be at fault,
Also in North America, one of our service
vehicles slid on some ice and collided with
the car in front, pushing it into oncoming
traffic. A womanin the third party vehicle
died &s a result. In Colombia, a Hygiene
technician sustained fatal injuries and died
at the scene after his motorcycle collided
with the rear of a truck.

in 2019, we were awarded the International
Risk Initiative of the Year from the
International Institute for Risk and Safety
Management, and for the second year
running our UK business has been awarded
a Gold Award by the Royal Society for the
Prevention of Accidents.

Key indicators 2019 2018 2017 2018 2015
Lost Time Accldents {LTA)' 0.53 0.63 0.58 0.63 0.76
Working Days Lost (WDL)? 10.99 1477 11.65 16.14 19.59

i. The LTA rate is calculated as the number of Lost Time Accidents (injuries and illnesses) per 100,000

hours worked,

2. The WDL rate is calculated as the number of working days that colleagues couid not work because
of Lost Time Accidents {injuries and ilinesses) per 100,000 hours worked.
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As part of cur RIGHT WAY plan, Rentekil
Initial is committed to beceming a world-class
Employer of Choice. Our aim is to atiract,
recruit and retain the best people from the
widest possible poot of talent. Workplace
orogrammes provide a high-quality
recruitment experience; utiiise best practices
and policies to improve diversity; and deliver
industry-leading learning and development
opportunities. We believe that, by getting

it right for our pecple, we provide a better
customer experience and ultimately deliver
better returns for shareholders,

Our global careers portal had over 260,000
job applicants in 2019, which was up 169%
on prior year. The average CVs per hire
increased from 32 to 63 globally and the
conversion rates (number of people who go
on to apply after visiting the site} was 23.5%.
The site features videos and a Job Fit tool to
improve the quality of candidates. In addition,
a ShadowMatch tool locks at key attributes
of high performing colleagues te further
support higher guality recruitment. In 2019,
a new video interviewing platform allowed
candidates to upload their application video,
making it simple and easy for the candidate
and reducing the time to hire.

During the year, Your Voice Cuunls, Lhe
Company’s global survey, provided every
coileague a confidential opportunity to
provide feedback on workplace culture,
leadership, customer focus, develepment
and line manager performance. The survey
achieved a record respense rate of 90% and
showed very strong colleague engagement
(79%) and colleague enablement levels (79%)
—increasing by 2 percentage and
1percentage points respectively. They both
remain above the global high performance
norms. Strengths of the Company according
to colleagues are safety, diversity, clear and
promising direction, taking a responstble
approach and innovation. In Asia, our scores
are the highest for any region but have
reduced by 1% and our biggest area of
chalienge is to address career development
which is a key driver of colleague
engagement.

U+, our in-house ‘university’, deiivers online
courses and face-to-face programmes,

as well as compilence and induction
proegrammes. In 2019, over 1.8 million items
of online training were viewed, an increase
of 41%, and ¢.8C0 pieces of learning content
{videos, courses etc.) were created, covering
topics such as sales, safety, technical and
operational best practice, and compliance.
All were developed in-house.

Colleague retention increased by 3.7
percentage points to 86.9% in 2019 (on a
rolling 12-month basis). One of the key
initiatives that has increased retention is our
line manager training programme which
develops Une managers’ skills and capability
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in areas such as coaching, giving feedback,
communication and recegnition —areas that
our analysis showed were important drivers
of colleague retention. To date, over 600 line
managers have been targeted to undertake
the programme from across 37 countries.
Our 2019 Your Voice Counts survey showed
that engagement |levels of the teams whose
managers undertook the training improved
by double the average Improvement across
the Company.

Diversity and inclusion s a key part of our
strategy. We have had a global grading and
reward structure in place for several years,
supperting the principles of fairness and
equality. Nationally, the Office for National
Statistics has said that for all employees men
are paid on average 17.3% more than females.
In our UK businesses in 201% our Gender Pay
Report shows a small difference in favour of
female employees. The average difference
was 6% (mean) and 2% (median), We have
now reported cur gender pay for three years
over which time there has been no material
pay gap between men and womaen,

Approximately 10,733 (25%) of cur 42,933
colleagues are female and 32,200 (75%)

are male {2018: 25% female). Of cur senior
managers 34 (26%) are female and 95 (74%)
are male. This group comprises the members
of our Executive Leadership Team (ELT}

and all of their direct reports, excluding
administrative roles, Our ELT bas expanded
this year {see page 66); on a like-for-like basis
our female senior management would be
31%, up from 30% in 2018. Currently
successors to the ELT are 26% fermate

{2018: 24%) and our talent pipeline of
corporate graduates comprises over 50%
women. Three of our seven Board Directors
are female. More information can be found

in the Nominaticn Committee Report on
page 88.

We have an extensive graduate and
apprentice programme, especially in the

UK and USA. In the UK, we are an Ofsted
accredited provider (rated Good in 2019 and
2{18) delivering level 2 customer service
and more recently level 3 team leader/
superviser apprenticeship which was
introduced in June 2019. We currently have
over 400 apprentices in the UK and over
100 graduates.

In 2019, Rentakil Initia! was rated Britain's
Most Admired Company for Diversity and
Inclusion, as well as overall winner in the
Business Services Category. We were alsao
the Top-Rated Workplace (UK private sector),
by Indeed, the online recruitment platform.

In addition, colleagues past and present can
give feedback on our culture on websites
such as Glassdoor. At the end of December
2019, Rentokil Initial’s UK overall Glassdoor
score was 4.4 out of 5, ahead of the average
of 3.5.

Our fecus areas include innovation, quality
of products and services, digital excellence
and product stewardship. Customer service
remained strong during the year with State
of Service at 97.2% {target: 35%).

More than 120,000 Custemer Voice Counts
[Net Promoter Score) calls were made to
customers globally, with the overall customer
satisfaction score increasing by 2.4 points

in 2015.

In the UK, the customer service review
website Trusipilot features over 3,000
reviews for both Rentoki! and Initial with
an ‘Excellent’ 5-star rating.

Innevation is a core part of Rentokil Initial’s
DNA and underlines our credentials as the
global leader in commercial pest control.

We lead the industry in digital pest contro!
and work with best-in-class partners, including
Google and PA Consuiting, to set increasingly
high standards of service.

Our innovation pregramme approaches
the development and ntroduction

of new products te launch premium
services, [ower our costs and reduce
our environmental impact.

oo

Rentokil Initial’'s achievements
are an example of the
increasingly synonymous
relaticnship between
sustanability and innovation.
Crganisations such as Rentokil
are in an exceptional position,
in that as they develop new
technelogies such as Lumnia,
they embed a culture of
sustainable consciousness,
decarbonise their product

Examples of leadership in innovation:
PestConnect

The world's most advanced digital system
for pest control using connected rodent
control devices with embedded sensors and
mobile connectivity, providing a proactive
infestation risk management service,
deployed in 25 countries.

See page 31 for more information

Lumnia

In 2019, our range of insect light traps (the
first commercial range to use LED lighting)
received certification from The Planet Mark,
a certification programme recognising
commitment to continuous improvementin
sustainability, for demonstrating 62% lower
carbon emissions when compared with units
containing compact fluorescent lamps.

To date, over 100,000 units have been
installed for customers,

See page 24 for more information

Throughout this Annual Repert, we highlight
our leadership in innovation which is driving
higher levels of performance for customers
and creating value for shareholders.

customers to do the same.
As these innovations are
put in the hands of their
customers, the effect of
each one is amplified
hundreds and thousands
of times, making the
cumuiative effect very
powerful.

Steve Malkin

CEC & Founder of

The Planet Mark

range, and empower
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Responsible Business
continued

Environment

Digital

We are committed to reducing our
environmental impact and this is supported
by our key stakeholders including colleagues
and customers. In 2018, we established
seven work streams to help us take practical
steps to deliver our long-ferm amhition to
be at net zero carbon emissions ahead

of the UK Government’s 1arget of 2050,

Our environmental workstreams cover:
vehicles, waste, supply chain, nen-toxic
services, consumables, energy, and
workplace — culture and behaviours

Carbon summary

Vehicle emissions represented 83% of our
tota! ernissions in 2019. During the year, we
undertook four separate country pilots (UK,
Norway, France and Netheriands) on the cost
and effectiveness of transitioning to electric
and hybrid vehicles. We have alsc joined the
EV100 group, which Is committed to
expanding the use of electric vehicles in all
major citles by 2030. Other initiatives included
vehicle efficiency programmes, such as route
optimisation software {reducing distances
travelled) and driver telemetry (information
about driving behaviour}.

Property-based emissions represented 17%
of our emissions. We continued to consolidate
our property portfelio through co-location,
impiuving property energy etticiency by 55%
since 2015, Nearly 46% of property emissions
were generated by our processing facilities.

In the France Workwear plants, a new three-
year pian to recuce emissions has been put in
place. In addition, through its waste separation
programme, 92% of used clothes from the
textile rental and maintenance business will
now experience a second iife, transformed
inte acoustic and thermal insulating materials
for the bullding and automative industries
using an ISQ-certified partner. The remalning
clathing, with retro-reflective tape which
cannot be recycled, is incinerated to generate
energy for local factories.

In our French and ltalian Hygiene businesses,
dispensers are refurbished in order to reduce
metal and plastic waste. In the last two years,
we have refurbished over 100,000 units.

Emissions target achieved

We report our emissions intensity values,
related to revenue at constant exchange
rates, as an index. In 2019, this index
improved over the prior year by 3.7%.

Our five-year emissions target is to achieve
a 20% reduction in the emissions intensity
index by the end of 2020, Each of our major
operations set vehicle fuel reduction targets
as part of the plan to deliver this. As at the
end of 2019, this had improved by 20.4%
achieving our target a year early (see below).

Our absolute values of tonnes of CO,e are
reported using 2012 Department for
Environment, Food & Rural Affairs (DEFRA)
conversion factors and International Energy
Agency conversion factors for non-UK
electricity. Absolute energy and fuel-derived
emissions increased by around 5% reflecting
increased activity due to organic growth and
acquired businesses; Ongoing Revenues
increased by 8.6% in the year.

In 2019, our global energy consumption was
830,451 MWh (2018: 796,244 MWh) with UK
energy consumption representing 10.4%. We
continue to research and work with suppliers
to identify alternative fumigants. Absolute
emissions frem the use of Sulfuryl Fluoride

{a fumigant} were 548,449 tnnnes in 2019
{2018: 363,339 tonnes; 2017: 481,380 tonnes;
2016: 720,322 tennes), The year-on-year
differences reflect the variability in customer
demand. This year’s increase was due to
large commercial contracts and acquisitions,

In 2019, we improved our score in the Dow
Jones Sustainability Europe Index by 7%.
Our score of 78% for climate strategy (81st
percentlle) represented a 21% increase over
2018. Our 2013 carbon emission disclosure
with the CDP achieved a C rating.

We are working towards becoming a
signatory to the UN Giobal Compact,

and in 2020 will seek to understand how
best to enhance our climate-related
reporting, including consideration of the
recommendations of the Financial Stability
Board’s Taskforce an Climate-Related
Financial Disclosures.

Absolute values of energy and fuel derived emissions — tonnes of CO,e

Type of scope 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Scope1 178,889 170,518 167,289 151,829 147,729
Scope 2 17195 16,282 17,513 14,209 15,218
Scope 3 44,463 42,31 40,215 35,608 34,196
Ouiside scope 5153 4872 4,491 3,950 3,729
All scopes & cutside scopes 245,700 233983 229,508 205596 200,872
Index of CO, emissions {intensity indicator)

Index of energy and fuel derived CO,

emissions at CER 79.64 82.66 88.46 89.64  100.00

Index of CO, emissions - caiculated as an index of kilograms per £m revenue on a constant exchange rate
basis, providing an accurate Yike-for-like performance comparison, removing the variables of currency and
divestments and acquisitions. The base year for this index was in 2015 {100).
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Rentokii Initial uses digitai technology to
improve colleague experience, enhance
services and reporting transparency for
customers, and improve operational
efficiency. This year, we have made two
key senior appointments to drive forward
the use of digital technology and artificial
inteligence. This will enable us to continue
to optimise digital technology in our
business and build on existing partnerships
with global technolegy leaders.

Our workforce is enabled with smartphone
technelogy and a wide range of apps to
improve afficiency.

Exampies of digital expertise:

© PestlD — an image-based smartpheone app
which identifies a pest from a phoio taken
by one of our technicians. Once identified,
PestliD will recommend the best toels to
control the pest plus important information
such ag operaticnal safety reminders.

© ServiceTrak — our field service app is now
being used by 14,700 colleagues and
approximately 10 million service visits were
completed using the app in 2018, During
the year, U+ modules were embedded into
ServiceTrak, giving technicians instant
online access to trainfng.

© Command Centre — brings together the
data from our Internet of Things devices
with nine million records processed
aach day.

© myRentokil — this customer portal is now
live in 40 countries and active at 96% of
all commercial custemers,

We are aware that, as our services become
more digitalised, we must ensure the strictest
data and [T security including data privacy.
Infermatior: on our approach to data privacy
can be found on page 53.

Like all erganisations, the scale and
complexity of cyber attacks against the
business continues to increase and we
continue to identify, monitor and mitigate
the risk this presents (see page 57} During
the year, our IT security systems and
processes were upgraded and penetration
testing exercises were undertaken to test
our detection and response capability. An
information security awareness programme
is helping to reduce security incidents and
improve awareneass. In 2019 this included
phishing simulation exercises (involving over
8,000 colleagues in critical user functions
with over 23,000 simulation emails sentin &
series of campaigns), workshops and online
training packages. We also monitor external
ratings using the Assessment of Business
Cyber Risk framework provided by the US
Chamber of Commerce and benchmark our
cyber security where possible. We want to
do the right thing to ensure that our business
and our customers can operate securely
and safely.



Communities
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Our approach to charitable and community
supportis inline with our core purpose —

to protect people and enhance lives. In 2019,
we launched Rentokil Initial Cares using
unclaimed dividends and shares to benefit
worthy causes, see page 0.

Our key performance ndicator in this

area relates to charitable cash donations
{including matched donations), which
amounted to £206,000 in 2019 (2018:
£202,000) — this excludes the provision

of value in kind and management time, and
colleague-generated donations and efforts.

Developing strong local businesses
supported by global know-how is central to
cur strategy, and our community relations
approach reflects this; focusing on global
community and partnership support, local
community support and investment, as well
as our response to national disasters such
as the recent bush fires in Australia. Local
programmes reflect the iocal cultures and
the passion of colleagues to support
particular good causes.

Global Handwashing Day

Global Handwashing Day is an event that
takes place in October every year to motivate
people around the world to improve their
handwashing habits, demonstrating how
soap and water can provide an effective

and affordable way to prevent diseases.

India

Our colleagues celebrated Global
Handwashing Cay this year, showing pecple
in their local community how important
hygiene is, encouraging good hand hygiene
behaviours to prevent the spread of germs.
The simple act of washing hands can reduce
ihe risk of getting a stomach bug by as much
as 47%. Colleagues afso held awareness
training for staff in other businesses. The
Better Futures team were also out in full
force in Chennai, teaching primary school
children the benefits of good hand hygiene.

South Africa

Colleagues around the country visited
schools, while the team in Cape Town
visited their biggest Ambius customer to
swab hands and mobile phones. As a resuli,
hand sanitisers were put on contract for

the whele building.

Vietnam

22 Rentokil Initial colleagues representing

all parts of the business visited a primary
school to help deliver hygiene and awareness
training, particularly hand hygiene, and to
show pupils and teachers how to minimise
the risk of contracting diseases like dengue
fever, spread by mosquitoes.

Nelson Mandela Day

In July every year, colieagues across South
Africa donate 67 minutes of their time — one
minute for every year of Mandela’s public
service — to make a difference in their local
communities, This year, across South Africa,
colleagues gave their time by supporting
causes that helped people in need.

Cape Town

Cur Accounts Receivable
team collected sanitary
towels to be delivered

to schools in the area,
building on their support
last year to the naticnal
initiative to end period

poverty across the country.

Johannesburg

Our Pest Control team
carried cut free pest control
treatments at De Wetshof
Retirement Village as part
of a campalgn with one of
our custemers and the City
of Johannesburg to improve
the environment of the
village for its elderly
residents.

Port Elizabeth
Ceolleagues visited Sinako
We Can, a learning centre

Kempton Park
Colleagues visited

Casa Caritas, a centre
for disabled children,
where they installed
new soap dispensers in
bathrooms and kitchens.
They also deep cleaned
the bathrooms and
donated cleaning products
and other necessities.

for youths and aduits
with special needs,

and donated clothes,
toilet paper and soap.

Rentokil Initial plc
Annual Report 2019

49



50 Rentokil Initial plc
Annual Report 2019

RESPONSIBLE
BUSINESS

Taking the
lead to suppor
charitable
causes around
the globe

oo

After trying cur bestto contact
the relevant shareholders, we
will naw use the value of any
unclaimed shares and
dividends to support goed
causes, in line with our mission
0 Protect People and Enhance
Lives. I would expect us to
commit around £250,000 to
good causes each year. | hope
other companies will foliow our
lead and put their unciaimed
dividends and shares to good
use for ¢harities.

Andy Ransom
Chief Executive



£200,000

Since 2011 Rentokil Initial
colleagues have raised over
£200,000 for Malaria No More
UK through sponsored runs,
bike rides and parachute
jumps. According to Malaria
No More, 1t costs just £11o
save a life.

Rainforest

Over the past two years,

we have protected ¢.1,700
acres of rainforestin Papua
New Guinea, preventing

the release of carbon through
deforestation to the equivalent
of cur annual carbon footprint.

20,000
people

Betier Fuiures is Rentokil
Initial's own community health
education programme —
providing hygiene training

to children and adults in the
poorest communities in Asia.
More than 20,000 people
have benefited since the
launch of this public health
initiative in 2013.

Sraregit Repoert LUrpuldle oveinglice

In 2019, we launched a new overarching charitable fund,
Rentokil Initial Cares (RIC). This Iinitiative uses the value
of any unclaimed shares and dividends to fund partner
charities and support our colleagues’ own charitable
efforts around the globe.

While the vast majority of dividends have been claimed
by our shareholders, a small number of shareholders
remain untraceable and so a small percentage of
dividends remain unclaimed. In line with UK company
law these dormant funds from both the shares and the
dividends can be forfeited and returned to the Company',
but instead of staying on the balance sheet, we have
chosen to donate them in line with our purpose to
protect people and enhance lives.

Approximately £1.25m is available and we aim to donate
about £250,000 per annum.

In 2019, we supported a wide range of charities including
Better Futures, our community hygiene programme

in Asia, and Malaria No More UK. With Cool Earth,

we protected ¢.850 acres of mature rainforest in Papua
New Guinea to ensure that carbon (equivalent to our
annual footprint) remains locked into the trees and not
released through deforestation. We also supported

a range of local charities. Each of our regions has

a Rentokil Initial Cares Ambassador to co-ordinate

and champion support, and the global RIC Committee,
chaired by the Chief Executive, meets twice a year to
ensure good governance against its rules.

In 2020, alongside Cool Earth, we will launch the Climate
Dividends campaign to encourage other members of the
FTSE to follow our lead and put unclaimed dividends

to good use. It has been estimated that the value of
unclaimed shares and dividends in the UK is around
£9bn which could be put to good causes such as

action on climate change.

Find out more at rentokil-initial.com

1. The Limitation Act 1280 allows unclaimed dividends to be forfeited after six
years. Our articles of association provide a minimum time period of 12 years
for any untraced shares tc be forfeited.

Cilgiiid] dLemenLy

UALTIRT IO IdeHarn

oo

Human wellbeing on Earth
depends on functicning
rainforests and Ceool Earth
has cne of the most effective
means of conservation that
goes hand in hand with
community development.

Professor Dr Johan Réckstrom
Co-author of the

‘Hothouse Earth’ theory

and Cool Earth trustee

oo

Using unclaimed dividends
to address climate change is
a beautifully simple idea and
it is typical that Rentekll Initial
thought of it first. A smart
company, who are showing
great leadership to deliver

a global impact. Thanks to
Rentokil's ingenuity, the
funding from Climate
Dividends will ensure

some of the world’s most
endangered forest is kept
standing. | hope that where
Rentokil leads cother
responsible companies

will follow.

Frank Field
MP & Co-founder of Cool Earth
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Responsible Business
continued

Section 172(1) statement

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006
requires a director of a company to act In the
way he or she considers, in good faith, would
maost likely promaote the success of the
company for the benefit of its members as a
whole. In doing this, s.172 requires a director
to have regard, among other matiers, to the:

®© likely consequences of any decisions in the
leng term;

© interests of the company’s employees;

® need to foster the company’s business
relationships with suppliers, customers
and others;

B impact of the company’s eperations on the
community and enviranment,

© desirability of the company maintaining a
reputation for high standards of business
conduct; and

© need to act fairly as between members
of the company.

This statement intends to set out how our
Board of Directors, both individually and
collectively, has had regard to the above
factors when undertaking their duties
during 2079.

In discharging their section 172 duties, the
Beard has had regard to the factors set out
above, although attimes some factors may
have been more relevant than others.
Appropriate regard was also given to other
factors considered relevant to the decision
being made, for example our relationship with
regulators, industry bodies and other
business relationships. We acknowledge that
every decision the Board has made will not
necessarily result in a positive outcome for all
of our stakeholders. However, by giving
consideration to key stakeholder groups and
aligning our activities with our strategic plan,
as well as the Company’s culture and values,
we aim to act falrly, transparently and in

the best interests of the Company over the
long term. Our business model is set out

on page 18, and the Q&A with our Chief
Execulive {pege 4) and cur Financial Review
[page 118) show the key decisions and
strategic developments in the year. in making
their decisions and chojces and in setting
policies and strategy, our Directors also
consider any assoclated risks when
discharging their duties (see page 55).

We identify our key stakeholders as
colleagues, customers, sharehoiders,
communities and suppliers, We consider the
environment 1o be strongly related to
communities and they are often considered
together, although we are ever more
conscious that the environment also impacts
our customers and suppliers and is of
increasing impartance to our colleagues as
well. Further information on environmenta!
considerations by the Board and the impact
of colleague engagement can be found an
page 77. We are aware that ourimpact can be
negative as well as positive, for example as
a result of the chemicals that we use and the
areenhouse gas emissions that are involved
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in providing services to cur customers. We
are engaging with suppliers and developing
innovative technology 1o address this where
practicable. Further details of how we
engage as a company with all our key
stakeholders is shown on page 22.

During 2019, a stakeholder mapping exercise
was undertaken to ensure that the groups
that we have identified as key stakeholders
remain appropriate, to monitor engagement
levels and identify opportunities for
improvemert where necessary {see page 76).
For details of how our Beard operates and
the way in which we reach decisions,
including the matters discussed and debated
during the year, please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 6% to 80.
Details of how our Directors receive
information on stakeholder engagement,
their engagement activities during the

year and the resulting impact are shown

on pages 76 and 77.

Afull list of the activities undertaken by

the Board is provided on pages 73 to 74.
We consider the principal decisions to he
those decisions taken by the Board directly,
which shouid not be delegated to elther
management or a committee of the Board,
and which may have a potentially material
impact on the Company’s strategy, a
stakeholder group or the long-term value
creation of the Company. We have grouped
the Beard's principal decisions during 2012
into the following categories:

© financial resuits (the full and half year
resuits and the Q1 and Q3 trading updates);

© capital allocation (the approval of the
annual operating plan for 2019, the
recommendation of the full-year dividend
and declaration of an interim dividend);

© funding {the spproval of an extension of
the Company’s Revolving Credit Facility
and the use of Synthetic Borrowing Units,

© M&A activity {the approval of five
acquisitions and one disposal);

@ review of matters reserved to the Board;

© Board changes [the appointment
of & new Chairman),

© supplier contracts (the renewal and
approval of two fleet supply contracts);

O strategy review (the review of the
Company's strategy for the next three
years); and

© Company statements (the approval of the
Company's modern slavery statement and
gender pay report).

Examples of how the Directors have had
regard 1o the matters set out in $.172{1){a)—(f)
when discharging their section 172 duty and
the effect of that on certain decisiens taken
by them during the year can be found beiow
and overleaf.

Our reputation is paramount {o the suctess
of our business as we rely on the satisfaction
of our customers. We continue 1o monitor
our cutiure {see page 20}, recogmsing the
important role it plays in underpinning the
business’s sustainabie long-term success.
We have a comprehensive set of policies and
procedures in place to ensure high standards
of professional business conduct, including
the adherence to our Code ot Conduct.,

Moare information ot these policies can be
found on pages 53 and 54, where the
methods for menitoring compliance are also
set out, and on our website at rentokil-initial.
com/responsible-delivery. We strive to act
fairly between shareholders of the Company
at all times.

Disposal of CWS.-boco joint venture interest

In June 2077, the Group formed the

not resylt in job losses nor change of

CWS-boco International GmbH {CWS-boco)
joint venture with Franz Haniel & Cie. GmbH
{Haniel), contributing its Workwear and
Hygiene businesses in 10 European countries
and retaining a 17.8% share in the joint
venture, creating a leading European
Workwear and Hygiene business which
operated across 17 European countries.

During 2019, the Board considered whether
to exit the joint venture, receiving briefing
papers from management on the subject.

As a major transaction, Board approval was
required in accordance with the schedule

of matters reserved for the Board. The
Directors made sure to have regard in their
decision-making, amang other things, to the
potential Impact on the employees of the joint
venture (which included many former Rentokil
Initial colleagues transferred into the joint
venture when formedy, and Rentokil Initial
senior management team members whose
responsibilities included managing the joint
venture interest, There bad already been
extensive consultation with colieagues and
employee works councils at country and
European level when the joint venture had
been formed in 2077, As the exit wouid

responsibilities within the joint venture, only
minimal impact on these stakeholder groups
was anticipated, and none in relation to
customers. CWS-boco would continue to
source workwear and hygiene proeducts from
the Company’s supply chain for at least &
transitional period, minimising the immediate
impact on suppliers.

The transaction was consistent with the
Company's strategy of pursuing global
leadership in pest controi and hygiene and
the desire to realise value for non-core
workwear assets, for redeployment into

the M&A pregramme, as well as reducing )
debt and supporting the dividend for
sharehoiders. The Board considered the
impact and treatment of the different revenue
flows as a result of the disposal (the receipt
of the sale consideration rather than annual
dividend), and assessed the likely external
perception of the transaction by investars
and analysts,

The Board approved the proposal to exit
the joint venture, which was announced
on 31 July 2019. The financial impact is
disclosed in Note B& on page 151,



Governance, trust and
transparency

Governance and policies

Our responsible business priorities are
waven inte our overall governance
arrangements, the cornerstone of which is
the Code of Conduct (available in local
languages and supported by training
programmes). The Code of Conductis a
fundamental commitment to comply with all
applicable legal reqguirements and with high
ethical standards and outlines respensibilities
to colleagues, customers and to the
Company. It hightights cur determination to
embed our values of service, relationships
and teamwork and a culture of integrity
across the Company.

We have a robust policy framework for
each of the key sustainability priority areas
set out on pages 46 to 49. Policies are
reviewed periocdically to ensure that they
meet current best practice and legisiative
needs. Our technical and safety standards
and practices often exceed the regulatory
requirements where we operate. We have
also refreshed and simplified our business
continuity arrangements. By establishing
clear poiicies and procedures in areas such
as ethical conduct, human rights, data
security and suppliers, and by reporting
transparently on our pregress, we can reduce
risks to our business and our customers.

The Rentokil Initial Supplier Code was
launched in 2019 and is designed to ensure
that the standards of our suppliers are
aligned to our Code of Conduct. The Supplier
Code outlines the standards and controls
expected within the operations of suppliers

Approval of new fleet contract

In June 2019, the Board considered a
propesal to appoint, foliowing a formal
tender process, a new contract for vehicle
leasing and fleet management services in
the Netherlands. As a supplier centract
whose total value of spend was above the
set threshold, Board approval was required
in accordance with the schedule of matters
reserved for the Board.

The Directors considered, among other
things, the econemic efficiency and
sustainability benefits that would be derived
from the peotential provider. Regard was had
to the opportunities offered to undertake
engine control unit remapping on the live
fieet in order to improve performance and
reduce carbon emissions, and expertise to
support car policy reviews and electric
vehicle strategy. Furthermore, as an existing
supplier with a proven track recerd, there
would be no disruption to the business or
colleagues caused by changing supplier.

Following consideration of the anticipated
financial benefits and the potential future
opportunities offered by the supplier
commitment, the Board approved the
contract.
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of goods and services 1o the Rentokil Initial
Group. This covers all aspects of business in
the bread categeries of people (health and
safety, equality and fairness, human rights
and anti-slavery), ethics {bribery and
corruption, competition and anti-trust),
environment, security and personal integrity.

Since March 2019, all individuals and
companies who supply goods or services to
the Group are required to acknowledge
receipt of and compliance to the Supplier
Code. Tangible aspects of the Supplier Code,
such as safety standards, are inspected
during the periodic audits of critical and major
suppliers. The Supplier Code is available cn
our website in 13 languages.

Within our acquisition programme, rigorous
due diligence, including sustainability criteria,
is undertaken. Pricr to purchase, a business is
assessed forits ability to meet the Company’s
standards. Once acquired, Internal Audit
teams make two visits within 100 days to
ensure integration of Company poelicies

and practices.

A full list of our key policies is available on
our website, with further details provided

in cur Responsible Business Report online,
A summary of key policies is provided in

our non-financial information statement

on page 54. We monitor our impact using
performance metrics, which are summarised
on page 45. Further detalls of our values and
culture can be found on pages 2 and 20.

Management and compliance

Adherence is reinforced by an annual Letter
of Assurance process, signed by senior
management coenfirming compliance with
corperate policies and the Code of Conduct.
All senior managers are required to sign a
letter to confirm they comply personally with
key corporate policies and the Code, and that
the colleagues for whom they are responsible
are aware of and understand what is required
of them, and that they are not aware of
anyone within Rentokil Initial that is not
complying with the Code, Details must be
provided of any areas of non-compliance or
uncertainty.

Monitored by the Company’s Internal Audit
team, it is supported by mandatory training
on the U+ learning platform. A review of the
process is provided to the Audit Committee
each year (see page 87). The Internal Audit
team also manages the confidential
independent reperting channel Speak Up
{see page 87 of the Audit Committee Report).
The Chief Executive has Board responsibility
for our responsible business approach,
including climate-related issues.

Data privacy

We have established a Group and EU data
protection compliance programme based
on the requirements of the EU General
Data Pratection Regulation (GDPR). The
core operational controls and compliance
framework are underpinned by tools,
systems, policies and processes. Privacy
and data management considerations are
implemented in project and contract

Findiield! Slateimens LNET nannduon

governance mechanisms. A privacy notice

is available in 17 languages and 96% of
managers in the EU, including the UK, have
completed data protection training. Since
implementation, functional training for teams
such as marketing, HR, sales and IT has also
been delivered; supplemented by support
and guidance from a network of over 30 local
privacy officers and privacy champions.

We have a Group Data Protection Officer who
has embarked on a global dats protection
compliance programme to enable our
businesses globally to adopt best practice
data protection management. The global
compliance programme is based on the high
standards of GDPR and we have required that
all businesses globally sign and abide by the
terms of an inter-company data transfer
agreement, which incorporates EU standard
model clauses. This demonstrates that all
businesses are committed to take privacy
sericusly. We aim to have established a
global data protection programme by 2021,

Any identified data protection risks, gaps and
requirements are reported by the Group Data
Protection Officer via the Group General
Counsel to the Group Risk Committee and
the Audit Committee (see page 87). Metrics
have been created to assess the compliance
status of countries and regions based on data
protection programme activities and risk
levels associated with local regulatory
requirements, enforcement actions and
breaches.

Tax

Qur tax strategy is aligned with our wider
business strategy, which we believe creates
a responsible and sustainable tax strategy
that will enhance [onhg-term shareholder
value. Tax will be considered as part of
every significant business transaction.
When considering tax issues we will always
seek to protect the Group's reputation and
adhere to its Code of Conduct.

We aim to meet all of our legal cbligations,
filing all required tax returns accurately and
on time and paying the correct amount of tax
when due. We seek to deal with HMRC and
other tax authorities inan open and
collaborative manner, aimed at reaching
agreement on tax issues on a timely basis
and minimising the risk of disputes arising.
We will not undertake transactions where the
sole purpose is o create a tax benefit in
excess of what is intended by the relevant
legisiation. We aim to comply with both the
spirit and the letter of the law in relation to tax
matters and we will not establish companies
in tax havens where there is no economic
substance.

We operate appropriate tax risk governance
processes, Including oversight by the Audit
Committee and the Board, Qur tax strateqgy
applies to ali Group business, sets out our
approach io tax and can be found on our
website. Our Board reviews our tax
strategy annuaily.

Rentokil Initial plc
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Responsible Business

continued

Non-financial information statement
An overview of our approach to envircnmental matters, colleagues, social matters, human rights, and anti-corruption and anti-bribery can be

found in the table below with further details found throughout this Responsible Business secticn on pages 44 to 53. Detaiis of our business model
can be found on pages 18 and 19, and our principal risks are on pages 55 to 59. Our key policies can be found on our website.

Enabling THE RIGHT PEOPLE to do THE RIGHT THINGS 'n THE RIGHT WAY

Cur approach and key policies

Qutcemes of policies and
impacts of activities

More information

Envirenmental mattevs

Our Code of Conduct states that all our colieagues must conduct their

wark in a way that complies with environmental laws and minimises any
adverse effect on the environment. Our Environmental Policy sets

out our commitmentic carrying out our business in an environmentaly
respansible way.

3.7% reduction in the
emissions index in 2079,
We mitigate our carbon
ermissions through our
partnership with Cool Earth.

See page 48
for more
information on
environmental
matters,

Celleagues

Our colleagues are at the core of our business. Our Code of Conduct sets
out our company standards and applies to everyone at Rentokil Initial.

It includes sections on health and safety, equality and fairness, human
rights and protecting personal information.

There is nothing more important in Rentokil Initial than Ensuring Everyone
Goes Home Safe at the end of their working day. Our approach to making
sure this happens is set out in our Code of Conduet and our Health and
Safety Policy.

We aim to be an inclusive employer and have a wide range of policies
including our Group Diversity and Inclusion Policy, Dignity at Work and
Rights of Employees.

We alm to be an Employer
of Choice and our £.43,000
colleagues are integral

to our business model

(see page 18).

0.53 Lost Time Accident
rate in 2019,

10.99 Working Days Lost
rate in 2019,

26% of our senior
management are female.

Colleagues are
one of our key
stakeholders
as set out

on page 22,
Our culture is
described on
page 20 and
you can read
mare about
our colleagues
on page 46.

Social matters

Our purpose is to protect people and enhance lives and, as well as making
a meaningfui contribution to the economy, we aim to supporl Lommunities
where we operate. Our Community Invelvement Policy sets out our
principles for positive engagement and our commitment 1o support
colleagues’ efforts to raise funds for good causes through a matched
giving scheme. The Code of Conduct also contains a section on
respecting the world in which we work.

Respect far human rights

£208,000 donated to
charity in 2019 (exciudes
donations in Kind).

Read mare
about our
engagement
with the
communities
in which we
aperate on
page 23.

We support the rights of all people as set outin the Universal Declaration
of Human Rights. Our Human Rights Policy outiines the human rights
principles that reinforce colleagues’ expected behaviours 10 respect the
human rights of colleagues and business partners. The Company may
operate in countries with potential human rights issues but we would

not tolerate any connection with abuse.

As detailed in our Code of Conduct and our Supplier Code, we will only
employ individuals who are working of their own free will and do not
tolerate chiid labour, bonded labour or other forms of slavery in any part
of our business or their suppliers.

No human rights violations
were identified in 2019,

We publish @ Modern
Slavery Staterment each

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery

Read more
about our Code
of Conduct and
Supplier Code

We expect our colleagues to maintain the highest standards of conduct
and act with integrity at all times. Anti-bribery and corruption policy and
controls are addressed within the Code of Conduct and 5 separate
Anti-Bribery Policy, and these are reinforced ty mandatary online training,
reviews and supplier audits, tracking registers, and our ethics reporting
system Speak Up.

year which is available on page 53.
on our wabsite.
€.16,600 Core Corporate Read about

Compliance training
courses were completed by
calleagues in 2019, with a

96% completion rate overall.

There were no fines,
penaities or settlements for
corruption reported in 2019,

Board cversight
of governance
and campliance
on page BO.

@ The icons used above correspond to our stakeholder groups as set cut on pages 22 and 23

Colleagues

Customers Shareholders Communities

54 Rentokil Initial ple
Annual Repoit 2019

Suppliers



Risks and Uncertainties

Risk management approach

The Group’s overal! risk management
approach, described on pages 86 and 87,

is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance at all levels of the Group
that risks are properly identified and are
being effectively managed. This includes
the provision of appropriate mechanisms

to ensure that issues and concerns relating
ta risk can be escalated up threugh the
crganisation effectively and confidentially.

The Group's business model has remained
the same in 2019 as in 2018 (see page 18
for more detail). It incorporates a number

of elements that moderate the risk profile
of the Company, particularly as the portfolio
accelerates its focus on Pest Control and
Hygiene, which together represent 85%

of our total business.

© Low capital intensity and high portfolio
retention rates: our categories exhibit
strong defensive qualities, as density
and efficiency gains are reflected in
margin growth,

© Local market operations; the limited
dependency on cross-border flows of
people or products reduces the impact
of gecpolitical risks such as Brexit, and
foreign exchange risk is muted since
revenue is earned and costs are incurred
in local currency.

® The global nature and scale of the Group’s
operations limits exposure to the economic
cycle in individual markets: the largest
market, the United States, represents
38% of Ongoing Revenue at CER,
with no other single market representing
more than 12%.

Principal risks

Srareyivc Report

Changes in risk profile
of the Company in 2019

We continue to monitor existing and
emerging risks regularly in both the

Audit Committee (see pages 81to 87) and
the Group Risk Committee (see page /1),
and take mitigating action as appropriate.

Areas where the risk profile of the business
has improved in 2019 include:

© the Executive Leadership Team now
includes dedicated leadership for IT,
technical governance and health and
safety (see page 66}

© higher retention rates for technical and
Sales coileagues reducing recruitment
costs and ensuring improving service
levels; and

© successful completion of twe CMA
investigations.

Areas where our risk prefile has increased
in 2019 include:

© potential economic slowdown in a number
of our key markets such as Germany, ltaly
and Spain;

© increased labour costs in markets
approaching full employment such as the
US, and increases in minimum wage costs
in markets such as the UK, Spain and
Indonesia;

© volatility of international markets due to
facters such as China-US trade talks, Brexit
and tensions in the Middle East, impacting
exchange rates and other macro-economic
factors;
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© ensuring cur technical standards are
fully implemented across the business
at all times, particularly in fumigation;

© ensuring payroll and employment
regulations are fully implemented in line
with local laws at all times; and

© increase in disruptive cyber attacks,
especially in North America, and changing
legislation on data retention.

Identified risks

The principal risks most relevant to the
Group are described in the table below
and on pages 56 to 59, tcgether with
mitigating actions.

Fuli details of cur financial risks can be found
in Note C1on pages 152 and 153. The exact
financial impact of one or more of our
principal risks materialising will depend on
the precise operational impact of the risk,
its interaction with other risks and whether
mitigating actions are successful in reducing
the overall financial impact. However, as

a rule of thumb, a 1% decrease in revenue,

if not mitigated at all, would have an impact
on operating profit and on operating cash
flow of approximately £11m and £10m
respectively.

The Group is exposed to other risks and
uncertainties related to environmental
{including the impact of climate change},
political, social, economic and employment
factors in the territories in which we operate.
Additional risks and uncertainties not
presently known to management or deemed
to be of lower materiality may, if they manifest
themselves, have an adverse impact on the
Group’s growth, profitability, cash flow and/or
net assets.

Failure to mitigate against financial market risks

Our business is exposed to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, counterparty risk and

settlement risk.

Overall risk level O
Trend e

Impact should the risk materialise

If any of the above risks materialise, this
may have & negative impact on profitability,
cash flow and financial statements, and may
negatively impact financial ratics and credit
ratings, impacting our ability to raise funds
for acguisitions.

Mitigating actions
© Treasury policy to ensure that the Company has sufficient
headroom to finance operations and bolt-on acquisitions.
© Review of Group core banks to safeguard lending

commitment.

© Target credit rating of BBB and compliance with Investment

Grade covenants.

© Treasury policy that sets parameters for foreign exchange

and interest rate hedging.

© Treasury policy limits on counterparty exposures at Group

and operating company level.

Performance measures

to monitor risk

© Liquidity headroom at the
year end above £700m

® Counterparty ratings
above A-

© Monthly reporting against
ratings metrics and financial
covenants

© No unhedged foreign
exchange positions above
£0.5m; fixed Interest > 50%;
and matching currency of net
debt to underlying
profitability

© Monitoring of amounts
outstanding against
counterparty credit limits

Further infermaticn

Note C1Financial risk management on pages 152 and 1563

Key: O rLow @ Mecium [l High @ No overall change [~ Increasing < Reducing
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Risks and Uncertainties
continued

Failure to grow our business profitably in a changing macro-economic environment
The Company's three businesses (Pest Control, Hygiene and Protect & Enhance) operate in a aglobal
macro-economic environment that fs subject to uncertainty and volatility.

Mitigating actions Performance measures
® Regular review of our capital allocation model which is to monitor risk

Impact should the risk materialise
Changes in the macro-economic
environment couid have s number of
different impacts on the ability of the
business to grow profitably, to sustain
recruitment and to deliver against targets.

Examples include:

© Recession and economic slowdown
in some of our markets, e.q. Germany,
ltaly and Spain.

© Trend for government increases in
minimum wage fo exceed inflation.

© Low-growth economies with inherent
cost inflation, where the Company has
weak pricing power may make it difficult
to maintain profitability.

© Growing merket presence of mulfi-
national competitors may increase the
cost of acquisitions and drive down
prices, impacting profitability.

© Increased market presence by facilities
management companies may drive down
prices and increase compliance costs.

© Shift to greater praportion of key
accounts in some markets may drive
down prices and make it difficult to
maintain profitahility.

Further information

differentiated by line of business to ensure that scarce
resources are directed to countries and businesses
with the most attractive prospects, e.g. North America,
Past and Hyagiene.

© Global Employer of Cholce programme to ensure focus
on the key priorities of the organisation, including recruiting
and retaining critical talent and specialists in all markets.

© Working with governments and regulators on
implementation of new regulations.

© Low-cost operating model driven by single-country
management teams, back office savings programme
initiated in 2019, focused IT investment to deliver efficient
operations (see page 18).

O Local teams incentivised on driving up route density which
delivers greatest margin growth for least incremental
investment,

© Stock build to mitigate potential disruption from Brexit
retained into 2020,

© Group Procurement team tasked to deliver economies
of scale in IT, fleet, energy and logistics, and increasingly
source materials and operational equipmentona
global basis.

© Use of robotics in back office functions to automate manual
administrative tasks in a cost-effective way.

Overall risk level @
Trend @

© Group Ongoing
Revenue growth

© Group Organic
Revenue growth

© Revenue contribution
from acquisitions

© Group Ongoing
Operating Profit @

© Group Net Operating Margin

© Restructuring costs <€10m

© Free Cash Flow
conversion @

© Net capital expenditure

© UK Property Care plan Implemented to reduce costs and
restore profitable growth.

Business model on page 18, Colleague and Shareholder KPs an pagos 12 to 15, M&A ex=ulivnt on page /

Failure to deliver consistently high levels of service to the satisfaction of our customers
Our business model depends on servicing the needs of our customers in ling with internal high standards

and to levels agreed in contracts.

Impact should the risk materialise

If pur operatives are not sufficiently
qualified, or do not have the right skills, or
we fall to innovate successfully, this may
negatively impact our ability te acquire or
retain customers, adversely impacting
growth, profitability and cash flow.

Industriai action in key operations could
result in diminished customer service levels;
if prolonged, it could damage the
Company's reputation and ability to secure
or renew contracts.

In markets where overall employment rates
are high, and/or our business is growing fast
organically or via acquisition, we may have
difficulty attracting and retaining key
management of the right capability and the
right calibre of aperational persennel.

Mitigating actions

© HR development processes inctuding high-quality
leadership and development training, performance
management, reward and incentives, roll-out of Employer
of Choice.

© Relentless focus on safety by supervisors and frontline
colleagues io maintain worlid-class SHE standards.

© Regular tracking of customer satisfaction and the perception
of both customers and non-customers of Rentokil Initial,
benchmarked against competitors.

© Dedicated Operational Excellence team to drive superior
cusiomer service, safety and technical stardards and
processes, menitoring and auditing against key metrics.

® Incentives for Sales and Service colleagues aligned closely
with strategic priorities, based on delivering improved
customer service levels, greater density and margin.

O Oversight of key industrial relations matters by Group HR
Director and regular review by the Chief Executive for
countries where industrial relations risk is elevated.

© In North America, continued implementation of IT re-
platforming and integration of apps to help drive visibility
of performance, Improve customer satisfaction and
cperating efficiency.

Further informaticn

Service and Innovation on page 47, Colleague and Customer KPIs on pages 12 to 14

Overall risk level @
Trend &

Performance measures

to monitor risk

© Sales colleague retention €

© Service colleague
retention @

© The number of online
training courses being
developed

© U+ learning views

© State of Service @)

© Customer satisfaction
{Customer Voice Counts) @

© Customer retention €

Key: O Low @ Medium M High @ Nochange @ Increasing & Reducing
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Failure to develop products and services that are tailored and relevant to local markets and

market conditions

We operate across markets that are at different stages in the economic cycle, at varying stages of market
development and have different levels of market attractiveness. We must be sufficiently agile to develop
and deliver products and services that meet local market needs now and 'n the future.

Overall risk level @@
Trend @

Impact should the risk materialise

If we are not able to adapt to local business
and consumer needs, our existing
customers may choose not to renew
contracts, or seek reductions in prices.

This negatively impacts our abiiity to
maintain or increase margins and cash flow.

Examples Inciude:

© the need to adapt to changes to the
regulatory environment that may ban
certain products or service models frem
being used, such as permanent rodent
baiting;

O the ability to respond 1o the expectations
from custemers and the wider populace
for us to reduce our own environmental
Impact and support our customers in
reducing their environmental impact; and

© the need to develop products that are
networked and capable of being
monitored in real time, or react to
competitor technology developments
that are disruptive to the market,

Mitigating actions

© Acquisition of targets with specific capabilities that address
future changes in our markets, e.g. vector control.

© Continued development of the Power Centre to drive
innovation in products and services and provide enhanced
training facilities for the Group.

© Targeted investment in innovaticn to meet market and
regulatory needs and defend against commeditisation,
e.g. AutoGate, RapidPro and PestConnect.

© Provision of range of products and services for different
customers needs including demand for more sustainable,
recycled and non-toxic products, e.g. Lumnia and Entio.

© Category Boards oversee the roll-out of innovations at pace
across our reglonal businesses.

© Investment in new digital platforms to provide improved
marketing channels, customer portals and insight,
e.g. myRentekil, mylnitial, and to generate enquiries and
efficiently schedule each frontline technician’s day,
e.g. using Service+t.

Performance measures

to monitor risk

© Sales growth for key
innovations such as Lumnia,
AutoGate and PestConnect

© Percentage of job sales
revenue from innovation

© Number of patents raised

Further information

Innowvation in Pest Control on page 30, our *big six’ challenges on page 7, service and innovation performance measures on page 45

Failure to ensure business continuity in case of a material incident
The business needs to have resilience to ensure business can continue if Impacted by externally induced
incidents, e.g. cyber attack, hurricane or terrorism.

Overall risk level .
Trend °

Impact should the risk materialise

Fallure to service our customers may affect
our abllity to retain those customers and
damage the Company’s reputation. This
may negatively impact growth, profitability
and cash flow.

Examples of incidents that could impact
our ability to service customers include:

© a significant cyber attack or IT failure
which impacts e.g. our ability to plan
efficient routing, or akility to invoice,
and is not recovered quickly;

© fire or flood impacting our laundries
{in Workweart) or warehouses {in Hygiene
and Pest Control), preventing goods from
being available to enable our technicians
to service our customers;

® industrial action by employees;

© travel restrictions due to public health
emergencies, e.g. from infectious
disease outbreaks such as COVID-19
[coronavirus) or natural disasters; and

@ restrictions on our ability to Import and
export goods to and from core markets
due to berder delays or new trade
barriers.

Mitigating actions

© All countries and units maintain business continuity plans
and IT disaster recovery plans,

© The majority of key data and applications are located in
regional data centres with enhanced backup capability
and resilience.

© Global programme tc ensure patching is up to date and
covers all IT assets.

© Data encryption and implementation of AirWatch (remote
menitoring and security application) on laptops, tablets and
mobile phones.

© Tools deployed in three main data centres to detect
malicious behaviour and help prevent malicious files from
spreading.

© Strong anti-phishing pregramme using phishing simulation
tool to highlight risks to users.

© Annual penetration testing on all systems to test external
firewalls and address any identified weaknesses.

© Annual inspections of key sites by insurers, on a rotating
basis, to identify potential risks.

& Review of peers’ experience at Group Risk Committee to
benchmark our resilience, and improve mitigation actions.

© Advance shipments of gocds frem the UK to overseas
businesses and holding additiocnal stocks in border locations
to mitigate any adverse impact of Brexit.

Performance measures

to monitor risk

© Number of serious IT
incidents and time taken to
respond

© Actions arising from IT
security self-assessments

© External testing and
benchmarking of our IT
security envirenment

Further information
IT security on page 48
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Risks and Uncertainties
continued

Fraud, financial crime and loss or unintended release of personal data
Collusion between individuals, both internal and external, could result In fraud if internal controls are not

in place and working effectively. The business holds personal data on employees, some customers and
suppliers: unintended loss or release of such data may result in fines or other ¢criminal sanctions.

Impact should the risk materialise

Loss of personal data of customers,
suppliers or employees could, if significant,
result in regulatory intervention which may
resuit in substantial fines and damage to
the Company’s reputation.

Theft of Company assets including
property, customer or employee
information, or misstatement of financial or
other recaords via deliberate action by
employees or third parties may constitute
fraud and resuit in financial loss to the
business, damage to the Company’s
reputation and/or fines by regulators.

Mitigating actions

compliant with data privacy requirements including, in
Europe, the EU General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR).

® Mandatory online training by all senior employees, refreshed
annualiy, for the Code of Conduct, preventing anti-
competitive practice, preventing bribery and corruption,
securing information and protecting privacy, avoiding
canfiicts of interest and preventing insider trading.

© Roli-out of Corporate Criminal Offence policy and training.

© Compliance with Code of Conduct and other key policies
affirmed by annual Letter of Assurance by all senior
management.

© Standardised financial control framework operating in all
locations with a focus on risk prevention and mitigaticn;
framework defined cemtrally and independently assessed
at all material business units every year.

@ International confidential Speak Up dedicated phone
line and emai! address, monitered and foliowed up by
Internal Audit.

© Significant frauds investigated by Internal Audit and
lessons learned widely shared.

Overall risk level ()
Trend &

Performance measures
© Omgoing programme to ensure that ali businesses are to menitor risk

© Completion rate
for mandatory
U+ training modules

© Data privacy programme
{including GDPR) roli-out
and implementation

© Speak Up investigaticns
and remediation

® Key financial controls
reviewed annually for
key territories

@ Further information
Data privacy on page 53, Board monitoring and oversight on page 80, our responsible business approach on pages 44 to 54

Health, safety and the envirenment

The Company has an obligation to ensure that colleagies, customers and other slakeholders remain sate,
that the working environment is not detrimental to health and that we are aware of and minimise any adverse

impact on the environment.

Overall risk level @

Impact should the risk materialise
The Company operates in hazardous
environments and situations, for example:

© the use of peisons and fumigants in
Pest Contral;

O driving tc and working at customers'
premises;

© working at height; and

© exposure to needlestick injury/
bio-hazards from medical waste.

Non-compliance with internal policies or

industry regulations could lead to personal

injury; substantial fines or penalties,

including withdrawal of licences to aperate;

and reputational damage.

Environmental risks may arise from former
activities at sites currently operated by the
Company or acquired by the Company.

@ Further information

Mitigating actions

® Robust health and safety (H&S) policies supplemented by
the SHE Golden Rules and technicai policies address higher
risk and regulated activities, e.g. driving, working at height,
fumigation or heat treatment. Pelicies and standards are
reviewed regulatly. Group technical and safety standards
are often higher than local regulatory requirememnts.

© H&S officers appointed in all jurisdictions, supported by
dedicated central team.

© Mandatory training of all relevant employees in safe working
practices, including drivers and those working in hazardous
environments, e.g. in high veltage areas or at height.

© Focus on implementation of Group fumigation and other
technical standards in all new acguisitions.

© H&S considerad as first item at every Board and senior
management meetings; review of standardised H&S KPis,

© Formal review of accidents and circulation of [essons
learned, aggregation and sharing of ‘safety moments’
post-incident briefings emoeng frontline colleagues.

© Monitoring energy-derived emissions and water usage
including energy efficiency target of 20% reduction in
energy intensity from 2016 baseline by end 2020.

© Strategy to further develop environmentally friendly
approaches, e g. lower pest control chemical use, recycling
of hygiene units, plioting use of slectric vehicles.

© 10-year goals being developed for energy usage, emissions,
chemical usage, waste to landfill and consumables from

sustainable sources.

Key Performance Indicators on pages 12 to 15, Safety on page 46, Environment on page 48

Trend Q

Performance measures

to moenitor risk

© Lost Time Accident rate )
© working Days Lost rate €
© Total emissions

© Energy usage

Key: O tow @ Mecivm [l Hioh @ Nochange @ increasing @ Reducing
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Breaches of laws or regulations including tax, competition and anti-trust laws’
As aresponsible company we aim to cemply with all laws and regulations that apply to our businesses

across the glebe.

Overall risk level O
Trend @

Impact should the risk materialise

Failure to comply with iocal laws covering
bribery and corruption, anti-competitive
practice, employment law, data privacy or
financial and tax reporting requirements
may result in fines or withdrawal of licence
to operate, which could adversely impact
growth, profitability and cash ftow.

The Company operates across many
different tax jurisdictions and is subject
to periadic tax audits which sometimes
challenge the basis on which local tax
has been calculated and/er withheld.
Successiul challenges by local tax
suthorities may have an adverse impact
on profitability and cash flow,

Mitigating actions

© Group Legal invelvement in all acquisitions, including
advising on risk and regulatory issues.

© Online U+ training completion rates reviewed by senior
management rmonthly.

© Payroll audits carried out across all countries to ensure
compliance with local employment and tax laws.

© Tax Policy reviewed and approved by the Board annually.

© All significant tax planning oppoertunities have to be
pre-agreed with the Group Tax Director and Chief Financial
Officer, with independent tax advice taken where necessary.
Regular review of tax exposures.

© Group authority schedule in place and regularly reviewed.

© Group and local policies In place and regularly reviewed.
Supplier Code rolled out to key suppliers in 2019.

© Requirement to report breaches in controls and/or laws
to Group General Counsel and Head of Internal Audit.
Follow-up by Group General Counsel of any significant
regulatory breach in any country.

® Mandatory training en Code of Conduct and other core
compliance topics, with annual refreshers, to instil a highly
principled culture of ethical behaviour.

© All major business transactions or internal reorganisations
are subject to a rigorous internal and external review.

© Review of all disputes that have the potential to be material,
by value and/or potential reputational impact.

Performance measures
to monitor risk
© Central monitoring
of material litigation
© Tax provisions
© Completion rate
for mandatory
U+ training medules,
e.g. Code of Conduct
and competition law

Further information

Governance, trust and transparency on page 53

Failure to integrate acquisitions and execute disposals from continuing business

The Company has a strategy that includes growth by acquisition, and has completed ¢.2C0 transactions in
the past five years, These companies need to be integrated quickly and efficiently to minimise potential
impact on the acquired business and the existing business.

Overall risk level .
Trend Q

Impact should the risk materialise

If the Company fails to successfully
integrate acqulsitions into its existing
organisation structures, fails to deliver the
revenue and profit targets, or fails to deliver
expected synergy savings, the business
may not achieve the expected financial and
cperational benefits which may adversely
impact growth, profitability and cash flow.

Business disposais also have to be
managed efficiently to minimise risk to
the businesses being disposed and the
residual business.

Mitigating actions

& Integration plans considered by the Investment Committee
as part of rigorous acquisition approval process, Integration
activities and progress discussed during monthly
performance reviews.

© Dedicated project teams established for largest acquisitions
and disposals, e.g. the disposal of our interest in the
CWS-boce joint venture, with clear deliverables over three
moenths, six months and one year. Additicnal resources
provided to US to support integration and replatforming.

® Tried and tested induction programme for first 100 days
for all acquisitions.

0 Continuity of management/leadership in acquired
companies, where possible.

© Use of transaction structures including deferred
consideration to mitigate deal risk.

© Group departments, e.qg. Health and Safety, Legal, Insurance
and IT, involved with acquisitions to drive integration plans
and compliance with Group standards, especially when
entering new geographies.

© Post-completion governance: formal post-acquisition review
of performance of each acquisition by the Investment
Committee against original business plan 12 months
post-acquisitien; Board post-investment review of aggregate
investment in acquisitions every six months; Internal Audit
review of acquisitions in new geographies within 12—
18 menths.

Performance measures

1o monitor risk

© Integration plans (30 days,
100 days, 1year)

© Reviews of integration plans
for specific large acquisitions

© Post-acquisition review
completions

Further information

M&A execution in our 'big six’ challenges on page 7

1. Excluding health, safety and the environment — see separate risk on page 58.
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Viability Statement

In iine with provision 31 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Directors set out
below the basis on which they have assessed
the viability of the Group, over what period
the viability has been assessed and the
Group's formal viabllity statement.

In determining the apprepriate time horizon
over which to assess the viability of the
Group, the Directors have determined

that a three-year period is appropriate:

O It is consistent with the period reviewed
by the Group Beard in the budgeting and
strategic planning process.

© 11 is aligned with the typical duraticn of one
to three years of both the customer and
supplier contract periods entered into
by the Group.

Although the Directors have no reason to
believe that the Group will not be viable over
& longer timeframe, because of the degree
of uncertainty, the pericd over which the
Directors have a reascnable expectation

as to the Group’s viability is the three-year
pericd to 31 December 2022,

The Group's principal markets and strategy
are described in detail in the Strategic Report
{pages 110 6O). In order to assess the viability
of the Group, the key factors affecting the
Group’s prospects are set out below:

®© The Group is the leading globeal provider
of pest control and hygiene services.

© The Group operates three core categories
(Pest Control, Hygiene and Protect &
Enhance) and therefore has some
protection from category-specific issues.

© The Group operates in over 80 countries
and therefore is relatively well protected
from country or regional shocks. The
Group's largest single country is the
United States which contributes 31%
of total Ongoing Operating Profit
fexcluding central costs).

© The Group has a large diverse customer
base with no single customer contributing
greater than 1% of revenue.

@ A substantial proportion of revenue is
derived from contract revenue (typically
one to three years in duration), While
contracts can be cancelied, this provides
a level of downside profection in the
event of economic declines and typically
provides time to respond and react.

© The average initial contract duration is
less than three years which provides the
oppertunity to renegoetfate terms in the
event of external market changes and cost
increases. Most contracts are subject to
annual prica increases.

60 Rentokil initial plc
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© While the Group is expesed to regulatory
changes, particularly in Pest Control, these
can provide an cpportunity for the Group
due to the investments irinnovation and
the Group's ability to fund investments
1o maintain compliance relative to our
competitors. We are not awarc of any
regulatory changes in the medium term
that present a significant threat to any
of the categories we operate in.

© Climate change is an issue that could
potentially threaten the viability of many
organisations. Although there could be
some impact onthe way the Group
operates in some parts of its business, for
example from greater extreme weather
events, climate change is also an
opportunity as a warmer climate results in
alonger or more intense pest season, as
well gs migration of pests tc new areas.

© The business (s not capital intensive and
the majority of capital expenditure is
carrelated with revenue and so if revenue
decreased there would be a corresponding
reduction in related capital expenditure.

In making their assessment, the Directors
have considered the current position of the
Group and have taken into account the
potential impact of the principal risks,
described on pages 55 to 59, that could
impact on the solvency and viability of the
Group. The Directors have taken account of
the Group’s liquidity position, its committed
and uncommitted banking facilities and its
Lbunds issued under its kuro Medium-Term
Note (EMTN) Programme, further details

of which are set out in Note C1of the
Financial Statements. With neadroom
underits covenants and taking into account
current credit metrics, the Directors are
confident in the Group's ability to raise new
finance, if required, assuming functioning
capital markets.

In undertaking its viability assessment, as
a base case, the Directors used the agreed
budget for 2020 and longer-term plans for
2021 and 2022, which includes analysis of
the forecast performance, including the
following assumpfions:

8 revenue and profit growth in line with
the Group’s medium-term targets;

© no major changes to working capital;

© capex reflecting revenue growth;

O M&A spend in line with recent years;

© no additional capital beyond current
committed debt facilities; and

© future dividend growth in line with
current policy.

In order 1o assess the Group's resilience,

a number of different scenarios have been
modelled to test compliance with financial
covenants and ratings metrics. These tests
include:

© a scenario whereby a combination of the
crystaliisation of principal risks results in no
revenue growth over the period and a 20%
increase in working capital requirements;

© a scenario where the crystallisation of
principal risks resuits in a prolenged
downturn in trading performance resulting
in a year-on-year reduction in profitability
of 10%, with and without any mitigation;
and

© a reverse stress test scenario caused
by an unavoidable breach of the Group's
financial covenants.

In each scenario, it is assumed that the Group
is able to refinance its debt maturities as
they fall due, in line with recent experience.
Ir the first two scenarios, it was found that
the Group was resilient and remained in
compliance with its financial covenants,
even with no mitigation. The Directors have
also considered the key potential mitigating
actions of reducing capital expenditure or
expenditure on acquisitions and ultimately
restricting dividend payments. Where
mitigation was introduced, the requirement
for financing to be raised on debt maturity
was reduced significantly. In order to
create a reverse stress testing scenario,
the cundilions were so severe that they
were considered implausible.

Based on this assessment and having
carefully considered the Group's current
standing and the risks and uncertainties
referred to above, in line with the UK
Corporate Governance Code, the Directors
have a reasonable expectation that the
Group will be able to continue in operation '
and meet its liabilities as they fall due over

the three-year peried ending 31 December

2022.
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Chairman’s Introduction to Governance

o

As the business continues to

grow, it is key that the Board

maintains the highest corporate

governance standards and
works with management to
continue the succassful
delivery of our strategy

for sH our stakeholders.
Richard Solomons
Chairman

Dear Shareholder

This is my first letter to you as Chairman of
Rentokil Initial a1 I am honoured to have
been appointed. | have now spent almost
a year with the Company, having joined as
a Non-Executhve Director in March 2019
before becoming the Chairman in May.

1 am grateful 10 all concerned for the smooth
handaover | received. | would particularly like
to thank our former Chairman John McAdam
whose leadership of the Board since 2008
contributed hugely to the many significant
achievements of the last 11 years. I'd also like
to thank Richard Burrows who stayed on as
Senior Independent Director to manage the
Chairman succession process and who has
been a scurce of wise counsel and support to
Board coileagues and the management team
over the same period. The Company isin a
far stronger position than it was when they
joined the Beard and we owe them a debt

of gratitude for the part they played in that
transfermation.

Much of my first year has been spent learning
about the business, meeting with colleagues,
shareholders and key advisers and spending
considerable time with the senior management
team. Full details of my activities, including
the two overseas trips | took to visit some

of our businesses, are set out on page 78.

) have been impressed by what ) have seen
in my first year in the Board. | was particuiarly
struck by the openness, enthusiasm and
delivery focus of colleagues at sl levels of
the Company and the clarity of execution
against strategy. | can see why the business
has been so successful and | look ferward to

Rentokil Initial plc
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working with the Board, Andy and his senior
management tearm to make sure that

its sbialeyy continues to evalve and to
cantinuing that track recard of success.

| have set out below some of the key

areas of focus for the Board during 2019
Full details of alt our activities can be found
in the Corporate Governance Report.

Safety, health and
environment

Health and safety has for many years been
the first agenda item at every Board meeting
as it remains of critical importance to us

as a business. We want to ensure that all
our colleagues go home safe every day.
Sadly, there were two fatalities from driving
accidents this year, including one of our
colieagues in Colombia. This reinforces
why we must never be satisfied with our
performance, even though our key safety
metrics (Lost Time Accidents {LTA) and
Waorking Days Lost (WDL)) are at all-time
record lows and our safety performance
overall remains world-class. Further details
are available in the Responsible Business
section on page 46.

While we will never be complacent, the
Group's appreach to health and safety is wall
established and extremely well monitored.
The Company fully complies with ali its
regulatory disclosures on energy use and
carbon emissions (see page 48). Nonetheless
the Board and senior management both fee!
that cur environmental strategy as a whale is
less well coordinatad and communicated to
stakeholders than it could be. it will surprise
no one that during the year interest in this

topic has increased sharply, with key investars
asking mare specific envicotmental, saclal
and gavernance (ESG) questions and also
from engagement with our colleagues and
custemers (see page 22). The Board therefore
held a special session on the environment and
sustainability atits strategy meeting in
November, Rentokil Initial protects people
and enhances lives — improving public health
is at the heart of the services we offer our
customers. We believe the Company and its
supplier and NGO partners can therefore play
a significant role in helping customers and
communities address the challenges of a safer
environment and mitigate the impact of
climate change. The Board has considered the
risks and opportunities for the Company from
the impact of its services and opetrations and
will monitor the seven practical workstreams
management has established to take this
agenda forward across the business

(see our Responsibie Business section on
page 44). llook forward to sharing more

on this with you in future,

Culture and stakeholder
engagement

The Company’s purpose is clear — to protect
people and enhance lives. Qur values of
service, relationships and teamwork have
been in place for many years and are firmly
embedded in the DNA of our businesses.
The insights we obtain from our employee
survey (Your Voice Counts} enable us to
assess the key elements of culture more
explicitly. [t was very encouraging to see our
scores remained high or increased in almost
all areas, including record highs in the key
areas of engagement and enablement.



Full details of our culture can be found in the
Strategic Report on pages 20 and 21.

The Board agreed in 2018 to build on existing
engagement processes to comply with the
new provision in the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code on workforce engagement.
In the course of 2019, we have considered
workforce engagement on several occasions
as well as the linked topics of culture and
broader stakeholder engagement. We have
discussed both the means of engagement in
practice, and the flow of relevant information
to enable the Board to monitor progress
directly. The Board how receives detailed
reports on culture twice a year, as part of
reviewing our Employer of Choice agenda,
and will contnue to do so. We also undertook
a stakeholder mapping process. Full details
of this, and of the engagement undertaken
by Directors during the year, can be found

on page 76. Information on how, as Directors,
we have complied with our duties to have
regard to stakeholders {the section 172(1)
staternent} can be found in the Strategic
Report on page b2.

Strategy

The Board's activities have had the
Company's RIGHT WAY strategy and its
objectives at their core. The Board again held
its annual strategy meeting over two days in
November. The agenda included a review of
each of the businesses, the innocvation and
digital agendas, a review of the portfolic as

a whole and, for the first time, a dedicated
session on our environmental and sustainability
strategy. This will be a key area of focus in
2020. t represents for us both a significant
opportunity as well as containing risks

and potential impacts for our businesses

and stakeholders.

Board changes

2019 has been a year of significant changes
in the composition of the Board, with changes
of Chairman, Senior Independent Director
and Remuneration Committee Chair in May
2019, Sir Crispin Davis also stepped down

as a Non-Executive Director of the Beard in
June 2019. Further detgils of the composition
of the Board are provided on page 69,

Despite the number of changes in a short
period of time, | am pleased to say that the
succession process has been smooth, and
my induction thoughtful and thorough.

The Nomination Committee has spent time
this year considering the composition of the
Board and recruiting for 8 new Non-Executive
Director, Fuli detaills of the process can be
found on page 89 but | am delighted to
confirm that Cathy Turner will be Joining

the Board as a Non-Executive Director and
member of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committees from 1 April 2020. She brings

a wealth of executive and Board experience,
and my Board colleagues and | look forward
to working with her.

In addition, the Nomination Committee has
spent time considering Executive Director
succession and in particular the planned

Dudiegic Kepornt —OTporale wovernance

Highlights of 2019

© Smooth Chairman and Board
succession process

© Continued strong operational
performance and delivery against
strategy

© 9th in 2019 Hampton-Alexander
Review for women on boards
and in leadership

© Rated Britain's Most Admired
Company for Diversity and
Inclusion, with no material gender
pay gap for the third year running

succession for Jeremy Townsend, who wiil
be retiring from his role as Chief Financial
Officer later in 2020. Following a detailed
and thorough succession process invelving
both internal and external candidates, the
Board selected Stuart Ingall-Tombs, currently
Chief Financial Officer for North America,

as Jeremy’s successor, with the precise
handover date 1 be finalised in the next few
months, Further cletails on the process and
Stuart’s background are set out in the
Nemination Committee Report on page 90.

Remuneration

Angela Seymour-Jackson succeeded
Richard Burrows as Chair of the
Remuneration Committee in May 2019.
Angela has been a member of the Committee
since 2012 and chairs two other listed
company remuneration committees so was
extremely well placed to take on this role.
The Remuneration Committee engaged

with key shareholders during 2019 and early
2020 on proposed salary increases for our
Execulive Directors. Full details can be found
inthe Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Compliance

| am able to report that, with the exception of
three provisions, we have complied fully with
the UK Corporate Governance Code during
the year, with our full statement regarding
this being found on page 68.

As a Board, we have reviewed and approved
several key documents during the year, most
notably the Company's 2018 Modern Slavery
Statement and our Gender Pay Report for
2018. The Audit Committee, on behalf of the
Board, also moenitored the Company’s
payment practice reports for our two principal
UK subsidiaries.
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Areas of focus for 2020

© Maintain world-class levels of
health and safety

© Increase direct Board engagement
with key stakeholders

© Undertake a successful Board visit
to North America in June

© Articulate renewed ESG strategy
including a new post-2020
emissions target

© Delivery against our digital
strategy

| would like to thank all our shareholders for
their support for the Company and the Beard
and all our colleagues for their efforts that
underpin its success. We look forward to the
challenges in 2020 and beyond with both
confidence and determination to deliver

on the cpportunities they present.

| would like to thank Andy, Jeremy and the
senior management team for delivering
another successful performance in 2019
and for the welcome they have provided
to me as Chairman.

Richard Solomons
Chairman

26 February 2020
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Board of Directors

Richard Solomons @
Chairman

Appeinted: March 2019 and became
Chairman in May 2019

Skills and experience

Richard brings to the Board deep operational
and financial expertise combined with a
strong commercial and strategic
development track record. As former Chief
Executive Officer of InterContinental Hotels
Group ple (IHG), 2nd prior to that Chief
Financial Officer, he has broad experience
of leading a successful multinational, as weli
as delivering growth in North America and
Greater China, and the effective use of
digital tools In service-led global businesses,
Richard has a BA in Econcemics from the
University of Manchester, trained as a
Chartered Accountant with KPMG, and has
seven years’ investment banking experience
in New York and London with Hili Samuel.

Current external commitments

© Senior independent Director, Aston Martin
Lagoenda Global Holdings plc

© Member of the Board of Governors and the
Finance Committee at the University of
Manchester

© NEL and Chairman of the Advisory
Committee, Hotelbeds Group S.L.U. (Spain)

John Pettigrew o0
Senicr Independent Director

Appointed: January 2018 and becaime Senjor
Independent Director in May 2019

Skills and experience

John is Chief Executive of National Grid
with a strong economic background and
engineering leadership experience. John
has a strong track record of developing and
implementing global strategies for profitable
growth at National Grid. His skillset includes
service provision to a large customer base,
delivering world-class leveis of safety
performance and driving transformational
change in highly regulated environments.

He has significant experience of the US
market, having led the generation and
distribution businesses of Nationai Grid
in North America. John holds & BScin
Economics, an MS¢ in International
Economics, is a fellow of the Institute

of Engineering and Technology and sits
on the Presidents Committee of the CBI.

Current external commitments
© Chief Executive, National Grid plc
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Andy Ransom
Chief Executive

Appointed: May 2008

Skills and experience

Andy has broad commercial experience
gained in senior executive positions and legal
roles. He joined Rentokil Initial from ICl where
he held various management positions as

a senior lawyer and head of the mergers and
acquisitions team since 1987. In 2005, he was
appotnted to the executive management
team and had operational respensibility for
ICI's Regicnal and Industrial Division.

During his career with IC) he spent several
years working in its businesses inthe US
and Canada. Andy joined Rentakil Initial

in 2008 as the Executive Director of the
gdlobal Pest Control business and became
Chief Executive in October 2013, Andy isa
graduate of the University of Southampton
and g qualified solicitor. He is a patron of
Malaria No More UK.

Current external commitments

© Vice Chair of Street League

© Senior Independent Director, Selecta AG
{Switzerland)

Angela Seymour-Jackson 0@
Non-Executive Director

Appointed: March 2012

Skills and experience

Angels is a qualified marketing professional
and a member of the Chartered Institute

of Marketing. She brings to the Board
experience of leading highly customer-
focused businesses and improving processes
and functions for a mobite woerkforce gained
in various executive and other senior roles
al RAC Motoring Services, Aviva UK Life,
Aegen UK plc and Norwich Union Insurance.
She has over 20 years of experience in retail
financial services. Angela holds an MSc

in Marketing.

Current external commitments

© Deputy Chair and Senior Independent
Biractor, GoCo Group plc

© NED, Janus Henderson Group pla

© NED, PageGroup plc

© NED, Trustpilot A/S (Denmark)

© Deputy Chair, Piki Insurance Services
Lirnited

Jeremy Townsend
Chief Financial Officer

Appointed: August 2010

Skills and experience

Jeremy has extensive experience in audit
and corporate finance gained in various
senior and executive roles at Ernst & Young
LLP, J Sainsbury ple and Mitchells & Butlers
pic. Jeremy has a degree in Management
Sciences from the University of Manchester
and is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of England and Wales and

a former member of the Accounting Council
of the Financial Reporting Councii.

Current external commitments

© NED, parkrun Trading Limited and parkrun
Global Limited

© NED, Galliford Try pic

Julie Southern @00

Non-Exacutive Director
Appointed: July 2014

Skills and experience

Julie has extensive financial experience
having had a long, successful careerin a
number of commercially oriented finance and
related roles working far same of the warld’s
best known consumer brands. Julie, through
her role as Chief Commercial Officer at Virgin
Atlantic Ltd and her various non-executive
roles, has gained significant exposure to
commercial, legal, HR and operational
challenges and responsibilities.

Julie is a Chartered Accountant, having
trained with Price Waterhouse, and has a BSc
in Economics from Cambridge University.

Current external commitments

© NED, NXP Semiconductors N.V.
{Netherlands})

© NED, easylet plc

© NED, Ocado Group pic



Linda Yueh OO QO

Non-Executive Directer
Appointed: Novernber 2017

Skills and experience

As an economist, corporate lawyer and
financial broadcaster, Linda brings a diverse
range of skills to the Board, including strong
commercial experience gained through

her work in corporate law and previous
non-executive positions. Linda has acted

in various advisory roles, including for the
World Bank and the European Commission,
Linda has obtained a BA at Yale; Master's
at Harvard; Juris Doctorate at New York
Liniversity; and an MA and doctorate

at Oxford. Linda is a member of the Policy
Committee of the Centre for Economic
Performance at the London School of
Economics (LSE); Visiting Professor at LSE
IDEAS; and Chair of the LSE Econcomic
Ciplomacy Commission.

Current external commitments
© Trustee of Malaria No More UK
and The Coutts Foundation
© Chair of the Royal Commonwealth Society
® Chair of The Schiehallion Fund Limited
© NED, Fidelity China Special Situations pic

Daragh Fagan
Company Secretary

Appointed: Group General Counselin
September 2013 and became Company
Secretary in July 2014

Skills and experience

Caragh is & qualified soclicitor, having trained
at Herbert Smith, and has extensive
experience in major listed multinational
corporations, including those with significant
businesses In emerging markets. Daragh
previously worked at Thomson Reuters as
General Counsel, Europe & Asia, and General
Counsel, EMEA of Reuters Group plc. Before
joining Reuters, he spent 10 years working

in the oil and gas industry for the Italian
multinational Eni SpA. Daragh has an MA

in History from Cambridge University.

Current external commitments
None

SUdivylL Repart LUrporale covernance

Age of Directors

Professional background

Key

© Audit Committee member

© Nomination Committee member
O Remuneration Committee member
O committee Chair

NED Non-Executive Birector

rinaricidl >lalernierig e rernanen

Directors’ tenure
at 26 February 2020

Former Directors in 2019

John McAdam
Retired as Chairman following the AGM
in May 2019.

Richard Burrows

Retired as a Non-Executive Director and
Senior Independent Director following
the AGM in May 2019.

Sir Crispin Davis
Resigned as a Non-Executive Director
in June 2019.

Director joining in 2020

Cathy Turner

Joins the Board as a Non-Executive Director
on 1 April 2020 and will stand for election

at the Company's Annual General Meeting
in May 2020. She is an experienced
Non-Executive Director with considerable
HR and remuneration knowledge and will
become a member of both the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Rentokil Initial plc
Annual Report 2019 65



Executive Leadership Team

Gary Booker
Chief Marketing, Innovation
and Strategy Officer

Appointed: January 2018

Role

As Chief Marketing, Innovation and Strategy
Officer, Gary has overall responsibility for
business strategy, brand, innovation, digital,
global account sales, and global marketing
for commercial and residential customers.

Skills and experience

Gary’s career includes former CEO and
General Manager positions as well as
strategy and innovation leadership roles for
several high-profile businesses including
Dixons Carphone, where he was Chief
Marketing Officer and oversaw its Currys and
PC Woerld brands; ©2 (Telefénica) in the UK;
and Electronic Arts in San Francisco, where
he gained strong experience across mobile
and digital marketing. Prior to that Gary held
senior roles at Dunlep Slazenger and Unipart.
Gary holds an MBA in Strategic Marketing
and a BS¢ (Hons) in Business Studies, Law
and Psychology.

Chris Hunt
Group M&A Director

Appointed: July 2019

Rele

Chris leads Rentokil Initial’s efforts to identify,
evaluate, negotiate and integrate acquisitions
and dispesals, ensuring that the deals

add value.

Skills and experience

Chris joined Rentokil Initial in 2012 as Head
of M&A and has completed more than 200
deals for the Group. Prior to joining Rentokil
Initial, Chris held various senior roles at
AstraZeneca ple, including Head of Finance
at AZ UK’s Marketing Company, Corporate
Strategy Director and Group M&A Director,
and prior to that was a Director at KPMG
Transaction Services, Chris has extensive
aperational finance, business develonment
and corporate finance experience. He is

a Chartered Accountant and sits on the
ICAEW's Corporate Finance Faculty Board.
He holds a BA {(Hons) in Accounting and
Computing from the University of Kent,
Canterbury.
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Paul Cochrane
Managing Director, Asia

Appointed: March 2016

Role
Paul oversees our businesses throughout the
Asia region.

Skills and experience

Paul joined Rentokil Initial in 1990 as Branch
Manager of the Initial Hygiene business in
New Zealand. He later became Managing
Director of Rentokil initial New Zealand & Fiji,
Managing Director of Ambius in the UK,
Managing Director of Initial Hygiene Pacific
{Australia, New Zealand and Fiji) and then
Senior Vice President of Rentokil Initial Asia
before becoming Regional Managing Director
for Asia. Paul has a diploma in Business from
the University of Auckland and a Trade
Certificate of Automotive Engineering

from Manukau Institute of Technology

in New Zealand.

Alain Moffroid
Managing Director, Eurcpe

Appointed: March 2016

Role
Ala'n oversees our businesses throughout
the Eurcpe region.

Skills and experience

Alain joined Rentokil Initial in 2013 as
Managing Director, Pacific and became
Managing Director, Europe in September
2019. He joined from Unifever where he
held a number of senior roles across
muitiple geographies. He has significant
experience in marketing, sales and business
development acquired during 23 years

with Unilever in Europe, Asia and Pacific.
Alain is a dual national Belgian/Australian
and is fluent in English, French and Dutch,
He holds an MSc in Business from the Solvay
Business School, University of Brussels.

Vanessa Evans
Group HR Director

Appointed: Janvuary 2016

Role

As Group HR Director, Vanessa leads a team
respensible for shaping and executing our
Employer of Choice strategy, ensuring that
we can attract, recruit, train, engage, reward
and retain the talent we need to deliver on
our business strategy and results,

Skills and experience

Vanessa has had a successful career with
some of the world’s best known consumer
brands. She brings valuable business
experience and expertise in human resources
management. She joined Rentokil Initial from
RSA Group plc where she was Group HR,
Communications and Customer Director.
Prior to that, Vanessa was Global HR Director
at Lego and Head of UK HR at GAP. She is a
Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Personne!
and Development and holds & BA (Hons)in
Geography from Bulmershe Cellege,
University of Reading.

John Myers
Managing Director, North America

Appcinted: October 2013

Role
John oversees our businesses throughout
the North America region.

Skills and experience

John joined Rentokil Initia| in 2008 as
President and Chief Executive of the Pest
Control division in North America. Previously
John held various senior management

roles at Cintas Corporation, Prior to that,

he was President and Chief Executive at
BioQuest LLC. John has a diverse business
background, with extensive sales, marketing
and business strategy experience. He is a
graduaie of the University of Vermont where
he earned a Bachelor's degree in Business
Administration. He alse holds an MBA fram
Mercer University in Atlanta.



Mark Purcell
Chief Information Officer

Appointed: April 2019

Role

Mark's role is to ensure a ‘safe and secure
first” appreach is applied to Rentokil Initial's
global{T systems and infrastructure. With his
team, he works alongside the regional and
functional teams to ensure that the IT
strategy and investment is aligned to
business priorities.

Skills and expetience

Mark joined Rentokil Initial in 1988. He later
became Global IT Delivery Director, UK
Hygiene and Textiles IT Director, Pest Control
and Ambius Division |T Director, IT Director
for UK & Rest of World, and then CIO Europe,
before becoming Group CIO in April 2019,
Mark has significant experience in business
transformation, change management and
project/programme management as well as
expertise in M&A integration. Mark's early
career was with the Civii Service where he
held an executive officer position in IT.

Andrew Stone
Managing Director, Pacific

Appointed: September 2019

Role
Andrew oversees our businesses throughout
the Pacific region.

Skills and experience

Andrew joined Rentokil Initial in 2013 as
Finance Director, Pacific, before becoming
Managing Director, Pacific in September
2019. Previously Andrew had held a
number of senior finance and sales roles
at Unifever within Australasia. He has
extensive commercial, finance and supply
chain experience.

Andrew is & Certified Practising Accountant
and earned Bachelor degrees in Economics
and Law from Sydney University. Additionaliy,
he holds a Master’s of Management from
Macquarie Graduate School of Management
and a Master’s of Prefessional Accounting
from Scuthern Cross University.

Sldleyit XepotL

Brian Webb
Group Operations Excellence Director

Appointed: August 2019

Role

Brian is focused on driving technical and
operational improvements across the Group
alongside the leadership of the global
procurement function and supply chain
network.

Skills and experience

Brian joined Rentokil in 2011 as Supply Chain
Director for Hygiene and Pest Contro! and
has gained additional responsibilities
including Group Procurement, Workwear
Supply and European Operations over the
years. His career has included roles in
engineering, production management and
operations, mainly in the food and beverage
sector, with global companies such as

SABMiller, Mars Confectionery and Sara Lee.

Brian is a Chartered Engineer {CEng) with
an MSc in Engineering from Witwatersrand
University (South Africa) and an MBA from
Henley Management College {UK).

LOTpUrate guvernance
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Executive Leadership Team

The Executive Leadership Team (ELT)
supports the Chief Executive in managing
the business at Group level, overseeing
safety, performance, operational plans and
actions, governance and risk management.

The team was expanded during 2019 with the
addition of three new members (Chris Hunt,
Mark Purcell and Brian Webb), to provide
dedicated leadership at ELT level for health
and safety and technical governance, and IT
leadership given the criticality of the digital
agenda and investment in IT systems and
infrastructure, and to reflect the importance
of the M&A agenda to execution of

Group strategy.

Andy Ransom, Jeremy Townsend and
Daragh Fagan are also members of

the Executive Leadership Team. Their
biographical information can be found on
pages 64 and 65. The Chief Executive chairs
the Executive Leadership Team.

Phill Wood
Managing Director, UK & Rest of World

Appointed: October 2013

Role
Phill oversees our businesses throughout the
UK & Rest of World region.

Skills and experience

Phill joined Rentckil Initial in 20086, holding
various senior Pest Control roles in Europe
before his appointment to lead the UK
businesses — Pest and Hygiene in 2009.

Hea became Managing Director of UK & Rest
of World in 2013. Pricr to joining Rentokil
initial, Phill held a number of top management
positions at Lex Services/RAC plc where

he served for 15 years. Phill has extensive
commercial and business development
experience. He is a Chartered Management
Accountant and holds a BSc {Hons)in
Management Science from Loughborough
University.
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Corporate Governance Report

Statement of compliance

The principal governance framework applying to the Company is the UK Corporate Governance
Code, the latest edition of which was published /n July 2018 {the Code). The Code is published

by the Financiat Reporting Council (FRC) and the full text is available on its website at fre.org.uk.

The Company has complied throughout 2012 with all the provisions in the Code other than
an element of provision 32, and provisions 36 and 38. Provisions 36 and 28 are remuneration
related items which we will address in the next Directors’ Remuneration Policy and provision
32 relates to Committee composition. A fuil expianation is provided below. Information

on how the Company has applied the principles and complied with the supporting

provisions during the year can be found throughout the Annual Report, Details of

where key information can be found is provided below.

Board leadership and
company purpose

The Direclors of the Company are set out
on pages 64 and 65.

Long-term value

Qur business model is set cut on page 18

and our strategy can be found in the business
repaorts on pages 28 and 36. Principal risks
are on pages 55 to 59. A description of

how these have been considered by the
Board throughout the year s given on

pages 7210 75,

Purpose and culture

Cur purpose and values are set out on
page 2 and a summary of our culture is
provided on page 20. The Board’s ongoing
manitoring of the Company's culture and
values is outlined on page 69.

Stakeholders

Our key stakeholders are set out in the
Strategic Report on pages 22 and 23.

The section 172(1) statement setting out
how the Directers have had regard to
stakeholders when undertaking their duties
can be found on page 52. Details of how
the Board understands the views of key
stakeholders are provided on page 76.

Significant votes against a resolution
We did not receive any significant votes
against resolutions put to shareholders
at our AGM held on 8 May 2019.

Division of responsibilities

Role and independence of Directors
At least half the Board, excluding the
Chairman, are considered independent,
Full details are provided on page 69.

Board and Committee meetings

A table detailing the number of meetings
and Director attendance for the Board and
the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee meetings held during 2019 can
be found on page 72.

Directors’ significant external commitments
Details of the Board's current external
commitments are provided n their
biographies on page 64. The Board's
approach to external commitments and the
significant external appeintments considered
during the year are on page 69.

Rentokil Initial plc
68 Annual Report 2019

Composition, succession
and evaluation

The Nomination Commitlee Report can be
found on pages 88 to S1.

Diversity and inclusion

Details of our diversity policy and key
measurements are contained in the
Responsible Business section on page 46,
The Board's oversight of diversity and details
of the Board diversity policy are provided

fn the Nominatien Committee Report on
page 91,

Director appointment and succession
planning

The Momination Committee has responsibility
for ensuring the corract balance of skills,
experience and knowledge, and oversees
succession pianning. Full details are provided
in the Nomination Committee Rcport on
pages 89 and 90,

Board evaluation

The Board, Board Committees and individual
Directors undertake a review annually.

A description of the process undertaken

is provided in the Corporate Governance
Report on page 79.

Audit, risk and internal control

The Audit Committee Report can be found
on pages 81to 87.

Risk reporting

Cur approach to risk management and
internal control is set out on page 55, along
with the Group's principal risks. The Board’s
oversight of risk management and the
infernal control framework is set out on

page 80 and further details on risks and
conirols are provided in the Audit Commitiee
Report cn page 86.

Other reporting requirements

The Board’s approach to ensure a fair,
balanced and understandable report is
provided on page B0. The going concern
statement can be found on page 81and
the viability statement is on page 60.

The statement of Directors’ responsibilities
is an page 181

Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee Report can
be found on pages 92 to 111,

The current Directors’ Remuneration Policy
was approved by shareholders at our AGM
in May 2018, A summary of the policy can
be found on pages 109 to 111. Details of how
the policy has been applied and how the
Remuneration Committee has undertaken
its duties can be found in the Directors’
Remuneration Report.

Provision 32 states that the Remuneration
Committee comprises a minimum of three
independent Non-Executive Directors.
Following the retirement of Richard Burrows,
there was a period in 2019 where the
Remuneration Committee only had two
members. No meetings were held during
this time and Jlulie Southern joincd the
Committee in November 2019 resuiting in
the Committee ance again comprising three
members (see page 96 for details of the
Remuneration Committee composition).

Provision 36 of the Code states that the
Remuneraticn Commitlee should develop

a formal policy for post-employment
sharehoiding requirements encompassing
both unvested and vested shares. We
currently have shareholding requirements for
our Executive Directors while In employment
as set out on page 103, and a requirement for
Performance Share Plan awards to be held
for two years post vesting, which includes
post-employment. A formal post-employment
policy will be developed in the next Directors’
Remuneration Policy which is due to be
proposed for shareholder approval in

May 2027,

Provision 38 of the Code states that the
pension contribution rates for Executive
Directors, or payments in lieu, should be
aligned with those avaliable to the workforce.
As set out in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report, the Remuneration Committee has
been considering this change and the related
investor guidance during 2019. It is intended
that the pension entitlement for new
Executive Directors will be reduced to be in
line with the UK workforce and that this will
be farmally included in the next Directors’
Remuneration Pelicy. In additicn, we intend
to put a plan in place to bring our incumbent
Executive Directors’ pensions in line with

the wider workforce by the end of 2022.

See page 106 for more information.



Board composition

The Board currently comprises a
Non-Executive Chairman, two Executive
Directors and four Non-Executive Directors.
They are advised and supported by the
Group General Counsel & Company
Secretary and their key responsibilities are
set out on page /1. Full detalls of the Board
members who served during 2019 and in
2020 to the date of this report can be found
on pages 64 and 65.

The division of respensibiiities between

the Chairman and Chief Executive is set

out in writing. Non-Executive Directors
have regular oppaortunities to meet with
members of the executive management
team (see page 76) and also have an

annual meeting with the Chairman to allow
discussion without executive management
present. At least once a year, Non-Executive
Lirectors meet under the leadership of the
Senior Independent Director without the
Chairman being present. In 2019, this

took place in February. A Nomination
Committee comprising all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors and chaired by the
Chairman has responsibility for managing
the appointment process to ensure a formal,
rigorous and transparent procedure for
appointing Directors. Pro-forma latters

of appeintment and Directors’ service
contracts are available for public

inspection on our webslite.

Richard Solomons jeined the Company as

a Non-Executive Director on 1 March 2019
hefore succeeding John McAdam as Chairman
on 8 May 2019. Detalls of the recruitment
process undertaken were provided in the
Company's 2018 Annual Report. Richard
Burrows also retired as a Non-Executive
Director, Remuneration Committee Chair
and Senior Independent Director at the
conclusion of the Company’s AGM on 8 May
2019. John Pettigrew was appointed as
Senior Independent Director and Angela
Seymeur-Jackson as Remuneration
Committee Chair to replace him. Sir Crispin
Bavis resigned as & Non-Executive Director
on 30 June 2019, During 2019 a recruitment
process was undertaken to appoint a new
Nen-Executive Director to the Board of
Directors, which resulted in the appointment
of Cathy Turner who will join the Board of
Directors and the Remuneration and
Nemination Committeas in April 2020. Further
information on appoeintment and succession
planning can be found in the Nomination
Commitiee Report on pages 89 and 90.

The Board considers that it and its
Committees have an appropriate composition
to discharge their duties effectively and to
manage succession issues. The Board keeps
its membership and that of its Committees
under review to ensure that an appropriate
balance is maintained.
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External commitments

All Directors may serve on a number of other
boards, provided that they can demonstrate
that any such appointment will not interfere
with thelr time commitment to the Company,
nor represent & conflict of interest. Any new
external appointment must be approved

by the Board, where the nature of the
appointment and the expected time
commitment are considered. The significant
external commitments of the Directors are
shown in thelr biographical information on
pages 64 and 65.

During 2019, the Board's governance
procedures were updated to clarify that
significant appo/ntments, as referred to in
Principle 15 of the Code, would be considered
as a rele with a listed company or a role with
& time commitment equal to or greater than
the time commitment of their current role
with the Company. Currently Non-Executive
Directors are obliged to commit at least

20 days a year and the Chairman is cbliged
to commit an average of two days a week

to the Company.,

In 2019, the Board approved the following
significant appointments, as it was felt that
the appointments would not affect the
Director’s availability or effectiveness

in carrying out their responsibilities and
duties as a Director at Rentokil Initial.

The significant external appointments
(all non-executive) considered and approved
by the Board during 2019 were:

© Andy Ransom’s appointment to Selecta AG
in February 2019;

& Angela Seymour-Jackson's appointment
to Trustpilot A/S in March 2019;

© Linda Yueh's appointment to Fidelity China
Special Situations plc in June 2019, and

© Richard Solomons' appointment to
Hotelbeds in November 2012,

The issue of Board Directors becoming
overcommitted by taking on too many
potentiaily onerous positions, including

the need to retain flexibility to deal with
unforeseen events, is recegnised and is
monitored in line with published investor
guidance. The fact that several of the
members of the Board hold multiple
non-executive positicns has not presented
any difficulties in their ability to manage
potentially competing demands for their time.
The Chairman typically attends all Commitiee
meetings by invitation and Non-Executive
Directors often attend too, even where they
are not membaers of the relevant Committee.
All Directors have demonstrated high

levels of avallability and responsiveness

for additional meetings and discussions
where these have been reguired.
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Independence
of Board members

The independence of Directors is considered
upon appeintment and subseguently
reviewed as part of the individual Director
performance evaluation process, to ensure
that all Non-Executive Board members retain
the necessary independence of judgement.
This centinues to be reflected in constructive
challenge to the executive team and senicr
management at Board and Committee
meetings, and during infermal interaction
outside those meetings.

All our Non-Executive Directors, other than
the Chairman, have been determined by the
Board to be independent, having retained
their independence of character and
judgement. In making this determination,
the Board has taken into account indicatcrs
of potential non-independence as set outin
the Code. No Director took partin the Board’s
conhsideration of their own independence.
The Chafrman was considered independent
on his appointment. Details of the Directors’
share interests in the Company can be found
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on
page 103. No current Non-Executive Director
has served on the Board for longer than nine
years. The length of tenure for each Director
can be seen on page 65.

Any potential conflicts of interest are
considered and addressed prior to any new
external Board appointment. All potential
conflicts are submitted to the Board for
consideration and, as appropriate,
authorisation in accordance with our Articles
of Association and the Companies Act 2006.
These are recorded on a register of conflicts
which is noted at each Board meeting.

No material conflicts have been declared.
Further details of this process can be found
in the Nomination Committee Report on
page 91.

Culture

Qur aim is to be both a world-class service
company and a world-class Employer of
Choeice. Part of the duty of the Board is

to menitor the values and culture which
underpin such ambitions and te ensure

that our culture is aligned with our business
goals and is right for our pecple and purpose.
On page 20 and 21we set out the key
elements of our culture and how we measure
against these. As detailed on page 73 the
Board now receives two updates a year on
culture, our Employer of Choice agenda, and
workforce engagement. They also consider
other methods of measurement throughout
the year as part of their ongoing engagement
with stakeholders as set out on page 76.

Qur approach to investing in and rewarding
our colleagues can be found on pages 46
and 104.
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Corporate Governance Report
continued

Governance framework

The Board's governance procedures delegate the day-to-day
management of the Group’s businesses to the Chief Executive who in
iurn cascades authority to the wider management population through
a documented Group authority schedule, setting out responsibilities,
decision-making and approval powers of managers at different levels
in the organisation. This schedule (s reviewed annually by the Board.
Details of the Company’s Executive Leadership Team can be found
on pages 66 and 67.

The Board of Directors

The Board’s roie is to govern the Company
within a framework of prudent and effective
cohtrols that enables risk to be assessed
and managed. It operates to ensure that
we are executing against the strategy and
delivering excellent operational performance
and innovative services for our customers
in order to create sustainable, long-term
vatue for shareholders. Thne Board sirives

to operate in a constructive, ethical and
transparent manner at all times and to set
the tone for the Company from the top.

This framework, along with clearly communicated authority guidelines,
provides the Board with confidence that the appropriate decisions are
being taken at the appropriate levels and further allows the Board to
ensure that Its obligations to the Company’s shareholders and other

stakehoelders are being met. i .
The Board is collectiveiy responsible for the

governance of the Company, undertaking
its duties using clear authority and reporting
governance structures, Specific tasks are
delegated by the Beard to its Committees
for Audit, Nomination and Remuneration.
Matters reserved for the approval of the
Board are set out in writing and reviewed
annually, They are available to view on

our website.

A summary of key elements of the roles of the
Board Directors and Company Secretary is
set out opposite. Copies of the appointment
letters for the Chairman and Non-Executive
Directors are available on our websfte.

Industry Leadership:
Linda Yueh attends
GFSI Conference

The Globai Food Safety session on the critical macro-
Initiative (GFSI) provides eccnomic and key trends that
thought leadership and guidance will most impact food safety.
on food safety management Leading pest experts joined
across the entire supply chain. the discussion to expicre
Every year, experts from retail, the increasing risks posed to

Board Committees

The Board delegates, under a clear division
of responsibilities, some of its duties to Board
Committees. Full details of the Committees’
responsibilities and activities are detailed in
their respective reports, and their terms of
reference are avaiiable to view on our

manufacturing, food service
industries, governments and
service providers meet at the
GFSi Canference to share
knowledge on changing
demographics, evelving
consumer demand and
developments in science and
technology. In February 2019,
the 18th edition of the annual
GFSt Conference took place

food safety from the continued
growth of pest populations and
demonstrated how Rentokil
employed data and technology
to combat emerging threats.
The session was chatred by
Gary Booker, Chief Marketing
Innovation and Strategy Officer
at Rentokil Initial, who revealed
unigue insights, discussed the
biggest imminent challenges

website.

Management Committees

Operating under delegated authority

by the Board 1o the Chief Executive and
Chief Financial Officer, these Committees
each have specific remits and authority
to approve decisions within set limits.

In Nice, France with the theme for the future of food safety

‘Emerging challenges and and considered how best to

the future of food safety”. prepare for them. The audience
was made up of over 1,200 key

Rentokil Initial colleagues attend
and the Company has sponsored
the GFSI Conference for the last
five years. As well as being

@ Diamond Sponsor and having
an exhibition stand, our
Naon-Executive Director,

Linda Yueh, spoke at a special

decision-makers and leaders
from across the food supply
chain, including some of the
world’s biggest food brands,
who attended from over

50 countries.

Phote courtesy of GFSI.

@ View matters reserved for the Board, Committee
terms of reference, and appointment letters at
rentokil-initial.com/investors/governance
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The Beard of Directors

Chairman

Role and responsibilities

© Leading and managing the Board.

© Setting the agenda including discussion
of issues of strategy, perfermance,
accountability and risk.

© Providing constructive challenge
te management.

© Setting clear expectations on culture,
values and behaviours.

® Ensuring effective communication with
shareholders and other stakeholders.

© Performance evaluation of the Board
and Chief Executive.

Chief Executive

Reole and responsibilities

© Recommending and executing
strategies and strategic priorities.

© Managing operaticnal and financial
performance, including monthly
performance reviews with all regions
and identifying and managing risks
to delivery of strategy.

© With the Chief Financial Officer,
explaining performance to shareholders.

© Executive management capability
and develocpment.

© Overall development of Group
pelicies and communicating the
Company's values.

Chief Financial Officer

Role and responsibilities

© Supporting the Chief Executive in
developing and implementing strategy.

© Supporting the Chief Executive in
managing the operationai and financial
performance of the Group.

© With the Chief Executive, explaining
performance to sharehelders.

©® Recommending appropriate financing,
treasury and distribution arrangements.

Senior Independent Director

Role and responsihilities

© Leading the Non-Executive Directors’
appraisal of the Chairman.

© Working with the Chairman on Board
effectiveness.

® Providing an alternative channel of
communication for investors, primarily
on corporate governance matters.

® Being a sounding board for the
Chairmar.

© Chairing the Nominaticn Committee
when it is considering succession
to the role of Chalrman of the Beard.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Role and responsibilities

© Contributing independent challenge
and rigour.

© Assisting in the development of the
Company’s strategy.

© Ensuring the integrity of the financial
infarmaticn, controls and risk
management processes.

© Monitoring the performance of the
Executive Directors against agreed
goals and objectives.

© Advising and being a sounding board
for Executive Directors and senior
management.

Company Secretary

Role and responsibilities

© Assisting the Chairman and Senior
Independent Director in their evaluation
of the Board's effectiveness.

© Advising the Board and its Committees
on governance matters and managing
effective corporate governance and
compliance arrangements for the
Board and the Group.

© Facilitating Beard induction and
development programmes.

Board Committees

Audit Committee

Frovides effective financial governance
with oversight of the Group's financial

and narrative reporting, risk management
and internal controls, and the external and
internal audit process,

Find out more on page 81

Nomination Committee

Ensures the correct balance, structure
and composition of the Board and

its Committees, and reviews Board

and executive succession planning, talent
nrogrammes and diversity and inclusion.

Find out more on page 88

Remuneration Committee

Reviews and recommends the executive
remuneration policy to the Board,
determines the remuneration packages
of the Executive Directors and senior
management, and considers workforce
remuneration.

Find out more cn page 92

Management Committees

Disclosure Committee

Supports the Board's responsibility for
the accuracy and timeliness of external
disclosures and compliance with the
Market Abuse Regulation.

Treasury Committee

Reviews and approves the capital structure
and financing strategy as well as risk and
cash management within set thresholds,

Group Risk Committee

Monitors the internal control environment
and emerging risks externally. It reviews
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
poiicies and procedures for the
identification, assessment and reporting
of risks, meeting quarterly. Details of

its discussions are reported to the

Audit Committee.

Investment Committee

Reviews and approves investments
below the threshold requiring approval
by the Board, incikding M&A transactions,
and expenditure on property and
environmental remediation. It alsc
conducts post-acquisition reviews of
completed M&A transactions and reviews
material litigation quarterly.

Rentokil Initial plc
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Corporate Governance Report
continued

Meetings and attendance

The Beard met elght times during the year, all of which were scheduled meetings, and a Committee of the Board met five times, of which four
meetings were in relation to the release of financial results and trading updates and one additional meeting was in relation to Board changes
including Chairman succession. The membership and sttendance at Board and Committee meetings during 2019 is shown below.

Board and Committee attendance in 2019

Audit Nomination Remuneration Overall

Board Committee Committee Committes attended
Number of meetings held 8 4 6 3
Directors
John Pettigrew 8/8 Af4 8/6 - 100%
Andy Ransom 8/8 — - — 100%
Angela Seymour-Jacksen’ 8/8 - 5/6 3/3 94%
Richard Sclomons® 6/8 - 5/5 - 100%
Julie Southern® 8/8 44 6/6 272 100%
Jeremy Townsend 8/8 - - - 100%
Linda Yueh' 8/8 4/4 5/6 3/3 95%
Former Directors who served for part of the year
Richard Burrows® 3/3 - 2/2 11 100%
Sir Crispin Davis® 14 on 0/3 — 13%
Jdohn McAdam® 2/3 — 12 - 60%

Noteg

1. Linda Yueh was unable to attend the Nomination Committee meeting in June 2019 and Angela Seymour-Jackson was unable to attend the Nomination
Committee meeting in July 2012 due to conflicting commitments which could not be changed. Both meetings were unscheduled additions to the
Board calendar.

. Richard Sclomons was appointed to the Board on 1 March 2019,

Julie Southern joined the Remuneration Committes on 7 November 2018,

Richard Burrows retired from the Board on 8 May 2019.

Sir Crispin Davis resigned from the Board on 30 June 2019. He was not able to join the meetings in January, February or May.

John McAdam retired from the Board on 8 May 2019. He was not able te join the Board and Nomination Cammittee meetings in May due te

personal cifcumstances.

As in all cases where a Director is unable to attend a Board or Committee meeting, copies of all papers are still received in advance and
the Cnairman will seek the individual’s views ahead of the meeting and provide a briefing on any relevant ocutcomes from the meeting.

Board activities in 2019

The Board agenda Is set by the Chairman, with the assistance of the Company Secretary. Each Board meeting starts with a review of health,
safety and environmental performance and the Board receives reports from the Chairs of the Nomination, Remuneration and Audit Committees
following each Committee meeting.

I

The Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer present a report of business performance and key business activities at each meeting
inctuding investor relations, an M&A update and people developrents. Business performance includes operational key performance indicators
{KPls) relating to nan-financial measures such as customer service. In addition, the Board receives detailed presentations fram each of the
Regional Managing Directors of the Company and their Finance Directors over the course of the year. These review operational performance
and the future strategy for the region, highlighting specific areas of pregress or challenge, reviewing the financial and control environment,

and presenting the opportunity for the Board to challenge management on any area, in 2019, the Board received presentations frem each region,
as weil as an additional deep-dive review an our emetrging business region of Latin America.

The Board agenda is designed to include strategic proposals, M&A activity and other material transactions, as well as legal and governance
matters. Board activities are structured to develop the Group’s strategy and to enable the Board to support senjor management on the delivery
of this strategy within a transparent governance framework. The table on pages 73 and 74 sets out an overview of the key activities undertaken

by the Board during 2019.
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Matters considered

Discussion and outcome

Find cut more

Strategy and operations

Strategic progress

The Board closely menitors progress against the Company’s strategy and
this is communicated to the Board at each meeting by the Chief Executive
and the Chief Financial Officer’s reports.

Strategy day

The Board held a strategy review over two days.

Board strategy review
on page 75

Regional presentations

The Board received presentations from each of the Regional Managing
Directors.

See page 72 for mere
information

UK & RoW business review

The Board held an in-depth session over two days on the UK & Rest of
World business.

See page 75 for more
information

French business review

The Board received an update on the business in France from the Regional
Finance Director for Europe.

Annual operating plan

The Board approved the 2019 operating plan in January and considered
the draft 2020 operating plan in December.

Contract approvals above
set threshold

The Board considered and approved several supplier contracis during
the year.

See page 53 for an example
of this during 2019

Brexit

The Board received a further paper on the potential impact of Brexit on
the business, updating previcus analysis for the Board in 2017 and 2018.

See page 77 for more
information

UK Competition and
Markets Authority
(CMA} investigations

The Board received regular updates during the year on the ongoing
CMA investigations of two UK acquisitions.

Digital marketing

The Board receives an update on digital marketing performance
at all meetings.

See page 31for digital
marketing in Pest Control

Governance and compliance

Board changes

The Board (via its appointed Committee) approved various appointments
and resignaticns of Directors during the year,

Board composition
on page 689

Board evaluation

The Board discussed the reports from the 2018 performance review
at its meeting in February 2018 and agreed key actions for the year.
The 2019 performance review commenced in November.

Performance evaluation
on page 79

Responsible Business
Report

The Board approved the 2018 Responsible Business Report
{formerly the Corporate Responsibility Report).

This report is available
on our website

Governance procedures
review and oversight

The Board annually reviews its governance procedures and practices.
It also reviewed and updated the Company’s Group Authority Schedule
and noted the Company’s 2019 charitable donations.

Conflicts of interest

The Board noted the most recent conflicts of interest register at each
meeting, authorising potential conflicts if required.

Managing conflicts
of interest on page 3

Corporate governance
tracker

The Beard reviews a forward-looking corporate governance tracker twice
a year to identify forthcoming governance developments and to ensure
that the Board is kept up to date and that necessary compliance actions
are taken.

Responsible business
review

The Board reviewed its rele in relation to the Company’s approach to
sustainability and the duty of Directors to take wider stakeholders’ interests
into account. A dedicated ESG session formed part of the strategy review.

Environmental considerations
on page 77

Stakeholder engagement

The Board censidered the outcome of a stakeholder mapping exercise
and potential enbancements to current practice, and received a schedule
of workforce engagement events far 2020.

Our Stakeholders on page 22
and our Board stakeholder
engagement on page 76

Company culture

The Board received two updates during the year on the culture of the
Company, the Employer of Cholce agenda and workfarce engagement,

Culture on pages 20 and 69

Modern slavery

The Board approved the Company’s Modern Siavery Statement for 2018.

This can be found
on our website

Gender Pay Report

The Board reviewed and approved the Company’s Gender Pay Report
for 2018.

This can be found
on our website

Rentokil Initial plc
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continued

Matters considered

Discusslon and outcome

Find out more

Financial

2018 financial resuits

The Board {orits appointed Committee} approved the 2018 Annual Regoct,
Notice of Meeting and the preliminary results announcement. The Board
confirmed that it was appropriate for the financial statements to be
prepared on & going concern basis and approved the viability statement.

2019 Interim Results and
Q1 and @3 Trading Updates

The Board (via its appointed Commitiee} approved the 2018 Interim Results,
confirming that it was appropriate for them to be prepared on a going
concern basis, and approved the Q1 and Q3 Trading Updates.

Dividend

Review of financial
performance

The Board recommended a final dividend for 2018 of 3.16p and approved
an interim dividend for 2019 of 1.51p during the year, In line with our
progressive dividend policy.

The Chief Financial Officer presents a summary of financial performance
at each meeting. In 2019, key areas of focus included performance against
revenue, profit and cash targets, operating risk KPls, M&A spend, share
price performance, and funding and net debt status.

Approval of treasury
policies and funding

The Board reviews the Company's traasury policies annually and considers
financing options when required. During the year, the Board approved the
axtension to the Company’s revolving credit facility and the use of a synthetic
borrowing unit instrument to reduce interest costs. The Board also received
an update from the Group Treasurer at its meeting in December 2019,

Dividend on page 121

Financia! Review
on pages V8 o 121

See Note Cton page 152
for more information

Investor relations

The Chief Executive updates the Board on investor relations at each
meeling with key broker notes being circulated, and a more in-depin
anaiysis provided at least once 3 year.

Tax strategy

The Board considered and approved the Group's 2019 tax strategy.

Board engagement with
shareholders on page 77

This is avatiable to view
on our website

Issue of new shares

The Beard approved the issue and aliotment of six million new shares
to satisfy the vesting of the Company’s Performance Share Plan award.

Share capita! on page 179

Mergers and acquisitions (M&A)

Post-investment reviews

Twice a year, the Board assesses the post-acquisition performance of
aggregate investment in acquisitions completed in the prior 12-30 months,
including the delivery against business cases and execution of integration
plans.

M&A pipeline

The Board receives an update on the status of current M&A negotiations
including a pipetine report at all meetings.

Funding update

Other major transactions
{above £10m)

Menitoring and oversight

The Board received an additional briefing from the Chief Executive and
Chief Financial Officer on M&A opportunities in 2019 and the implications
on funding.

The Board considered and approved five acquisitions and one disposal
above £10m consideration during the year.

See principal risks on page 59

M&A on page 119 and
Funding on page 121

See page 52 for an example

Safety, health and
envirechment (SHE}

Review of key risks and
internal controls

Reports from the
Committee Chairs

Review of material disputes

Information security

Market perspectives

The Board receives a SHE update at each meeting. During the vear,

it considered the 2019 SHE strategy and priorities, performance against
the key LTA and WDL metrics, major incidents (including two fatalities),
and emissions and energy imMensity performance against the 2020 target.

Responsible Business
on pages 46 and 48

The Board receives a report at the start of the year on the most significant
risks facing the Group. It also reviews, on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, the risk management processes to capture the principal risks
for disclosure in the Annual Report.

The Chalrs of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Cormmittees provide
a verbal report to the Board after each meeting.

The Board received a quarterly report of material claims and disputas.

The Board received an update on information security risk status and
progress on security enhancements.

The Board received presentations from each of its joint brokers during
the year, and reviewed the change of broker to Goldman Sachs.

Risks and Uncertainties
on pages 55 to 59

Digital on page 48 and data
privacy on page 53
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UK & Rest of World business review

Each year ene scheduled Board meeting is held as part of a larger
site visit to one of the Company’s operations. This year, it was
decided that the Board would remain in the UK and instead receive
a series of in-depth presentations from the UK & Rest of World
senior management team over the course of two days, taking the
opportunity to focus on the Rest of World sub-regions in particular.

Following the Board meeting in June, the Board received
presentations from the senior management team from the Rest of
World region, which encompasses Sub-Saharan Africa, the Nerdics,
Cartbbean, and Middle East, North Africa & Turkey (MENAT). Each
presentation described the profile of the business in that sub-region,
as well as health and safety performance, M&A opportunities, our
Employer of Choice agenda, customer retenticn and depleyment

of Innovation. The heads of each sub-region travelled to the UK to
present in person, and sufficient time was allowed for questions and
discussion after each presentation, as well as engagement with the
Board over dinner in the evening.

On the second day, the Board received presentations on the business
in the UK, Ireland and the Baltics. These included a detailed
examinaticn of the operating model, a financial review and a deep
dive into the apprenticeship programme and wider Employer of Cholce
agenda. Deployment of innovation from Al and robotics in the back
office to new business models and service lines were also showcased.

The Board was impressed by the calibre and energy of the UK & Rest
of World team and the rigour and detail of the operating model and
plans. It was clear how smaller markets could leverage best practice
and innovation from the more established operations and there
were clearly many further opportunities to grow in these markets,
both organically and by M&A including new market entries in the
Middle East and Sub-Saharan Africa in particular.

LT

It was a privilege to

have our new Chairman
of the Board visit our
North America operations
and see first-hand what
our frontline and office
staff do each day.

John Myers
Managing Director, North America
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Board strategy review

In addition to regular scheduled Board and Board Committee
meetings, the Board undertakes an annual strategy review. This is
structured to follow a scheduled Board meeting and is spread over
the course of two days in November. The agenda for the strategy
day is reviewed with the Chairman and Board and agreed in advance,
including specific strategic issues which have been raised at previous
Board meetings or requested by the Board.

As in previous strategy days, the Board considered execution against
the RIGHT WAY strategy over the six years since its instigation in 2013.
The agenda was designed to examine, through a series of key
questiens and discussions, how to lead our sectors and drive further
top-quartile performance over the medium term. Following Board
feedback, additional time was allocated for discussion after each
presentation, allowing the Board the opportunity to provide further
advice, insight and challenge on the key strategic issues facing

the business, as well as make any decisions required on future
strategic priorities or items to be raised on the agenda of future
Board meetings.

We are operating in challenging economic and pelitical times with
choices to be made around how we allocate our financial and human
capital to best effect. At the strategy day, the Board lcoked at the

key opportunities and challenges facing our core categories and key
functions and how we plan to focus our efforts to optimise value in
each of the relevant areas. The Board considered our business model
(as set out on page 18) and for the first time held an extended look
atthe Company's environmental strategy (see page 77). Potential risks
and cpportunities were also considered. Further details on how the
Company plans to continue to execute its strategy and to drive
performance against our targets over the next three years can

be found in the Strategic Report, with the medium-term strategic
priorities for Pest Contrel on page 28 and Hygiene on page 36,

North America site visit

In June 2019, as part of his Board induction,
the Chairman visited the Company’s

Nerth America business in Charlotte,

North Carolina. His visit over two days was
arranged to coincide with a North America
senior management team meeting. While in
Charlotte, the Chairman took the opportunity
to accompany both Ambius and Pest Control
colleagues on customer site visits as part

of two separate ‘ride alongs’, spending half
a day with a specialist from each business.

In addition to meeting with the leadership
team, he took time to tour the Charlotte
office and chat with team members,

During the visit, the Chairman also joined
in on an established tradition whereby the
senior management team, whenever they
meet in Charlotte, serve lunch to their
colleagues. This provided an opportunity
for the Chairman to engage with colleagues
from, among others, the Brand Standards
business, the IT Service Desk, Accounts
Payable, Pest Programme Management,
Customer Service and Marketing in

a relaxed and informal environment,

See more examples of engagement
with stakeholders en pages 76 and 77
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Corporate Governance Report
continued

Stakeholder engagement

The Beard considered the new 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code provision in
relation to workforce engagement this year,
alongside its monitoring of the Company’s
purpose, values and culture and the
requirement to report on the Board's regard
to key stakeholder groups in its principal
decisions. These topics seemed best taken
together given their linked, overlapping
subject matter. The Board considered the
Code’s suggested methods of engagement:
the appointment of a director from the
workforce, the creation of a {formal workforce
advisory panel, or having a designated
Non-Executive Director, However, having
regard to the size, distribution and scale of
our businesses it was felt that none of these
options would be as effective In engaging
with a dispersed, giobal workforce as
enhancing the existing framework of local
and regional engagement tocls and metrics
{such as our European Works Council). We
now regularly report on performance against
a set of key metrics {such as colleague
retention, Your Voice Counts survey resuits
and Glassdoor ratings} to the Board. We have
also identified ways for individual Board
members and the Board collectively to
engage with target groups across the year.

Detaills of how the Directors receive
information on our key stakeholders are set
out opposite. During the year, the Board
considered their duties as Direciors and the
new reporting requirements, in particular
the requirement to produce a section 172(1)
statement, and reviewed relevant guidance
publications from the FRC and the UK
government’s Department for Business,
Energy & Industrial Strateqgy. The Board
undertook a detailed stakeholder mapping
exercise {o assess whether the identification
of our key stakeholders remains appropriate,
and to review and discuss any potential
enhancements. The output from this can

be found cpposite and on pages 22 and 23,
We are taking steps to ensure that Board
materials refiect consideration of stakeholder
impact more explicitiy.

An impertant initial step was o incraase
colleague awareness of the Board and its
role. Detalls of the Chalrman’s appointment
and his visit to North America (see page 75)
were shared with colleagues via the

RIGHT WAY magazine, which is published
an the Group intranet and available in eight
languages. It was agreed that members of
the Board and their profiles should continue
to be published in the magazine, as well as
a dedicated page being created on the
Group intranet and a means, via email,

for the Board to receive and respond to
colleagues’ questions. The answers will also
be made available via the intranet and the
RIGHT WAY magazine as appropriate.

The section 172{1) statement, which
describes how the Board has regard to
key stakeholders, can be found on page 52.

Rentakil Initial ple
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'l Colleagues

Customers

information flow to the Board

© Health and safety reports

© Results of Your Volce Counts
colleague survey

© Regional 'deep dive’ presentations

© Employer of Choice update provided
iwice a year

© Key management changes are
included in every CEO report

€ Monitoring external measures
such as Glassdoor

© Notification of any awards won
or other external validation

0 Gender Pay Report

Direct Beard engagement

The Board meets with coliesgues during

site visits (see pages 75 and 78}, undertakes
‘ride alongs” with technicians and specialists,
attends senior management meetings (Julie
Southern attended the Executive Leadership
Team meeting in November 2019) and has
the opportunity 1o meet with members of the

Company's graduate programme at the AGM,

Members of the senior management team
also regularly present to the Board.

Information fiow to the Board

B Regiona! ‘deep dive’ presentations

© Customer Veice Count (CVC) scores

© Strategy day review — especially product
pipeline and innovation

© Material customer contracts requiring
Board approval

© Monitoring external measures such
as Trustpllot

Direct Board engagement

The Board has the opportunity o meet
customers on overseas site visits and

as part of a ‘ride along’ with techniclans.
tn 2018, Linda Yueh also presented at
the GFSI Conference, which is attended
by existing and potential customers

{see page 7O). Due to the highly dispersed
nature of our customer base, in which the
largest customer represents significantly
less than 1% of revenue, it is felt that this
level of engagement is appropriate,

Future plans

Following the stakeholder mapping exercise
undertaken in 2013, we plan to enhance
Board engagement with stakeholders,

and have developed a more formal and
comprehensive schedule of workforce
engagement opportunities for 2020.

In addition, an aspirational target of each
Non-Executive Director allocating the
equivalent of at least one day per year to
direct workforce engagement, for example by
attending a town hall or senior management
meeting or participating in a talent pool, was

The Chairman
met with investors
representfng

agreed for 2020. The agenda for the Board
overseas site visit in 2020 will also be
designed to increase the opportunities

available for direct workforce engagement.

c.20%

of our issued
share capital

The Remuneration
Committee Chair
engaged with our

top 20

investors and
proxy agencies

The Remuneration Committee
consuited with key investors and
proxy agencies during 20192 —

see page 104 for more information
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Suppliers

Information flow to the Board

©& CEQ report at each Board meeting
includes an investor relations update

© Financial performance reports

© Analyst notes circulated

© Presentations on market perspectives
by the Company’s brokers

© Strategy day market perspectives session

Direct Board engagement

The Beard engages directly with
shareholders in a variety of ways, including
writing to investors (letters of introduction for
the Chairman and Remuneration Committee
Chair were sent in 2019), calls or meetings
held with the Chairman and Remuneration
Committee Chalr, consultation exercises
(please see page 104 for detalls of the
Remuneration Committee consultation
undertaken in 2019), and through
attendance at preliminary and interim
resulis announcements, investor
roadshews and seminars, Capital

Markets Days and our AGM.

Environmental considerations

Like our customers at all levels, we are
increasingly aware of the focus being given
to sustainability. Sustainability and the
environmental impact of our operations has
been important to us fer a long time, given
that our businesses help deliver improved
public health, safer food chains and higher
standards of hygiene at work and in the
home, This has, however, had an increased
focus this year.

We have discussed sustainability at all levels
from the frontline to the Board. In October
2019, for example, the Chief Executive
discussed ideas for further improvement
with the Company's EU Forum employee
representatives, including reducing the use
of plastics, recycling bait boxes, and possible
alternative power sources. A key colleague
suggestion was to discuss environmental
issues in meetings alongside safety as the
first item. This was discussed with the Board
as part of the Chief Executive's report on the
engagement and it is intended that this
propoesal be adopted across the Group.

More examples of cur Board’s
engagement with stakeholders can
be found on pages 70, 75 and 78

Information flow to the Board

© Health, safety and environment updates

© Regicnal ‘deep dive’ presentations

© Annual Report review

© Responsible Business Report review

© Updates on R| Cares (see page 51}

© Responses to disaster rellef e.g. Australtan
bushfires in 2019

Direct Board engagement

Increased focus has been given to this area
in relation to our ESG agenda and meetings
with key partners Cool Earth and Malaria
No More UK, but no direct engagement
took place between the Directors and
coemmunities during 2018. Engagement
levels were considered as part of the
stakeholder mapping exercise undertaken
and found to be appropriate. This will be
kept under review.

SHE updates have been the first item on the
agenda at each Board meeting since 2013
but, following discussicn, the Directors
requested that a dedicated session form
part of the strategy day in November 2019
(see page 75 for more details about the
strategy day). The session covered ESG and
sustainability from a products, innovation,
governance and operational impact point
of view. The objective was to help shape a
holistic (including stakehcolder) approach as

part of the Company’s medium-term strategy.

Our business purpose Is to improve public
hegith. In many ways, we already lead our
sectors in offering sustainable and non-toxic
solutions. It was therefore felt that there is
strong alignment between our ESG and
operational goals, as well as scope to
articulate this more clearly for ali our
stakeholders. It is clear that this is
increasingly important to colleagues,
customers and investors as well as the
wider community we operate in, and

that there 1s more that we can do with
suppliers too.

The initial stages cf a 10-year vision with
clear targets were considered and it is
planned to develop this furtherin 2020,

Information flow to the Board

Principal engagement is undertaken by
operational management, especially the
central procurement and supply chain
function and national procurement managers,
with the Directors having oversight of this
engagement and its impact by:

© the approval of our Modern Slavery
Statement;

© the review of payment practice reports
for our two principal UK subsidiaries; and

© the review and approval of major supplier
contracts.

Direct Board engagement

There was no direct engagement undertaken
during 2012 It is felt that, due to the nature
of the business, this level of engagement
compared with the other stakeholder groups
is appropriate. This will be kept under review.

Brexit and stakeholder
considerations

The Board considered the potential impact
of Brexit on the Group, the business
continuity plans in place, and immediate
potential impacts for colleagues, customers
and suppliers. The Board reviewed the
short-term measures to ensure that we had
access to adequate stock and equipment in
both the UK and Europe in 2019. These plans
were disclosed as part of our interim and
full-year results in February and July 2019,
and discussed with investors and analysts as
part of the respective results presentations.

Chairman succession

As part of the process for planning Chairman
succession, Richard Burrows, who was Senior
Independent Director at the time and led the
search for a successor for John McAdam,

and the Company Secretary held calls with

a small number of key investors In January
2019 to recelve any insight they were able

to share on the composition of our Beard

and market perceptions, as well as the
opportunity to seek feedback on any

other potential candidates. Following his
appeintment in March 2019, Richard Solomons
wrote to our top shareholders (comprising
almost 50% of our issued shares) to intraduce
himself and held meetings where requested.
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Corporate Governance Report
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Director induction and training

The Board ensures that the Directors continue to provide suitable
leadership for the Company through a regular performance evaluation
process, training processes, governance briefings, Board succession
planning and annual re-election by sharehoiders.

Following the appointment of any new Director, the Chairman, in
comunction with the Company Secretary, ensures that a full, formal
and customised induction to the Company is made available. This
process was reviewed and enhanced in 2019, Upon the appointment
of Richard Selomons as Chairman, & faiiored and more comprehensive
induction programme was developed as is appropiiate for such a role.
Fuller details of the induction undertaken by the Chairman are set

out below.

New Directors glso undertake the same online induction modutes in
U+ {our online learning and development platform) as new colleagues
on core compliance subjects such as our Code of Conduct,
anti-bribery and corruption, competition law, information security
and privacy.

The induction process typically takes place over several months and
a questionnaire is completed by new Directors after 12 to 18 months
to provide an opportunity for feedback, to review the effectiveness
of the training, highlight areas for improvement and to provide an
opporiunity for any further development needs to be identified.

Directors are provided with ongoing opportunities to meet with
colleagues (see Stakeholder engagement on page 78) and to receive
additional briefings or training as required. Details of exterpally
facllitated events and training are also circulated to Directors on a
regular basis to allow them to participate in peer group discussion
forums and seminars related to the listed company envirenment.

Chairman induction

On appeointment, the Chairman was provided with the following

materials:

@ key pulicies, procedures and governance information about the
Company, Including the Code of Conduct, Board Governance
Manual, Responsible Business Repert and the Group
Authority Schedule;

© detaiis of the Group structure;

© analysis of the Company's key shareholders and share capital;

®© recent broker notes;

© Board and relevant Committee minutes and Board and strategy day
papers from the most recent meetings held;

€& copies of the most recent Board and Committee evaluation reports;

© guidance on legal and regulatory responsibilities as & Director
in & UK publicly listed company; and

© access to external advisors (auditers, legal advisors and brokers).

France site visit

In July 2018, the Chairman spent twe days
visiting the Company's French business,

He first joined a meeting of the French
seniar management team. Following a brief
introduction to the business, the agenda
covered SHE, Customer Voice Counts,
financial performance, M&A activity, and
strategic priorities. On the second day,

the Chairman visited a Workwear laundry
site at Dammarie les Lys, about 30 miles
south of Paris with approximately 80 full-time
employees. Following a presentation on the
business, the Chairman undertook a tour

of the Company’s Workwear facility where
he was able to meet and talk with

various colieagues and gain a deeper
understanding of this Protect & Enhance
business.

'78 Rentokil Initial plc
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Timeline of Chairman’s induction

March 2019

1 March 2019 — appointed as a Nan-Executive Director

© Met with Johri McAdam, the incumbent Chairman

© Met with the Group Genera) Counsel & Company Secretary

® Met with the Chief Financial Officer .

April 2019

O Face-toface meetings with individual Non-Executive
Directors

© Met with the Chief Executive

© Attended the Executive Leadership Team meeting

© Introduciory meetings held with three key investors

May 2019
8 May 2019 — appointed as Chairman, met shareholders
atthe AGM

June 2019

O Two-day visit to North America business in Charotie,
North Carolina (see page 75)

© Met with the Chief Executive

© Held numerous one-te-one meetings with senjior
management colleagues, including the Group Financial
Controller, Head of Treasury, IT Director, Director of Risk &
Internal Audit, and Head of Tax

July 2019
© Met with one of the Company’s jeint brokers, Barclays
© Two-day visit to French business in Paris (see below)

August 2019

© Visit to the Power Centre (see below)

© Met with the lead audit partner of the Company’s external
auditor, KPMG

© Held numcrous ene-lu-vie meetings with senior management
colleagues, including the Group HR Directer, M&A Director,
Director of Strategy and Marketing & innhovation, Head of
Communications, Head of Investor Relations, the Director of {
Risk & Internal Audit {designate} and the Regional Managing
Directors for UK & Rest of World and Europe

Future plans

© Further meetings with advisors including Goldman Sachs and }
FIT Remuneration Consultants

© Ride along with fromttine Service colleagues in the UK

© Aftendance at a talent pool event (see page 90 on
talent pools)

© Visit to North America in June 2020

oo

| was particularly

struck by the openness,
enthusiasm and delivery
focus of colleagues atall
jevels of the Company.

Power Centre visit

As part of their induction, all new Directors
visit the Power Centre, our science,
innovation and training academy in the UK.
The Chairman visited in August 2019 and
was given a tour of the facilities where he
was able to meet with varlous colieagues
who work there, receive insight into the
innovative technclogy being devetoped and
the research being undertaken ta assist our
technicians in the field, as well as learning
about our Sales and Service training curricula,
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Performance evaluation

A comprehensive evaluation of the Board, its Committees and each
of the Directors is carried out annually, a process led by the Chairman
and supported by the Company Secretary. In 2017, the Board
evaluation was undertaken using an external independent facilitator,
Lintstock. The review in 2018 was undertaken in-house using online
guestionnaires. Following Board discussicon, it was agreed that the
Company adopt a three-year cycle of Board evaluations, in line with
Princigle 21 of the UK Corporate Governance Code, and that the
review in 2019 was therefore again conducted internally. The Board
review in 2020 will be conducted by an external facilitator.

Following feedback and a discussion of the 2018 process, the
guestionnaires were reviewed and simplified, retaining key questions
to allow year-on-year comparison, Some questions were amended to
react to specific activities during the year, such as the appointment
of @ new Chairman. The review considered the performance of

the Board, the Chairman, and the Audit, Remuneration and Momination
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Committees. The evaluation is initiated immediately after the strategy
day in November with responses collated and analysed by the end

of the year. There are then reviews of the resulis with the Chairman,
Committee Chairs and Senior Independent Directer ahead of a

group discussion at the Board and Committee meetings in February. In
addition, each Non-Executive Director completes a self-evaluation
guestionnaire and meets with the Chairman separately to discuss their
individua| performance during the year.

The 2019 performance review showed improved scores from the
already high ratings in 2018, with particular improvements in the
Board's understanding of competitors to the Company’s businesses
and of key stakeholders, better understanding and oversight of risk
and risk management, and improvements in the review of M&A, Board
succession activities including the Chairman succession were
considered well handled.

The Board considered the output from the 2019 review at its meeting
in February 2020 and agreed the actions for 2020 as detailed below.

2019 Board performance review

Actions for 2019 and progress during the year

Actions for 2020

Operational business
reviews

- @ Focus on deep dives on key competitors

— Key competitors were highlighted as part of business presentations
at the strategy day.

© Detailed review of exccution of digital strategy, including artificial
intelligence, at strategy away day
— Digital strategy was included on the strategy meeting agenda,
and elsewhere.

© Consider organisational capacity and executive succession
— Rescurce is considered as part of each regicnal deep dive and the
Nomination Committee continues to focus on senior management
succession (see page 90).

© Detailed review of digital marketing
and brand strategy

© Continue to review and manitor
organisational capacity

© Monitor operational perfermance in
India

© Enhance customer understanding
and insight

Risk oversight

© Focus an technical standards compliance including fumigation
— SHE and technical governance have been combined under the Group
Operational Excelience Director, with enhanced compliance resource
and audit programmes.

© Maintain focus on cyber security and data privacy
— The Board received a detailed briefing on information security
during 2019.

© Improve understanding of the risk framework, management and
mitigation efforts i.e. beyond identification
— The Audit Commitiee considered the Company’s risk framework during
2018, See page 86 far more information.

© Refine and optimise culture and workforce engagement programme
— The Board received two in-depth briefings on culture and workforce
in 2019. See page 86 for more information.

© Enhance engagement with proxy agencies and invester representatives
— Detaiis of shareholder engagement can be found on page 77

© Review Board induction programme
— The Board induction programme was enhanced during the year. Detalls
of the induction undertaken by the Chairman can be found on page 78.

© Continuing focus on technical
standards including fumigation, and
scheduled Beard review with Group
Operations Excellence Director

© Monitor cyber security and data
privacy performance

© Conduct external Board evaluation

Succession planning
and talent management

© Focus on smooth Board succession for Chairman, Senior Independent
Director and Remuneration Committee Chair
— Succession plans were completed successfully in 2019 with induction
and training provided wheraver needed.

© Enhance longer-term executive succession planning
— Longer-term executive succession plans, including talent pools and
gender diversity, were considered by the Nomination Committee during
the year (see pages 90 and 91).

© Increase engagement of Board with senier management and talent
poeol candidates
— See page 76 for ongoing plans of colleague engagement.

© Ensure smooth Chief Financial
Officer transition; enhance
succession planning process
for internal executive pipeline

© Induction of Cathy Turner and
Board succession

© Engagement of individual
Non-Executive Directors with senijor
management and talent pools

Rentokil Initial plc
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Corporate Governance Report
continued

Monitoring and oversight

Policies

The Company has a robust Group-wide policy and procedure
frameworck in place to supplement local policies or legislation.

The cantent and appropriateness of policies are reviewed periodically
by the relevant functional department head and approved by the
Chief Executive. The cornerstone of this palicy framewark is the
Code of Conduct. Our key policies are set out on page 54, with full
details of our policies relating to ESG matiers and their application
being disclosed in our Responsible Business Report on our website.
Kevy policies are also published on pur website, in addition to the
policies described there, the Company has a ireasury policy in place
to ensure that the Group has suffictent liquidity and to manage
financial risk as outlined in Note Ci to the Financial Statements on
page 152. In 2019, the Board reviewed and approved the Company's
tax strategy which has been published on our website in compliance
with the Finance Act 2016. More details on tax governance can be
found on page 53.

Specific programmes are in place to support implementation of

the Code of Conduct and underlying policies, national aws and
regulations, and monitoring and reporting compilance wih them.

In some cases, dedicated speciaiists are in place 1o ensure that
standards are set and complied with, for example in heaith and
safety, IT security, legal, company secretarial, data privacy,
regulatory compliance, pensions and tax. More broadly, e-learning
training on our online learning and development platform U+ is used
to ensure and track dissemination and adoption across the Group.
Clear guldelinas are provided to all colleagues on how to seek
further advice or report concerns. Compliance is monitored through
an annual Letter of Assurance precess covering all Group senior
management, through internal audit reporting on control incidents,
and by monitoring reports via the Company’s confidential Speak Up
reporting process. Further details can be found in the Audit Committee
Report on page 87. The Group Risk Committee censiders current and
emerging risks, reviows current anengernients and makes
recommendations for enhancements as appropriste.

Board review of risk management and internal contro|

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound systems
of risk management and internal control that are both fully effective
and ensure compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
on internal control and risk management. The Beard delegates
responsibility for risk management to the Audit Committee where
appropriate. Further details on the Board's responsibility for the risk
management appreach can be found in the Audit Committee Report
on page 86.

Risks are considered in the context of long-terim strategic and
emerging threats, and shorter-tarm risks to the delivery of the annual
operating plan. The Board has also assessed the viability of the
Group over a period of three years, the potential impact of the
principai risks and stress-testing financial forecasts for severe but
plausible scenarios, and the anticipated effectiveness of mitigating
actions. The Board has carried out a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Campany, including those that would impact
its business model and future performance, The principal risks
identified can be found in the Risks and Uncertainties section

on pages 55 to 80, along with the Company's viability statement.
Details of briefings on risk and control topics which were provided
1o the Board during 2013 can be found on pages 72 10 75,

The framework of risk management and internal control described

in the Risks and Uncertainties section on page 55 is designed to
rnanage and mitigate risk rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives. In pursuing business abjectives, internal
controls and risk management can only provide reasonable, and nat
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, Review

of its effectiveness is achieved through regular and transparent
management reporting, the governance processes and exiermal

and internal assurance processes, and in the Audit Commities

and Board's annual review of strategy and operational risks.
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The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal contro! for the year ended 31 December 2018
and confirms that:

© The Group has an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the significant risks faced by the Group.

© This process has beenin place for the year under review and up to
the date of approval of the Annual Report and Financial Statements.,

8 The process is regularly reviewed by the Board.

8 The process operates in accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code,

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Directors' statement on ‘fair, balanced and understandable’ can
he found on page 182, The requirement under the Code to provide
a fair, balanced and understandable assessment of the Company's
position and prospects in its external ceparting is considered
throughout the process of preducing the Annual Reportand
Financial Statemeants.

In order to provide the information necessary to comply with this
requirement, the Board places particular reliance on the conclusions
and recommendations arising from the Audit Committee’s review of
the Annual Report and Financial Statements, further details of which
can be faund on pages 84 and 85. |n addition, the Board has oversight
and takes into account the following elements:

@ The Chairman and Chief Executive provide input and agree on key
elements to be included which set the fone and balance of the
Strategic Report.

© All contributars to the Annual Report are made aware of the
requirement for content to be fair, balanced and understandabie.

® Regular review meetings are held with the appropriate senior
management to ensure consistency of the whole document.

© Extensive review and verification processes ate undertaken by
the appropriate departments and senior managers to engiire the
acourady of the cuntent.

© Additional independent internal reviews are undertaken ta ensure
that any perceived lack of clarity, balance or understanding inthe
Annual Report is identifled and addressed.

Annual General Meeting

The Board welcomes the opportunity to enter into dialogue with

both private and institutiona! shareholders at the Company's Annual
General Meeting (AGM) and views it as an opportunity to engage with
all our shareholders on the performance of the business they own.

The 2020 AGM wiil be held at 2.00pm on 13 May 2020 in the Ascot
Suite at the Hilton London Gatwick Airport, South Terminal Gatwick
Airport, Gatwick, RH& OLL. A separate Notice of Meeting, containing
an explanation of the items of special business, has been sent to
sharebolders and is avallable on our website. In accordance with the
UK Corporate Governance Code, the Directors are subject to annual
re-election by shareholders and will, therefore, be stepping down and
seeking re-election at the AGM. As Cathy Turner has been appointed
since the last AGM, she will be subject to election by shareholders

at the AGM, being the first such meeting since her appointment.

Biographical information in respect of the Directors, as well as
information as to why the Board believes the Directors should be
re-elected, can be found on pages 64 and 65 of this Annual Report
and in the Notice of Meeting.

Find out more at rentokil-initial.com/investors
Read the 2020 Notice of Annual General Meeting at
rentokil-initial.com/investors/shareholder-centre

Read the 2018 Responsible Business Report at
rentokil-initial.com/responsible-delivery
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Audit Committee Report

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to present the report of the Audit Committee for the
financial year ended 31 December 2019, which sets out how we have
discharged cur duties in accordance with the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Cede and describes key activities and findings during the
vear, We have once again exercised the authority delegated by the
Board to provide assurance for the integrity of financial reporting and
to review the Group's internal controls. We have continued to discuss
and challenge the assumgpticns and judgements made by
management in the preparation of published financial information and
to oversee the internal controls and compliance framework,

In last year's Annual Report, we identified the increased scale and
compiexity of business and tax arrangements, fumigation governance,
and the implementation of IFRS 16 Leases as particular areas of focus
for 2019. 41 acquisitions were completed in 2019 and we also disposed
of our interest in the Haniel joint venture (see page 52 for details of the
Beard decision and regard for our stakeholders for this transaction).
As a Group, we entered into three new jurisdictions during the year
(Uruguay, Jordan and Sri Lanka). We centinue to monitor the scale

and complexity of the Group and review the scope, scale and rescurce
of aur internal and external audit processes to ensure that they remain

Committee members
© Julie Southern (Chair)
© John Pettigrew

® Linda Yueh

Highlights of 2019

© Reinforcing technical and safety leadership
under Group Operations Excellence Director

® Improvements in internal controls assessment
© Progress on IT security

Areas of focus for 2020

© Technical governance inciuding fumigation

© Transition In leadership of Internal Audit
function and Group Financial Controller

© Continued evolution of North America finance
team

© Payroll tax compliance

O Developing regulatory environment for audit
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appropriate. Additional resource in the Internal Audit team has been
assigned to North America to refiect the increasing scale and
importance of that business to the Group.

While the financial performance of the Group continues to progress
well, in the year there were several areas on which the Committee spent
additional tirme. In Brazil, we identified some weaknesses in financial
controls, and we received significantly mare Speak Up reports in 2019
compared with the previous year (since most were routine employment
issues, this appears mainly to reflect increased awareness of the
reporting channel). We have also discovered some non-compliance
with fumigation practices in Australia and India. Management response
has been robust and swift. It has included voluntary suspensions and/or
selected cessation of activity, disciplinary action against individuals
where justified, retraining of frontline and supervisory colleagues, and
reinforcement of the Company’s strict operating and reauthorisation
pretocols. We remain vigilant given the risks involved in cenducting this
activity but the Committee is satisfied that compliance arrangements
are adequate, and management response appropriate. It will continue to
be a priority area of focus in 2020. Central accountability and alignment
between technical governance and the SHE team has been reinforced
under a new ELT-level Group Operations Excellence Director role who
will present to the Board in 2020, Additional audit and governance
resource in-region has also been provided to deliver training and
maonitaring more freguently and rigorously.

We have enhanced our coordination with management’s Group Risk
Committee to capture and track emerging risks and issues affecting peer
companies, to supplement our risk management and identification
processes across the Group’s businesses and to ensure that they operate
more dynamically. We have also explicitly considered the impact of
climate change in the viability statement for the first time (see page 80).

As part of its update on the external audit at our meeting in Novemnber,
the Audit Committee reviewed the implementation and impact of the
new accounting standard IFRS 16 Leases. During the year, the Group
also adopted the requirements of IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments. More detalls on both can be found in the Notes to the
Financial Statements on page 128.

We continue to be aware of the significant concerns about the quality
of company audits and the audit industry more generally, which have
been raised following the accounting faifures at prominent British
companies. During the year, we have considered the Kingman Review,
examining the effectiveness of reguiation, and the Brydon Review,
which examined the purpose, scope and effectiveness of audit, as well
as the report published by the CMA on the statutory audit services
market. We will continue to monitor the recommendations emerging
from these reviews and the potential impact on the audit market.

During 2019, we also considered the FRC's Audit Quality Review on
KPMG and the other ‘Big Four' external auditors and received a
presentation from KPMG on how they are responding to the key issues
identified. Taking into account all information available te us, both from
internal evaluations of the standard of the audit undertaken and from
external guidance and reviews, we remain satisfied that KPMG is
perfarming its duties to a satisfactory level and there are no material
areas of concern that have been identified. On this basis, we are once
again recommending that KPMG be re-elected as the Company's
auditors at our AGM in May 2020,

There have been no changes to the composition of the Audit
Committee during 2C19 and | am pleased to report that | believe that
the Audit Committee continues to have the necessary balance of skills,
experience, professional qualifications and knowledge as detailed

on page 82.

S
»—*——‘—JWAOM

PR

Julie Southern
Chair of the Audit Committee
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Audit Committee Report
continued

Role of the Audit Committee

The Audit Commitiee assists the Board in its oversight and monitoring
of financial reporting, risk management and internal controls.

The Audit Committee’s focus s to review and challenge in these
areas both with management and with internai and external auditors,

As is customary, the Audit Committee undertook a review of its terms
of reference during 2019, making only minof amendments. These new
terms of reference were approved by the Board in December and are
available on our website, Due to the increased length and complexity
of the terms of reference following their substantial update at the

end of 2017, the Audit Commitiee now reviews its detailed activities
on an annual basis to consider their alignment with each of the duties
and responsibilities of the Audit Cemmittee as set out in the terms

of reference.

Membership and attendance

Julie Southern, Chair of the Audit Committee, is a Chartered
Accouniant and is considered to have relevant and recent financia!
experience. John Pettigrew has extensive commercial and operational
experience in overseeing the financial affairs of substantial business
undertakings and Linda Yueh has a strong ecenemic and international
background. The Audit Committee as a whaole is, therefare, considered

aperates, Full biographical details of the members of the Audit
Committee are contained on pages 64 and 65. All Audit Committee
members are independent Non-Executive Directors. The Audit
Committee did not find it necessary io seek external advice during the
year, other than through its usual dialogue with the external auditor.

The Audit Committee met four times during the year with the members
attending all meetings with the exception of Sir Crispin Davis who was
unable to join the Audit Committee meeting in February 2019, Fuli
details of the attendance of the members during 2012 can be found
on page 72. Meetings of the Audit Committee are attended by the
Company Chairman, the Chief Executive, the Chief Financial Officer,
the external auditor, the Directar of Risk & Internal Audit, the Group
Financial Contraller, the Company Secretary (who acts as secretary

to the Audit Committee) and the Deputy Company Secretary.

The Audit Coemmittee meets at least once per year separately with
the Company's auditor, KPMG LLP, and the Director of Risk & Internal
Audit without executive management present, in 2019, one such
meeting was held, with another scheduled meeting not taking piace
with the agreement of all parties. The Chair of the Audit Commitiee
also meets pediodically with the external auditor and the Director

of Risk & Internal Audit. The Chair of the Audit Committee reports

to the Board on the activity of the Audit Committee and any matters
of particular relevance in the conduct of its work.

to have competence relevant to the sector in which the Company

Activities of the Audit Committee in 2019

In 2012, the Audit Committee considered the following key areas:

Matters consldered

Discussion and outcome

Find aut mote

Financial reporting

Financial reporting

Key accounting matters

The Audit Committee reviewed the 2018 Annual Report and the Company’s
Interim and Annual Financial Statements and received reports from both the
Group Dinanial Cotrater and the auditor on the significant financial repaorting
judgements relating to each statement,

Financial reporting on page 84

The Audit Committee considered key accounting matters, including Alternative
Performance Measures, the implementation of new accounting standards,
taxation, pensions and acquisition accounting in relation to the Company’s
financial resulis for 2018 and 2018.

Other financial
reporting matters

The Audit Committee reviewed the golng concern analysis, the viability
statement and the internal control statement for recormmendation to the Board.

Finance systems
progratmme

The Audit Committee received an update from the Chief Financial Officer and
the Finance Development Director on the status of the ongoing finance
systems implementation project.

External audit

2018 financial
statements

Independence

Externz! audit
appeintment and
evaluation

Significant issues and
judgements on page 84

Other financial reporting matters
on page 85

Regional performance in
North America on page 119

The Audit Committee received a repeort from the auditor on the results of the
audit of the 2018 Financial Statements, considering key judgements and risks.
The letter of representation was also reviewed and recommended to the Board
for approval.

in February 2019, the Audit Committee undertook a review of the analysis
setting cut the basis on which KPMG LLP continued to meet the appropriate
professional standards of independence as auditor to the Company.

Auditor independence and
ohjectivity on page 86

The Audit Committee reviewed and appreved the terms and scope of the audit
engagement for the annual and interim financial statements and undertook

a review of the effectiveness of the 2018 external audit process. The Audit
Committee recommended the reappointment of KPMG at the AGM in May 2019.

Effectiveness and tenure
on page 86

Audit strategy

The Audit Committee considered the audit strategy for the 2019 audit, including
the key areas of focus, materiality levels, scepe and coverage at its meeting
in Juiy.

Audit Quality Review

Future of the audit
prefession

The Audit Committee considered the FRC's 2019 Audit Guality Review.

External audit on page 85

Externa! audit on page 85

The Audit Committee considered and will continue to monitor recent
publications, market reviews and recommendations regarding the future
of the audit profession in the UK,
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Matters considered

Discussien and outcome

Find cut more

Internal contrels and risk

Internal contrel
framework

The Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management framework.

Risk management and internal
centrol on page 86

Control environment

The Audit Committee received and reviewed matters relating to the internal
control environment provided by the Director of Risk & Internal Audit and
reviewed the Group Risk Committee minutes.

Risk management and internal
control on page 86

Internal Audit
investigations

The Audit Committee reviewed the outcome of Internal Audit investigations,
including the most significant issues raised in Internal Audit reports and
received updates on the status of resolution of issues raised.

Internal audit on page 87

Group risk

The Audit Committee reviewed the Group risks and actions to enhance their
measurement, monitering and mitigation acticons, including approval of the
principal risks disclosed in tha 2018 Annual Report and consideration of those
for the 2019 Annual Report.

Principal risks on pages b5 to 59

Financial controls

The Audit Committee reviewed the results of the financial controls testing
carried out across the Group by the Company’s auditor, KPMG LLP.

Risk management and internal
controls on page 88

Internal Audit

The Audit Committee received and reviewed the conclusions and themes
emerging frem Internai Audit reviews conducted during the year and approved
the Internal Audit Plan for 2020 in conjunclion with the Board's strategic review
and operating plan for the year.

Internal audit on page 87

Governance and compliance

Regional ‘deep dives’

During 2019, the Audit Committee received presentaticns from the Regional
Finance Directors of the North America and Pacific regions. These provide
detail on the financial reporting far the region and the control environment
in their businesses.

Tax The Audit Committee considered and recommended the Group’s 2019 tax Our tax strategy can be found
strategy for approval at its meeting in November and recelved a report from on our website
the Company’s Tax Director as part of its review of financial results for 2018,

Litigation The Audit Committee reviewed reports of all material litigation and disputes -

provided by the Group General Counsel at three of their meetings.

Disclosure Committee
oversight

The Audit Committee reviewed a report of the Disclosure Committee’s activities
during the year and its terms of reference.

Letter of Assurance

The Audit Committee reviewed a summary of the returns of the annual Letter of
Assurance provided by the senior country, regicnal and functional management
including any actions proposed as a result of thase returns.

Governance and compliance
on page B7

Terms of reference

The Audit Committee undertook its annual review of its terms of reference.

These are available
on our website

Performance review

The Audit Committee undertook its annual review of the effectiveness of the
Committee.

Effectiveness review
on page 87

FRC thematic review

The Audit Committee considered a letter received from the FRC and the
Company’s response.

Other financial reporting matters
on page 85

Payment practices

The Audit Committee noted and discussed the payment practice reports
for our two principal UK subsidiaries submitted during 2019,

These are published
online at gov.uk
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Audit Committee Report
continued

Financial reporting

The annual report should provide the information necessary for
shareholders 1o assess the Cornpany’s position, performance

and prospects and, as a whole, should be fair, balanced and
understandabie. The Audit Committee considered closely the
Jjudgements and decisions taken by the management team in the
preparstion of the Financial Statements. The sections below set out
the significant issues and jJudgements that were applied in the 2019
Annual Report, as well as providing additional details on other
financial reporting matters considered during the year. As part of
the Committee’s review of the 2018 Annuai Report at its meeting in
February 2019, a report on management procedures was produced
for review which clearly detailed responsibilities and the steps
undertaken by management to ensure full compliance.

Significant issues and judgements

The Audit Committee has reviewed the foilowing significant financial
reporting issues and judgements made during the preparation of the
financiai statements with management and the auditor. The significant
areas of focus considered and actions taken are set out below. These
issues have been discussed and reviewed by the Audit Committee
during the year, notably at the review of the interim results and at the
review and agreement of the audit plan for 2020.

Significant matter

Action taken

Acquisition accounting

The Group makes a large number of acquisitions each year, many

of which require the valuation of acquired intangible assets including
brands, customer lists and goadwill. The calculations for valuing
these assets on acquisition are subject to significant judgement and
estimation abaut the future performance of the acquired business,
such as forecast customer termination rates, discount rates and
grawth rates. The Group utilises the aillowances for provisional
accounting within the standards where appropriate, and there is
judgement required during this periad as to whether the adjustments
relate to the pre- or post-acquisition period.

At the year end, management pravided the Audit Committee

with a summary of M&A activity in the preceding yaar, including
updates ta provisional accounting as well as detalis of new
acquisitions. The Audit Committee reviewed the accounting
treatment of certain aspects of significant acquisitions, including
determination of the consideration paid, the identification and
valuation of acauired intanglble assets and a review of provisional
opening balance sheets. During the period, an adjustment was
made to the carrying value of the customer list acquired in Cannon
UK. Due to the CMA restrictions in place after this acquisition the
Group was unable to fully review the acguisition accounting within
the adjustment pericd. BDue (o its matetiality an adjustment has
been made in 2019 to correct the value of customer lists with the
offset being an adjustment to the ascociated Jelerred tax habiity
and goodwill. This is disclosed in Note B2 Intangible assets.

Deferred tax assets recognised on unused tax losses

The Group holds substantial deferred tax assets recognised on
unused tax icsses. The amount recognised is a judgement and
is based on estimates of future profitability and judgements

in determining the forecast period.

The Audit Committee reviewed the position at the half-year and
year-end balance sheet dates supported by papers from the
Group Tax Director, and is satisfied that the assumptions
supporting the valuations are appropriate and that the assets are
reasonably stated in the Financial Statements. Where judgements
are material to the Group the external auditor uses its own
specialists to assist in the review of the approaches taken

and assumptions made by management to ensure these are
appropriate and result in adequate provisions. Further detail

is disclosed in Note A14 Deferred income tax.

Tax provisions

The Group holds a number of provisions for tax contingencies in
relation to various claims and petentlal claims from tax authorities,
which require significant jJudgements and estimates in relation 1o tax
risks. The complexity is increased as a result of the large number

of tax jurisdictions in which the Group eperates, and the time taken
tor tax matters to be agreed with the relevant authorities.

Management employed local tax experts to support judgements
where there was significant uncertainty and the ameounts invelved
were material. In respect of transfer pricing across tax jurisdictions,
the Group benchmarked its approach using international tax
experts to ensure the risk of breaching lecal tax authority
requirements Is minimised. As noted above, the Audit Committee
reviewed the position at the half-year and year-end balance sheet
dates supported by papers from the Group Tax Director, and is
satisfied that the assumptions supporting the valuations are
appropriate and that the liabilities are reasonably stated (n the
financial statements. Further details can be found in Note A13
Current tax liabilities.

Renteokil Initial ple
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Significant matter

Action taken

Goodwill impairment review

The Group carries material balances for goodwill and acquired
intangible assets, and due to the acquisition programme makes
material additions to these balances each year. Annual impairment
tests are based on value-in-use calculaticns which require significant
judgements in relation to the inputs used, Including forecast growth
rates and discount rates. Management is required to perform annual
tests for impairment of geodwill balances over £1m, and on other
acquired intangible assets when there are indicators of impairmant.

Management reviewed all goodwill balances over £1m for impairment
using a centrally provided model. The intangible assets were
grouped into cash-generating units (CGUs) for the purpose of
assessing recoverable amount, using cash flows based on the most
recent strategic plans, as amended for any significant changes since
their preparation. Cash flows were discounted using the internally
published Group discount rates, which are adjusted to reflect local
country risk. The Audit Committee received a summary of the results
of the review, and although the total value of intangible assets is
significant, was satisfied that the outcome of the impairment review
was adequately disclosed in Note B2 Intangible assets.

Other financial reporting matters

Going concern and viability statements

Atits meeting in February 2019, the Audit Committee considered the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, taking into account
budgets, borrowing facilities, timing of cash flows, and financial and
operational risk management before recommending to the Board that
it adopt the going concern basis of preparation for the 2018 Financial
Statements. The going concern statement for 2019 can be found on
page 181. At the same meeting, the Audit Committee also considered
the longer-term viability of the Company, reviewing the analysis from
management to support the viability staterment in the 2018 Annual
Report. This included forecasts of future cash flows, stress-testing
scenarios and an analysis of other risks that could impact the viability
of the business over the three-year period 2019 to 2021 and how they
could be mitigated. The Committee also considered guidance
published by the FRC on viability statements. The viability statement
for 2019 can be found on page 60.

Fair, balanced and understandable reporting

During 2019, the Audit Committee undertook a review of the 2018
Annual Report ahead of its publication to consider whether it was

fair, balanced and understandable as required by the UK Corporate
Governance Code. Further details can be found in the Corporate
Governance Report on page 80. The Audit Committee was satisfied
that the Annual Report did provide a fair, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s pasition and prospects. The Board's
statement on fair, balanced and understandable in relation te the
2018 Annual Report can be found on page 182,

Accounting standards

Conslderation was given by the Audit Committee to the changes in
accounting policies in relation to the implementation of IFRS 16 Leases
when reviewing the preparation of the 2019 Financial Statements,

as well as the adoption of the reguirements of IFRIC 23 Uncertainty
over Income Tax Treatments. Full details of the accounting standards
applied in the 2019 Annual Report can be found in General accounting
policies on pages 126 to 128.

FRC thematic review of 201B Annual Report and Accounts

As part of its ongoing review of financial reporting, the Conduct
Committee of the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) wrote to the
Chairman, Chief Financial Officer and Audit Committee Chairin
November 2019 regarding a limited scope thematic review of IFRS 15
reporting disclosures. The Audit Committee considered the letter
notifying the Company of its inclusion in the review and discussed
the response at its meeting in December 2019. As a result of this
engagement, a small number of changes have been made to the
accounting policy disclosures for revenue recognition in the 2019
Annuzal Report to enable users to map the performance obligations
with the goods and services offered by business line. Our approach
was agreed by the FRC and they have confirmed the matter is now
considered satisfactorily closed.

External audit

Audit services

The auditor is appointed by shareholders to provide an opinion

on the Financial Statements and certain other disclosures prepared
by the Directors. KPMG LLP has acted as the auditor to the Group
throughout the year. The Audit Committee is responsible for oversight
of the auditor, agreeing the audit strategy and related work plan as
well as approving their fees.

The auditor attends all meetings of the Audit Committee. During

2019 KPMG met with the Audit Committee cnce without executive
management present and met with the Audit Committee Chair
independently four times. The main engagement with the Audit
Committee in 2012 has been over the audit and publication of annual
and periodic financial statements, including the auditor’s scope and
priorities approach and key judgement areas. During 2019, the Audit
Committee considered the findings of the FRC’s Audit Quality Review
2018/19 inspection of KPMG and the other large external audit firms
and received a report from KPMG on how they were responding

to identified issues. The Audit Committee considers that it has

an effective working relationship with the external audit team,

As reported on page 86, the Audit Committee has formally reviewed
the effectiveness of the auditor and is satisfied with their performance.

Audit-related and non-audit services

To safeguard the objectivity and independence of the auditor, the
Company has a pelicy on the engagement of the auditor’s services

on audit-related and non-audit services. The Audit Commitiee accepts
that certain work of a non-audit nature is best undertaken by the auditor.

The policy sets out the nature of services that are permitted and those
that are specifically prehibited. In general, permitted services would
be limited to matters that are closely related to the annual audit
process or where a detailed knowledge of the Group is advantageous.
The auditor is permitted to be engaged on transaction services but
not te undertake any work which would itself be subject to audit.

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the amount and nature of
non-audit work performed by the auditor to ensure that the auditor’s
independence is not compremised. Any engagement fee on permitted
services in excess of £10,000 requires the approval of the Chair of the
Audit Committee and any engagement fee in excess of £250,000
requires the approval of the Audit Committee. A copy of our policy on
the provision of nen-audit services by the external auditors is available
on our website. There was no significant non-audit service rendered
during 2019,

Audit fees for the statutory audit for 2019 were £2.6m (2018: £2.6m).
Fees for audit-related assurance services and other non-audit services
incurred during the year amounted to £0.2m (2018: £0.2m). The ratio
of non-audit fees to statutory audit fees for the year was therefore
0.08:1{2018: 0.08:1). The majority of the audit-related services were

in relation to non-statutory accounts audits and assurance services.
Further detaiis of the fees paid for audit services, audit-related
services and non-audit services can be found in Note A8 to the
Financial Statements on page 136.
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Audit Committee Report
continued

Disclosure of information to the auditor

The Audit Committee monitors the process leading up to the
nreparation of the Financial Statements, including the arrangements
the Company has in place for disclosing all relevant audit information
to the auditor. A formal confirmation on disclestire of informaticn

to the auditor is provided in the Directors’ Report on page 181

Effectiveness

Under the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Audit Commities

is required to review and monitor the auditor's Independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process, taking into
consideration relevant UK professional and regulatory requirements,
The 2018 audit was completed and ali mitestones reached, and there
were no significant unexpected events relating to the publication of
the 2018 year-end results in February 2019.

In 2019, the Audit Committee considered the findings of the review of
the auditor’s effectiveness during the 2018 audit process which had
been conducted during the preparation of Group and local statutory
accounts for the 2018 financial period. The process drew input from
the Chief Financial Officer, the Director of Risk & Internal Audit and
other members of the senior finance management team as well as
from the majority of the Finance Directors of the Group’s subsidiaries.
The process made use of a formal evaluation using a questionnaire
which was completed by 36 business units as well as by the

central accounts, tax and treasury functions. In order to aliow

direct comparability of the evaluation scores across periods, the
guestions were exactly the same as those used in previous years.
The questionnaire covered:

® resources and expertise of the external audit team,
@ =ffectiveness of the audit pracess; and
O effectiveness of the financial controls testing process.

The Audit Committee considered the comprehensive findings of the
review. It was noted that, although the majority of individual feedback
was satisfactory or positive, same concerns had been raised by a few
rountrios an the knowledye and experience ot more junior members
of the audit teams and a lack of continuity in staff. None of the findings
were censidered material in the overall context of the Group audit but
comrnents received were helpful in refation to improvements in the
Company’s processes and those of the auditor. Taking &ll responses
into account, the scoring mechanism demonstrated that the audit
perfarmance was effective and at a similar leve! to the previous year.

Tenure

KPMG LLP has been our external auditor since the audit for the year
ended 2009, with a formal audit tender undertaken during 2017. KPMG
LLP are required to rotate the audit partner responsible for the Group
audit every five years., Mike Maloney was appointed lead audit partner
in 20718. He continues as lead audit partner and has attended ail

Audit Committee meetings during 2019,

The Company confirms its compliance with the provisions of the
UK Competition & Markets Authority Order regarding statutory audit
services for the financial period ended 31 December 2019.

Auditor independence and objectivity

The Audit Committee considers annually the scope, fee, performance
and independence of the external auditor. [n concluding that KPMG
LLP should be proposed for reappointment as auditor at the AGM In
May 2020, the Board and the Audit Committee took into agcount the
need to ensure that auditor independence was safeguarded. The
Audit Committee received confirmation from KPMG LLP that they
remained independent and okjective within the context of applicable
professional standards. The Audit Committee alse teok into account
the review undertaken of the effectiveness of the audit process,

as well as input from executive management.

The Company considers that there are sufficient controls and
processes in place to ensure that the required level of independence
of the auditor is maintained. The Beard does not consider that there
is any material risk of the Company’s auditor withdrawing from

the market.
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Risk management and internal control

The Group's approach to managing risk and ensuring that an
effective internal control environment is maintained is set out in the
Risks and Uncertainties section on page 35. The Board's statement
on risk management and internal control is set out in the Corperate
Governance Report on page 80. independent reassurance of the
effectiveness of risk management and internal controls across the
Group is provided 1o the Chief Executive and the Board by Group
Internal Audit.

The identification and management of risk is fully integrated into the
development of the Group’s strategy and the day-to-day operational
execution of the strategy by the regions and business units. Ensuring
that risks are identified and managed effectively is a part of every
manager’s and supervisor’s job through leadership of the teams

for which they are responsible.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management
approach. This includes:

& review and approval of the Group’s overall strategy, including
overall risk appetite — which includes reviewing the risks that may
prevent the Group from achieving its cbjectives and ensuring that
these risks are mitigated or managed 1o an acceptable level;

© regular reviews of business petformance including updates of the
risks that the business is facing, and challenging management to
obtain assurance that these risks are being effectively managed;

® review of management’s approach to identifying and managing risk
including approval of the Group Risks and Uncertainties schedule
and recommending enhancements;

© evaluation of the effectiveness of internai controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls;

© evaluation of the effectiveness of internal and external audit; and

© delegation of authority to the Chiaf Executive and Chief Financial
Officer to make commitments on behalf of the Company.

Some ot the above responsibilities are delegated to the Audit
Committee as previously described. The Audit Committee receives
regular reporis from the Chief Financlal Officer and the Director of
Risk & Internal Audit on financial controls and process improvement
programmes. These include:

© an annual report on the overall status of the control environment in
the Group including the results of testing and reports on identified
areas of weakness in controls;

€ action plans on contrel environment iImprovements and updates
on their implementation;

© updates on control weaknesses and planned actions to prevent
a re-pccurrence; and

€ periodic reports from regional and Group Finance executives,
and Internal Audit.

During 2019, the Audit Committee continued its practice of reviewing
in depth the risk and control environment in the five main regional
businesses, as well as the Regional Finance Directors’ assessment

of the quality and pricrities of the Finance function in the relevant part
of the business. The Audit Committee received briefings from the
Regional Finance Directors and their teams for the North America and
Pacific regiens during the year. The Regional Finance Director for the
UK & Rest of World region alse presented an update as part of the
regional review during 2019 (see page 75). This provides a high-level
insight for the Audit Committee as well as an opportunity to challenge
key managers on potential risks. It further supports the discussions
that take place in the Nomination Committee on talent and succession
in the Finance function.

The number of control issues across the Group remains retatively
low, with those that do occur not resulting in a material impact on
Group performance. Nonetheless, significant control issues were
experienced in Brazil, where weaknesses in financial controis led
o it failing its internat audiy;, in payrot tax compiiance in Singapore
and France; and in two data breaches and a fraud on a supplier in
North America. Operational controls examined by Internal Audit
generally work well but during 2019 some gaps in awareness and
implementation of Group technical standards led 10 a number of
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instances of failure to comply fulty with Group policies and standards
for the conduct of fumigation activity in several countries, in particular
India, Australia, Malaysia and New Zealand.

These issues are being followed up by Group technical specialists
and country management with precautionary suspensions of certain
activities pending resolution.

The Audit Committee also receives a regular report of matters
reported via Speak Up, our internal whistleblowing process. There
were 65 control incidents reported 'n 2019 (2018: 23). The number

of Speak Ups increased in 2019 compared with previous years, but
the nature of the matters reported indicates that this increase is likely
to be the result of better awareness of the Speak Up facility rather
than a worsening of the internal control environment. The majority

of Speak Ups relate to employee and employment matters; very few
relate to fraudulent activity, which remains at a very low level across
the Group. Further details of the type of control incidences, and the
processes for reporting and investigating any incidents are provided
in the Responsible Business Report which is available on cur website.

There is a Group Risk Committee composed of key functional and
operational senior managers which considers the risk framework and
key and emerging risks. This committee sits within cur governance
framework as set out on pages 70 and 71.

Copies of the minutes of the Group Risk Committee are provided
to the Audit Committee. Where appropriate, items that are ralsed
as significant or emerging issues by the Group Risk Committee
are reflected in adjustments to the control envirenment.

Internal audit

The Group has an operational Internal Audit team of six led by the
Director of Risk & Internal Audit who has been in position for cight
years. The Director of Risk & Internal Audit reports to the Chief
Financial Officer and has direct lines of communication with the
Chair of the Audit Committee, the Chief Executive and the Company
Chairman, as well as to all operational and functional leaders in the
business. Two new members Joined the Internal Audit team during
2049, including an experienced auditor recruited in North America,
Itis intended in 2020 that this new recruit focuses about two-thirds
of his time on branch audits in North America to provide enhanced
scrutiny of processes acress the largest business in the Group.

The Director of Risk & Internal Audit will retire in 2020. An experienced
successor has been identified from within the business and will be
appointed from July 2020 following a comprehensive handover.

In 2015, Internal Audit continued to conduct in-depth reviews of
a broad range of business processes at business locations across
all regions. These included:

© key financial controls;

© entertainment and trave! expenses;

© authority schedules;

© payroll;

© T general controls and IT corporate-level controls including
Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI-DSS)
compliance;

® pricing;

© customer contract management;

© stock and warehousing;

© procurement;

© operational effectiveness including compliance with Group
technical standards;

© business continuity management; and

© compliance with the Code of Conduct and anti-corruption policy.
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The 2019 internai audit plan was approved by the Audit Commitiee

in December 2018. Over 90% of the plan was executed but there was
some reprioritisation to incorporate reviews of businesses where risks
had increased. As a result, an additional audit was completed during
the year In Brazil. The 2020 internal audit plan was considered and
approved by the Audit Committee at its meeting in December 2018,

The common themes arising from the internal audit werk during 2019
were presented to the Audit Committee in December 2012 together
with recommendations te senlor management to improve the controls
across some processes,

None of the failures identified in the control environment by Internal
Audit or any of the recommendations relating to individual audits
represented a systemic underlying issue. The overall work of the
Internal Audit function fs supportive of the Audit Committee’s and the
Board's view that the financial and operational controls envirenment,
set out on page 86, is working adequately. The Beard's statement on
the effectiveness of risk management and internal contrei can be
found on page 80.

Governance and compliance

The Audit Committee has responsibility for reviewing the Company's
procedures for handling compliance with our Code of Conduct and
anti-corruption policy, and confidential reporting (whistleblower)
arrangements, known as Speak Up. The Code of Cenduct,

a fundamental commitment to comply with all applicable legal
requirements and with high ethical standards, can be found

on cur website. The Company uses an international confidential
Speak Up emall address, which Is monitored by Internal Audit.

The Audit Committee is infermed of feedback frem senior
management who are required to provide an annual Letter of
Assurance confirming compliance with key Group policles, including
the Code of Conduct, and the dissemination of these policies to their
respective country and functional teams (see also Management and
compliance on page 53). There are policies and procedures in place
for the reporting by colleagues of suspected wrongdoing, for these
suspicions te be formally investigated, and for the results of the
investigation to be reported to the whistleblower.

The Audit Committee also periodically reviews the communication
process in place throughout the Company regarding whistleblowing
and the use of Speak Up to ensure its effectiveness and to menitor
our colleagues’ understanding of the system.

Audit Committee effectiveness

In November 2019, the Audit Committee conducted a review of

its effectiveness using internal questionnaires, in parallel to the
Board evaluation detailed on page 79. The review concluded that
the Audit Committee continued to perferm effeclively and had
received sufficient, reliable and timely infermation from management
to enable it to fulfil its responsibilities. In 2020, the Audit Committee
areas of focus would include ensuring a smooth transition fer the
Director of Risk & Internal Audit in July, monitoring the performance
of the external auditors and seeking to enhance the depth of financial
expertise on the Audit Committee when adding new committee
members in future.

Read our Code of Conduct at
rentokil-initial.com/responsible-delivery/code-of-conduct

Read the Audit Committee’s terms of reference at
rentokil-initial.com/investors/governance
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Nomination Committee Report

Dear Shareholder

There have been some significant changes to the Board during 2019,
wilh the Nomination Committee playing an appropriately central role
inthe process. | joined the Board in March 2019 as a Non-Executive
Director and became Chairman and Chair of the Nomination
Committee following John McAdam’s retirement at our AGM in May
2019. Richard Burrows, who had kindly extended his time as Senior
lndependent Director in order to oversee the Chairman succession
process, stepped down at the same time, Sir Crispin Davis also
resigned as a Non-Executive Directer in June 2019,

Committee members

© Richard Solomons {Chair)
© Angela Seymour-Jackson
© Julie Southern

© John Pettigrew

© Linda Yueh

Highlights of 2019

© Smooth Board succession and induction
processes

© 9th in 2019 Hamptan-Alexander Review
for women an boards and in leadership

© Improvements In the gender balance and
readiness of our executive succession
and talent pipeline

© Chief Financial Qfficer succession planning

Areas of focus for 2020

© Senior management succession planning and
talent development

© Monitering and fostering a successful
perfermance culture

© Diversity and inclusicn, within our ESG strategy
© Smooth transition of Chief Financial Officer rale
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I May 2019, John Pettigrew, a Non-Executive Director of the
Company since January 2018, succeeded Richard Burrows as our
Senjor Independent Director. Angela Seymoui-Jackson succeeded
Richard as the Chair of the Remuneration Cemmittee. Angela has been
a Non-Executive Director since March 2012 and has been a member
of the Remuneration Committee since she joined the Board. Following
the departure of Sir Crispin Davis, Julie Southern joined the
Remuneration Commitiee.

In the second half of the year, the Nomination Commitiee has been
overseeing the recruitment of a new Non-Executive Director as set
out on page 89. The Nomination Committee’s key abjective is to
make sure that the members of the Board have the appropriate
batance of skills, knowledge and experience to govern the Company
in a professional, ethical and transparent manner, and 1o ensure that
the Board is rigorous and effective in discharging its responsibilities.

As part of the recruitment progess the Nomination Cammittee
considered the composition of the Board and the desired skills and
experiences of the new Non-Executive Director. The process has
taken slightly ionger than envisaged to complete but | am delighted
to say that Cathy Turner wiil be joining the Board as a Non-Executive
Director, as well as a member of the Remuneration and Nomination
Committees, from 1 April 2020. Cathy has a wealth of executive and
Board experience at leading organisations, particularly in the area
of remuneration and will, | am sure, be a great addition to the Board.

The Nomination Commitiee has also dedicated time during the year
to consider succession plans for the Executive Leadership Team and
other critical roles. In particular, we have spent time considering In
detaii the succession plans for our Chief Financial Officer, Jeremy
Townsend, who indicated his intention {o retire at some point during
2020. It is intended that Jeremy will step down as an Executive
Director in the second half of 2020 and Stuart Ingall-Tombs, cur
Chief Financial Officer for North America, has been identified as his
successor. Details of the steps that the Committee has taken to plan
for this change to the oxecutive mandyenen| leam are set out on
page 90.

The Board considered its own diversity as well as that of senior
management and the wider workforce during 2019. We reviewed the
Board Diversity Policy during the year and | am pleased to say that
currently 43% of our Board are female (this will become 50% following
Cathy Turner's appeintment in April) and we have one Director from
an ethnic minority background.

In 2020, we will continue to focus on diversity and the impact of the
policies and processes that have been put in place.

kS

Richard Solomons
Chair of the Nomination Committee

26 February 2020



SHdlBgIC Report

Role of the Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has delegated authority from the Board
as set out in its terms of reference. The annual review of the terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee tocok place in December 2019
and the terms of reference are available on our website.

Membership and attendance

All Non-Executive Directors are members of the Nomination
Committee in order to ensure that they are able to provide input and
help determine the future composition of the Board. Richard Sclomons
became the Chair of the Nomination Cormmittee following John
McAdam’s retirement in May 2019, The Nomination Committee met
fermally six times during the year, three of which were scheduled
meetings and three were additional to accommodate Director
succession planning. The members of the Nominaticn Committee

also met regularly outside of these formal meetings in relation to

the succession of the Company’s Chairman in the earlier part of 2018
and then as part of the recruitment process for a new Non-Executive
Director which was undertaken during 2019. Full details of the meeting
attendance of members of the Nomination Committee during 2019

can be found on page 72.

Where any member is unable to attend a meeting, the Nomination
Committee Chair will seek their views in advance and provide a
briefing on outcomes if appropriate. All Nomination Committee
members are provided with the papers and the minuies of the
meeting, whether or not they are able to attend. The Chief Executive
also normally attends meetings, especially to assist with discussions
of executive succession and talent programmes. The Company
Secretary is secretary of the Nomination Committee and the

Deputy Company Secretary also attends all meetings.

Appointment process to the Board

The Nomination Committee has respeonsibility for managing the
appointment process to ensure a formal, rigorous and transparent
procedure for appointing Directors. In order for the Board to discharge
its duties and responsibilities effectively, it must comprise a diverse
group of individuals whese skills and experience are gained in a
variety of backgrounds. Successful candidates must demonstrate
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independence of mind and integrity, and must enhance the overall
effectiveness of the Board. Appointments are considered abjectively,
regardless of gender, ethnicity or other personal characteristics, and
are made on merit, Pro-forma letters of appointment and Directors’
service contracts are available on our website. The process of
appeointing new Directors to the Board is supported through the

use of external recruitment consultants.

Chairman and Non-Executive
Director succession

Following a rigorous recruitment process undertaken in 2018 and early
2019, Richard Selomons was appointed as a Non-Executive Director
from 1 March 2019 and became Chairman following John McAdam's
retirement at the cenclusicn of the Company’s AGM on 8 May 2019,
Full details of the recruitment process were disclosed in the
Company’s 2018 Annual Report which is available on cur website.

The Nomination Committee considered the composition of the Board
during 2019 and a key area of focus was the recruitment of a new
Non-Executive Director to join the Company's Board of Directors.
The Nomination Committee engaged Heidrick & Struggles to assist
with the process. Heidrick & Struggles has no other material
connections with the Company or any Director and is a signatory to
the Enhanced Voluntary Code of Conduct for Executive Search Firms.

Heidrick & Struggles worked with the Nomination Committee

to devise a candidate profile, which contained a brief of the
requirements and the desired skillset for the role. A comprehensive
search was undertaken, yvielding a pool of candidates which was
reduced to a shortlist of several potential candidates. Regard was
given to the Company’s approach to culture and diversity {as set out
overleaf) at all times in the process.

The preferred candidates met with the Chairman and the other
Executive and Non-Executive Directors as well as the Group HR
Director as part of the recruitment process. Following full deliberation,
the Nomination Committee recommended the appointment of Cathy
Turner to the Board. The Board approved the appointment and Cathy
Turner will join the Board as a Non-Executive Director and a member
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committees from 1 April 2020.

Activities of the Nomination Committee in 2019

In 2019, the Nomination Committee considered the following key areas:

Matters considerad Discussion and outcome Find out more

See Board composition
on page 69

The Nomination Committee concluded the search for a new Chairman in 2019
and undertook the recruitment of a new Non-Executive Director, as well as
the selection of a new Senior Independent Director and Remuneration
Committee Chair.

Board succession

See page 90 for
more information

The Nomination Committee considered senior management succession
throughout the year, and received a briefing from the Group HR Director and
Group Talent Director in December 2019 on talent and succession planning.

Senior management
succession

Terms of reference The Nomination Committee reviewed its terms of reference in December 2019, Available to view on cur website

See effectiveness review
cn page 91

Nomination Committee The Nomination Committee undertook an internal review of its effectiveness.

effectiveness

See page 91and the Board
evaluation on page 79

A review of individual Directors’ performance was conducted, as part of the
Board evaluation process, and the Nomination Commitiee made appropriate
recommendations to the Board over the re-election of Directors at the AGM.

Director effectiveness

The Nomination Committee considered the Board Diversity Policy, including
its effectiveness.

See page 91 for
more information

Diversity

See Managing conflicts
of interest on page 91

The Nomination Committee reviewed potential conflicts of interest authorised
by the Board and the processes in place to ensure that they are properly
considered.

Conflicts of interest
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Nomination Committee Report
continued

Senior management succession planning
and talent development

Both the Nomination Committee and the Board recognise that
strategic, thoughtful and practical succession planning is critical

to the long-term success of the Company. The Nomination
Committee looks to bring new energy, challenge and oversight to
the Board and to reflect the business strategy and operational goals
in appointments. The Board is ultimately responsible for succession
planning for Executive and Non-Executive Directors and senior
management, with the Nomination Committee having oversight

and making recommendations as required. During 2018 the
Nomination Commiitee received a presentation on the succession
plans for roles within the Executive Leadership Team (ELT} and
Senior Leadership Forum (SLF; cur top 26 senior management team,).

In addition, the Group HR Director and the Group Talent Director
presented an update on the Company’s talent strategy to the
Nomination Committee in December 2018. This reviewed the current
succession pipeling for key senior management roles, most notably
the members of the ELT and other critical roles, as well as wider

talent development pricrities, Details of the members of the ELT

can be found on page 66. The Nomination Committee considered

the progress made against the priorities for 2019, including how

we benchmark and develop talent, An overview was provided of

the global and regional talent pools, which have been established

to help identify successors for roles in our ELT and SLF, to improve

the succession pipeline for senjor operational management, and

1o identify and accelerate the develepment of fast-track talent.
Progress was encouragingly strong in 2019 with 93% of participants

in our global talent pools having been premoted to more senior roles
since 2017, Gender diversity showed progress too with 36% of regional
successors now female, a sign of the depth of diverse talent across the
organisation. The Nomination Committee considered diversity in the
talent peols and were updated on the launch of the new Rentokil Initial
Female Leadership Mentoring Programme to help drive greater
gender diversity in our succession plans.,

Board diversity objectives

Chief Financial Officer succession

Making further progress on executive succession had already been
identified as an area of focus in 2012 for the Nomination Commitiee
but during the year Jeremy Townsend, our Chief Financial Officer,
indicated his intention to retire at some stage during 2020. As a resulf
a more significant proportion of the Committee’s time in 2019 was
dedicated to this succession process.

The Nemination Committee initially engaged Russell Reynolds
Associates 1o undertake a benchmarking exercise in order to evaluate
potential external candidates. The firm was then subsequently used to
assist with the interview and referencing process including both internal
and external candidates. Russell Reynolds has no other material
connections with the Company or any Director and is a sfgnatory to
the Enhanced Voluntary Code of Conduct for Executive Search Firms.

Towards the end of the year, the Nomination Committee considered
a shortlist of both internal and external candidates. The Chairman,
Chief Executive, Chair of the Audit Committee and Group HR Director
met with the potential candidates as appropriate. By the end of the
year, the Committee had a strong succession plan in place with a
preferred candidate identified.

Jeremy Townsend has now formally notified the Board of his intention
to retire in the second half of 2020. On the recemmendation of the
Nomination Committee, the Board has selected Stuart Ingall-Tombs,
our Chief Financial Officer for North America, to succeed him as Chief
Financial Officer for the Group. Stuart has woerked for the Company
since May 2007, covering a number of senior roles in the Group
including Regional Finance Director, Europe from 2014 to 2018 and
Group Financial Controiler frem 2011 to 2014, before taking up his
current role approximatety 18 months ago. There will be an extended
handover peried with the exact appointment date to be announced
once finalised.

Objectives

Progress

Atarget of at least 33% female Directors by 2020, and to maintain
this thereafter

Commitment to a merit-based approach to Board compaosition within
a diverse and inclusive culture.

43% of our Directors are currently fermale, wheh will rise to 50%
in April 2020.

A rigorous process was undertaken for the recruitment
of Cathy Turner. See full details on page 89.

To work only with executive search firms who have signed up to
the Enhanced Voluntary Code of Conduct for Executive Search
Firms on gender diversity and best practice {Enhanced Code).

To support the executive management of the Company in developing
and implamenting appropriate policies, programmes and initiatives
designed to promote diversity at all levels of the organisation.

To ensure that there is a pipeline of female executives within the
organisation who are qualified and capable of taking up senior
leadership positions.

Aim to ensure that there is appropriate and meaningful disclosure

in the Company’s Annual Report of Board composition, appointment
processes, and the policies and initiatives the Company has in place
and the steps it is taking to promote diversity, both at Board teve!
and across the Company.

All executive search firms retalned by the Company during 2019 for
Board and ELT appointments have sighed up to the Enhanced Code
{details of the agencies can be found on pages 89 and 90).

in 2013, our ELT and its direct reperts (excluding colleagues in
administrative roles) were 26% female. Regional successors are 36%
female. Approximately 25% of our colleagues are female. The Board
receives two detalled briefings on culture and our Employer of Choice
agenda each year, which address diversity.

Women now comprise 26% of successors for ELT and SLF roles, up
from 24% in 2018 and 22% in 2017. Our progress on improving female
representation in the most senior leadership roles in the Company saw
us ranked in the top 10 of all FTSE 100 companies in the most recent
Hampton-Alexander review, where we were placed 9th in 2019,

up from 32nd in 2018.

The Nomination Committee reviews this each year,

9 Rentokil Initial plc
Annual Report 2019



DldIEy L KEROIL

Fostering a diverse and inclusive culture

A key strategic eim of the Company is to be recognised as a world-
class Employer of Choice that is able to attract, recruit and retain the
best people from the widest possible pocl of talent. We are, therefore,
committed to creating a diverse and inclusive working environment for
all employees by, at all times, striving to be an organisation that values
everyone's talents and abilittes and where diversity is encouraged.
Details on how we are achieving this can be found in the Responsible
Business section on page 46 and our Group Diversity & Inclusion
Policy is available on our website.

The Board of Directors has adopted a Board diversity pelicy which
is reviewed and reported against annually. As part of its monitoring
of gender, the Board reviews our Gender Pay Report each year

(see page 73) and the reports are available to view on our website.

Our Board diversity policy reaffirms our commitment to meeting and
maintaining the recommendations made in the Hampton-Alexander
Review on improving gender balance in FTSE leadership, which set

a target of 33% female Board representation by 2020. We achieved

this target in 2017 and have been able to maintain it since then.

The objectives contained in our Board diversity pelicy and how

we are meeting these are set out on page 90.

In 2017, we achieved the aim setin the Parker Review for each
FTSE 100 Board to have at jeast one Director from an ethnic
minority background by 2021, and have maintained it since then.

As a global crganisation, we alsc believe that it is important te have

a senicr management team that is representative of the markets

in which we operate and the customers we serve. To that end, we
are pleased to report that 11% (2018: 11%) of our senior management
roles are currently filled with individuals who are defined as ethnic
mincrities. We can also report that 24% of the participants in our
current global talent pools are defined as being of an ethnicity that is
not White or European, building us a growing pipeline of future leaders
from ethnically diverse backgrounds. We aim to remove bias from our
recruitment processes and to ensure that we are attracting the best
people from the widest possible peool of talent.

The 2019 Your Voice Counts employee survey showed good progress
on fostering a diverse and inclusive culture, where 96% of colleagues
reported that they do not feel that we preclude men and women

frem having equal oppertunities to succeed in this Company. This was
a1 perceniage pointincrease since the last survey was undertaken

in 2017 and is 11 percentage points higher than the Global Norm.

We have also had no material gender pay gap for the last three years
in cur UK businesses. Colleagues aged 40 or under now represant
over half {55%j) of our global workferce and in 2019 for the first time
millennials (colleagues born between 1381 and 1996) became our
largest age group. A summary of our culture can be found on page 20,
with further details on our colleagues provided in the Responsible
Business section on page 46,

Managing conflicts of interest

The Directors have a statutory duty to avold a situation where they
have, or could have, a direct or indirect interest that conflicts or might
possibly conflict with the interests of the Company. The Beard is

Board Senior management’
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permitted, under powers from shareholders contained in the Articles
of Association, to authorise actual or potential conflicts of interest.

The Company has a procedure in place to deal with the situation
where a Director has a conflict of interest and as part of the process
the Board considers each potential conflict situation on its merits.
Since the procedure was introduced, a number of potential situational
conflicts have been authorised after review by the Chairman, with
support from the Company Secretary. The Board maintains a register
of authorisations granted and the scope of any approvals given, which
is circulated to Board members prior to each meeting.

Conflicts are divided into ‘transactional’ conflicts arising from

a specific matter and 'situational’ conflicts arising from appeintments
on other boards or through secme other ongoing relationship. All of
the approvals given have been situational, none of which is subject

to any specific limitation or condition. These potential conflicts are not
material either to the Cempany or, the Directors believe, to the other
companies that are the subject of the potential conflict. The Company
has not encountered any ‘transactional’ conflicts involving Directors
that would require a Director to be excluded from any part of the
Board's activities.

The impact of each Non-Executive Director’s other commitments on
their ability to perform their rele on the Board has also been carefully
considered. While not strictly a conflict of interest, the implications for
effective conduct of Board responsibllities of so-called ‘overboarding’
are clear, and an increasing concern for some investors. Our
experience shows that ali the Company’s Non-Executive Directors
have been able not only to perform their roles on the Board, but

alsc to go beyond their formal commitments, inciuding for example
attendance in many cases at meetings of other Committees in addition
to those of which they are members. Further details can be found

in the Corporate Governance Report on page 69,

Under its terms of reference, the Nomination Committee has
responsibility to review the current schedule of authorisations with

a view to considering whether they remain appropriate or whether
they should be reveked or otherwise limited. This review is undertaken
annually and also considers the process for considering and authorising
potential conflicts of interests. In 2019, the process for the disclosure
of any perceived conflicts upon the appoeintment of a new Directer
was reviewed and it was concluded that no updates were necessary.
All authorisations given were considered appropriate and none were
revoked or otherwise limited.

Nomination Committee effectiveness

The Nomination Committee has conducted an independence
evgluation of each Non-Executive Director seeking election or
re-election and recommended to the Board that they be put forward
for election or re-election on the basis that their performance, both
individually and in aggregate, continues to be effective and that each
demonstrates commitment to the role. In addition, the Nomination
Committee conducted a review of how it operates using internal
questionnaires, in parailel to the Board evaluation detailed on page 79.
The review concluded that the Nomination Committee had operated
effectively in 2019,

Total workforce

1. We define senior management as the members of our Executive Leadership Team

and all of their direct reports, excluding celleagues in administrative roles.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the Board { am pleased to present the Directors”
Remuneration Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

Introduction

This is my first report to shareholders following my appointment

as Remuneration Committee Chair at our Annual General Meeting

in May 2019. lwould like 6 thank the previous incumbent Richard
Burrows and the other Committee members for their supportin the
transition. | am a longstanding Non-Executive Director and member
of the Remuneration Committee at Rentokil Initial and during this time
| have been encouraged by the tremendous progress the business

has made and the value that has been created for all our shareholders.

The Remuneration Committee has worked hard throughout this
period to ensure that our Remuneration Policy halances incentivising
and motivating our high-perferming Directors through a reward
programme that is strongly aligned to our business strategy with
recognising and aligning with the interests of our shareholders,
colleagues and the wider community.

Committee members

© Angela Seymour-Jackson
(Chair)

© Linda Yueh

© Julie Sauthern

Highlights of 2019

® Succession for the Remuneration Commities
Chair who stepped down at the May 2019 AGM
© Reviewing the corporate governance and
tiest practice updates and their implications
© Reviewing the Executive Director’s salaries
and engaging with sharehoiders regarding
the proposals

Areas of focus for 2020

® Review of Directors® Remuneration Policy

© incorporating best practice guidelines
and corporate governance updates into
our remuneration packages and policy
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Key decisions in 2019

Context of business performance

2019 has been another successful year for the business resuiting in
a strong financial performance with significant progress being made
on delivery of revenue (up 8.6% on 2018), profit (up 10.5% on 2018)
and cash flow {up £58.7m on 2018) and a continued increase in
shareholder value, with total shareholder return {TSR) growth

of 36% over the last 12 months.

People remain at the forefront of our strategy and | am delighted

that we have continued to make excellent progress on our Employer
of Choice initlatives, which underpin our robust financial results,

In addition our employee survey, Your Voice Counts, shows continued
progress, with the Company again reaching world-class engagement
and enablement levels which are so vital in delivering the service

our customers have come to expect.

Annual bonus cutcome

The annual bonus for our Executive Directors is based on both
Cempany and personal performance, and continues to have
challenging targets, with no bonus payable unless minimum
performance gateways are surpassed. This scheme operates
inthe same way for all managers across our business of around
43,000 colleagues; the only difference being that the targets are
failored to the area of the business that they work in, rather than
being based on Group achievement, to ensure colleagues are able
to easily understand the targets and influence their outcome.

For 2019, the twoe performance gateways were based on profit and
cash generation, both of which were achieved. The level of bonus
payable was then determined by two key Company performance
metrics: Ongoing Operating Profit and Ongoing Revenue
performance. The Committee reviewed the performance against
these targets, giving careful consideration to whether it was
reflective of the overall Company performance, and concluded

that the Company oitrome was 74.5% of the maximum oppul wnily,
which equates to 111.75% of salary. The individual performance of the
Executives was then taken into consideration. The Chief Executive
Officer (CEQ}, Andy Ransom, was awarded a performance rating of 5,
recognising his ocutstanding performance, taking his overall bonus to
139.7% of salary. The Chief Financial Officer (CFQ), Jeremy Townsend,
was awarded a performance rating of 4, taking his overall bonus to
122.9% of salary. See pages 101 and 102 for a breakdown of the targets
and calculation as wel! as detalis of the personal perfermance review.

Performance Share Award (PSP)

During 2019, the PSP award granted in 2016 came to the end of its
three-year performance period. The vesting level of the award was
dependent an two performance conditions EPS (measured aver three
financial years to 31 December 2018) accounting for one-third and
relative TSR {measured over a three-year period ended 10 Mareh
2012}, which accounted for the remaining two-thirds. As with the
bonus outcome, the Committee reviewed the vesting leve| based cn
the achievement against targets of 91.3% to ensure that the outcome
was a true reflection of the wider business performance.

This scheme operates identically for our management team across the
Group and we were particularly pleased that the high vesting level was
enjoyed by a number of our longer-serving operational and functional

managers that had been included in the grant for the first time in 2016.

The 2017 PSP is due to vest on 31 March 2020 and performance will

be measured one-third on EPS {measured over three financial years

to 31 December 2019} and two-thirds retative TSR (measured over
athree-year period ending 30 March 2020). Vesting is currently
estimated at 90.8%, using the actual EPS outcome and an estimated
TSR result based on the performance up to the end of December 2019.
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Use of discretion

The Committee has exercised its discretion on executive
remuneration outcomes, in order to ensure the outturn is alighed
with performance, on a consistent basis over the last few years.

The table below outlines the discreticn applied by the Committee

in 2019 and the three years prior to this. The use of discretion has
focused on increasing EPS targets to take into account acquisitions
and disposals. These adjustments increased the targets, making the
EFStarget more challenging to achieve.

Year Applied to Discretion applied

2016 PSP awardedin 2014 EPS targets were increased from 14% at
threshold and 20% at maximum to 17%
at threshold and 23.1% at maximum,

due to material M&A activity.

2017 PSP awarded in 2015 EPS targets were increased from 7% at
threshold and 13% at maximum to 11,9%
at threshold and 18.2% at maximum,

mainly due to Steritech acquisition.

2018 PSP awarded in 2016  EPS targets were increased from 9% at
threshold and 15% at maximum to 8.6%
at threshold and 16.1% at maximum,

due to material M&A activity.

2019 PSP awarded in 2017  EPS targets were increased from 6% at
thresheld and 11% at maximum to 6.9%
at threshold and 14.1% at maximum,

due to material M&A activity.

Strategic alignment of pay

Ensuring that our remuneration supports the delivery of the strategy
is important to the Committee and this is achieved through aligning
the measures used in our incentive schemes with our key strategic
priorities. The Committee alsc ensures that the right behaviours and
actions are driven from the top of the erganisation down by ensuring
that focus is balanced across beth financial and non-financial
outcomes, for example the inclusion of employee, customer, and
health, safety and environment metrics in both the personal element
of the annual bonus and the PSP. The Committee also takes into
consideration the wider business performance when reviewing
formulaic outcomes of metrics across all incentives.

Corporate governance updates

The 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code came into effect

for our Company from 1 January 2019 and the Committee has
reviewed the changes, particularly with regard to pension policy
and post-employment shareholding requirements, as well as best
practice developments during 2015.

Pension

The Committee has carefully considered the guidance for Executive
Directors’ pensions to be brought in line with the wider workforce and
in light of this the CEC's pension has been frozen from 1 January 2020,
reducing it from 25% to 21.9% of salary. As part of our Policy review in
2021, we intend to put a plan in place to align our incumbent Executive
Directors’ pensions with that of the wider UK workforce by the end of
2022, in line with best practice. Shculd any recruitment be undertaken
at this levei pricr to the new Policy being implemented, the pension
offered will be reduced from the policy level of 15% to the wider UK
workforce level of 3%.

“Orporate wovernance Firdincldl statenens WALHET [THGHNgucH

Post-employment shareholding requirements

The Committee will formally review the requirerneant to extend our
shareholding guidelines to include post-employment as part of our
Policy review in 2021. However, the Committee is pleased that the use
of deferral into shares as part of our annual bonus and the two-year
helding period on our Performance Share Plan already achieves

a significant post-employment shareholding for our current

Executive Directors.

Wider workforce engagement

Foliowing changes te the UK Corporate Goverrance Code that seck
to broaden the role of the Committee to include cversight of wider
employee remuneration and related policies and to show how the
Committee has engaged with the wider workforce, we have built on
practices that were already in place and embedded in the way we
work. As detailed on pages 18 to 21, cur colleagues have been at the
forafront of the significant progress we have made over the last few
years and our Employer of Choice agenda (including safety, health and
environment) remains our number one prierity. More information about
the Board's engagement with stakeholders, inciuding our approach

to workforce engagement, can be found on pages 76 and 77.

The Committee takes into account the wider workforce when making
remuneration decisions for the Executive Directors and the Executive
Leadership Team and has done so historically. The Commitiee

is proud that both the PSP and annual benus scheme operate
consistently for both Cirectors and the wider management teams,
across all countries within the Group, and penetrates deep into the
crganisation creating alignment and focus as well as ensuring that
the success of the Company is shared by our celleagues.

Looking ahead

Salary review

As you are aware Rentokil Initial has steadily been moving up the
FTSE 160 index, having rejoined it in 2017, and now sits around the
FTSE 50 mark. The Remuneration Committee has historically shown
restraint around cur pay levels and adjusted our Executive Director
pay downwards when our business was not performing and leading
up to our falling out of the FTSE 100 back in 2609, This is shown

by our historical CEQ salaries: Sir Clive Thompson (1883--2003) —
£1,100,000, Doug Flynn (2005-2008) — £200,000 and Alan Brown
(2008-2013) — £775,000, Andy Ransom’s salary on appointment

in 2013 was £700,000. In addition, we have also either frozen pay
or increased our Executive Directors’ salaries in line with the wider
workforce for over 10 years, without recognising the growth in the
Company (and, therefore, the relevant benchmarks) over that time.
Andy’s current salary is £765,276 after six years in role and is
below each of the previous incumbents and the salaries of CEOs

in companies of a similar size. Our CFO s in a similar position with
Jeremy Townsend’s current salary being £491,964.

Fellowling shareholder engagement and feedback between November
2019 and February 2020, from which emerged a streng show of
support for the proposed salary changes, the Committee decided

to increase Andy Ransom’s salary by 14.3% to £875,000 and Jeremy
Townsend's salary by 11.8% to £550,000 with effect from 1 January
2020, in line with wider Company practice. A phased approach to
these increases was considered, but was not taken forward as we
wanted to be clear and transparent about the total increase and
could see no reasonable rationale for phasing this change over a
longer period given the significant gap to current market salary levels.
We appreciate that the increases are substantial, but the intention

is for this to be & one-off adjustment befere returning to our normal
approach of restraint.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
continued

The rationale for the increases are as follows:

© The Company has grown in size considerably since our CEO and
CFO were appointed, moving from around FTSE 150 to FTSE 50
and growing market capitalisation from £2.0bn to around £9.0bn.

© Our current Incumbents’ salaries are low compared to ather
CEOs and CFOs in similar companies, and this does not fit with
the principles we apply to our wider workforce of ensuring that
our pay Is falr and competitive.

© Our CEQ and CFO are high performing with an exceilent track
record in delivering both Company performance and growth as
evidenced through delivering 2 TSR of 302.7%, growth in profit
before tax of 185.4% and revenue growth of 15.1% since 2013.
This makes them highly attractive beyond the FTSE and the UK.

© However, while we recognise that the performance of our CEQ
and CFO is demonstrably higher than that of a ‘median’ executive,
we have decided to align their pay around the median leve!
demonstrating continued pay restraint.

While we recognise that the external envirenment is not conducive

to material pay increases, the Committee has thought long and hard
about this change, ultimately deciding that this mid-market level
adjustment was both a fair reflection of the contribution the individuals
bring 1o the business and fully aligned with shareholders’ interests.

Policy review

2020 will be the final year under the current Directors’ Remuneration
Palicy, as at the 2021 AGM we will be seeking your support and
approval for a new Policy. We will ook io engage with leading
shareholders and their representative bodies as part of this review.

Director changes

Jeremy Townsend, Chief Financiai Officer, recently announced his
intention to retire in the second half of 2020. To ensure a smooth
transition, after a rigorous internal and external review, it was decided
that Stuart Ingall-Tombs would succeed Jeremy as Chief Financial
Officer. Stuart is currently our Chief Financial Officer for North America
and prior to that was Chlef Financial Officer Europe and Group
Financial Centrelier,

This report is structured as follows:

95 Remuneration at a glance
Key headline details on performance and remuneration in 2019

96 Directors’ Annual Remuneration Report — Introduction
Details of the Remuneration Committee and its activities
during 2019

98 Directors’ Annual Remuneration Report — 2018
Details of Directors’ remuneration received during 2018

106 Directors’ Annual Remuneration Report ~ Leoking forward 2020
Details of how the Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be
implemented n 2020

109 Summary of Directors’ Remuneration Policy
Summary of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy approved at the
Company's AGM on 9 May 2018
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As part of the succession process, the Committee has considered the
remuneration package for Stuart and following his appointment, which
is expected o take place in the second half of 2020, his siarting base
salary will be £500,000. This is below the median pay for the role, and
we intend to move him to a median salary of £550,000 once he has
been in role for 12 months, assuming both his and the Company’s
performance is satisfactory. He would then be considered for normal
salary reviews from January 2023, His pension contribution wiil be 3%
in line with the wider UK workforce. All other package elements will be
in line with our Policy and further details of the terms are set out on
page 108.

Jeremy’s leaving terms will be in line with our Policy. It is expected that
fe will be treated as a good leaver and further details of the terms are
set out on page 108.

In light of this decision, carefu] consideration was given to whether
the salary increase applied to Jeremy should be reversed, However,
given the purpose of the review was to ensure that we are rewarding
our executives fairly and that the transition is expected to last for a
significant part of the year, it was felt appropriate that he continue

to receive the increase.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to thank sharehoiders who
provided feedback on our salary proposals and for their overwhelming
support and positive comments in respect of both the Executive
Directors and the Company overall,

I hope you will find the infarmation in this report clearly explains the
remuneration approach taken by the Company and enabies you to
understand how it inks to our strategic business priorities and the
delivery of our business plan. As always, | welcome any comments you
may have and look forward to seeing shareholders at our AGM in May.

AC%HNV T

Angela Seymour-Jackson
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

26 February 2020
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. Components
Remuneratlon at a g Iance Fixed pay — Base salary, benefits, pension
Bonus
Performance Share Plan (PSP)
Unearned

Breakdown of Executive Directors’ total remuneration

The table shows a comparison of the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer’s total remuneration for 2019 and 2018 and shows the potential
maximum that was unearned.

£'000
Fixed pay Variable pay
Potential
Basesalary  Benefits  Pension Eonus PSP Total  maximum Unearned
Andy Ransom, Chief Executive
2019 765.3 19.8 191.3 1,069.0 2,512.3 4,5577 51208
2018 750.3 78.6 187.6 6283 3,317.3 49621 6,002.4
+—% +2.0 —74.8 +2.0 +70.1 -24.3 -81 —14.7
Jeremy Townsend, Chief Financial Officer
2019 492.0 16.6 64.8 604.8 16151 27933 31727
2018 482.3 16.6 636 3672 21326 3,0623 37677
+—% +2.0 — +1.5 +64.7 —24.3 -8.8 —15.8
Bonus
For any bonus to be payable, two gateway
measures have to be met: profit, a minimum
of£349.2m, and free cash flow, a minimum
of £170.0m. Both were achieved.
Bonus targets and outcomes
Performance Share Plan (PSP)

The bar chart compares the value of the PSP The pie chart shows the weightings and estimated
received for 2019 and 2018. outcome of the perfermance cenditions of the

PSP value (£'000) 2017 PSP award due o vest on 31 March 2020,
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Directors’ Annual Remuneration Report — Introduction

Introduction

The Annual Remuneration Report has been split into three sections
for ease of reference. This introductory section provides an averview
of the Remuneration Committee and their activities during the year.
The second section, frem page 98, provides an expianation of how
the current Directors’ Remuneration Policy was implemented ir the
year ended 31 December 2019 and shows the alignment between
the Company's strategy, remuneration framework and performance,
as well as the payments made to Directors during this period.

The fina! section, from page 106, provides an overview of how the
cutrent Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be applied in 2020.

Remuneration Committee responsibilities

The Remuneration Committee’s main responsibilities are developing
and setting the Directors’ Remuneration Policy and overseeing its
appiication. It determines and agrees the executive remuneration
policy with the Board and approves individual rermuneration
arrangements for the Chahman, Executive Directors and members
of the Executive Leadership Team. [t reviews executive performance
and strives 1o ensure that remuneration structures align the interests
of management with those of shareholders and operate in the best
long-term interests of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee oversees contractual terms on
termination affecting Executive Directors and members of the
Executive Leadership Team, and seeks to ensure that any payments
made are both fair to the individua! and to the Company, that failure

is not rewarded and that the duty to mitigate loss is fully recognised.
The Remuneration Committee also oversees the Company's incentive
schemes including the operatian and effectiveness of performance
measures and targets in both the annual bonus plan and the PSP,

It also lends oversight to major changes in employee remuneration
across the Group.

Membership and attendance

Following Richard Burrows' retirement at the AGM in May 2019,
Angela Seymour-Jackson was appointed Chair of the Remuneration
Committee, having been a longstanding member of the Remuneration
Committee. Following Richard Burrows' retirement, there was a short
period where the Remuneration Committee only had two members;
however, during this time no meetings of the Remuneration Committee
were scheduled or held. Julie Southern jolned the Remuneration
Committee in Novernber 2019 resuliing in the Commitiee once again
being comprised of three independent Non-Executive Directors,

The Remuneration Committee held three scheduled meetings during
2019 and details of the members of the Remuneration Committee and
their attendance during the year can be found on page 72. Vanessa
Evans, Group HR Director; Daragh Fagan, Group General Counszel

& Company Secretary (secretary to the Committee to May 2019);
Catherine Stead, Deputy Company Secretary [secretary to the
Committee from May 2019); and Anna Fletcher, Group Head of
Reward, also attend Remuneration Committee meetings.

The Group HR Director has direct access to the Chair of the
Remuneration Committee and, together with the Group Head of
Reward, advises the Remuneration Committee on remuneration
maiters relating 1o Executive Directors and members of the Exacntive
Leadership Team. The Company Chalrman also attends meetings and
makes recommendations in relation to the remuneration and incentive
arrangements for the Chief Executive. The Chief Executive attends
meetings and makes recommendations in respect of remuneration
arrangements for his direct reports. No Executive Director or member
of the Executive Leadership Team is present when their own
remunearation is under consideration.

The Remuneration Committee members have a broad and diverse

set of skills and knowledge that, when combined, bring the necessary
ievel of experience and know-how 1o ensure that remuneration
matters are dealt with in a balanced, independent and informed
manner. No member of the Remuneration Committee has any personal
financial interest in the matters to be decided by the Remuneration
Committee, other than as a shareholder. No member of the
Remuneration Committee has any conflict of interest in carrying out

96 Rentokil Inftial plc
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their role on the Remuneration Committee arising from other
directorships nor does any member participate in any of the
Company’s incentive or pension arrangements or have any
involvement in the day-to-day running of the Company.

Remuneration Committee effectiveness

The Remuneration Committee conducted an internal review of its
performance during the year using tailored questionnaires. The review
concluded that the Remuneration Committee continued to operate
effectively and that individual Directors serving on the Remunsaration
Committee continued to have access to appropriate advice and
information. Key areas of focus for the Commitiee in 2020 will be
introduction of new Executive Director remuneration proposals, and
the preparation and consultation on a new Directors’ Remuneration
Policy in advance of its presentation to shareholders at thve 2021 AGM.

External advisors

Material advice and/or services were praovided to the Remuneration
Committee during the year by FIT Remuneration Consutants LLP (FIT)
who are retained te provide independent advice on executive
remuneration matters and on the Company’s long-term incentive
arrangements. FIT is a member of the Remuneration Constiltants Group
and adheres to its code in relation to executive remuneration consulting
inthe UK. Fees charged during the year for advice to the Remuneration
Committee by FIT were £21,840. FIT also acts as remuneration adviser
to the remuneration committee of Trustpilot A/S which Angela
Seymour-Jackson chairs. However, the Remuneration Committee is
satisfied that this has not impaired their independence in any way. FIT
has no other material conmections with the Company or any Director.

AGM voting outcomes

At the Company’s last AGM on 8 May 2019, the cutcome of the
advisory vote in respect of the Directors’ Remiuneration Report was
as follows. There was no vote on the Directora’ Remuneration Nolicy
at the £019 AGM as it had been approved in 2018,

2019 AGM — Reruneration Report voting results

Votes for 1.435,131,079
Percentage for 94.92%
Votes against 76,826,941

5.08%

Percentage against

Total votes cast 1,5M,958,020

Votes withheld (abstentions) 2,041,494

2018 AGM — Remuneratlon Pollcy voting results

Votes for 1,088,357,058
Percentage for 75.01%
Votes against 362,586,957
Percentage against 24.99%
Total votes cast 1450,984,015
Yotes withheld (abstentions) 52,008,445

Avote for’ includes those votes giving the Chair discretion. A vote
‘withheld’ is not classed as a vate in law and is not counted in the
calculation of proportion of votes cast for or against a resolution.

The Remuneration Committee is pleased with the level of shareholder
support received at the 2019 AGM. The Company remalns committed
to ongoing sharehoider dialogue and takes an active Interest in voting
outcomes, In the event of a substantial vote against a resolution in
relation to Directors’ remuneration, the Company would seek to
understand the reasons for any such vote and weuld set out in the
following Annual Report any actions in response 1o it.
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Activities of the Remuneration Committee
In 2019, the Remuneration Committee considered the following key areas:

wlier nmonrmduon

Matters considered

Discussion and cutcome

Find out more

Executive remuneration

Executive Director
remuneration

The Remuneration Cemmittee considered and approved base salaries for 2019,
bonus outcomes for 2018, bonus structure for 2019 and the 2019 PSP awards and
targets for the Executive Directors.

See pages 98 to 106
for more information

Executive Leadership Team
(ELT) remuneration

The Remuneration Committee considered and approved base salaries for 2019,
bonus outcomes for 2018, bonus structure for 2019, and the 2019 PSP awards
and targets for the members of the ELT. A review of thelr remuneration package
was undertaken.

2016 Performance Share
Plan {PSP) vest

The Remuneration Committee approved the vesting of the 2016 PSP awards
as a result of the performance measures being met at 91.3% of maximum.

2019 PSP award

The Remuneration Committee noted a summary of the grants made under the PSP.

See page 99 for
more information

2020 PSP award

The Remuneration Committee noted the proposed structure, targets and award
levels for the 2020 PSP awards.

See page 107 for
mere information

PSP measures

The Remuneration Committee monitored the performance status of the
outstanding awards under the PSP.

2020 annual bonus

The Remuneration Committee reviewed the overall structure of the 2020 annuat
benus plan for Executive Directors and ELT members.

See pages 106 and 107
for more information

Executive Leadership Team
appointments

During 2019 the Remuneration Committee considered the remuneration terms
for the new appointments to the ELT.

See our ELT members
on pages 66 and &7

Executive Director
pension provision

The Remuneration Committee considered the pension provision for incumbent
Directors and it was agreed that contributions would be brought in line with the
wider workfarce as part of the 2021 policy review. As an interim step, it was agreed
that the CEO's pension would be capped and net increase in Iine with his salary
increase, thereby reducing it from 25% to 21.9% of his salary from 1 January 2020,

Pension on page 106

Executive Director
salary review

The Remuneration Committee considered proposals for a salary increase for the
Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer in 2020 and engaged with key investors
and proxy agencies on the proposals.

Salary from 1 January
2020 on page 106

Governance and oversight

Share dilution limits

The Remuneration Committee noted the impact of the Company’s executive share
plans on share ditution timits.

Terms of reference

The Remuneraticn Committee undertock its annual review of its terms of reference.

These are available
on our website

Performance review

The Remuneration Committee undertook its annual review of the effectiveness
of the Committee.

See Commitiee
effectiveness
on page 96

Corporate governance and
proxy voting guidelines

The Remuneration Committee received two updates during 2019 on changes
in corporate governance and proxy voting guidelines.

Gender Pay Report

The Remuneration Commitiee considered and approved the 2018 Gender Pay
Report in February 2019 and noted the provisional figures for the 2019 Gender
Pay Report in December 2019.

Read about diversity
on page 46 and
our repoerts are
on our website

Directors’ Remuneration
Report

The Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be included in our 2018 Annual Report.

Available on
our website

CEO pay ratio

The Remuneration Commnittee considered the new disclosure reguirements and
pravisionai data for the CEO pay ratio.

CEO pay ratio
on page 104

Annual planner

The Remuneration Committee considered the annual planner for 2020 and
approved an increase in the number of meetings to four,

The Chair of the Remuneration Committee presents a summary of material matters discussed at each meeting to the following Board meeting
and minutes of the Remuneration Committee meetings are circulated to all Directors. The Remuneration Committee reports to shareholders

annually Tn this report and the Chair of the Remuneration Committee attends the AGM to address any guestions arising.
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Directors’ remuneration in the year to 31 December 2019

Single total figure for the remuneration of Executive Directors
The table belew has been audited.

Fixed pay Varlable pay

Value attributed to

Base salary Berefits’ Pension? Bonus?® PSP*S Tatal share brice growth®’

Year £000 £'000 £°000 £:000 £'000 £'000 £000

Andy Ransom, 2019 765.3 19.8 191.3 1,069.0 2,512.3 4,557.7 1125.9

Chiaf Executive

2018 750.3 78.6 187.6 628.3 3,317.3 4,862.1 1,931.6

Jeremy Townsend, 2019 492.0 16.6 64.8 604.8 1,615.1 2,793.3 723.8
Chief Financial Officer

2018 482.3 16.6 63.6 367.2 21326 3,062.3 1.241.8

‘Benefits’ in the above table. There were no other taxable benefits paid to Executive Directors in 2018 or 2019.

™

. Executive Directors are provided with life assurance, permanent health insurance and a car allowance. The value of the taxable benefit is Included under

Andy Ransom recelves a pension centribution, in the form of a cash supplement, worth 25% of base salary. Jeremy Townsend’s pension contribution is 15%

of base salary, which delivered as a cash supplement reduces to 13.2% of base to actount for additional cost of employer NI contributions, in ine with the

practice for the wider workforce in the UK.

B

40% of the individual's bonus entitiement was awarded as deferred shares, which vest after a period of three years.
The 2012 single total figure includes the 2017 PSP which is due to vest In March 2020. The value of the 2017 PSP at vest has been estimated based on the

average of the Company’s share price over the last financial quarter of 2012, giving a price of 446.5p, and the anticipated performance outcomes giving
a vesting level of 90 8% detailed below. The actual value of the 2017 PSP will be restated next year once the final performance outcome and the share price

at date of vesting are known.

B

price at the date of vesting on 12 May 2019 of 381.6p.

[u]

The 2018 PSP estimates included in the 2018 singie figure have been restated. The award vested at 91,3% and has been restated to reflect the actuai share

. The 2019 PSP award value attributed to share price growth is 200.1p per share (estimated share price at vest of 446.5p less share price at grant of 246.4p),

which is 58.2% of the PSP value. The 2018 PSP award value attributed to share price growth is 222.2p per share (share price at vest of 381.6p less share price

at grant of 159.4p), which is 44.8% of the PSP value.

~

Performance Share Plan (PSP) and Deferred Bonus Plan (DBP) awards

The PSP is our long-term incentive plan which the Executive Directors, Executive Leadership Team and over 750 managers and technical experts

participate in. This participation supparts delivery of our strategic priorities. The DBP is the long-term incentive plan under which 40% of any

bonus payable to the Executive Directors in deferred in shares.

2017 PSP award

The Remuneration Committee has not exercised discretion as a result of this share price appreciation for either the 2016 or the 2017 PSP,

in 2017, the Executive Directors were granted an award of shares under the PSP worth 2009% of salary which was subject to two performance
measures: relative TSR performance {with a welghting of two-thirds) and EPS growth (with a weighting of one-third). The EPS performance period
for this award ended during the 2019 financial year. Vesting is on a straight-line basis between median and upper quartile perfermance for the
TSR element of the award. No awards vest for below median performance. The TSR performance period for the 2017 award is measured over

a three-year pericd ending during the 2020 financial year. The TSR element of the award is therefore estimated using the average of the
Company's share price over the last financia! quarter of 2019, Vesting is on a straight-line basis between threshold and target and between

target and maximum for the EPS element of the award.

The gutcomes for the 2017 PSP are summarised below.

Performance Condition Peiformance

Actualestimaied

condition definition period Threshold Maximum result Vesting level
Reiative TSR TSR measured 31 March 2017 - If median rank is If upper quartile 98.9% increase in  100% of the TSR
{weighting two- againsithe FTSE 30 March 2020 achieved 25% of rank is achieved TSR. Ranked 12 cut element of the
thirds) 350 Index, the award vests, 100% of the of 184 comparator award is on track to

excluding financial award vests. companies.' vest in March 2020.

services, property

and primary

resources sectors,
EPS Annualised 1January 2007 —  6.9% p.a. for 14.1% p.a.? for 11.5% p.a. 72.4% of the EPS
tweighting EPS growth. 31 December 2019 25% of the 100% of the EPS element of the
one-third) EPS element element to vest. award to vest.

to vest.

1. The estimated outcome of the TSR element of the 2017 PSP has been based on performance to the end of December 2012. The numbers will be restated

in next year's Annual Report to reflect actual performance.

N

upwards to threshold 6.9% and maximum 14.1% to reflect material acquisitions and disposals.
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2017 PSP awards vesting
The aggregate number of shares anticipated to vest in 2020 is summarised in the table below. The table also includes an estimate of the number
of additional shares relating to dividends accrued throughout the performance period which will be added to the final awards.

The table below has been audited.

Tetal number

Maximum Proportion of Proportion of of shares post Dividend Total Value

award relative TSR the EPS performance equivalent shares ofchares

Date of award of shares target met target met conditions shares atvest vesting vesting'?

Andy Ransom 31March 2017 557,048 100% 72.4% 542 119 20,557 562,676 £2,512,348
Jeremy Townsend 31 March 2017 383,814 100% 72.4% 348,503 13,215 361,718 £1,615,071

1, The value of the 2017 PSP at vest is estimated based on an average of the Company’s share price aver the fourth guarter of 2019 of 446 5p.
2. £11m and £6.7m of the estimated value of the 2017 PSP can be atiributed to share price appreciation for Andy Ransom and Jeremy Townsend respectively.

PSP and DBP awards granted during the year

On 25 March 2019, Andy Ransom and Jeremy Townsend were granted an award of shares under the PSP worth 250% and 200% of salary
respectively. The awards are subject to a three-year performance period and a two-year holding period post vesting. in addition Andy Ransom
and Jeremy Townsend were also granted awards under the DBP which equated to 40% of the value of bonus earned under the 2018 Annual
Bonus. These awards will vest after a period of three years with no further performance conditions.

The number of shares that vest under the PSP will be based on the fellowing performance conditions and weightings:

Performance measures 2019-2022 Weighting Threshold: 25% vesting Target: 50% vesting Maximum: 100% vesting
TSR performance is median  Straight-line vesting Upper quartile TSR
measured against the FTSE  betweaen threshold and perfermance against the

Relative TSR 50% 3:50 In.dex, ex.cludlng maximum ETSE 1",50 Ind.ex, excluding
financial services, property financial services, property
and primary resources and primary resources sectors
sectors

EPS 25% 6% per annum 7.9% per annum 1% per annum

Organic Revenue growth 5% 3% per annum 3.5% per annum 4% per annum

Free Cash Flow conversion 5% B0O% B5% 0%

Strategic measures

-- Sales and Service colleague retention 5% Targets for these measures have not been disclosed as the Board believes that these
measures are commercially sensitive, They will be based on straight-line vesting between
threshold and target and between target and maximum performance which will be
reported at vesting.

— Customer satisfaction 5%
— Energy efficiency 5%

In addition, when determining the level of vesting, the Remuneraticn Committee will also consider the underlying financial performance of the
business, as well as the value added for shareholders during the performance perieds, and may adjust the vesting cutceme if it considers this
to be appropriate, Awards to Executive Directors under the 2019 PSP and DBP are set outin the table below.

2019 PSP and DBP award
The table below has been audited.

Number of Share price
shares used to Exercise Face value Performance

Participant Date of award awarded' determine award price of shares? Date af vest® period end?
PSP
Andy Ransom 25 Mar 2019 551,987 346.6p 0.0p £€1,913,187 25 Mar 2022 24 Mar 2022

{250% of salary)
Jeremy Townsend 25 Mar 2019 283,879 346.6p 0.0p £983,925 25 Mar 2022 24 Mar 2022

(200% of salary)
DBP®
Andy Ransom 25 Mar 2019 72,505 346.6p 0.0p £251,302 25 Mar 2022 24 Mar 2022
Jeremy Townsend 25 Mar 2019 42,373 346.6p 0.0p £146,865 25 Mar 2022 24 Mar 2022

1. The figures shown for the number of share awards are maximum entitlements and the actual number of shares (if any) which vest under PSP will depend
on the performance conditions being achieved as set out above,

2. For the PSP awards, the TSR condition will be measured over three years to 22 March 2022, The other performance conditions will be measured over

three years to 31 December 2021, The PSP awards are subject to & holding period of two years which commences from the date of vest.

The face value of the award is based on the closing share price of 346.6p on 22 March 2019,

The awards granted were in the form of nil-cost aptions and may be exercised after vesting up to 10 years from the date of grant.

. The DBP awards have no additional performance conditions beyend the three-year holding period.

o w
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Total PSP and DBP awards held by Executive Directors
The table below has been audited.

Share price Dividend Shares Dividend
et deten et ey s cotllent waloblaler eivalert | swres Oustdeg
award award  1Jan2019  during 2019  durlng 2019 atvest during 2019 exerclse during 2019 31Dec 2019 period end
2012 PSP!
Andy Ransom C08/0B/12 83.5p 163,625 - - ~ 163,625 - - 163,625 07/05/15
2013 PSP’
Andy Ransom 30/04/13 960p 512,403 - - ~ 513,403 - - 513,403 29/04/16
Andy Ransom 01/10/13 109.0p 388,853 - - - 388,852 - - 388,853 29/04/M16
2014 PSP’ o
Andy Ransom 310314 1234p 912,792 - - - 912,792 - - 912,792 30/03/17
2015 PSP!
Andy Ransom 3NV03NS 135.5p 883,906 - - — 883,906 - - 883,906 30/03A18
Jeremy Townsend 31/03/15 135,5p 460,552 - - — 460,552 - — 460,552 30/03/18
2016 PSP
Andy Ransom 12/05/16 159.4p 913,776 - 79,956 35,504 869,324 - ~ B69,324 10/03/19
Jeremy Townsend 12/65/16 15%.4p 587427 - 51,400 22,824 558,851 - - b58,851 10/03/19
2017 PSP o
Andy Ransom 31/03/17 246.4p 597,048 - - - - - - 597,048 30/03/20
Jeremy Townsend 31/03/17 246.4p 383,814 - - - - — - 383,814 30/03/20
2018 PSP*
Andy Ransem 29/0318 271.2p 553,300 - - - - - - 553,300 28/03/21
Andy Ransom 14/05/18 271.2p 13B,325 - - — - — - 138,325 28/03/21
Jeremy Townsend 29/03/18 271.2p 355,690 - - - - - ~ 355,690 28/03/21
2018 PSP®
Andy Ransom 25/03/19 346.6p -~ 551,987 — - - - — Bb1,987 24/03/22
Jeremy Townsend 25/Q3/19 346.6p — 2B3,879 - - - - — 283879 24/03/22
2019 DBP
Andy Ransom 25/03/19 346.6p - 72,505 - - - - - 72505 24/03/22
Jeremy Townsend 25/03/19 348.6p - 42,373 - - - - - 42,373 24/03/22

1. Shares held by Andy Ransom under the 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 PSP awards are vested but unexercised. Shares held by Jeremy Townsend under

the 2015 and 2016 PSP awards are vested but unexercised.

The 2016 PSP award is entitled to receive dividend equivalents in the form of shares based on dividend payments between the date of grant and vesting.

These are included in the total shares at vest. The awards are alzo entitled to receive dividend eguivalents in the form of shares post vest based an dividend

payments between the date of vest and the date cne menth before exercise. These shares are applied at exercise.

3. The 2016 PSP award partially vested on 12 May 2019, Neither Andy Ransom nor Jeremy Townsend exercised their 2016 PSP award during the year.

4. The 2017 and 2018 PSP awards have refative TSR and EPS performance measures which apply to two-thirds and one-third of the total award respectively.
The performance period for the TSR element of the 2017 and 2018 PSP awards will be measured to 30 March 2020 and 28 March 2021 respectively. The EPS
performance period will be measured to 31 December of the year preceding the vesting date. The vesting dates of the 2017 and 2018 PSP awards are 31 March
2020, 28 March 2021 and 14 May 2021 respectively.

5. The 2019 PSP award has relative TSR, EPS, additional financial and strategic targets (see page 99 for details). The performance period for the TSR element of
the 2019 PSP awards will be measured to 24 March 2022. The cther performance conditions will be measured to 31 December 2021, The vesting date of 2019
PSP awards is 25 March 2022.

6. The 2019 DBP award has no additional performance conditions beyond the three-year holding peried.

e
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Annual bonus 2019

The Remuneration Committee reviewed the 2019 bonus plan cutcome
for the Group’s senior management population based on the targets
set at the start of the financial year. The bonus plan supporis delivery
of our strategic priorities.

The annual bonus plan comprises three parts: gateway measures,
company performance, and individual performance. This means that
bonuses earned reflect the performance of the constituent businesses
which make up the overall Group performance as well as achievernent
against specific personal objectives.

The gateway measures and Company performance are measured
against financial targets. The Executive Directors had a maximum
bonus opportunity of 150% of salary if the Company financial targets
are achieved in fult. Perscnal performance is accounted for using

an individual performance modifier, which is linked to the Group’s
perfermance and development review process. This modifier can
increase the maximum bonus cppoertunity up to 180% of salary,

but also reduce the amount payable to 0%.

Gateway measures
For any bonus to be payable to an Executive Director, two gateway
measures had to be met as follows:

© Profit Gateway: The Company must achieve at least 95% of the
Ongoing Operating Profit target (£367.6m) which is £349.2m.

— The outcome was £372.9m.

© Free Cash Flow Gateway: The Company must achieve Free Cash
Flow generation of £170.0m.

— The cutcome was £250.7mm.
Both gateway measures were satisfied.

Company performance measures

Executive Directors’ bonuses were determined by achievement
against two independent financial measures: Ongoing Revenue; and
Ongoing Operating Profit (before restructuring costs) performance.
These measures were given equal weighting.

Ongoing Revenue
Weighting — 50%

To support the delivery of profitable growth in 2019, and to ensure
incentives are aligned with the Group’s strategy, revenue targets

for Executive Directors were weighted to focus on sectors that

were critical to the business. To provide this focus, coefficients were
applied to the revenue generated from the quadrants as follows:

Guadrant Coefficient 2019
Pest Control — Emerging markets 15
Pest Control — Growth markets 11
Hygiene 0.89
Protect & Enhance 0.47

The targets used to assess ongoing revenue performance are
disclosed below, aleng with the achievement against these targets.

Threshold Cn-target Maximum Result
Targets £2,5889m £2,6252m £2,651.4m £2,6433
Targets as % 99% 100% 101% 100.69%
of on-target
% of maximum 10% 50% 100% 84.50%

bonus
opportunity
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Ongoing Operating Profit (before restructuring costs)
Weighting - 50%

The targets used to assess ongoing operating profit performance are
disclosed below, along with the achievement against these targets.

Threshold On-target Maximum Result
Targets £349.2m £367.6m £3B6.0m £372.9m
Targets as % 95% 100% 105% 101.45%
of on-target
% of maximum 10% 50% 100% 64.50%

benus
oppertunity

Individual performance modifier

The Executive Directors' personal performance is reflected in the
bonus outcome through the individual performance modifier as set
out in the table below. Performance is measured through the Group’s
performance and development review process and objectives nciude
areas such as People, Custoemers, Safety, Systems, Governance &
Control, and Key Strategic Projects,

The individual performance modifier is applied to the outcome of

the Company performance element of the bonus. The individual
performance modifier can only increase or decrease the outcome from
the Company financial results, thereby ensuring that bonus payments
are not made for individual performance when the Company’s
financial targets have not been met.

The Individual performance modifier is applied to bonus payments for
all glcbal managers based upon objectives and behaviours, in exactly
the same way as it is for Executive Directorts.

The performance rating for the Chief Executive was 5 resulting in

8 125% modifier applying to the bonus. The performance rating for
the Chief Financial Officer was 4 resulting in a 110% modifier applying
to the bonus. The assessment of the performance ratings, by the
Chairman for the Chief Executive and by the Chief Executive for the
Chief Financial Officer, took into account their key achievements
during 2019 as detailed on page 102.

1 2: 3 4 5:
Performance Below Development Good Exceeds CQutstanding
rating and standards required performer expectations
definition required
Mgodifier 0% 75% 100% Nno% 125%'

1. The maximum Individual performance modifier that can be applied to the
bonus is 125%. However, for the Executive Directors the annual bonus
is capped at 180% of salary and for other members of the Executive
Leadership Team at 120% of salary.
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continued

The table details the key achievements for the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer and was used to determine their performance rating.

Strategic objectives

Andy Ransom

Jeremy Townsend

Achieving greater
profitabiiity

© Delivered above-target Ongoing Cperating Profit and
10.5% growth.

© Successful delivery of revenue and profit growth in Hygiene.

© Above-the-line restructuring costs maintained at below
£10m.

© Free Cash Flow of £250.7m, ahead of £170m target.

© Ensured that improvements in business performance
were sustained and not negatively impacted by non-
operational matters.

Increase earnings
and returns

Value enhancing
M&A in Growth &
Emerging markets

O Investor relaticns strategy successfully executed.
© Share price increased by 37% in 2018, significantly
outperforming the FTSE 100, which grew by 12%.

© Continued Increase in dividend.

© Free Cash Flow of £250.7m, ahead of £170m
Target.

® Ongoing Revenue growth considerably above
target.

© Above-target delivery of Ongoing Operating
Prefit and 10.5% growth.

© Successful refinance of €500m bond.

@ Investor relations strategy successfuily executed.

®© Continued growth of shareholder base in North
America,

© Continued increase in dividend.

© ME&A plans exceeded in all areas: delivered 41 acquisitions
in 2019 with combined annualised revenues of £137m.
© Successful dispesal of joint venture to Haniel in Juiy 2019.

An Employer
of Choice

© Delivered world-class safety standards across the Group
with an 16% improvement in Lost Time Accident rate and
26% improvement in Workijng Days Lost rate,

© Delivered world-ciass engagerment and enablement
scores following the 2019 YVC employee survey,

© Continued improvement of Service and Sales colieague
retention.

© High-quality service provider and employer maintaining
a 5 star rating on Trustpilot and number 1in the Top Rated
Workplace by Indeed, along with an above average overall
rating on Glassdoor of 4.4 compared to UK average of 3.5.

©& ME&A supported revenue growth.
© Successful disposal of joint venture to Haniel
in July 2019.

© Improved YVC scores for global Finance function.

© Successfully built taient and succession pipeline
in 1T, resulting in the transition of the ClO rofe
to an internal candidate in Q2 2019.

© Progress made in Finance talent and succession
buiid, with some key internal gppointments made
in 2019,

Leading the field
in innovation

© Strong pipeline of innovation to target key pest groups
of rodents and insects.

© Successtul delivery of digitally remastered frontline
service provision.

© Continued progress made on robotics and artificial
intelligence opportunilivs.

20198 bonus outcome

The table below brings tegether the Company performance outcome and individual performance modifier to give the bonus cutcome for the
Chief Executive and Chief Financial Cfficer. The table below has been audited.

Ongoing Tolal (before
Ongoing Operating Ongoing individual Individual
Operating  Free Cash Flow Profit Revenue performance performance
Profi gateway galeway (50% weighting)  [50% weighting) modifier) modifier Total
Andy Ransom, Chief Executive
Performance against target v v 101.45% 100.69%
Benus outcome as % of salary A8.37% 63.37% 111.75% 125% 139.69%
Bonus outcome for 2019 £855,196 £1,069,014
Bonus deferred intc shares £427,606
Batance of bonus payable £641,408
Jeremy Townsend, Chief Financiai Officer
Performance againsiforget v v 101.45% 100.69%
Bonus outcome as % of salary 48.37% 63.37% 1M1.75% M0% 122.93%
Bonus outcome for 2019 £549 770 £604,711
Bonus deferred into shares £241,908
£362,863

Balance of bonus payable
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Single total figure for the remuneration during 2019 of the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors
The table below has been audited:

Fees 2019 Fees 2018 Benaefits 2019 Benefits 2018 Total 2019 Total 2018
Chairman and Nen-Executive Directors £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
John McAdam' 126.8 3570 13.2' 36.4" 140.0 393.4
Richard Solomans? 254.3 - - - 254.3 -
Richard Burrows® 304 85.0 - - 30.4 85.0
Sir Crispin Davis® 30.0 60.0 - - 20.0 60.0
John Pettigrew® 66.9 60.0 - - 66.9 60.0
Angela Seymour-Jackson® 69.7 60.0 - — 681 G0.C
Julie Southern 75.0 75.0 - - 75.0 75.0
Linda Yueh 60.0 60.0 - — 60.0 60.0

1. John McAdam retired on 8 May 2019. The benefit relates to the private use by the Chairman of a Company driver and vehicle.
2. Richard Solomons was appointed to the Board on 1 March 2019 and as Chairman on 8 May 2019.

3. Richard Burrews retired cn 8 May 2019.

4. Sir Crispin Davis resigned from the Beard on 30 June 2019,

5. Jehn Pettigrew was appointed as Senlor Independent Directer on 8 May 2013 replacing Richard Burrows.

6. Angela Seymour-Jackson was appointed as Remuneration Committee Chair cn 8 May 2019 replacing Richard Burrows.

Directors’ shareholdings and share interests

Directors’ share interests

The interests of the Directors and their families in the share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2019, or their date of cessation if earlier,
and at 31 December 2018, or their date of appointment if later, are set out below, No Director has any beneficial interest in the shares of any

of the Company’s subsidiaries, This table has been audited.

Number of ordinary shares Number of ordinary shares

as at 31 Dec 2019 as at 31 Dec 2018
Richard Solomons' 25,000 -
Andy Ransom? 1,562,544 1,562,544
Jeremy Townsend? 734,099 734,099
John Pettigrew 10,000 -
Angela Seymour-Jackson 10,574 10,574
Julie Southern 5,000 5,000
Linda Yueh 1,590 1,560

. Richard Solomons was appointed to the Board on 1 March 2019.

2. Andy Ransom has an interesiin 3,731,903 vested PSP shares from the 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 awards which he has not yet exercised.
These figures are not included in his beneficial imerest of shares figure at 31 December 2019 above but are included In the share award table below.

3. Jeremy Townsend has an interest in 1,019,403 vested PSP shares from the 2015 and 2016 awards which he has not yet exercised. These figures are

not inciuded in his beneficial interest of shares figure at 31 December 2019 above but are included in the share award table below.

There has been no change to the current Directors’ shareholdings between 31 December 2018 and 26 February 2020.

Executive shareholdings
All Executive Directors are required to hold shares eguivalent in value to a percentage of their salary within a five-year period from their
appointment date. For the Chief Executive, this requirement is 300% of annual salary and 200% of annual salary for the Chief Financial Officer.

As of 31 December 2019, the Executive Directors have met and substantially exceeded the minimum sharehelding requirement.

The table below sets out the number of shares held at 31 December 2019 by each Executive Directer. Shares owned outright include those held
by connected persons. This table has been audited.

Shareholding Number of Value of Shares owned Interestin PSP

reguirement shares owned shareholding as at outright as share awards

as a % of salary outright 31Dec 2019 a % of salary 2% at 31 Dec 2015

Andy Ransom 300% 1,662,544 £7,078,324 925% 5,672,563
Jeremy Townsend 200% 734,089 £3,325,468 G76% 2,042,785

1. The share price is based on the closing share price on 31 December 2012 of 453.0p.
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continued

Remuneration in context

Wider workferce policy

During 2019, the Company had an average of 42,933 colleagues based
in 81 countries, We have a broad remuneration policy which reflects the
diversity of cultures, legislative environments, employment markets and
the types and seniority of roles that this geographic spread requires.
We structure our colieague reward to enabie us to recruit and retain

the right people, doing the right job for our customers.

Wider workforce engagement

Remuneration Committee engagement with our colieagues forms
part of the wider workforce engagement undertaken by the Board

of Directors as set out on page 76. in addition, the Remuneration
Commitiee received and reviewed details of the wider workforce
remuneration when considering the base pay, bonus, PSP awards and
outcomes for the Executive Directors and the Executive Leadership
Team throughout 2019. The UK and global workforces were aiso
cansidered when reviewing pension contribution levels for

Executive Directors.

CEO pay ratio

The CEO pay ratio compares the CEO single figure earnings to the
single figure earnings of UK empioyees. It has been calculated using
method A, where the employees at each quartile are identified using
details of their full-time equivalent pay and benefits for 2019, The table
below shows the ratios at the 25th percentile, median and 75th
percentile for 2019, and to give context 2018 figures are also included.

The ratios have improved from 2018 to 2019, This is mainly due to the
value of the CEQ’s PSP being slightly lower in 2019, see page 98.

25th percentile Median 75th percentile
Year Method pay ratic pay ratio pay ratic
2019 A 220:1 1731 119:1
2018 A 229 1891 1451

This table wiil be built on over time to cover a rolling 10-year period
and will include reasons for the changes to the raties from year to year.
However, it is anticipated that variations in the PSP and annual bonus
outcomes will have the biggest impact on the ratios from year to year.
For PSP, this is due to vesting levels and the share price changing from
year to year. For annual benis, although our comparator employees
are also eligible for bonus, the CEQ is targeted on Group-leve|
outcomes, whereas our comparator employees are based on their
specific remit, which given the UK makes up only a small percentage
of Group, means the outcomes may vary from year 1o year.

The median pay ratio is consistent with the pay, reward and
progression policies for the Company’s UK employees taken as a
whole. We have a consistent approach to reward across the Group and
employees’ packages are set with reference 1o the external market.

Gender pay gap

We continue to have no material gender pay gap between men and
women, with further reductions in the gap resuiting in a median of
-2% down from 1% (mean -6%), which is significantly better than the
UK average of 17.3% reported by the Office for National Statistics.
In addition, we are particularly proud of our improvements in our
banug gap which has reduced from 37% to 8%. This achievement

Is mainly due to the declsion in 2016 to extend our Performance
Share Plan beyond our senior managers enabling operational

and functional managers to share in the success of our Company.

While these are encouraging resuits overall, and we continue to

make good progress in building our female representation in senior
management roles {on a like-for-like basis female colleagues now
account for 31% of roles compared to 27% in 2017} and our 2019
employee survey shows that 96% of colleagues believe that we do not
preclude male and female colleagues from having equal opportunities
io succeead, we remain focused on making Rentokit nitial an even
more diverse and inclusive place to work, in line with our RIGHT WAY
plan. Our key areas of focus continue to be increasing the number

of famale frontiine technicians and improving the proportien of
females in senior manager roies in our head office functions.
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Relative importance of spend on pay

The table below sets out ameounts paid in total employee costs and
total dividends paid for the years ended 31 December 2019 and

31 December 2018.

2018" 2018 %

£m £m change

Remuneration paid to ali £1,312.2 £1191.2 10.2%
employees of the Group increase
Distributions to shareholders £85.8 £74.2 15.6%
mcrease

1. The average number of people employed by the Group during the year was
42,933 in 20192 and 39,480 in 2018.

Details of the remuneration pajd to ali employees can be found in Note
A% to the Financial Statements on page 136. Details of the dividends
declared and paid during the periods are contained in Note D1io the
Financiai Statements on page 159.

Percentage change in remuneration

The table below sets out a comparison of the change in pay for the
Chief Executive for the year ended 2018 compared with 2018 and

to all UK employees. The Chief Execttive is based in the UK and as
such is impacted by the same economic and legisiative environments
as other UK colleagues.

Average base salary Tor all UK employees includes overtime and
premium rate pay, which is flexed to meet business requirements,
as well as annual and cut-of-cycle pay increases and headcount
changes during the year. All bonus schemes are performance
related and reflect business performance during the year.

Base salary’ Annual bonus? Benefits®* Total

Chief Executive 2% 70.2% 74.8% 24.4%
increase increase decrease increase

All UK employees® 3.2% 4.8% 3.6% 3.4% ‘
increase increase increase increase

-

. Base salary includes overtime and allowances.

2. Artnual bonus includes our Group Management Bonus Scheme (GMBS) and
any other bonus commission or cash incentive but excludes any long-term
incentives.

3. Benefits include private healthcare, car aliowance, cars, fully expensed fuel
cards and commercial vans {private use}. The large decrease for the Chief
Executive is driven by the security costs provided as a one-off in 2018,

4. Pension and retirement benefits are not included in accordance with the
Large and Medium-sized Companlies and Groups {Accounts and Reports)
{Amendment} Regulations 2013,

5. All UK employees of the Group include Executive Directors (apart from the

Chief Executive) but not Non-Executive Directors.

Shareholder engagement

In 2019, the Remuneration Commiitee continued to engage with
leading shareholders and thelr representative bodies. The main
activities included the introduction of our new Remuneration
Committee Chair, Angela Seymour-Jackson and secking feedback

on the planned salary increases for the Chief Executive and Chief
Financial Officer and were conducted through a mixture of calls,
emails and letters, Other topics discussed with shareholders were the
performance conditions of our Performance Share Plan, the potential
reduction of our incumbent Exectutive Directors’ pension benefit to be
in line with the wider workforce and post-employment shareholding.
The feedback from our shareholders was greatly appreciated and
helped inform the Remuneration Committee’s thinking on key topics.

Use of discretion

The Remuneration Committee is cognisant of its responsibility

to make informed and thoughtfui decisions on remuneration that
are both balanced and in the longterm interests of the business
and shareholders and, where necessary, will apply discretion

to remuneration targets or outcomes that otherwise would be
inappropriate. The application of discretion over the last four years
is detailed on page 93 and has mainly focused on the Increase of
EPS targets to take account of material acquisitions and disposals.
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Chief Executive remuneration over a 10-year period

% long-term
Annualbonus  incertive vesting

pay-out versus rates versus

Single total figure maximum maximum

Chief Executive for remuneration opporturity opporiunity
2010 — Alan Brown £980,000 0.0% 0.0%
20T — Alan Brown' £3,564,971 0.0% 22.0%
2012 — Alan Brown £1,115,000 13.3% 0.0%
2013 — Alan Brown? £994,396 27.0% 0.0%
2013 — Andy Ransom? £401,006 287% 0.0%
2014 — Andy Ransom £1,326,045 51.4% 0.0%
2015 — Andy Ransom £1,655,757 59.1% 15.1%
2016 — Andy Ransom £5,581,304 72.2% 67.5%
2017 — Andy Ransom £3,969,607 70.1% 80.3%
2018 — Andy Ransom? £4,962,076 55.8% 91.3%
2019 — Andy Ransom* £4,557764 93.1% 90.8%

1. The 2011 single total figure for Alan Brown, the Chief Executive at the time,
includes the value of the 2008 Share Incentive Plan of £2,573,871 which
was valued on the release date of 20 May 2011. These shares were called
for during 2014.

2. Alan Brown was appointed as Chief Executive on 1April 2008 and stepped
down on 30 September 2013; Andy Ransom was appointed from that date.
The single total figure has been apportioned to reflect payment during
these periods.

3. The 2018 single total figure for the Chief Executive, Andy Ransem, includes
the restated value of 869,324 shares under the 2016 PSP award which
vested at 91.3% on the 12 May 2019, based on the clesing share price on
12 May 2019 of 381.6p.

4. The 201S single total figure includes the estimated value of 562,676 shares
under the 2017 PSP award which is due to vest on 21 March 2020 based on
the average share price over the fourth quarter of 2019 of 446.5p.

UK Corporate Governance Code provisions

During 2019, the Remuneration Committee has addressed the facters
set out in Provision 40 of the UK Corporate Governance Code as set
out below:

© Clarity — When considering and structuring any element of
remuneration the Remuneration Committee aims to be as
straightforward and transparent as possible. It looks to ensure that
the remuneration vehicles it uses are clear and understandable and
the targets, outcomes and any other decisions are communicated
in an open and detalled way. The Remuneration Committee
has endeavoured to ensure that, in approving the Directors’
Remuneration Report, they are providing an extensive and
clear picture of the remuneration arrangements and decisions
undertaken each year. For instance, when considering the
proposed salary increases for the Executive Directors in 2020, the
Remuneration Committee discussed how ciear and understandakble
adopting a phased approach would be and reached the conclusion
that one single increase was more transparent and fair to both
sharehelders and the Executive Directors {see page 1086).

© Simplicity — When determining the structure and mechanisms
of remuneration packages consideration is given to ensuring
that complexity is avoided and that both our colleagues and our
shareholders are able to understand both the rationale for and
the operation of any incentive easily. In 2019, the Remuneration
Committee introduced five new perfoermance measures to the PSP
(see page 99). While the Remuneration Committee considered
carefully the added complexity of the increased number of
measures, it felt that this was more than offset by the increased
alignment with cur strategy and the fact that colieagues used these
metrics to manage the business on a daily basis and would
therefore feel able to directly influence and impact them.
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© Risk ~ The Remuneration Committee has a history of restraint and
closely monitors remuneration structures and outcomes in relation
to the strategy and financial performance in crder to ensure that
only appropriate behaviour is incentivised and rewards are not
excessive. The Committee has shown a willingness to apply
discretion to adjust targets upwards where it has feltit is appropriate
and outcomes could otherwise misalign with performance and
therefore create a risk to the business and shareholders (see page
$3). Risk is also considered in the context of the Group's wider risks
{see Risks and Uncertainties on pages 55 to 59}

© Predictability — The Remuneraticn Committee encourages and
oversees the use and replication of cur annual benus and PSP
schemes globally and deep into the organisation, ensuring
employees understand and become familiar with how we recognise
and reward performance, and that as many people as possible
share in the success of the organisation. Remuneration structures,
including grading and reward programmes, are consistently applied
and appropriate at each level of the organisation.

© Proportionality — The Remuneration Committee seeks to ensure
that remuneration pay-cuts awarded to the Executive Directors,
the Executive Leadership Team and the wider workforce are
consistent with performance outcomes and with the experience
felt by shareholders. The Committee considers carefully the
stretch built into targets and ensures that cutcomes linked to
certain levels of performance are stretching, while achievable,
and therefore motivating for colleagues, as well as satisfying
shareholder expectations.

© Alignment to culture — The Remuneration Committee strives to
ensure that remuneration arrangements drive both financial and
non-financial performance, as well as behaviours consistent with
our purpose, values and vision. A summary of our culture can
be found on pages 20 and 21. Our colleagues are integral to our
business model as set out on pages 18 and 19 and as such the
Remuneration Committee has regard to the balance of fixed and
variable pay to ensure the right level of reward and incentive is
available to both recruit and retain the talent needed to deliver
our long-term sirategic plan.

TSR performance over a 10-year period relative to FTSE Index

The following graph shows total shareholder return (TSR) over a
10-year period reflecting the helding of the Company's shares, plotted
against the FTSE 100 Index, the FTSE 250 Index and the FTSE 350
Index, on a consistent basis with the graph shown last year. The
Company has been a constituent of one or more of these indices over
the 10-year period that is shown. This chartis based on data sourced
from Thomson Reuters DataStream and uses spot Return Index data
at each year end.

Rentokil Initial ple’s TSR compared against the TSR of FTSE 100,
FTSE 250 and FTSE 350 indices over a 10-year period
Total shareholder return

£1,20C —FTISE100 ==FTSE 350

£1100 ««FTSE 250 == Rentokil
£1,000
£900
£800
£700
£600
£500
£400
€300
£200
£100
o]

Dec Dec Dec Dec Dec Dec Dec Dec Dec Dec Dec
2002 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Payment for loss of office (audited)
There were no payments for loss of office te Directors during 2019 and
no payments to former Directors.
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Executive Director base salaries from 1January 2020

Executive Directors’ ang ELT salaries are reviewed with effect from
1January each year in accordance with the prevailing pohicy. When
reviewing salary fevels, the Remuneration Committee takes into
account a number of internal and external factors, including Company
performance during the year, external market data and the salary
review principles applied to the rest of the organisation to ensure

a consistent approach,

Base salaries reflect the role, Individual experience, skills and
contribution to overall business performance as well as external
market conditions. The Remuneration Committee has historically
shown restraint around pay levels and adjusted Executive Director pay
downwards when the business was not performing and leading up to
it falling out of the FTSE 100 back in 2009, as shown by the historical
CEO salaries: Sir Clive Thompson (1983-2003) — £1,100,000, Doug
Flynn {2005-2008) — £200,000 and Alan Brown (2008-2013) -
£775,000. Andy Ransom's salary on appointment was £700,000,

In addition, Executive Directors' pay has either been frozen or
increased in line with the wider workforce for over 10 years, without
recognising the growth in the Company (and, therefore, the relevant
benchmarks) over that time.

Following a review of the performance of the business, the economic
and market consideraticns in the UK, the Remuneration Committee
agreed that the salaries of Executive Directors for 2020 should be
increased as set out below. This decision followed engagement with
and feedback from sharehotders between November 2019 and
February 2020, from which emerged a strong show of support for the
proposed salary changes.

Salary from 1 January 2020

Executive Director Salary Effective date
Andy Ransom — £875,000 1January 2020
Chief Executive {14.3% increase)

Jeremy Townsend — £550,000 1January 2020

Chief Financial Officer {11.8% increase)

Rationale for increases

The Remuneration Committee considered a phased approach to the
salary increases, but this was not taken forward. The cne step Increase
gives a clear and transparent total increase and closes the significant
gap to current market salary levels enabling a return to our normal
approach of restraini.

The rationale for the increases are as follows:

© The Company has grown in size considerably since the CEC and
CFO were appeinted, moving from around FTSE 160 to FTSE 50
and growing market cap from £2.0bn to around £9.0bn.

© The current incumbents’ salaries are low compared to other
CEQ and CFCs in similar companies, which does not fit with the
principles applied to the wider workforce of ensuring that pay
is fait and competitive.

© The CEC and CFO are high performing with an excellent track
record in delivering both Company performance and growth as
evidenced through delivering a TSR of 302.7%, growth in PET of
185.4% and revenue growth of 15.1% since 20613. This makes both
highly attractive beyond the FTSE anid the UK,

© However, while it was recognised that the performance of our CEO
and CFG is demonstrably higher than that of a ‘'median’ executive,
it was decided to align pay around the median leve|, demonstrating
continued pay restraint.

While it was recognised that the external environment is not conducive
to material pay increases, the Remuneration Committee thought fong
and hard about the change and ultimately decided that this adjustment
was both a fair reflection of the contribution the individuals bring te the
business and fully aligned with shareholders' interests,

In light of Jeremy Townsend’s decision to retire, careful constderation
was given to whether the salary Increase applied to him should be
reversed. However, given the purpose of the review was to ensure
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that we are rewarding our executives fairly and that the transition is
expected to last for a significant part of the year, it was felt appropriate
thal he continue to receive the increase.

Pension

Foliowing careful consideration of the guidance for Executive
Directors’ pensions, the Remuneration Committee determined that
Executive Directors' pensions will he brought in line with the wider
workforce by the end of 2022, As a first step, the Chief Execulive’s
pension has been frozen from 1 January 2020, reducing it from 25%
to 21.9% of salary. A plan to bring the incumbent Executive Directors
pensions in line with the wider workforce by the end of 2022 will be
established as part of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy review,
which is due for renewal in 2021,

The wider workforce rate has been determined to be 3%, which is the
pension benefit received by our frontline colieagues in the UK, who
account for around 85% of employees in the UK. A rate based on all
colleagues across the Group was considered by the Remuneration
Committee, but rejected due to the complexity and the potential
instability of the rate as the Company continues to grow.

Should any recruitment be undertaken at this level prior to the new
Policy being implemented, the pension offered will be reduced from
the Policy level of 15% to the wider UK workforce level of 3%.

Fixed pay for 2020 will be:

Base salary Estimated Pension based
from benefits an salary from Total
1Jan 2020  (far 2620} 1Jan2020  fixed pay
£000 1000 £'000 £'000
Andy Ransom — 875.0 19.8 191.3 10861
Chief Executive
Jeremy Townsend — 5500 16.6 825 6491

Chief Financial Officer

How will incentives be aligned to the business strategy in 2020?
The table below shows how the business strategy and the KPis which
underpin it are reflected in the annua! bonus plan and long-term
incentive performance measures for the Executive Directors in 2020.

Apnual Bonus Plan
performance measures for
Strategic prionties 2020

PSP performance
measures for 2020-23

Relative TSR, EPS,
QOrganic Revenue

Ongoing Operating
Profit, Free Cash

Achieving greater
profitability

Flow growth, and
Free Cash Flow
ncrease earnings Ongoing Revenue conversion
and returns
Value enhancing M&A Personal goals None

in Growth & Emerging
markets

Sales and Service
colleague retention

An Employer of Choice Personal goals

Customer
satisfaction and
fuel efficiency

Leading the field
in innovation

Personal goals

2020 bonus structure
Executive Directors have the following bonus cpportunity as
a percentage of base salary.

Maximum after

individual

Threshold Target Maximum modifier

Andy Ransom — 15% 75% 150% 180%
Chief Executive

Jeremy Townsend — 5% 75% 150% 18C%

Chief Financial Officer
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40% of any bonus earned will be deferred into shares for three years.
The focus of the bonus is on rewarding profitable growth in order

to align Executive Directors’ incentives with the Group’s strategy.
The Remuneration Committee has approved the following proposed
structure of bonuses for 2020 for the Executive Directors:

© Gateways; 95% of the profit target and a Free Cash Flow gateway
of £200m have tc be reached at Group level before a bonus can
be paid to the Executive Directors.

© Company performance; If both these profit and cash flow gateways
are achieved then Executive Directors can earn up to 150% of base
salary based on a combination of revenue and profit targets. This is
split 50% profit: 50% revenue for both the Chief Executive and the
Chief Financial Officer.

Revenue targets for Executive Directors will continue to be weighted
to focus on the categeries that will set the foundations for longer-term
profitable growth. To provide this focus the following coefficients

will be applied to revenue generated from the business segments,

as described in the Strategic Report.

Coefficient 2020

Pest Control — Emerging markets 1.5
Pest Contro! — Growth markets 1.1
Hygiene 0.9

Protect & Enhance 0.39

2020 PSP award
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The co-efficients are applied to the total revenue in each business
category.

Bonus targets have not been disclosed looking forward for 2020

as the Board believes that this information is commer¢ially sensitive.
Disclosing benus targets could provide information about our business
plans to our competitors which could be damaging to our business
interests and therefore to shareholders. However, retrospective bonus
outcomes for 2019 have been disclosed in the table on page 101, and
the 2020 targets will be disclosed in next year's Annual Report.

© Individual performance modifier: This may increase or decrease
the opportunity arising from the Company performance against the
revenue and profit targets, as outlined below, to further recognise
individual contribution to business performance. This individual
performance modifter applies to all colleagues who participate in
the Group Management Bonus Scheme (GMBS) and is measured by
the Company’s perfermance and the development review process.

IR 2 3 4: 5.
Performance Below Development Good Exceeds Cutstanding
rating and standards required performer expectations
definition required
Maodifier % 75% 100% 1n0% 125%'

1, The maximum individual performance moedifier that can be applied to the
bonus is 125%_ However, for the Executive Directors the annual bonus is
capped at 180% of salary and for the Executive Leadership Team at 150%
of salary.

The Executive Directors’ PSP award for 2020 will be over shares up to a maximum of 250% of base salary for the Chief Executive. The Chief
Financial Officer would normally receive an award over shares up to a maximum of 200% of base salary. However, in light of Jeremy Townsend's
announced intention 1o retire in the second half of 2020 (see page 108), he will not receive an award in 2020. Shares under the awards will be
released no earlier than five years after grant (i.e. following a three-year vesting period and a two-year helding period). Vesting of this award will
be determined by the Company’s performance as follows and performance between targets will be calculated on a straight-line basis:

Perfarmance measures 2019-2022 Weighting Threshetd: 25% vesting Target: 50% vesting Maximurm: 100% vesting
Relative TSR’ 50% TSR performance is median  Straight-line vesting between  Upper quartile TSR
against comparator group threshold and maximum performance against

comparatoer group

EPS? 25% 6.0% perannum 7.5% per annum 11% per annum

Organic Revenue growth 5% 3.0% per annum 3.5% perannum 4.0% per annum

Free Cash Flow conversion 5% 80% 85% 90%

Strategic measures®

— Sales and Service celleague retention 5% Targets for these measures have not been disclosed as the Board believes that

_ Customer satisfaction 59, these measures are commercially sensitive. They will be based on straight-line vesting

X - between threshold and target and target and maximum performance which will he
- Vehicle fuel efficiency 5%

reported at vesting.

1. The TSR index of comparators for this cycle will be the constituents of the FTSE 350 Index, excluding financial services, property and primary resources

sectors.

2. The EPS is measured on a point-te-paint basis over the three-year period of the award, EPS Is measured after adjusting for impairments, amortisation, pension
interest and material one-off items, as the Remuneration Committee considers that these items do net reflect the underlying performance of the business.
Giventhe Company’'s continued focus on improving efficiency and reducing casts around restructuring, restructuring costs are included in the EPS calculation
in order to incentivise management to maintain focus In this area. Given the international nature of cur business, EPS is measured on an exchange neutral
basis o reflect management performance by removing the impact of windfalls and losses as a result of exchange rate movements,

3. The strategic measures will be measured over the three-year performance pericd. Colleague retention will be measured on average overall Sales and Service
celleague retention; customer satisfaction wilt be measured In average Customer Voice Counts scores; and vehicle fuel efficiency will be measured against

an average reduction across our key countries.

The Remuneration Committee is satisficd that these targets represent a stretching range in light of all relevant factors inciuding the current

business plan and analysts’ forecasts.

When determining the level of vesting, the Remuneration Committee will also consider the underiying financial performance of the business,
as well as the value added to shareholders during the performance periods, and may adjust the vesting outcome if it considers this to be

appropriate.
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continued

lllustration of proposed Directors’ Remuneration Policy for 2020
The charts below provide an illustration of what could be received
by each of the Executive Directors in 2020 including how a

50% increase in the share price could impact what they receive.

These charts are illustrative as the actual value that will be received
will depend on business performance in 2020 for the bonus and in
the three-year period to 2023 for the PSP, as well as share price
performarnce to the date of exercise for awards made under the
Deferred Bonus Plan and the PSP.

Our remuneration arrangements are designed so that a significant
proportion of pay is dependent on the delivery of short and long-term
goals that are aligned with our strategic chjectives and the creation
of sharehelder value.

Chief Executive — Andy Ransom

1. Maximum opportunity after application of the individual performance
modifier.

Chief Financial Officer — Jeremy Townsend

The details below are for illustrative purposes only and show the CFO
package if Jeremy was in role for the full year, Due to his announced
intention to retire, this is not reflective of what Jeremy will receive in
2020 (see Director changes opposite for details).

1. Maximum cpportunity after application of the individual performance
modifier.

Key
® Fixed pay
includes all elements of fixed remuneration:

- base salary (effective 1 January 2020), as shown in the table on page 106;
— pension and benefits.

® Annual bonus including Deferred Bonus Plan

Represents the potential value of the annual bonus for 2020, as shown on
page 107, 40% of any bonus would be deferred into shares for thiee years
and this is fncluded in the value shown.

Performance Share Plan (PSP)
Represents the potential value of the PSP to be awarded in 2020, which would
vest in 2023 subject to performance against the targets disclosed on page
107. Awards would be held for a further two years.

® 50% share price growth
Represents the potential impact of 8 50% share price increase. This has been

applied to the PSP and DBP.
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2020 Non-Executive Directors’ fees
Non-Executive Director fees from 1January 2020

Fee policy for year beginhing

Position 1January 2020

Chairman £375,000 per annum

Non-Executive Director £60,000 per annum

Senior Independent Director Additional £10,000 per annum

Chairman of Audit Committee Additional £15,000 per annum

Chairman of Remuneration

Committee Additional £15,000 per annum

1. Non-Executive Director ang Senior Independent Director fees were
increased on 1 September 2017

Director changes

As detailed in the Nomination Committee Report, Jeremy Townsend,
Group Chief Financial Officer, has announced his intention to retire in
the secand haif of 2020 and will be stcceeded by Stuart Ingall-Tombs,
currently Chief Financial Officer for North America.

Jeremy Townsend

Jeremy is expected to be treated as a good leaver and his leaving

terms will be in line with the current Directors’ Remuneration Policy

(see page 109) and are summatised below. In light of Jeremy’s

decision, careful consideration was given to whether the salary

increase applied to him shouid be reversed. However, given the

purpose of the review was to ensure that we are rewarding our }
executives fairly and that the ransition is expected o last for a

significant part of the year, it was felt appropriate that he receive the

increase. '

© His salary, pension and benefits will be paid for the duration that
Jeremy remains In his role.

© He will be eligible for a pro rata annual bonus for the 2020 financial
year.

© He will not receive a PSP award for 2020.

© His PSP awards that have vested, but are still in their holding period
will be retained in full and released at the end of holding period.

B He will receive a pro rata of PSP awards that are in the performance
period and these awards will vest subject to the achievement of
performance conditions and vesting schedule and will be released
following the two-year helding period.

@ Deferred Bonus Plan awards will be retained in full and released
at the end of the deferral period.

Stuart Ingall-Tombs

As part of the succession process, the Remuneration Committee has
considered the remuneration package for the new Chief Financial
Officer and following his appointment, which is expected to take place
in the second half of 2020, Stuart will receive the following terms:

© His starting base salary will be £500,000. This is below the median
pay for the role, and we intend to move him to a median salary of
£550,000 once he has been in role for 12 months, assuming both
his and the Company's performance is satisfactory. He would then
be considered for normal salary reviews from January 2023.

© His pension contribution will be 3% in line with the wider
UK workforce,

® He will be eligible for an anaual bonus for the 2020 financial
year on a pro rata basis.

O Al other package elements will be aligned with the Directors'
Remuneration Policy. See pages 10 and 111 for details. !

Fuil detalls of Jeremy Townsend’s and Stuart Ingall-Tombs’ !
remuneration will be included in the 2020 Directors'
Remuneration Report,
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Summary of 2018 Directors’ Remuneration Policy

Recruitment — Executive Directors

The Remuneration Committee’s key principle when determining
appropriate remuneration arrangements for a new Executive Director
(appointed from within the organisation or externally) is to ensure that
arrangements are in the best interests of both the Company and its
shareholders, without paying more than is considered necessary by
the Remuneration Committee to recruit an executive of the required
calibre to develop and deliver the business strategy.

When determining appropriate remuneration arrangements the
Remuneration Committee will take into account all relevant factors.
These facters may include (among others): the level and type of
remuneration cpportunity being forfeited; the jurisdiction the
candidate was recruited from and whether any relocation is required;
the skilis, experience and calibre of the individual; the circumstances
of the individual; and the current external market and salary practice
including market practice on additional benefits.

The Remuneration Committee would generally seek to align the
remuneration package offered with our Policy cutlined in the table on
pages 110 and 111. However, the Remuneration Committee may offer
additional variable remuneration arrangements in respect of an
Executive Director’s appointment that it considers appropriate and
necessary to recruit and retain the individual. Any variable
remuneration awarded in respect of the Executive Director’s
appointment shall be limited to 480% of base salary; this reflects our
bonus policy (180% of salary) and the level of award under the PSP in
exceptional circumstances (300% of salary}. This limit excludes any
awards made to compensate the Executive Director for remuneration
forfeited from their previous employer. If appropriate, different
measures and targets may be applied to a new appointment’s annual
bonus in the year of joining.

The Remuneration Committee may make awards on appointing an
Executive Directer fo ‘buy out’ remuneration terms forfeited on leaving
a previous employer. In doing so, the Remuneration Committee will
take account of relevant facters including any perfermance conditions
attached to these awards, the form In which they were granted (e.g.
cash or shares) and the time over which they would have vested.
Generally, buy-out awards will be made on a comparable basis to
those forfeited,

In the event of recruitment, the Remuneration Committee may
grant awards to a new Executive Director under Listing Rule 2.4.2R
which allows for the granting of awards, to facilitate, in unusual
circumstances, the recruitment of an Executive Director, without
seeking prior shareholder approval or under other appropriate
Company share plans. The use of Listing Rule 9.4.2R will be limited
to granting buy-out awards only,

In the event that an internal candidate was promoted to the Board,
legacy terms and conditions may be honoured, including pension
entitlements and any outstanding incentive awards and the exercise
of any discretion in connection with such payments. Similarly, if an
Executive Director is appointed following the Company’s acguisition
of or merger with ancther company, legacy terms and cenditions
would be honoured.

In the event of the appointment of a new Chairman or Non-Executive
Director, remuneration arrangements will normally reflect the Policy.
The Remuneration Committee’s intention is that timely disclosure

of the remuneration structure of any new Executive Directer or
Chairman will be made by the Company wherever practical.

Loss of office

Base pay and benefits — Executive Directors are entitled te a payment
in lieu of notice equal to base pay and the value of benefits only for
the duration of the remaining notice period, subject to mitigation.

The Company has the ability to terminate Executive Directors’
employment, in the event of a prolonged mental or physical incapacity
to carry out his/her Company duties and without notice (summary
dismissal), in the event of gross misconduct or being disqualified

to act as a Director. Appropriate medical benefits may still be

provided in the case of prolonged mental or physical incapacity.

Other payments — Executive Directors may be entitled to other
payments including, but not limited to, costs of appropriate
repatriation/relocation, outplacement, settlement agreement,
non-compete agreement, legai and/or tax and other relevant
professional costs. The Remuneration Committee would look to
ensure that the level of these costs/benefits was reasonable and
in the best interests of shareholders.

Bonus including Deferred Bonus Pian (DBP)

© Cash bonus — in the event of retirement, death, disabllity,
redundancy, change of control, sale of the employing company
or any other circumstance at the discretion of the Remuneration
Committee, Executive Directors may receive a bonus payment
for the year in which they cease employment. This payment wiil
normally be pro-rated for time and performance; however, the
Remuneration Committee retains the discretion to review overal|
husiness and individual performance and determine that & different
level of bonus payment is appropriate. Otherwise, generally,
Executive Directors must be employed at the date of payment
to receive a bonus. in certaln circurnstances, the Remuneration
Committee may determine that a bonus payment may be due
to reflect performance and contribution to the point of cessation,

© DBP - leaving before date of vest — Deferred bonus shares will
normally vest in full following completion of the three-year vesting
period, Participants will have six months from the date of vest to
exercise. The vesting of awards will be accelerated for death and
there wiil be 12 months from death to exercise {or up & 24 months
if the Remuneration Committee so determines). The Remuneration
Committee has the discretion to allow the vesting of awards so that
it vests before the original three-year vesting date.

© DBP - leaving after date of vest — The Executive Director will
generally have six months in which to exercise their awards from
the date of leaving {12 months for death {or up to 24 months ifthe
Remuneration Committee so determines)).

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

© Leaving before the end of the performance period — In the event
of retirement, redundancy, change of controd, sale of the employing
company or any other circumstance at the discretion of the
Remuneration Committee, awards will vest on the original vesting
date on a time apportioned basis {unless the Remuneration
Committee determines otherwise). Performance will be measured
atthe end of the original performance period. Participants will
have six months from the end of the holding period to exercise.
In the event of ill health, disability or death (or in the event of any
other exceptional clrcumnstance if the Remuneration Committee
determines}), awards will vest early on & time apportioned basis.
Performance will be measured to the early vesting date. Participants
will have six months from leaving to exercise (12 months for death
{or up to 24 months if the Remuneration Committee so determines)).
If participants leave for any other reason before the end of the
performance period, thelr award will lapse on termination.

© Leaving after the end of the performance period — Any awards
in the two-year holding pericd will vest fellowing completion
of the two-year holding period. Participants will have six months
from the latest of the end of the holding period or the leaving
date to exercise (12 months for death (or up to 24 months if the
Remuneraticn Committee so determines)).

When an Executive Director leaves the business on the basis of
mutual agreement, the Remuneration Committee will determine an
appropriate payment taking into account the circumstances of leaving
but any payment will be no more generous than that for leavers by
reason of disability, ill health, retirement, redundancy, death or sale
of an individual employing business. There are no provisions for
notice periods or compensation in the event of the termination

of the appointment of the Chairman or a Non-Executive Director.
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Summary of 2018 Directors’ Remuneration Policy

continued

The Directors' Remuneration Policy was approved by shareholders at the Company’s AGM cn 9 May 2018. The full version of the policy, inciuding
all notes to the policy table summarised below, is available on our webslie.

Base salary

Purpose/link to
strategy

To attract and retain
executives of the
calibre required

to implement

our strategy.

Operaticn

Cash salaries are normaliy reviewed
annually with effect from 1 January.
Salaries are set taking nto account:

O market data from both Willis
Towers Watson and Deloitte (or
other appropriate data providers)
for & cross-section of companies
of & similar size and complexity
at the time of review;

© scope and responsibllities
of the rale;

© external economic environmeni;

9 individual skilis and experience;
and

© contribution to overall business
performance.

Benefits

Purpose/link te
strategy

To attract and retain
executives of the
calibre required
toimplement

our strategy.

Operation
The main benefits for Executive
Directors are:

O life assurance;

© car or car allowance;

© family healthcare;

© permanent health insurance; and
© relocation benefits.

Pensions

Purpose/iink to
strategy

To attract and retain
exacutives of the
calibre required

to implement

our strategy.

To facilitate
executives' planning
for retirement.

Levels of payout

Salary poticy 15 10 set base salary

at an appropriate level taking into
account the factors described under
the ‘Operation’ column and salary
Increases are considered in

this context.

While there is no maximum salary
level, the Remuneration Commitiee
would normally expect percentage
pay increases for the Executive
Directors to be broadly in line with
other colleagues in relevant regions.

Performance measures and pericd

The payment of salary is not

dependent on achieving

performance targets although

individual perfermance is taken ,
into account when setting salary }
ievels and determining any

salary Increases.

Levels of payout

Levels of benefits are set in line
with market practice. The leve] of
benefits provided varies year-on-
year depending on the cost of the

provision of benefits to the Company

and therefore it is not meaningful to

identify a maximum level of benefits.

Performance measures and period
Nene.

Operation

Executive Director pension
arrangements are by way ofa
defined contribution arrangement or
through a cash alternative of a similar
value or a combination of the two.

Annual bonus

Purpose/flink to
strategy

Recognise and
reward for
stretching business
performance sgainst
annual financial,
strategic, operational
and individual goals
that contribute

to Company
petformance,

Operation

The annual bonus is paid each year
after the Remuneration Committee
has reviewed performance against
targets, which are set around the
beginning of each year for each
Executive Director, taking into
consideration the underlying
performance of the business,
Normally no more than 60%

of any benus is paid in cash with
the balance deferred in shares.
Deferred shares vest after a period
of three years with no further
performance conditions,

Malus and clawback provisions exist.

Levels of payout

For any future Executive Director
hires the maximum contribution will
be 15% of base salary. The
contributions for the existing

Executive Directors are 25% of salary

for the Chief Executive and 15% of
salary for the Chief Financial Officer.

Performarce measures and period
None.

Levels of payout

Bonus payouts start to accrue at
alevel of up to 20% of base salary
for meeting threshold levels of
performance, with a target benus
opportunity of 75% of base salary
and a maximum bonus opportunity
of 150% of base salary (before

the application of the individual
performance modifier).

An individual performance modifier
may alse increase or decrease the
opportunity stated above 1o Turther
recognise individual contribution

to business performance.

The maximum payout will not
exceed 180% of base salary.

Performance measures and period
The annual bonus is normally linked
to a mix of financial elements and
other key strategic performance
targets inciuding achievement

of personal objectives where
appropriate. Performance is tested
over a one-year performance period.

Financial measures will always

in¢lude a profit measure and may '
inclucde one or more of cash

and revenue,

At least 50% of the bonus will

be based on financial measures.
Financial measures may be linked
to Group performance or the
executive’s specific area of
responsibility, if appropriate.
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Performance Share Plan (PSP}

L OMPUATE VLVEITIdaNCE
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Purpose/link to
strategy

To motivate

and incentivise
delivery of
stretching business
performance over
the long term and
to create slignment
with growth n value
for shareholders.
To act as a retention
tool for Executive
Directors.

Operation

Awards are made over shares
{normally in the form of nil-cost
options or conditicnal shares)
with a face value set by reference
to & multiple of base salary.

Award levels and performance
conditions are set to support the
business’ tong-term goals and
seek to reflect market practice

and shareholder guidance.

Award levels are generally set at

a market competitive level, relative
to companies of comparable size
and complexity.

Malus and clawback provisions exist.

Levels of payout

The maximum annual award will be
250% of base salary for the Chief
Executive and 200% of base salary
for the Chief Financial Officer and
any other Executive Directors. 25%
of the award shali vest for meeting
threshold levels of performance.

This limit of 250% and 200% of base
salary for the Chief Executive and
Chief Financial Officer and any other
Executive Directors respectively may
be increased to 300% of base salary
in exceptional circumstances as
determined by the Remuneration
Committee.

Vested PSP awards may include
dividend equivalents (in cash or
shares) that accrue by reference to
the period between grant date and
vest or exercise date.

Performance measures and period
Awards are normally subject to the
following two performance measures
weighted two-thirds and one-third
respectively:

© relative total shareholder return
{T5R} performance; and

© the achievement of earnings
per share (EPS) targets.

For any particular award, the
Remuneration Committee shall retain
discretion to adjust the weightings

of these two measures ar to include
additional or alternative performance
measure(s) aligned to the corporate
strategy.

Perfoermance conditions are normally
measured over a three-year period.
Thereafter, a two-year holding period
normally applies. The ownership

of the shares is not delivered tc

the participants until the end

of the holding period when the
award vests,

Shareholding guidelines

Purpose/link to
strategy
Encourages greater
levels of
shareholding and
aligns employees’
interests with those
of shareholders.

Operation

Executive Directors are expected to
achieve and maintain a holding of the
Company’s shares at least equalto a
significant propertion of their
respective salary.

Levels of payout
Chief Executive: 300% of salary.

Chief Financia! Officer and other
Executive Birectors: 200% of salary
(within five years of appointment).

Performance measures and period
N/A

Measures and targets

All the perfermance measures selected support the delivery of short and long-term financial performance of the business and shareholder value
creation. Targets are set each year based on stretching internal budgets and achieving or exceeding these targets will both return value
to shareholders and reward the executive team for delivery.

The annual bonus measures are reviewed annually to focus on delivery of key financial targets for the forthcoming year as well as key strategic
or operational geals relevant to the individual.

Over the long term, perfermance measures are focused on generating returns to shareholders through the relative TSR measure and through
afocus on improving earnings.

Malus and clawback

The Remuneration Committee may reduce bonus payments in respect of the current year or future years and have the ability to scale back
awards that have not yet vested under the Company’s Performance Share Plan (potentially to nil) in the event of:

© & material misstatement of the Company’s audited results for the current year or prior years;
O serious reputational damage or loss to the Group as a result of an individual's serious misconduct; or
O in other circumstances where the Remuneration Committee, in its discretion, considers that this treatment is appropriate.

For bonus, a clawback provision exists to give the Remuneration Committee, in the same circumstances to malus, the ability to recover sums
already paid for up to two years after bonus determination, or vesting date for deferred shares. Deferred shares may be adjusted in accordance
with the rules in the event of a variation of the Company’s share capital, demerger, special dividend or similar event that materially affects the

price of shares.

For PSP, a clawback provision exists to give the Remuneration Committee, in the same circumstances as malus, the ability to recover sums
already paid for up to five years from the grant date.

Read the 2018 Directors’ Remuneration Policy at
rentokil-initial.com/investors/governance
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the members of Rentokil Initial plc

1. Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the Financial Statements of Rentokil Initial pic

{the Company) together with its subsidiaries {the Group) for the year
ended 31 December 2018 which comprise the Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Consoiidated
Balance Sheet, Canselidated Statement of Changes in Equity,
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, Company Balance Sheet and
Company Statement of Changes in Equity, and the related notes,
including the accounting policies in the General Accounting Policies.

In our opinion:

© The Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the state of
the Group’s and of the parent Company’s affairs as at 31 Decembper
2019 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended.

© The Group Financial Statements have been propetly prepared
in accordance with Internationai Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted hy the European Union.

© The Parent Company Financial Statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including
FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

© The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group Financial Statements, Article 4 of the |AS Reguiation,

Basis for cpinion

We conducted our gudit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (UK} (ISAs (UK}) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
are described below. We believe that the audit evidence we

have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.
Our audit opinion is consistent with our report to the Audit Commitiee.

We were first appointed as auditor by the shareholders in August
2009. The period of total uninterrupted engagement is for the

1 financial years ended 31 December 2012, We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and we remain independent of the
Group in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the
FR(C Ethical Standard as applied lo lisled public interest entities.
No non-audit services prohibited by that standard were provided.

2. Key audit matters: our assessment
of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in cur professional
Jjudgement, were of most significance in the audit of the Financial
Statements and include the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by us, including
those which had the greatest effect on: the overail audit strategy; the
allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the
engagement teamn. We summarise below the key audit matters, in
decreasing order of audit significance, in arriving at our audit opinion
above, together with our key audit procedures to address those
matters and, as required for public interest entities, ouy rasults from
those procedures. These matters were addressed, and our results are
based on procedures undertaken, in the context of, and solely for the
purpose of, our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and consequently are incidental to that
opinion, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Overview

Materiality:
Group Financial
Statements

as awhole

£12m (2018: £11m)

4.7% {2018: 4.8%) of Group
normalised profit before tax

Coverage

76% (2018; 85%) of
Group prafit befare tax

Key audit matters

vs 2018

Recurring risks Impairment assessment and testing
of cash-generating units that

include goodwill

Provision of tax risks °

Parent Company Recoverability of investments
specific risk in subsidiary undertakings and
inter-company receivables

More information

© Audit Committee Report on pages 81to 87
© Financial Statements from page 122

fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
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The risk

Qur response

Impairment assessment
and testing of cash-
generating units that
include goodwill

£1,359,9m
(2018: £1,156.8m)

Read more:
Audit Committee Report
on pages 810 87

Accounting policy
on pages 145 to 147

Financial disclosures
on pages 145 to 147

Forecast-based valuation

The Group has a significant carrying amount of goodwill
which is spread across a range of cash-generating units
{CGUs} in different countries. This is related to numerous
past and recent acquisitions, spread across the Group’s
geography. The majority of the acquisitions are small
and are integrated into the existing CGUs.

Avalue-in-use model is used for impairment testing

for each CGU. The estimation of the value in use of the
CGUs requires significant judgement due to the inherent
uncertainty involved with forecasting and discounting
future cash flows particularly in relation to discount
rates, long-term growth rates, and forecast cash flows.
Changes to the assumptions applied to the model,

for example a change in the discount rate or to forecast
cash flows, have the potential to significantly affect the
impairment testing results,

Some markets are more sensitive to changes in input
than others, and could be negatively impacted by market
events. We have found that the Indian market has
experienced a lower than expected growth rate which
could impact the carrying amount of goodwill allocated
to PCI. Similarly, the subdued UK property market could
impact the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the
Peter Cox CGU.

The effect of these matters is that, as part of our risk
assessment, we determined that the value In use of
CGUs has a high degree of estimation uncertainty, with
a potential range of reasonable outcomes greater than
our materiality for the Financial Statements as a whole.

Cur procedures included:

© review of impairment models: evaluating the principles
and integrity of the Group’s discounted cash flow
models and assumpticns used, in particular these
relating to forecast revenue growth and profit margins;

© historical comparisons: evaluating historical forecasting
accuracy of key inputs including revenue growth and
profit margins;

© benchmarking assumptions: comparing the Group's
assumptions to externally derived data in relation 1o key
inputs such as long-term growth rates and discount rate
assumptions;

© sensitivity analysis: performing sensitivity analysis over
the key assumptions noted above to identify which
assumptions have the most significant effect on the
headroom available;

© re-performance: we used our corporate finance
specialists to recalculate and challenge the discount
rates used by the Group in their impairment model, this
is done using external and internal data;

© test of details: identifying specific CGUs with possible
risks of impairment based on historical forecast
accuracy, sensitivity to changes in key assumptions and
market conditicns where the businesses operate and
specifically challenging the Group’s valuations for these
CGUs; and

© assessing transparency: considering whether the
Group's disclosures of the effect of changes in key
assumptions on the valuation of goodwill are
appropriate.

Qur results

We found the resuiting estimate of the recoverable amount
of the CGUs which contain goodwill 1o be acceptable
(2018 result: acceptable).

Provision for tax risks
£63.4m (2018: £59.7m)

Read more:
Audit Committee Report
on pages 8110 87

Account/ng policy
on pages 141 to 142

Financial disciosures
on pages 141 1o 142

Subjective estimate

The Group helds & number of provisions for tax risks
which arise in the normal course of business. The single
largest provision relates to a financing structure which
has been challenged by tax authorities. The Group
operates in a number of tax jurisdictions causing
complexities in transfer pricing and other international
tax legislation issues. In addition, tax matters usually
take a significant length of time to be agreed with the
tax authorities and, as such, the recognition of these
tax provisions requires judgements and estimates to
be made in respect of the likely outcemes of the tax
authority investigations.

The effect of these matters is that, as part of cur risk
assessment, we determined that provisions for tax risks
have a high degree of estimation uncertainty, with a
potential range of reasonable outcomes greater than
our materiality for the Financial Statements as a whole.

Cur procedures included:

© our tax expertise: using our international and local tax
team’s knowledge and experience to assess the Group’s
tax position, its correspondence with relevant tax
authorities, and to analyse and challenge the
assumptions used to determine tax provisions based
on our knowledge and experience of application of
international and local legislation by the relevant
authorities and courts; and

© assessing transparency: assessing the adequacy
of Group’s disclosures in respect of tax liabilities
and uncertain tax provisions.

Our results
We found the level of tax provisioning and level of
disclesures to be acceptable (2018 result: acceptable).

Parent Company
financial statements

Recoverability of
investments in subsidiary
undertakings and
inter-company
receivables

Investments £280.3m
{2018: £277.6m)

Inter-company
receivables £2,509.8m
(2018: £2,509.8m)

Low risk, high value

The carrying amount of the Company’s investments in
subsidiaries and inter-company receivables represent
91% of the Company’s total assets.

we do not consider the recoverability of these
investments and inter-company receivables to be a
high risk of significant misstatement, or to be subject
to a high level of jJudgement. However, due to their
materiality in the context of the Company Financial
Statements as a whole, this is considered to be the
area which had the greatest effect on our overall audit
strategy and allocation of resources in planning and
completing our Company audit.

Our procedures included:

© test of detail: comparing a sample of the investment
carrying values and inter-company receivables to net
assets of the relevant subsidiary to identify whether the
net assets of the subsidiaries, being an approximation
of their minimum recoverable amount, were in excess
of the carrying amount.

Our results

We found the carrying value of investments and the
recoverability of intercompany receivables to be
acceptable (2018 result: acceptable).

We continue to perform procedures over recognition and measurement of UK deferred tax assets on unused tax losses. However, due to
improvement in forecast of UK taxable profits, we have not assessed this as one of the most significant risks in our current year audit and,
therefore, it is not separately identified in our repert this year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
continued

3. Our application of materiality and an
overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the Group Financial Statements as a whole was set at
£12m (2018: £11m) determined with reference to a benchmark of Group
prefit before tax, normalised to exclude profits on the sale of Hantei
and losses on disposal of PCL MPCL and Cannon as disclosed in
Note B6, of £251.3m (2018 Group loss before tax, normalised to
exclude pension settlement costs, of £227.5m), of which it represents
4,7% (2018: 4.8%). Materiality for the Parent Company Financial
Statements as a whole was set at £2m (2018 £8.2m), determined

with reference to a benchmark of total assets, of which it represents
0.1% (2018: 0.3%) of total assets.

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any corrected or
uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding £0.35m (2018:
£0.3m), in addition to other identified misstatements that warranted
reporting an gualitative grounds.

The audit work was performed by 15 audit teams in 14 different
coLntries covering 94 {2018: 96} reporting components, We subjected
58 (2018: 60) reporting components to full scope audits for Group
purposes and 36 (2018: 36) reporting components to specified audit
risk-focused audit procedures.

The reporting components within the scope of our work accounted
for the percentages ilusirated opposite.

The remaining reporting components not in scope for Group audit
purposes (26% of total Group revenue, 24% of Group loss/profit before
tax and 24% of total Group asseis) were individually insignificant
reporting components, none of which individually represented more
than 4% of any of total Group revenue, Group loss/profit before tax

of total Group assets. We performed analysis at a Group levelto
re-examine our assessment that there were no significant risks

of materlal misstatement within these remaining components.

The Group team instructed component auditors as to the significant
areas to be covered, including the relevant risks detalled above and
the information to be reperted back, The Group team approved the
companant materialities, which ranged from £0.2m te £7.0m (2018:
£0.1m ta £5.5m), having regard to the mix of size and risk profile of the
Group across the compenents. The work on 68 of the 84 components
(2018: 66 of the $6 components) was performed by component
auditars and the rest, including the audit of the Parent Company,

was performed by the Group team.

Video and telephone conference meetings were held with these
component auditors and all others that were not physically visited.
The Group team also did physical visits to the US, UK and France
during the year. At these visits and meetings, the findings reported
to the Group team were discussed in more detail. The Greup audit
team performed audit file reviews of all component auditors and
any further work required by the Group team was then performed
by the component auditors,
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4. We have nothing to report on going concern

The Directors have prepared the Financial Statements on the going
cencern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the Cempany or the
Group or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that
the Company’s and the Group’s financial position means that this

is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their abiilty
to continue as a going cancern for at least a year from the date of
approval of the Financial Statements (the going concern period).

Cur responsibility is to conclude on the appropriateness of the
Directors’ conclusions and, had there been a material uncertainty
related to going concern, to make reference to that in this audit report.
However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as
subsequent events may result in outcomes that are inconsistent with
judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the
absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor’s repart
is not a guarantee that the Group and the Company will continue

in operation.

In our evaluaticn of the Directors' conclusions, we considered the
inherent risks to the Group's and Company's business model and
analysed how those risks might affect the Group's and Company’s
financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going
concern period. The risks that we considered most likely to adversely
affect the Group’s and Company's available financial resources over
this period were:

© potential slowdown in the economies of some regions due to
changes in the economic cycle;

© integration risk in relation to acquisitions to the existing business;
and

© the increased risk of rising interest rates impacting future debt cost.

As these were risks that could potentially cast significant doubt on the
Group’s and the Company’s ability te continue as a geing cencern, we
considered sensltivities over the level of available financial resources
indicated by the Group’s financial forecasts taking account of
reasonably poessible (but not unrealistic) adverse effects that could
arise from these risks individually and collectively and evaluated the
achievability of the actions the Directors consider they would take to
improve the position should the risks materialise. We also considered
less predictable but realistic second order impacts, such as the impact
of Brexit and the erosion of customer or supplier confidence, which
could result In a rapid reduction of available financial resources,

Based on this work, we are required to report to you if:

© we have anything materia! to add or draw attention to in relation to
the Directors’ statement in the General accounting policies Note to
the Financial Statements on the use ofthe geing concern basis of
accounting with no material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt over the Group and Company's use of that basis for a period
of at least 12 months frem the date of approval of the Financial
Statements; or

© the relatad statement under the Listing Rules set out on page 181
is materially inconsistent with our audit knowledge.

We have nothing to reportin these respects, and we did not identity
going concern as a key audit matter.

5. We have nothing to report on the other
information in the Annual Report

The Directors are responsible for the other information presented in
the Annual Report together with the Financial Statements. Our opinion
on the Financial Statements does net cover the other information and,
accordingly, we do not express an audit opinicn or, except as explicitly
stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Qur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether, based on our Financial Statements audit work, the
information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the
Financial Statements or our audit knowledge. Based soclely on that
work we have not identified material misstatements in the other
information.
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Strategic Report and Directors’ Report
Based sotely on our work on the other information:

© we have not identified material misstaternents in the Strategic
Report and the Directors’ Report;

© in our opinion the infermation given in these reports for the financial
year is consistent with the Financial Statements; and

©in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006.

Directors’ Remuneration Report

In our opinion the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and longer-term viability
Based on the knowledge we acquired during our Financial Statements
audit, we have nothing material to add or draw attention to In

refation to:

© the Directors’ confirmation within the Directors’ viability statement
on page 60 that they have carried cut a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Group, including those that weuld threaten
its business model, future performance, sclvency and liquidity;

© the Principal risks disclosures describing these risks and explaining
how they are being managed and mitigated; and

© the Directors’ explanation in the Directors’ vigbility staterment of
how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what
period they have done so and why they considered that period
to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have
a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue
in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period
of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing
attention to any necessary gualifications or assumptions.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors’
viabllity statement. We have nothing to report in this respect.

Our werk is limited to assessing these matters in the context of only
the knowledge acquired during our financiat statements audit. As we
cannct predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent
events may result in outcomes that are Inconsistent with judgments
that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of
anything to report on these statements s not a guarantee as to the
Group’s and Company's longer-term viability,

Corporate governance disclosures
We are required tc report to you if:

© we have identified material inconsistencies between the knowledge
we acquired during our Financial Statements audit and the
Directors’ statement that they consider that the Annual Report and
Financial Statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group’s pesition and performance,
business madel and strategy; or

© the section of the Annual Report describing the work of the Audit
Committee does not appropriately address matters communicated
by us to the Audit Committee.

We are required to report to you if the Corporate Governance
Statement does not properly disclose a departure from the provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified by the Listing Rules
for our review.

We have nothing to report In these respects.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
continued

6. We have nothing to report on the other
matters on which we are required to report
by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are reguired to reéport to you if,
in our opinion:

O adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not vistted by us; or

© the Parent Company Financial Statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

© certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are
not made; or

© we have naot received all the informaticn and explanations we
require for our audit,

We have nothing te report in these respects.

7. Respective responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 181,

the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the Financial
Statements including being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view; such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of Financial Statements that are free from material
misstatemeant, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Group and
Parent Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the
Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Financial Statoments os a whole aie Niee from matenal misstatement,
whether due to fraud or other irregularities {see below), or error,

and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs {UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud,
other iiregularities or error and are considered material if, individually
or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence

the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Financial
Staterments.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the
FRC's website at frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

Irregularities — ability to detect

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably

be expected to have a material effect on the Financial Statements
from our general commarcial and sector experience, and through
discussion with the Directors and other management {as required

by auditing standards). and from inspection of the Group's regulatary
and legal correspondence and discussed with the Directors and

other management the policies and procedures regarding compliance
with laws and regulations, We communicated identified laws and
regulations throughout cur team and remained alert to any indications
of non-compliance throughout the audit. This included commurication
from the Group to component audit teams of relevant laws and
regulations identified at Group leve!.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the Financial
Statements varies considerably.
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Firstly, the Group is subject to laws and regulations that directly
affect the Financial Statements, including financial reporting
legislation {including related companies legislation), distributable
profits legisiation and taxation jegisiation, and we assessed the
extent of compliance with these laws and reguiations as part

of our procedures on the related Financial Statement items.

Secondiy, the Group is subject to many other laws and regulations
where the consequences of non-compliance could have a material
effect on amounts or disclosures in the Financial Statements, for
instance through the imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the
Group’s licence to operate. We identified the following areas as those
most likely to have such an effect: health and safety, anti-bribery,
employment law, environmentai law and certain aspects of company
legislation recognising the nature of the Group’s activities. Auditing
standards limit the required audit procedures to identify
non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the
Directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and
legal carrespondence, if any.

Qwing to the inherent imitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable
risk that we may not have detected some material misstatements

in the Financial Statements, even though we have properly planned
and performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards,

For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regu'ations {irregularities) is from the events and transactions
reflected in the Financial Statements, the less likely the inherently
limited procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.
In addition, as with any audit, there remained & higher risk of
non-detection of irreguiarities, as these may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional emissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
controls. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance and
cannct be expected to detect non-compiiance with all laws and
regulations.

8. The purpose of our audit work and to whom
we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body,

in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
ather than the Company and the Company’s members, as a body,

for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

A AL@.LNZ,

Michael Maleney {Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

26 February 2020
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Financial Review

Revenue

Ongeing Revenue, which excludes disposed
husinesses, increased by B.6% In 2018, with
all regions contributing to growth. Organic
Revenue growth of 4,5% was our highest
level of annual growth in 15 years and in
excess of our medium-term financial target
of 3% to 4% growth p.a. Organic growth in
H2Z was 4 8%, with 4.1% in Q4 versus 4.7%

in Q4 2018, Acquisitions performed well
during the period, contributing 4.,1% to
Ongoing Revenue growth.

Ongeing Revenue in Pest Control grew by
10.8% during the year (4.9% Organic) with
good performances being delivered across
both Growth and Emerging markets, which
rose by 10.5% and 12.7% respectively.
Hyglene reported increased revenues of
5.8%, up 4.3% on an Organic basis, aided
by strong performances from our Pacific,
UK and Europe operations and ongoing
good contributions from the Cannon and
CWS transactions. Ongoing Revenue in our
Protect & Enhance businesses increased
by 3.5% (3.2% Organic), reflecting improved
performances in France Workwear, Ambius
and UK Property Care.

Total Revenue of £2,682.8m rose by B.5%
at constant exchange rates (CER) and

by 9.8% at actual exchange rates (AER),
reflecting growth across all main regions
and business categories.
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Profit

Ongoing Operating Profit, which excludes the
results of disposed businesses, increased by
10.5% in the year to £365.5m, again reflecting
growth across all five regions. This resulted

in an increase in Net Operating Margins to
13.8% — driven by improvementin a number
of key regions and in particular our North
American business; but held back shightly

by an increase in central costs of £7m,
reflecting the impact of the increase in

our share price on long-term incentive

plans {LTIP) costs. Ongoing Operating Profit
benefited by c.£3.5m from the implementation
of IFRS 16 which was adopted from 1 January
2019. Restructuring costs amounted ta

£7.5m at CER (2018: £7.2m} consisting mainly
of costs in respect of inftiatives focused

on driving operational efficiency across

ali regions.

Adjusted profit before tax at AER of £340.9m,
which excludes the impact of one-off items,
increased by 10.7%, reflecting growth in all
aperating regions. Adjusted interest costs
were £3.6m lower than last year despite the
adverse impact of £3.5m from the
implementation of IFRS 16.

COne-off items at AER netto a charge of
£14.6m, which inciudes £25.2m of acquisition
integration costs, a gain of £17.4m in respect
of the UK Defined Benefit Pension Scheme
buy-out process and a non-cash adjustrent
of £7m to the holding value of the Capnon UK
and MPCL acquisiticns. intangible asset
amartisation at AER of £85.2m increased by
£23.6m as a result of the M&A programme,
resulting in profit before tax at actual
exchange rates of ©338.5m.

oo

During the year we acquired
30 pest control businesses,
eight hygiene businesses
and three Ambius cperations,
generating annualised
revenues in the year prior

te burchase of £137m.
Jeremy Townsend

Chief Financia! Officer

Cash (at AER)

Free Cash Flow increased by £58.7m

to £250.7m, deiivering Free Casn Flow
conversion of 98.6% for the year. The
increase was principally driven by a £36.1m
increase in Adjusted Operating Profit and

an increase in dividends received from

the now disposed CWS-boco International
GmioH of £18.0m. Post the implementation
of IFRS 16 from the start of 2019, depreciation
and capital expenditure have both increased
but they offset and the netimpact was
broadly cash neutral.

Cash spent on current and prior year
acquisitions totalled £316.5m, offset by
proceeds from disposals of £391.9m.
Combined with dividend payments of

285 8m — an £11.6m, 15.6% intrease on the
pricr year — this resulted in an undetlying
decrease in net debt of £240.3m, The
adoption of IFRS 16, which added £184.0m
of lease obligations to net debt at 1 January
2019, together with foreign exchange
transiation and other items, led to an
overall decrease in net debt of £80.5m
and closing net debt of £1,073.0m.
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Ongoing Operating Profit growth'
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Strong and sustainable delivery of
Free Cash Flow, ¢.90% conversion?® {(AER}

+8.6% growth in Ongoing Revenue,
+4,5% Organic

+10.5% growth in Ongoing Operating Profit

Free Cash Flow of £250.7m, 98.6% cash
conversion over last 12 months

1. Ongoing Revenue and Ongoing Operating Profit exclude the results of disposed businesses. Ongoing Operating Profit and Adjusted Profit Before Tax
Amortisation exclude certain items that could distort the underlying trading performance. Charts calculated on a 12-month trailing basis.
2. Adjusted cash flow conversion on a trailing 12-month basis.

M&A

2019 was anocther excellent year for M&A,
with 41 acquisitions 'n 23 countries and the
divestment in July of cur 17.8% stake in the
joint venture (JV} with Franz Haniel & Cie.
GmbH {Haniel). During the year we acquired
30 pest control businesses, eight hygiene
husinesses and three Ambius operations,
generating annualised revenues in the year
prior to purchase of £137m. Total spend,
including prior year acguisitions, was
£316.5m. Countries in which we have
acquired new businesses include Australia,
Brazil, Canada, Chile, Colombia, Costa Rica,
Dominican Republic, Dutch Antilles, Finland,
France, Greece, Indonesia, Malaysia, Poland,
Spain, Tanzania, Thailand, UK and US.

We also entered new markets of Jordan,

Sri Lanka and Uruguay.

in July 2017 the Group’s Workwear and
Hygiene assets principally in Germany and
Benelux were transferred into a JV with
Hanie! for a cash consideration of €520m
and a retained 17.8% share in the JV.

On 30 July 2019 we agreed to sell cur
rermaining stake in the JV to Haniel for

a cash consideration of €430m. There is

no tax on disposal. Together with the initial
consideration for transferring the businesses
into the JV of €520m and dividends received
since its formation of c€£29m, the transaction
has realised a total cash return of €979m.
The proceeds from the sale have been

used to reduce debt and support the

Group's M&A programme.

Our recent acquisitions continue to
perform at or above cur required hurdle
rates. Going forward we will continue to

execute a differentiated and disciplined
approach to capital investment and M&A,
with clear IRR hurdles by business Iine.

We will continue to seek further acguisition
opportunities for 2020 and the pipeline

of prospects remains strong. We have
made a good start to 2020 and, given

the continued strength of our pipeline,

our anticipated spend on M&A in 2020 is
expected to be n the region of c.£250m.

Regional performance

In North America Ongoing Revenue grew

by 1.4% to £1,040.3m ($1,385.8m), of which
5.9% was growth through acquisition and 4.5%
was Organic {in line with our Organic growth
target of 4% to 5% p.a)). Pest Control grew
11.9% (+4.4% Organic), improving on the 3.8%
Organic growth in 2018, but performance for
the year was held back by unusually wet
weather conditions in certain paris of the
country in the second quarter. Ongeing
Operating Profit growth of 15.3% reflects the
combined impact from higher revenues and
acquisitions, 14 pest control and two Ambius
businesses were acquired n the region in
2019 —including Florida Pest Control, a top 20
pest control company in the US,— with
combined annualised revenues of ¢ $135m
(¢.£101Tm} In the year prior to purchase,
considerably ahead of c.$53m (c.£41m})
revenues acquired during 2018.

Our stated ambition for our North America
business is for It to become a $1.5bn revenue
husiness by the end of 2020 and to deliver
18% Net Operating Margin by the end of 2021.
This year has seen very good progress
towards our revenue target as noted above
and, given our progress in Organic growth and

acquisitions in 2019, we remain confidentin
achieving our $1.5bn revenues target in 2020.

We are making good progress towards
our target of 18% Net Cperating Margin
in North America by the end of 2021.

Net Operating Margin improved by 50
basis points in 2019 to 14.2%, supported
by stronger Organic Revenue growth,
syrergies from acquisitions beginning to
flow through and savings in property and
procurement from our Best of Breed cost
savings programme, partially offset by a
greater mix of lower margin product sales.

As we have previously discussed, in addition
to operational leverage from increased
density, a key dependency for delivery of
this margin target is the re-platforming of our
IT infrastructure. The key first step in our IT
programme is creating a consistent platform
across the country. We transferred all of our
data from the business into the cloud in 2019
and the large majority of the business is now
on a standard operating system. We also
migrated 16 acquisitions onte our core
operating system in 2019. Having data in
one place and a consistent infrastructure
delivers cost benefits in its own right through
reduced back office costs and more effective
management, The re-platforming also
critically allows us to deploy our Group
applications across the North America
region in the key areas of service, sales and
customer communications over the next 12
to 18 months. The implementation of these
applications enables the delivery of Best

of Breed margin benefits in 2020 and 2021
meaning that our journey to 18% margin

by 2021is weighted towards the end of

this period.
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Financial Review
continued

Ongoing Revenue for BEurope rose by 71%
(+4.8% Organic), refleciing an excellent
performance in Germany (+12.6%), continued
strong growth in southern Europe (+4.6%) and
an improved periormance in Benelux

and France, which grew by 6.2% and 4.6%
respectively. Latin America, which is reported
within the Europe region, once again
performed well with Ongoing Revenue
growth of 20.5%. Ongoing Revenue from
our European Hygiene operations grew by
5.2% (3.2% Organic), benefiting from strorg
performances across the region. Gngoing
Revenue from our Pest Control businesses
grew by 11.3%, reflecting a 4.6% uplift in
growth from acquisitions and strong Qrganic
growth of 6.7%, attributable te a particularly
strong performance from our Garman
operations. Ongoing Cperating Profit for
the Furope region grew by 8.3%, with strong
growth in scuthern Europe, Germany and
Benelux. Net Operating Margins for the
Europe region increased by 20 basis poinis
t0 19.3%. The region acquired 11 businesses
in Europe and Latin America in the period
(three in Hyglene and eight in Pest Control)
with total combined annualised revenues

of c.£13m in the year prior to purchase.

The UK & Rest of World region delivered

a very strong performance, with an overail
increase in Ongoing Revenue of 6.3%,
comprising acquisition growth of 1.5% and
Organic Revenue growth of 4.8%. The region
delivered continued excellent growth from
UK Pest Contrel and Hygiene, which grew
organically by 0.3% ond 7.9% respectively,
with Pest Control benefiting from large
contract wins, high levels of customer
service, impraved customer retention

and one-off contracts. The Rest of World
operations delivered good Ongoing Revenue
graweth of 7.0% with contributions acrass

all of its regicnal ¢lusters in the Nordics,
Caribbean, Sub-Saharan Africa and MENAT.
Overall Ongoing Operating Profit for the
region grew by 9.3%, reflecting the higher
revenues. Net Operating Margins for the UK
& Rest of World region were 0.6% points
higher at 22.0%, reflecting profit
improvements in UK Property Care. During
the year the region acguired thiee hygiene,
two pest control and one Ambius business
with total acquired annualised revenues in
the 12 months prior to acqulsition of c.£3m.

The Asia region has once again performed
well in 2019 with Ongeing Revenue
increasing by 11.1% (+4.7% Organic Revenue
growih) with both Pest Control and Hygiene
trading well. Gur operations in Indonesia
delivered an outstanding performance, with
Ongoing Revenue growth of 40.3% (Pest
Control: 58.2%, Hygiene: 19.7%) and Organic
Revenue growth of 141% {Pest Control: 201%,
Hygiene 7.2%). Acquisitions contributed
26.2% of growth. Ongoing Operating Profit
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in Asia grew by 11.1%. Progress on the
integration of Pest Control Private Limited
{PC), our 2017 acquisition in India, has

heen steady although the leverage on the
combined business has been lower than we
would have expected atthis stage. We are
confident that a strong platform for growth
has now been established for 2020 and
beyond. Asia Net Operating Margins were
inline with prior year at 10,3%, held back by
margins in Singapore which were adversely
impacted by wage inflation, a slowdown in
jobbing work and key accounts negotiations.
Four pest control businesses and two
hygiene businesses were acquired

in 2019 In (ndonesia, Malaysia, Sii Lanka
and Thailand, with combined annualised
revenues of c.£17m.

ir the Pacific regien Ongoing Revenue grew
by 2.6%, (+2.3% Organic), driven by solid
performances across our core Pest Control
and Hygiene categories. Our Hygiene
operations in Australia delivered a notably
good performance in the period, reflecting
the impact of new customer wins in 2018 and
2019. However, Pest Contro| was impacted
by a decline in fumigation activity - in part
due to a change in fumigation regulations
which now means that inbound shipments
are increasingly being treated at the point

of their departure instead of on arrival into
the region — along with a consolidation of
operating centres. Ongoing Operating Profit
in the region grew by 2.5% and Net Operating
Margins declined by 0.1% pnints reflecting
fumigation impacts. Two small pest control
businesses were acquired in Australia with
annualised revenues of c.£2m in the year
prior to acquisition.

Our share of Profits from Associates at AER
amounted to £15.2m (2018: £19.6m), £7.0m
(2018: £12.1m} relating te our JV with Hariel
and £8.2m {2018: £72.5m) to our Japanese
associate, Following the disposa! of our
remaining stake in the JV with Haniel in
July 2019 there will be no further profit
contributicns from this business, For the

12 months ended 31 December 2019 the
JV with Haniel contributed £9.4m (2018:
£16.9m) of Adjusted Profit and £7.0m
(£12.7m) after integration costs, goodwill
amortisation and tax.

Central and regional
overheads

Central and regional overheads of £78.4m

at CER were £7.0m higher than prior year
(2018: £71.4m) reflecting continued
investment to support the Group’s innovation
and digital programme and the impact of
increased LTIP costs given the improvement
in the Company’s share price.

Restructuring costs

With the exception of integration costs for
significant acquisitions, the Company reports
restructuring costs within operating profit.
Costs associated with significam acquisitions
are reported as one-off items and excluded
from operating profit.

Restructuring costs of £7.5m at CER (2018:

£7.2mj) consisted mainly of costs in respect
of initiatives focused on driving operationai
efficiency in all regions.

One-off items (at AER)

One-off items of £14.6m at AER Include
£25.2m of acquisition and integration costs,
a gain of £174m in respect of the UK Defined
Benefit Pension Scheme buy-out process
and a non-cash adjustment of £7m o the
holding value of the Cannen UK and MPCL
acquisitions.

UK Defined Benefit Pension
Scheme buy-out

In December 2018 the Company reached
agreement for a butk annuity insurance
buy-in far its UK Defined Benefit Pension
Scheme ("the Scheme’) with Pensions
Insurance Corporation. The buy-in has been
secured in contemplation of a full buy-cut and
winding up of the Scheme which is expected
to complete in 2020. Good progress towards
buy-out is being made and we now anticipate
a pre-tax cash surplus of £36m to be returned
1o the Company on completion in 2020.
During the year adiustments of £17.4m were
made to provisional amounts included in the
original price and this has been recorded

as a gain within one-off items.



Interest (at AER)

Adjusted Interest of £42.1m was £3.6m lower
than in the prior year, including £3.5m from
the adoption of IFRS 16. The adoption of IFRS
16 at the start of the year has increased the
reported interest charge by ¢ £6.5m. This is
a non-cash change and is in excess of the
operating profit benefit frem IFRS 16 of
c.£3.5m. The difference of c.£3.0m has
therefore been added back when arriving

at the Group’s adjusted interest charge

to aid year-on-year comparability.

Tax

The income tax charge for the year at AER
was £54.7m on the reported profit before tax
of £338.5m. After adjusting the reported
profit before tax for the amortisation and
impairment of intangible assets (excluding
computer software}, one-off items and the
profit on the disposal of the Haniel JV, the
Adjusted Effective Tax Rate (ETR} for 2019
at AER was 21.6% (2018: 21.8%}. This
compares with a blended rate of tax for
the countries In which the Group operates
of 23% (2018 22%).

For more information on our tax strategy,
see page 53.

Net debt and cash flow

Operating cash inflow {£343.1m at AER for
continuing operations) was £59.6m higher
than in 2018 principally driven by a £36.1m
increase in Adjusted Operating Profit and an
increase in dividends received from the now
disposed 17.8% interest in CWS-boco
International GmbH of £18.0m. Depreciation
and capital expenditure have both increased
due to the Impiementation of IFRS 16 from the
start of the year but they offset and the net
impact was broadly cash neutral.

Interest payments of £48.1m are £2.8m higher
than in the prior year and tax payments
decreased by £1.9m, both reflecting the
phasing of payments versus the prior year.
This resulted in Free Cash Flow from
continuing operations of £250.7m, an
increase of £58.7m on the prior year,
delivering an adjusted Free Cash Flow
conversion of 98.6% for the last 12 months.

slidleygit KeporL

Funding

In May 2019 the Group issued a8 €500m
bond maturing on 30 May 2026 with a
coupon of 0.875%. The proceeds were used
to refinance the £500m bond that matured
on 24 September 2019, In August the Group’s
revolving credit facility (RCF) was extended
to 2024 using one of the two cne-year
extension options. Following the successful
refinancing of the September 2019 bond,
the Group reduced the commitment under
its RCF by £50m to £550m.

As at 31 December the Group had £737m of
centrally held funds and available undrawn
committed facilities. The ratio of net debt to
EBITDA at 31 December was 1.8x, including
the estimated full-year impact of IFRS 16
{1.7% excluding IFRS 16).

We remain committed to maintaining a BBB
credit rating and, based on cur expectations
for 2020, we are confident in doing sc.

Going concern

The Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the accounts on
the basis that the Group’s strong liquidity
position and ability to reduce capital
expenditure or expenditure on bolt-on
acquisitions are sufficient to meet the
Group's forecast funding needs, including
those modelled in a downside case.

Dividend policy

The Group adopts a progressive dividend
policy with dividend payments related to the
level of Free Cash Flow available. The Group
aims to pay dividends twice a year and the
level of each dividend is decided by the
Board. When determining the level of
dividend each year, the Board considers

the following:

© cash generation in the year and forecast
future cash generation;

© cash availability at the point of dividend
distribution; and

© cash required to invest in capital
expenditure and acquisitions.

Following an encouraging performance n
2019, the Board is recommending a final
dividend in respect of 2019 of 3.64p per
share, payable to shareholders on the
register at the close of business on 14 April
2020, to be paid on 20 May 2020. This
equates to a full-year dividend of 5.15p
per share, an increase of 15.2% compared
with 2018.

To read more Information about dividends for
sharehclders, see page 183.
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Coronavirus

Following the outbreak of the coronavirus
{COVID-19) cur priority has been the health
and safety of our colleagues, and we are
taking all possible actions to support them.,
To date, the main impact of the virus has
been on our operatiens in China. In other
parts of the Group customer enquiries for
hand-washing and hand-sanitising services
are strong. At this point in time we would
expect only a small netimpact on the
business in G1. We are moenitoring the
situation very closely, looking to mitigate
the risk of the impact that the virus may
have on our colleagues, customers and
supply chain. The majority of products
sourced from suppliers in China are
covered by existing stocks for the next
few months. Should the situation continue
for an extended period or become materially
worse, this could cbviously have a more
negative impact during the rest of the year

Brexit

We are a global business with ¢.80% of
revenues derived from cutside the UK and
with minimal cross-border trading. The global
economic environment, and in particular the
Brexit arrangements, continues to drive
uncertainty with high levels of volatility in
exchange and commeodity markets and with
international trading arrangements potentially
subject to significant change. We continue
to monitor the potential implications of
geopolitical change on our trading and
financing environment and in relation to
Brexit we have taken measures to ensure
we: have access to adequate stock and
equipment in both the UK and Europe

in 2020. We remain of the view that the
defensive nature of our core categories,
combined with the geographic lecation

and spread of our operations, place us in

a relatively strong position to mitigate such
risks geing forward and to take advantage
of any potential epportunities that the
changes may bring.

j 6\«

- ’\/\.A.,j
Jeremy Townsend
Chief Financial Officer

-

| W

26 February 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December

2018 2018
Notes £m £ra
Revenue Al 2,M4.4 24723
Operating profit £~ 265.6 2455
Net gain on disposals Al 103.8 -
Pensian settlement? - {3416)
Profit/{loss) before interest and income tax 369.4 {96
Finance income 8 107 176
Finance cost Cc7 (56.8} {55.2)
Share of profit from associates, net of tax of £7.0m {2018: £8.9m) BS 15.2 198
Profit/{toss) before income tax 3385 M4y
Income tax {expensel/credit® A12 (54.7) 15.8
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable te the Company’s equity helders (including profit from
non-controlling interests of £¢.3m (2018: £0.2m}) 283.8 (98.3)
Other comprehensive income:
fterns that are not reclassified subsequently to the income statement:
Remeasurement of net defined benefit asset A0 {5.9) 304
Tax related to items taken to ather comprehensive income Atd 04 {10.2}
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently to the income statement:
Net exchange adjustments offset in reserves (38.9) 14.9
Cumuliative exchange recycled to income statement on disposal of foreign operations (4.9) -
Other items (0.5) 8.5
Total comprehensive income for the year (including profit from non-controlling interests of £0.3m
(2018: £0.2m)} 234.5 (54.0)
Earnings per share attributable to the Company's equity holders:
Basic A2 15.33p {(5.35)p
Diluted A2 15.24p {5.35)p
All profit is from continuing operations.
Non-GAAP measures shown hejow are explained in furlher detatt in Section E: Alternative Performance Measures.
Non-GAAP measures
Operating profit 265.6 2455
Adjusted for:
Amortisation and Impairment of intangible assets {exciuding computer software) Al 85.2 €16
Cne-off items — operating Al 4.6 222
Adjusted operating profit 365.4 3293
Finance income jat:] 10.7 176
Netinterest adjustments 4.0 (81
Finance cost c7 {56.8) (55.2
Share of profit from associates, net of tax of £7.0m (2018: £8.2m) BG 15.2 9.6
One-off items — associates 2.4 4.8
Adjusted profit before income tax 340.9 308.0
Basic adjusted earnings per share atiributable to the Company’s equity nolders AZ 14.43p 13.07p
Diluted adjusted earnings per share attiibuiable to the Company’s equity holders A2 14.34p 1297p

[

in 2019 - see note Al
. Taxation includes £48.1m (2018: £35.3m) in respect of overseas taxation.

w
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The Group has appled IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019. Under the transition method chgsen comparative information is not restated.
. Pension seltlement consists of £nil {2018: £38.4m) of past service costs and £17.4m (2018 £305 5m) of settlement costs, These seltiement costs have been recognised in one-oif costs
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
At 31 December

2018 2018'?2
Notes £€m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets B2 1,672.4 1,5091
Property, plant and equipment B3 3917 436.9
Right-of-use assets B4 221.2 -
Investments in associated undertskings B& 287 2917
Other investments Cc4 Q.3 0.2
Deferred tax assets A4 293 35
Contract costs Al 65.4 609
Retirement benefit assets A0 374 215
Other receivables A3 ) 127 10.8
Derivative financial instruments C5 76 54
2,468.7 2,3400
Current assets
Other investments c4 17 25
Inventories Al 106.5 103.2
Trade and other receivables A3 5007 4857
Current tax assets 70 161
Derivative financial instruments 5 0.2 42
Cash and cash equivalents C3 30986 129.8
az257 741.5
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables AS {(660.7) {607.9)
Current tax Habilities (72.9) {707)
Provisions for fiabilities and charges AB (25.4) (28.7)
Bank and cther shert-term borrowings? c2 {84.6) (5071)
Lease liabilities? B4 {72.0) (14.4)
Derivative financial instruments C5 (0.5) {15.8)
{915.8) {1,244.6)
Net current assets/(liabilities) Q.9 (503.)
Non-current liabilities
Other payables A5 (577 791}
Bank and other long-term borrowings? c2 {1.059.3) (716.8}
Lease liabilities? B4 (144.7) (27.3}
Deferred tax liabilities Al4 (110.8) (56.0)
Retirement benefit obligations AlD (37.5) (26.2)
Provisions for liabilities and charges AB {34.0) 42.5)
Derivative financial instruments ch5 (32.3) (16.4)
(1,476.3) (1,004.3)
Net assets 1,002.3 8326
Equity
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company's equity holders
Share capital D2 18.5 18.4
Share premium 6.8 6.8
Other reserves (1,8677) {1,824.2)
Retained earnings 2,8441 26312
1,001.7 832.2
Non-controlling interests 0.6 0.4
Total equity 1,002.3 8326

1. The Group has applied IFRS 18 at 1 January 2019. Under the transition method chosen comparative information is not restated.
2. Bank and other short/long-term barrowings have been restated at 31 December 2018 to reflact the short-term nature of the September 2019 €500m bond which was classified
as long-term, as well as separating out current and non-current lease commiiments onto separate lines.

The Financial Statements on pages 122 to 171 were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 February 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

4M~/w j | TW

Andy Ransom Jeremy Townsend
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share Share Other Retained conlr;}il?:g Total
capital premium reserves earnings Interests equity
i PR wm £m &m &m
At 1January 2018 184 6.8 {1,848 68} 27861 a3 9630
Profit for the year - - - {98.5) 0.2 {98.3)
Other comprebensive income:
Net exchange adjustments offset in reserves — — 1.9 — - 4.9
Remeasurement of net defined benefit asset/liability - - - 301 — 301
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow
hedge - - 9.5 - — 9.5
Tax related to items taken directly to other
comprehensive incomea — - -~ {10.2) - {10.2)
Total comprenensive income for the year - - 24.4 {78.6) 0.2 (54.0)
Transactions with owners:
Dividends paid to equity shareholders - - - (74.2) - (74.2)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - - - — L84 )] [bN)]
Cost of share options and long-term incentive plans - — - 57 - 57
Movement in the carrying value of put opticns - - - (7.8) - (7.8)
At 31 December 2018 18.4 6.8 (1,824.2) 2,631.2 0.4 8328
Profit for the year - - - 2835 0.3 283.8
Other comprehensive income;
Net exchange adjustments offset in reserves - - (38.9) - - (38.9)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit asset/liabiilty - - - {5.9) - {5.9)
Effective partion of changes in fair value of cash flow
hedge - - (0.5) - - (0.5)
Cumulative exchange recycled o income statement
on disposal of foreign operaticns - - 4.41) - - (4.1)
Tax related to items taken directly to other
comprehensive income - - - 01 - o4
Total comprehensive income for the year - - {43.5) 27717 0.3 2345
Transactions with owners:
Shares issued in the year 01 - (0.1 - -
Dividends paid (0 eqguity sharehalders - - - (85.8) - {B5.8)
Dividends paid to non-contrelling interests - - - - {01} (01)
Cost of share options and long-term incentive plans - - — 5.3 - 53
Tax related to items taken directly to equity - - - 24 — 2.4
Movement in the carrying value of put options - - — 13.4 - 13.4
At 31 December 2019 18.5 6.8 {1,867.7} 2,8441 0.6 1,002.3

Shares of £0.1m (2018: £0.1m) have been netted against retaired earnings. This represents 7.7m (2018: 8.2m} shares held by the Rentokil Initial
Employee Share Trust. The market value of these shares at 31 December 2019 was £35.1m (2018: £27.6m). Dividend income from, and voting

rights on, the shares neld by the Trust have heen waived.

Analysis of other reserves

Capital Cash flow
reduction Legal hedge Translation
resenve reserve reserve reserve TO‘EF
m £m £m £m £m

At 1January 2018 1,722.7) 10.4 (8.5} (127.8) {1.843.6)
Net exchange adjustments offset in reserves - - — 14.9 14.9
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedge - - 95 - 95
Total comprehensive income for the year — — 3.5 4.9 24.4
At 31 December 2018 (L7221 10.4 1.0 {n2.0) (1,824.2}
Net exchange adjustments offset in reserves - - - {38.9) (38.9)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedge - - {0.5) - (0.5)
Cumulative exchange recycled to income statement on disposal
of foreign pperations - - - (4.1) (4.1}
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (C.5) (43.0} (43.5)
At 31 December 2019 (1,722.7) 10.4 0.5 {1655.9) (1,867.7)

The capital reduction reserve arose in 2005 as a resuit of the scheme of arrangerment of Rentokil Initial 1927 plc, under section 425 of the
Companies Act 1985, to Introduice a new holding company, Rentokil Initial plc, and the subsequent reduction in capital approved by the High
Court whereby the nominal valte of each ordinary share was reduced from 100p 1o 1p.

The legal reserve represents amounts set aside In compliance with local laws in certain countries in which the Group operates.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December

2019 2018
Notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operating activities C9 554.2 4540
Interest received 10.8 77
Interest paid® (58.9) {53.0)
Income tax paid {(43.2) 451
Net cash flows from operating activities AG2.9 3638
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {140.1) (147.2)
Purchase of intangible fixed assets (30.8) (22.9)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3.2 29
Acquisition of companies and businesses, net of cash acquired® B1 (315.7) {298.4)
Disposal of companies and businesses 201.9 {34
Dividends recelved from associates B6 30.4 1.9
Net cash flows from investing activities (61.9) {456.8)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to equity shareholders D1 (B5.8) (74.2}
Capital element of lease payments {B6.3} 4.7}
Cash outflow on settlement of debt-related foreign exchange forward contracts (11.7) 5.86)
Net change to cash flow from nvestment in term deposits 0.7 {2.5}
Proceeds from new debt 433.8 256
Debt repayments (472.0) {44.3)
Net cash flows from financing activities {(221.3) {157)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 180.5 {208.9)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 100.9 3041
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and cash equivalents (7.5) b7
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year C3 2739 100.9

1. The Greup has applked IFRS 16 at 1January 2019, Under the transition method chosen camparative information is hot restated.
2. Interest paid includes interest on lease payments of £8.1m (2018 £1.5m}.
3. Includes £mil {2018 £4.0m) related to investment in working capital in acquired businesses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

General accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These Consolidated Financial Statements have